
 
This agenda is subject to revision and may be amended prior to the scheduled meeting.  Pursuant to Government Code 
section 54954.2(a)(1), the agenda for each meeting of the Board shall be posted at the City of Marina Council 
Chambers.  The agenda shall also be posted at the following locations but those locations are not official agenda 
posting locations for purposes of section 54954.2(a)(1):  District offices at 11 Reservation Road, Seaside City Hall, the 
City of Marina Library, and the City of Seaside Library.  A complete Board packet containing all enclosures and staff 
materials will be available for public review on Wednesday, May 15, 2019. Copies will also be available at the Board 
meeting.  Information about items on this agenda or persons requesting disability related modifications and/or 
accommodations should contact the Board Clerk 48 hours prior to the meeting at: 831-883-5910.  

MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT 
 

11 RESERVATION ROAD, MARINA, CA 93933-2099 

Home Page: www.mcwd.org 

TEL: (831) 384-6131    FAX: (831) 883-5995 
 

 

Agenda 
Regular Board Meeting, Board of Directors 

Marina Coast Water District 
and 

Regular Board Meeting, Board of Directors 
Marina Coast Water District Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Marina Council Chambers 
211 Hillcrest Avenue, Marina, California 
Monday, May 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m. PST 

 
 

This meeting has been noticed according to the Brown Act rules. The Board of Directors meet regularly on 
the third Monday of each month with workshops scheduled for the first Monday of some months.  The 
meetings normally begin at 6:30 p.m. and are held at the City of Marina Council Chambers at 211 Hillcrest 
Avenue, Marina, California. 

 
Our Mission: We provide our customers with high quality water, wastewater collection and 
conservation services at a reasonable cost, through planning, management and the development 
of water resources in an environmentally sensitive manner. 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Roll Call 
 
3. Public Comment on Closed Session Items Anyone wishing to address the Board 
on matters appearing on Closed Session may do so at this time.  Please limit your 
comment to four minutes.  The public may comment on any other items listed on the 
agenda at the time they are considered by the Board. 
 
4. Closed Session 
 

A. Pursuant to Government Code 54956.9 
Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation 
 
1) In the Matter of the Application of California-American Water Company 

(U210W) for Approval of the Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project and 
Authorization to Recover All Present and Future Costs in Rates, California 
Public Utilities Commission Application (“A.”) 12-04-019 

 

DIRECTORS 

 
THOMAS P. MOORE 

President 
 

JAN SHRINER 
Vice President 

 
HERBERT CORTEZ 

PETER LE 
MATT ZEFFERMAN 

 



 
2) In the Matter of the Application of California-American Water Company (U 

210 W) for an Order (1) Approving a Settlement Agreement with the County 
of Monterey and the Monterey County Water Resources Agency to Settle 
and Resolve Claims and Issues Between the Parties and to Promote the 
Development, Construction and Operation of a Water Supply Project for 
Monterey County on an Expedited Basis, and (2) Authorizing the Transfer 
of Authorized Costs Related to the Settlement Agreement to Its Special 
Request 1 Surcharge Balancing Account, California Public Utilities 
Commission Application (“A.”) 13-05-017, and related  
California Supreme Court petition for writ of review. 

 
3) City of Marina and Marina Coast Water District, Petitioners v. Public Utilities 

Commission of the State of California, Respondent (California-American 
Water Company, et al., Real Parties in Interest), Petitions for Writ of Review, 
California Supreme Court Case No. S253585 

 
4) Marina Coast Water District vs California-American Water Company, 

Monterey County Water Resources Agency; and, California-American 
Water Company, Monterey County Water Resources Agency vs Marina 
Coast Water District, San Francisco Superior Court Case Nos. CGC-15-
547125, CGC-15-546632 (Complaint for Damages, Breach of Warranties, 
etc.) 

 
5) Marina Coast Water District v, California Coastal Commission (California-

American Water Company, Real Party in Interest), Santa Cruz County 
Superior Court Case No. 15CV00267, Sixth Appellate District Court of 
Appeals Case No. H045468 

 
6) Bay View Community DE, LLC; Bryan Taylor; Greg Carter; and Brooke 

Bilyeu vs Marina Coast Water District; Board of Directors of Marina Coast 
Water District; County of Monterey and Does 1-25, inclusive, Monterey 
County Superior Court Case No. 18CV000765 (Petition for Writ of Mandate 
or Administrative Mandate, and Complaint for Declaratory and Injunctive 
Relief and Breach of Contract) 

 
7) Marina Coast Water District, and Does 1-100 v, County of Monterey, County 

of Monterey Health Department Environmental Health Bureau, and Does 
101-110, Monterey County Superior Court Case No. 18CV000816 (Petition 
for Writ of Mandate and Complaint for Injunctive Relief) 

 
B. Pursuant to Government Code 54957.6 

Conference with Labor Negotiators  
Agency Negotiators (Keith Van Der Maaten, Jan Shriner)  
Employee Organization: Marina Coast Water District Employees Association 

 
C. Pursuant to Government Code 54957.6 

Conference with Labor Negotiators  
Agency Negotiators (Keith Van Der Maaten, Jan Shriner)  
Employee Organization: Teamsters Local 890 

 



7:00 p.m.  Reconvene Open Session 

5. Reportable Actions Taken During Closed Session  The Board will announce any 
reportable action taken during closed session and the vote or abstention on that action of every director 
present, and may take additional action in open session as appropriate.  Any closed session items not 
completed may be continued to after the end of all open session items.

6. Pledge of Allegiance

7. Oral Communications Anyone wishing to address the Board on matters not appearing on the 
Agenda may do so at this time.  Please limit your comment to four minutes.  The public may comment on 
any other items listed on the agenda at the time they are considered by the Board.

8. Presentations

A. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-27 in Recognition of Thomas 
Barkhurst, Laboratory Supervisor, for 20 Years of Service to the Marina Coast 
Water District
Action: The Board will consider adopting Resolution No. 2019-27 recognizing 
Thomas Barkhurst, Laboratory Supervisor, and awarding him a gift certificate for 
twenty years of service to the Marina Coast Water District.

B. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-28 in Recognition of Susan Kiefert, 
Customer Service/Billing Representative II, for 35 Years of Service to the Marina 
Coast Water District
Action: The Board will consider adopting Resolution No. 2019-28 recognizing 
Susan Kiefert, Customer Service/Billing Representative II, and awarding her a 
gift certificate for thirty-five years of service to the Marina Coast Water District.

C. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-29 Proclaiming the Week of May 
19-25, 2019 National Public Works Week
Action: The Board will consider adopting Resolution No. 2019-29 proclaiming the 
week of May 19-25, 2019 National Public Works Week.

* * * * * 

9. Marina Coast Water District Groundwater Sustainability Agency Matters

A. Staff Report

1. Receive an Update on the 180/400 Foot Aquifer Groundwater Sustainability 
Planning Process
Action: The Board of Directors will receive an update on the Groundwater 
Sustainability Planning process for the 180/400’ Aquifer.

* * * * * 

10. Return to Marina Coast Water District Matters



11. Consent Calendar

A. Receive and File the Check Register for the Month of April 2019

B. Receive the Quarterly Financial Statements for January 1, 2019 to March 31, 
2019

C. Approve the Draft Minutes of the Joint Board/GSA Meeting of April 15, 2019

D. Approve the Draft Minutes of the Special Joint Board/GSA Meeting of May 1, 
2019

E. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-30 to Award a Contract to Don Chapin 
Company, Inc. for Construction On-Call Services

F. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-31 to Amend the On-Call Engineering 
Services Agreement with Schaaf & Wheeler for the A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C 
Booster Pump Station Design Services

G. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-32 to Approve a Tree Replacement 
Funding Agreement between Marina Coast Water District and California State 
University at Monterey Bay

H. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-33 to Approve Amendment No. 1 to 
the Professional Services Agreement with GHD, INC. for Design and 
Construction Support Services for the Imjin Lift Station Improvement Project

I. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-34 to Approve Task Order 10 for 
Inspection and Construction Support Services for the Sea Haven Development 
Phase 5A as Part of the On-Call Professional Services Agreement with Harris & 
Associates

12. Action Items The Board will review and discuss agenda items and take action or direct staff to 
return to the Board for action at a following meeting. The public may address the Board on these 
Items as each item is reviewed by the Board.  Please limit your comment to four minutes.

A. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-35 to Approve Amendment 1 with 
Monterey One Water for NPDES Permitting Work on the Pure Water Advanced 
Water Treatment and Outfall Wastewater Disposal for the Regional Urban Water 
Augmentation Project
Action: The Board of Directors will consider approving Amendment 1 with 
Monterey One Water for NPDES Permitting Work on the Pure Water Advanced 
Water Treatment and Outfall Wastewater Disposal for the Regional Urban Water 
Augmentation Project.



B. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-36 to Authorize the General Manager 
to Submit an Application and Execute a Grant Agreement with the United States 
Bureau of Reclamation for a WaterSMART: Title XVI Water Reclamation and 
Reuse Program Grant for the Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project 
Action: The Board of Directors will consider authorizing the General Manager to 
submit an application and execute a Grant Agreement with the United States 
Bureau of Reclamation for a WaterSMART: Title XVI Water Reclamation and 
Reuse Program Grant for the Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project.

C. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-37 to Approve the 2018 Memorandum 
of Understanding Update with the Monterey Peninsula, Carmel Bay, and South 
Monterey Bay Integrated Regional Water Management Group and Approve a 
Reimbursement to the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District for Prop 
1 Funding Grant Preparation Costs
Action: The Board of Directors will consider approving an update to the 2018 
MOU with the Monterey Peninsula, Carmel Bay, and Southern Monterey Bay 
Integrated Regional Water Management Plan Program.

D. Discuss, Consider, and Determine Action on Vice President Jan Shriner’s 
Request for Censure as to Director Peter Le
Action: The Board of Directors will discuss Vice President Jan Shriner’s request 
for censure of Director Peter Le and determine what action should be taken.

E. Discuss, Consider, and Determine Action on Director Peter Le’s Harassment 
Complaint against Vice President Jan Shriner
Action: The Board of Directors will discuss Director Peter Le’s harassment 
complaint against Vice President Jan Shriner and determine what action should 
be taken.

13. Informational Items Informational items are normally provided in the form of a written report or
verbal update and may not require Board action. The public may address the Board on Informational Items
as they are considered by the Board.  Please limit your comments to four minutes.

A. General Manager’s Report

B. Counsel’s Report

C. Committee and Board Liaison Reports

1. Water Conservation Commission 7. LAFCO Liaison
2. Joint City-District Committee 8. FORA
3. Executive Committee 9. WWOC Report
4. Community Outreach Committee 10. JPIA Liaison
5. Budget and Personnel Committee 11. Special Districts Association
6. M1W Board Member Liaison 12. SVBGSA Liaison (Steering Committee)



 
14. Board Member Requests for Future Agenda Items 
 
15. Director’s Comments Director reports on meetings with other agencies, organizations and 
individuals on behalf of the District and on official District matters. 
 
16. Adjournment Set or Announce Next Meeting(s), date(s), time(s), and location(s): 
 

 Regular Meeting: Monday, June 25, 2019, 6:30 p.m., 
   District Office, 11 Reservation Road, Marina 

  



 
Marina Coast Water District 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
 
Agenda Item: 8-A        Meeting Date: May 20, 2019 
 
Prepared By: Derek Cray                                           Approved By: Keith Van Der Maaten 
  

Agenda Title: Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-27 in Recognition of Thomas 
Barkhurst, Laboratory Supervisor, for 20 Years of Service to MCWD 

 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends the Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 2019-27 
in recognition of Thomas Barkhurst for 20 years of service with MCWD and provide him with a 
gift certificate.  
 
Background: 5-Year Strategic Plan, Strategic Goal No. 5.1 – Recruit and retain high-performing, 
engaged personnel. 
 

Discussion/Analysis:  Thomas Barkhurst started with Marina Coast Water District (District) on 
April 19, 1999, as a Water Quality Chemist. During his time as a Water Quality Chemist, Thomas 
was responsible for performing a wide range of water sampling for the District.  Some of his duties 
included: general, physical, chemical and bacteriological sampling of the District water sources 
and distribution system.   
 
In 2012, Thomas was promoted to the Laboratory Supervisor.  Along with his duties as a Water 
Quality Chemist, Thomas took on the additional roles of ensuring the District met compliance, 
State reporting and quality control and assurance programs.  Thomas has also been the direct 
supervisor over several Laboratory Interns throughout the years and has done a good job at 
mentoring the students and giving the students real hands on experience that will help the students 
in their future careers.   
  
Thomas has a Bachelor of Science in Biological Science from UC Davis along with a Grade 2 
certification from the American Water Works Association as a Water Quality Analyst.  Thomas’ 
hard work and expertise ensure that the District provides safe water for the District’s customers.   
 
It is with great pleasure that the District hereby recognizes Thomas Barkhurst’s twenty years of 
service, and thanks him for his hard work and dedication. 
 
Environmental Review Compliance: None required.  
 
Financial Impact:        X      Yes            No Funding Source/Recap:  Expenditures for gift 
card are allocated across four cost centers; 01-Marina Water, 02-Marina Sewer, 03-Fort Ord 
Water, and 04-Fort Ord Sewer. 
 
Other Considerations: None 
 
Material Included for Information/Consideration: Resolution No. 2019-27. 
 
Action Required:      X       Resolution               Motion             Review 
(Roll call vote is required.) 
  



 
              

 
Board Action 

 
Motion By                      Seconded By                 No Action Taken    

 
Ayes       Abstained      
 
Noes       Absent                                          
 
 
  



 
May 20, 2019 

 
Resolution No. 2019-27 

Resolution of the Board of Directors 
Marina Coast Water District 

Recognizing Thomas Barkhurst, Laboratory Supervisor, 
For 20-Years of Service to MCWD 

 
 

 RESOLVED by the Board of Directors (“Directors”) of the Marina Coast Water District 
(“District” or “MCWD”), at a regular meeting duly called and held on May 20, 2019 at 211 
Hillcrest Avenue, Marina, California as follows: 
 
 WHEREAS, Thomas Barkhurst started with Marina Coast Water District (District) on 
April 19, 1999, as a Water Quality Chemist, and in 2012 was promoted to a Laboratory Supervisor; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Thomas performs general, physical, chemical and bacteriological sampling 
analysis of the District water sources and distribution system to ensure the District meets strict 
State and Federal drinking water regulations; and, 
 

WHEREAS, Thomas ensures the District’s laboratory maintains its ELAP certification 
through stringent performance testing demonstrated to the State; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Thomas has mentored numerous college interns, giving them real world 

experience and guidance to assist them throughout their career endeavors; and, 
 

WHEREAS, Thomas holds a Grade 2 Water Quality Analyst certification through the 
American Water Works Association and a Bachelor of Science degree in Biological Science; and, 
 

WHEREAS, Thomas’ duties play a key role in maintaining safe and aesthetically pleasing, 
potable water for the District’s customers. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Marina Coast 
Water District does hereby recognize and appreciate Thomas Barkhurst for twenty years of service 
to the Marina Coast Water District, hereby presenting him with a gift certificate, and wishes him 
continued success with the District. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED on May 20, 2019, by the Board of Directors of the Marina 
Coast Water District by the following roll call vote:  
 

Ayes:  Directors               
 
 Noes:  Directors               
 
 Absent: Directors                
 
 Abstained: Directors                
 
 



 
              
        Thomas P. Moore, President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary 

 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
 

 The undersigned Secretary of the Board of the Marina Coast Water District hereby certifies 
that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 2019-27 adopted May 20, 2019. 
 
 
              
        Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
  



 
Marina Coast Water District 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
 

Agenda Item: 8-B      Meeting Date: May 20, 2019 
 
Prepared By: Kelly Cadiente    Approved By: Keith Van Der Maaten 
 
Agenda Title: Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-28 in Recognition of Susan Kiefert, 

Customer Service/Billing Technician II, for 35 Years of Service to MCWD  
 
Staff Recommendation: The Board of Directors recognize Susan Kiefert, Customer 
Service/Billing Technician II, and awarding a gift certificate for 35 years of service to MCWD. 
 
Background:  5-Year Strategic Plan, Strategic Goal No. 5.1 – Recruit and retain high-performing, 
engaged personnel. 
 
Detailed Description: Susan Kiefert joined the District on April 30, 1984, as a Customer Service 
Specialist.  In 2011, the Finance Department went through a reorganization whereby after meeting 
certain criteria, Susan became a Customer Service Representative II.  In 2018, the District 
completed a classification and compensation study which re-titled the position to Customer 
Service/ Billing Technician II.  During her 35-year tenure, Susan has played an integral role in this 
District.  Her contributions include working with O&M and Conservation during the acquisition 
of Fort Ord, setting up and maintaining the billing portion of the Backflow Programs, and 
numerous projects for the Engineering and Conservation Departments.  Most recently, Susan set 
up the majority of the 1,200+ new customer accounts for the Monterey Bay Military Housing 
meter installation project. 
 
Susan’s responsibilities as the Customer Service/Billing Technician II include monitoring meter 
read reports, billing customers and providing service to the customers in person and over the 
phone.  She has the ability to effectively communicate with District customers, sometimes in 
difficult situations. Susan has received more than seven positive Customer Comment Cards over 
the past year alone. 
 
It is with great pleasure that the District recognizes Susan Kiefert’s 35 years of service to the 
Marina Coast Water District.  We collectively thank her for her many years of outstanding service 
and wish her well in her continued service to the District. 
 
Financial Impact:     X    Yes            No Funding Source/Recap: Expenditures for gift 
card are allocated across four cost centers; 01-Marina Water, 02-Marina Sewer, 03-Fort Ord 
Water, and 04-Fort Ord Sewer. 
 
Material Included for Information/Consideration: Resolution No. 2019-28. 
 
Action Required:       X       Resolution                 Motion              Review 
(Roll call vote is required.) 
  



 
             
            

Board Action 
 

Motion By______________ Seconded By________________ No Action Taken_____________ 
 
Ayes       Abstained      
 
Noes       Absent                                                   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 
May 20, 2019 

 
Resolution No. 2019-28 

Resolution of the Board of Directors 
Marina Coast Water District 

Recognizing Susan Kiefert, Customer Service/Billing Technician II, 
For 35 Years of Service to MCWD 

 
 

 RESOLVED by the Board of Directors (“Directors”) of the Marina Coast Water District 
(“District”), at a regular meeting duly called and held on May 20, 2019 at 211 Hillcrest Avenue, 
Marina, California as follows: 
 
 WHEREAS, Susan Kiefert joined the District on April 30, 1984 as a Customer Service 
Specialist; and, 
 

WHEREAS, Susan is now a Customer Service/Billing Technician II; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Susan’s outgoing personality and customer service skills have served her well 
in this position; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, during her thirty-five years with the District, Susan has played an integral role 
in the District; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Susan’s contributions include working with O&M and Conservation during 
the acquisition of Fort Ord, setting up and maintaining the billing portion of the Backflow 
Programs, and numerous projects for the Engineering and Conservation Departments.  Most 
recently, Susan set up the majority of the 1,200+ new customer accounts for the Monterey Bay 
Military Housing meter installation project. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Marina Coast 
Water District does hereby express its gratitude and recognizes Susan Kiefert for thirty-five years 
of service to the Marina Coast Water District, presents her a gift certificate and wishes her 
continued success with the District. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED on May 20, 2019 by the Board of Directors of the Marina Coast 
Water District by the following roll call vote:  
 

Ayes:  Directors          
 
 Noes:  Directors          
 
 Absent: Directors          
 
 Abstained: Directors          
 
 

______________________________ 
Thomas P. Moore, President 

 



 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
 
 The undersigned Secretary of the Board of the Marina Coast Water District hereby certifies 
that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 2019-28 adopted May 20, 2019. 
 

 
  ______________________________ 

Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary 
 
 
  



 
Marina Coast Water District 

Agenda Transmittal  
 
 
Agenda Item: 8-C      Meeting Date:  May 20, 2019 
 
Prepared By: Michael Wegley    Approved By: Keith Van Der Maaten 
 
Agenda Title: Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-29 Proclaiming the Week of May 19-

25, 2019 National Public Works Week 
 
Staff Recommendation:  The Board of Directors consider adoption of Resolution No. 2019-29 in 
recognition of National Public Works Week. 
 
Background: 5-Year Strategic Plan Mission Statement – We provide our customers with high 
quality water, wastewater collection and conservation services at a reasonable cost, through 
planning, management and the development of water resources in an environmentally sensitive 
manner. 
 
Discussion/Analysis:  Public works infrastructure, facilities and services including the water and 
wastewater collection systems of the Marina Coast Water District are of vital importance to 
sustainable communities and to the health, safety and well-being of the people of this community. 
Such facilities and services could not be provided without the dedicated efforts of public works 
professionals, engineers, managers and employees from State and local units of Government and 
the private sector, who are responsible for and must plan, design, build, operate, and maintain the 
water supply, waste water, transportation and solid waste systems, public buildings, and other 
structures and facilities essential to serve our citizens. 
 
The health, safety and comfort of this community greatly depends on these facilities and services. 
It is in the public interest for the citizens, civic leaders and children in the United States of America 
to gain knowledge of and maintain a progressive interest and understanding of the importance of 
public works and public works programs in their respective communities. 
 
2019 marks the 59th annual National Public Works Week sponsored by the American Public Works 
Association. 
 
Environmental Review Compliance:  None required. 
 
Financial Impact:            Yes       X      No   Funding Source/Recap: None. 
 
Other Consideration: None. 
 
Material Included for Information/Consideration: Resolution No. 2019-29. 
 
Action Required:      X        Resolution              Motion              Review 
(Roll call vote is required.) 
  



 
              
 

Board Action 
 
Motion By______________ Seconded By________________ No Action Taken_____________ 
 
Ayes       Abstained      
 
Noes       Absent                                                   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
May 20, 2019 

 
Resolution No. 2019-29  

Resolution of the Board of Directors 

Marina Coast Water District 
Proclaiming the Week May 19-25, 2019 

National Public Works Week 
 

 
RESOLVED by the Board of Directors (“Directors”) of the Marina Coast Water District 

(“District”), at a regular meeting duly called and held on May 20, 2019 at 211 Hillcrest Avenue, 
Marina, California as follows: 
 
 WHEREAS, public works infrastructure, facilities and services are of vital importance to 
sustainable communities and to the health, safety and well-being of the people of this community; 
and, 

WHEREAS, such facilities and services could not be provided without the dedicated efforts 
of public works professionals, engineers, managers and employees from State and local units of 
Government and the private sector, who are responsible for and must plan, design, build, operate, 
and maintain the water supply, waste water, transportation and solid waste systems, public 
buildings, and other structures and facilities essential to serve our citizens; and, 

WHEREAS, the health, safety and comfort of this community greatly depends on these 
facilities and services; and, 

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the citizens, civic leaders and children in the 
United States of America to gain knowledge of and maintain a progressive interest and 
understanding of the importance of public works and public works programs in their respective 
communities; and,  

WHEREAS, the year 2019 marks the 59th annual National Public Works Week sponsored 
by the American Public Works Association. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Marina Coast 
Water District does hereby proclaim the week May 19-25, 2019 as National Public Works Week; 
and urge all our people to join with representatives of the American Public Works Association and 
government agencies in activities and ceremonies designed to pay tribute to our public works 
professionals, engineers, managers and employees and to recognize the substantial contributions 
they have made to our national health, safety, welfare and quality of life. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED on May 20, 2019, by the Board of Directors of the Marina 
Coast Water District by the following roll call vote:  
 

Ayes:  Directors               
 
 Noes:  Directors                
 
 Absent: Directors                
 
 Abstained: Directors                



 
 
 

______________________________ 
Thomas P. Moore, President 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary 
 

 
CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 

 
 The undersigned Secretary of the Board of the Marina Coast Water District hereby certifies 
that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 2019-29 adopted May 20, 2019. 
 

 
______________________________ 

        Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
  



 
Marina Coast Water District 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
 
Agenda Item: 9-A1      Meeting Date: May 20, 2019 
 
Prepared By: Patrick Breen     Approved By: Keith Van Der Maaten 
 
Agenda Title: Receive an Update on the 180/400 Foot Aquifer Groundwater Sustainability 

Planning Process 
 
Staff Recommendation: The Board receive an update on the 180/400 Foot Aquifer Groundwater 
Sustainability Planning Process. 
 
Background: 5-Year Strategic Plan, Goal No. 1.6 – Establish goals and objectives that promote 
protecting our current groundwater sources from seawater intrusion and other forms of 
contamination. 
 
In 2014, the State of California enacted the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA). 
This law required groundwater basins or subbasins that are designated as medium or high priority 
to be managed sustainably. The Salinas Valley Groundwater Basin comprises seven subbasins. 
The subject of this report is one of those subbasins, known as the 180/400 Foot Aquifer Subbasin.   
 
Marina Coast Water District formed a Groundwater Sustainability Agency (MCWDGSA) in 2014.  
The MCWDGSA primarily overlies the Monterey Subbasin of the Salinas Valley Basin and a 
portion of the 180/400 Foot Subbasin.  
 
The Salinas Valley Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (SVBGSA) has been developing the 
180/400 GSP with coordination from the Marina Coast Water District (MCWD) GSA. The 
180/400 GSP is also developed in concert with GSPs for five other Salinas Valley subbasins under 
SVBGSA jurisdiction: the East Side Aquifer Subbasin (DWR subbasin number 3-004.02), the 
Forebay Aquifer Subbasin (DWR subbasin number 3-004.04), the Upper Valley Aquifer Subbasin 
(DWR subbasin number 3-004.05), the Langley Area Subbasin (DWR subbasin number 3- 004.09) 
and the Monterey Subbasin (DWR subbasin number 3-004.10). The projects and programs 
presented in this GSP are part of a cohesive set of projects and programs designed to achieve 
sustainability throughout the entire Salinas Valley groundwater basin. 
 
Discussion/Analysis: The District’s GSP Consultant EKI Environmental and Water will provide 
a presentation that details the 180/400 GSP progress and the Marina Coast Water District GSA’s 
comments and concerns thus far.  The plan is currently in development and will be completed this 
Fall. 
 
The SVBGSA has posted the draft 180/400 GSP Chapters presented thus far on their website at 
https://svbgsa.org/groundwater-sustainability-plan/180-400-ft-aquifer/. 
 
Environmental Review Compliance:  Noe required. 
 
Financial Impact:             Yes       X     No  Funding Source/Recap:  none 
 
Material Included for Information/Consideration: None. 
 
      

https://svbgsa.org/groundwater-sustainability-plan/180-400-ft-aquifer/


 
Action Required:             Resolution              Motion       X      Review 
              
 

Board Action 
 
Motion By                 Seconded By                        No Action Taken    
       
Ayes       Abstained      
 
Noes       Absent       
 

 
  



 
Marina Coast Water District 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
 
Agenda Item: 11      Meeting Date: May 20, 2019 
 
Prepared By: Paula Riso     Approved By: Keith Van Der Maaten 
 
Agenda Title: Consent Calendar 
 
Staff Recommendation: The Board of Directors approve the Consent Calendar as presented.  
 
Background: 5-Year Strategic Plan Mission Statement – We provide our customers with high 
quality water, wastewater collection and conservation services at a reasonable cost, through 
planning, management and the development of water resources in an environmentally sensitive 
manner. 
 
Consent calendar consisting of:  
 

A) Receive and File the Check Register for the Month of April 2019 
B) Receive the Quarterly Financial Statements for January 1, 2019 to March 31, 2019 
C) Approve the Draft Minutes of the Joint Board/GSA Meeting of April 15, 2019 
D) Approve the Draft Minutes of the Special Joint Board/GSA Meeting of May 1, 2019 
E) Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-30 to Award a Contract to Don Chapin 

Company, Inc. for Construction On-Call Services 
F) Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-31 to Amend the On-Call Engineering Services 

Agreement with Schaaf & Wheeler for the A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump 
Station Design Services  

G) Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-32 to Approve a  
Tree Replacement Funding Agreement between Marina Coast Water District and 
California State University at Monterey Bay 

H) Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-33 to Approve Amendment No. 1 to the 
Professional Services Agreement with GHD, INC. for Design and Construction Support 
Services for the Imjin Lift Station Improvement Project 

I) Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-34 to Approve Task Order 10 for Inspection 
and Construction Support Services for the Sea Haven Development Phase 5A as Part of 
the On-Call Professional Services Agreement with Harris & Associates  

 
Discussion/Analysis:  See individual transmittals. 
 
Environmental Review Compliance:  None required. 
 
Other Considerations: The Board of Directors can approve these items together or they can pull 
them separately for discussion. 
 
Material Included for Information/Consideration: Check Register for April 2019; Quarterly 
Financial Statements for January 1, 2019 to March 31, 2019; draft minutes of April 15, 2019; draft 
minutes of May 1, 2019; Resolution No. 2019-30; a copy of the RFQ for Don Chapin Company, 
Inc.; Resolution No. 2019-32; Attachment 1 – Tree Replacement Funding Agreement; Resolution 
No. 2019-33; Attachment 1 – Amendment No. 1 for GHD, INC.; Resolution No. 2019-34; and, 
Task Order No. 10. 
 



 
Action Required:             Resolution      X     Motion             Review 
(Roll call vote is required.) 
              

 
Board Action 

 
Motion By______________ Seconded By________________ No Action Taken    
 
Ayes       Abstained      
 
Noes       Absent                                                   



 
Marina Coast Water District 

Agenda Transmittal  
 
 
Agenda Item: 11-A      Meeting Date: May 20, 2019 
 
Prepared By: Kelly Cadiente    Approved By: Keith Van Der Maaten 
 
Agenda Title: Receive and File the Check Register for the Month of April 2019 
 
Staff Recommendation: The Board of Directors receive and file the April 2019 expenditures 
totaling $2,057,386.13.  
 
Background: 5-Year Strategic Plan, Objective No. 3 – Our objective is to manage public funds to 
assure financial stability, prudent rate management and demonstrate responsible stewardship.  
Our fiscal strategy is to forecast, control and optimize income and expenditures in an open and 
transparent manner. We will efficiently use our financial resources to assure availability to fund 
current and future demands. 
 
Discussion/Analysis: These expenditures were paid in April 2019 and the Board is requested to 
receive and file the check register. 
 
Environmental Review Compliance:  None required. 
 
Financial Impact:          Yes     X     No Funding Source/Recap: Expenditures are 
allocated across the six cost centers; 01-Marina Water, 02-Marina Sewer, 03- Ord Water, 04- Ord 
Sewer, 05-Recycled Water, 06-Regional Water. 
 
Other Consideration: None. 
 
Material Included for Information/Consideration: April 2019 Summary Check Register. 
        
Action Required:             Resolution        X     Motion             Review 
(Roll call vote is required.) 
              
 

Board Action 
 
Motion By______________ Seconded By________________ No Action Taken    
 
Ayes       Abstained      
 
Noes       Absent                                                   

  



DATE CHECK # CHECK DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

04/01/2019 WIRE Mountain Cascade, Inc. 591,104.76       
04/04/2019 67442 - 67519 Check Register 666,757.94       
04/15/2019 67520 - 67560 Check Register 350,006.57       

04/05/2019 500298 - 500302 Payroll Checks and Direct Deposit 94,167.59         
04/05/2019 500303 - 500304 Payroll Withholdings, Period Ended 03/29/19 1,218.23           
04/05/2019 ACH Internal Revenue Service 40,954.67         
04/05/2019 ACH State of California - EDD 9,222.56           
04/05/2019 ACH MassMutual Retirement Services, LLC 8,518.57           
04/05/2019 ACH CalPERS 21,462.01         
04/19/2019 500305 - 500308 Payroll Checks and Direct Deposit 91,129.69         
04/19/2019 500309 Payroll Withholdings, Period Ended 04/12/19 619.23              
04/19/2019 ACH MassMutual Retirement Services, LLC 8,498.57           
04/19/2019 ACH Internal Revenue Service 38,430.42         
04/19/2019 ACH State of California - EDD 8,587.25           
04/19/2019 ACH CalPERS 21,428.71         
04/25/2019 500310 - 500326 Check Register 13,435.99         
04/26/2019 500327 - 500336 Check Register 91,843.37         

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS     2,057,386.13    

April 2019 SUMMARY CHECK REGISTER



Check 
No

Invoice
Date

Check
 Date Vendor Name Description Amount

WIRE 02/25/2019 04/01/2019 Mountain Cascade, Inc. 24" Transmission Main, Mobilization and Demobilization - RUWAP 591,104.76        
67442 03/21/2019 04/04/2019 Alhambra and Sierra Springs Lab Grade Water 95.97                 
67443 03/27/2019 04/04/2019 Insight Planners Web Development/ Maintenance, Hosting 03/2019 812.00               
67444 03/13/2019 04/04/2019 PG&E Gas and Electric Service 02/2019 49,916.02          
67445 02/28/2019 04/04/2019 Home Depot Credit Services General Supplies 367.39               
67446 03/13/2019 04/04/2019 Jane's Answering Service Answering Service 03/2019 172.60               
67447 03/07/2019 04/04/2019 Pitney Bowes Purchase Power (Postage) Postage Meter Refill 1,026.99            
67448 03/11/2019 04/04/2019 Environmental Resource Associates Laboratory Contract Testing 817.80               

67449 03/15/2019 04/04/2019 Water Awareness Comm Mtry
ZunZun Performances - (2) Olson and Marshall  Elementary, Dual 
Language Academy 2,600.00            

67450 02/07/2019 04/04/2019 Fast Response On-Site Testing Mask Fit/ Hearing Testing 1,770.80            
67451 03/18/2019 04/04/2019 Verizon Wireless Cell Phone Service 03/2019 1,197.29            
67452 03/15/2019 04/04/2019 Harris & Associates CSUMB Student Union - Inspection Services 660.00               
67453 03/27/2019 04/04/2019 Orkin Franchise 925 IOP/ BLM Pest Control 03/2019 191.00               
67454 03/14/2019 04/04/2019 Valley Electric Motor Service (2) New Motors - Pumps 1 and 2 at Marina Booster Station 8,121.35            
67455 03/15/2019 04/04/2019 Federal Express Shipping Charges 287.76               
67456 03/08/2019 04/04/2019 Maynard Group Network Repair - Phone Line 205.44               
67457 03/13/2019 04/04/2019 Shape Incorporated Parts - Lift Stations 3,393.00            
67458 03/07/2019 04/04/2019 USABluebook Rubber Fill Hose - Jetter #0801, Blue Marking Paint, (6) Float Switches 1,340.64            

67459 03/18/2019 04/04/2019 Core & Main LP
(85) 1" Multi-Jet Meter with 3G Dialog, (144) 1" 3G-DS Registers, Meter 
Parts - Child Development Center/ VA Clinic 50,894.98          

67460 03/22/2019 04/04/2019 NEC Financial Services, Inc. Phone Equipment Lease 03/2019 335.76               
67461 03/12/2019 04/04/2019 Pitney Bowes, Inc. (Supplies) Postage Machine Supplies 258.80               
67462 03/05/2019 04/04/2019 Federico Imprints Yellow Safety Shirts - O&M 272.72               
67463 03/28/2019 04/04/2019 O'Reilly Automotive Stores, Inc. Auto/ General Supplies 73.45                 
67464 03/18/2019 04/04/2019 Associated Services Company Coffee Supplies 351.47               
67465 03/11/2019 04/04/2019 Val's Plumbing & Heating, Inc. BLM Boiler/ HVAC Preventative Maintenance 3,001.58            
67466 03/05/2019 04/04/2019 Integrity Print & Design LLC Graph Paper Pads - Engineering 166.39               

67467 02/27/2019 04/04/2019 Calcon Systems, Inc.
Programming - Sewer System, Win/ Mobile - 911 Installation/ 
Configuration 9,795.00            

67468 03/20/2019 04/04/2019 Univar USA, Inc.
(1,500) gals of Sodium Hypochlorite - Wells 10, 11, Intermediate 
Reservoir CL2 Systems 3,000.12            

67469 03/20/2019 04/04/2019 Bay Area Coating Consultants, Inc. Tank Inspection Services - Reservoir 2 844.72               
67470 03/20/2019 04/04/2019 S.G.S. Recycling Enterprises, Inc. Disposal of Old Diesel Tanks - Ord Village LS, Wells 30, 31 818.15               

67471 02/28/2019 04/04/2019 West Yost Associates
Develop Work Plan/ Project Management - Watkins Gate Well 
Rehabilitation 2,700.00            

67472 03/26/2019 04/04/2019 Conservation Rebate Program 356 Reservation Rd #52 - Toilet Rebate 125.00               

2



Check 
No

Invoice
Date

Check
 Date Vendor Name Description Amount

67473 03/29/2019 04/04/2019 Conservation Rebate Program 304 Brittany Rd - Washer Rebate 150.00               
67474 03/26/2019 04/04/2019 Monterey County Petroleum Hydraulic Oil - Vactor #0303 652.98               
67475 03/13/2019 04/04/2019 Green Rubber-Kennedy AG, LP General Supplies 125.78               
67476 03/07/2019 04/04/2019 Environmental Safety Training Professionals Asbestos Cement Pipe Training - O&M Dept 1,200.00            

67477 03/06/2019 04/04/2019 U.S. Bank Corporate Payment Systems

Employee Training/ Travel Expenses: CA-NV AWWA Spring 
Conference/ Hotel - Barkhurst, Springbrook User's Conference Hotel/ 
Airfare - Espero, CA Irrigation Conference/ Hotel - Lord, S.F. CalAm 
Settlement Hearing Parking - Van Der Maaten; Advertisement - Senior 
Engineer; Cloud Hosted Server - CityWorks/ ESRI; General Supplies 4,918.52            

67478 03/20/2019 04/04/2019 Marina Tire & Auto Repair Oil Change - Vehicles #1305, #1239, #1305 114.00               

67479 03/11/2019 04/04/2019 Friedman & Springwater LLP
MCWD v CPUC Legal Fees, RDP Superior Court Damages Cases 
02/2019 93,241.21          

67480 03/25/2019 04/04/2019 Richards, Watson & Gershon Regional Project Litigation 02/2019 - 03/2019 123,682.07        
67481 03/15/2019 04/04/2019 Remy Moose Manley, LLP CPUC 02/2019 76,374.60          
67482 03/29/2019 04/04/2019 Monterey Bay Technologies, Inc. IT Support Services 04/2019 3,450.00            
67483 03/29/2019 04/04/2019 ICONIX Waterworks (US), Inc. Gate Valve/ Parts - Ord Village LS Project, Flanges - Well 12 1,284.85            
67484 03/28/2019 04/04/2019 Eurofins Eaton Analytical, Inc. Laboratory Contract Testing 1,275.00            

67485 03/12/2019 04/04/2019 Griffith & Masuda

General Matters, Groundwater - GSA, CPUC Proceedings, Local Coastal 
Plan, Water Supply, Annexation, Bay View Mobile Home Park, City of 
Seaside, CSUMB, Del Rey Oaks, PRA Request, Regional Desalination 
Project Litigation, Developer (Campus Town Project) 02/2019 14,600.48          

67486 03/20/2019 04/04/2019 Conservation Rebate Program 3019 Bayer Dr - Toilet Rebate 89.00                 
67487 03/18/2019 04/04/2019 Gavilan Crane & Rigging, Inc. Hoist Old Diesel Tanks - Ord Village LS, Wells 30, 31 1,755.00            
67488 03/14/2019 04/04/2019 Aleshire & Wynder, LLP Opinion for Bay View Community vs MCWD 02/2019 7,442.70            
67489 03/31/2019 04/04/2019 Peninsula Messenger LLC Courier Service 04/2019 145.00               
67490 03/21/2019 04/04/2019 Dataflow Business Systems, Inc. Ord Copier Maintenance (5551ci) 02/23 - 03/22 330.69               
67491 04/01/2019 04/04/2019 Simpler Systems, Inc. UB Datapp Maintenance 04/2019 500.00               
67492 04/01/2019 04/04/2019 Pure Janitorial, LLC BLM Janitorial Services 03/2019 1,850.00            
67493 03/22/2019 04/04/2019 EKI Environment & Water, Inc. Groundwater Planning Sustainability Study 24,977.95          
67494 03/07/2019 04/04/2019 Akel Engineering Group, Inc. Master Plans/Capacity Fees Study - Water, Sewer, Recycled Water 32,605.10          
67495 03/15/2019 04/04/2019 R&B Company PVC Ells - Intermediate Reservoir CL2 System 4.22                   
67496 02/25/2019 04/04/2019 MWH Constructors Inc. Construction Management Services 11/2018 - 01/2019 127,120.32        
67497 03/13/2019 04/04/2019 Ferguson Enterprises, Inc #686 General Supplies 13.68                 
67498 03/01/2019 04/04/2019 Greenwaste Recovery, Inc. Garbage Collection & Recycling Services 03/2019 697.75               
67499 03/19/2019 04/04/2019 Customer Service Refund Refund Check - 18243 Caldwell St 291.89               
67500 03/19/2019 04/04/2019 Customer Service Refund Refund Check - Hydrant Meter 101.12               
67501 03/19/2019 04/04/2019 Customer Service Refund Refund Check - 3061 California Ave 10.59                 

3



Check 
No

Invoice
Date

Check
 Date Vendor Name Description Amount

67502 03/19/2019 04/04/2019 Customer Service Refund Refund Check - Irrigation Meter 21.98                 
67503 03/19/2019 04/04/2019 Customer Service Refund Refund Check - 2953 Carpenter Ct 5.11                   
67504 03/19/2019 04/04/2019 Customer Service Refund Refund Check - 2608 Bluewater Ct 16.56                 
67505 03/19/2019 04/04/2019 Customer Service Refund Refund Check - Hydrant Meter 1,680.39            
67506 03/19/2019 04/04/2019 Customer Service Refund Refund Check - 600 Malmedy Rd 35.00                 
67507 03/19/2019 04/04/2019 Customer Service Refund Refund Check - 111 Nijmegen Rd 30.87                 
67508 03/19/2019 04/04/2019 Customer Service Refund Refund Check - 3271 Cove Way 22.50                 
67509 03/19/2019 04/04/2019 Customer Service Refund Refund Check - 16614 Early Ln 14.62                 
67510 03/19/2019 04/04/2019 Customer Service Refund Refund Check - 205 Monterey Rd 12.36                 
67511 03/19/2019 04/04/2019 Customer Service Refund Refund Check - 19235 Coliseum Ln 43.88                 
67512 03/19/2019 04/04/2019 Customer Service Refund Refund Check - 19130 Fallingwater Ln 38.72                 
67513 03/19/2019 04/04/2019 Customer Service Refund Refund Check - 343 Ardennes Cir 35.00                 
67514 03/19/2019 04/04/2019 Customer Service Refund Refund Check - 2979 Bluffs Dr 35.00                 
67515 03/19/2019 04/04/2019 Customer Service Refund Refund Check - 344 Ardennes Cir 20.00                 
67516 03/19/2019 04/04/2019 Customer Service Refund Refund Check - 121 Robin Dr 35.00                 
67517 03/19/2019 04/04/2019 Customer Service Refund Refund Check - 167 Pebble Pl 4.74                   
67518 03/19/2019 04/04/2019 Customer Service Refund Refund Check - 3106 Messinger Dr 52.52                 
67519 03/19/2019 04/04/2019 Customer Service Refund Refund Check - 308 Mulheim Rd 35.00                 
67520 03/31/2019 04/15/2019 Ace Hardware Chain Coil - BLM Building 542.60               
67521 04/02/2019 04/15/2019 Carlons Fire Extinguisher First Aid Supplies - Beach Office 75.49                 
67522 03/31/2019 04/15/2019 City of Marina Franchise Tax Fee 01/2019 - 03/2019 29,887.85          
67523 03/14/2019 04/15/2019 Monterey Peninsula Unified School District Conservation Education 02/2019 4,112.09            
67524 03/31/2019 04/15/2019 Fort Ord Reuse Authority Franchise Tax Fee 01/2019 - 03/2019 118,222.02        

67525 02/28/2019 04/15/2019 Schaaf & Wheeler
Staff Meetings, Master Plan Review, Pump Sizing - Booker LS, Ord 
Village LS/ Force Main 02/2019 22,477.75          

67526 03/26/2019 04/15/2019 3T Equipment Company, Inc. Pump Stud Bolts/ Nuts - Jetter #0801 115.05               
67527 03/31/2019 04/15/2019 Peninsula Welding Supply Gas Cylinder Tank Rental Fee - Welding Supplies 12.90                 
67528 03/31/2019 04/15/2019 Monterey One Water Sewer Treatment Charge 03/2019 - 04/2019 123.50               
67529 03/17/2019 04/15/2019 Master Meter, Inc. Mobile Annual Support/ Maintenance 05/2019 - 04/2020 2,100.00            

67530 03/15/2019 04/15/2019 Harris & Associates
Developer Inspection Services (Dunes, Junsay Oaks, Marina Heights, 
LAYIA Sea Haven, East Garrison) 02/2019 19,845.00          

67531 04/01/2019 04/15/2019 Cypress Coast Ford Maintenance/ Repair - Vehicle #1239 1,643.94            

67532 04/01/2019 04/15/2019 Maynard Group
NEC Phone Equipment Maintenance, AT&T Wireless Backup, eMVS 
Cloud, VoIP Services 04/2019 2,866.96            

67533 03/27/2019 04/15/2019 USABluebook Jet Nozzle - Sewer Equipment 46.56                 
67534 03/31/2019 04/15/2019 DataProse, LLC Customer Billing Statements 03/2019 6,591.13            
67535 03/26/2019 04/15/2019 CSC of Salinas Hydraulic Hoses - Vactor #0303 559.16               
67536 03/15/2019 04/15/2019 Monterey County-Election Dept Election Services 11/2018 27,759.62          
67537 03/29/2019 04/15/2019 American Supply Company Janitorial Supplies 294.44               

4



Check 
No

Invoice
Date

Check
 Date Vendor Name Description Amount

67538 03/31/2019 04/15/2019 Credit Consulting Services, Inc. Commission on Collection of Past Due Accounts 03/2019 14.02                 
67539 04/10/2019 04/15/2019 Conservation Rebate Program 2203 15th Infantry Ave - Washer Rebate 25.00                 
67540 03/21/2019 04/15/2019 Oldcastle Infrastructure, Inc. Diesel Tanks - Ord Village LS, Wells 30, 31 44,997.68          
67541 04/02/2019 04/15/2019 Sturdy Oil Company (1,000) gals Red Diesel - Ord Village LS, Wells 30, 31 Fuel Tanks 2,984.11            
67542 03/25/2019 04/15/2019 Dwyer Instruments, Inc. Level Transmitter - Wells 10, 11 2,734.99            
67543 04/02/2019 04/15/2019 Conservation Rebate Program 482 Jean Cir - (2) Toilet Rebates 198.00               
67544 04/02/2019 04/15/2019 Conservation Rebate Program 3208 Susan Ave - Washer Rebate 100.00               
67545 03/24/2019 04/15/2019 Voyager Fleet Systems, Inc. Fleet Gasoline 2,354.19            
67546 04/04/2019 04/15/2019 Access Monterey Peninsula, Inc. Filming and Production 03/2019 360.00               
67547 04/04/2019 04/15/2019 Dataflow Business Systems, Inc. Freight Fee - Waste Toner 7.50                   
67548 03/31/2019 04/15/2019 Western Exterminator Company Pest Control - Beach Office 03/2019 86.50                 

67549 04/06/2019 04/15/2019 TIAA Commercial Finance, Inc.
(3) Office Copiers (C754E, 454E, 5551ci), eCopy ScanStation Leases 
04/2019 912.39               

67550 03/31/2019 04/15/2019 Iron Mountain, Inc. Shredding Service 03/2019 101.88               

67551 03/28/2019 04/15/2019 AT&T
Ord/ Beach Alarm, IOP Fire Alarm, Main Frame Computer, Modem Line  
03/2019 199.85               

67552 03/29/2019 04/15/2019 Marina Coast Water District (BLM) BLM Water, Sewer, Fire Service 03/2019 395.15               
67553 02/26/2019 04/15/2019 Aqua Geo Frameworks LLC Hydrogeologic Framework 18,095.78          
67554 04/04/2019 04/15/2019 Scudder Roofing Co. Repair Roof Cricket Area - IOP Building 6,057.00            
67555 04/01/2019 04/15/2019 Verizon Connect NWF, Inc. GPS Service - (2) Meter Reader Trucks 38.00                 
67556 03/28/2019 04/15/2019 MWH Constructors Inc. Construction Management Services/ Labor 02/2019 18,886.63          
67557 03/27/2019 04/15/2019 Ferguson Enterprises, Inc #686 Portable Pipe - Threader Equipment 1,799.76            
67558 03/06/2019 04/15/2019 Interstate Battery of San Jose (14) Batteries - Sewer SCADA 638.11               
67559 03/31/2019 04/15/2019 City of Seaside City Utility Tax 01/2019 - 03/2019 11,623.97          
67560 03/13/2019 04/15/2019 Costco Wholesale Membership Membership Renewal - Riso, Gonzalez 120.00               

500298-
500302 04/05/2019 04/05/2019 Payroll Checks and Direct Deposit Payroll Ending 03/29/19 94,167.59          
500303 04/05/2019 04/05/2019 General Teamsters Union Payroll Ending 03/29/19 599.00               
500304 04/05/2019 04/05/2019 WageWorks, Inc. Payroll Ending 03/29/19 619.23               
ACH 04/05/2019 04/05/2019 Internal Revenue Service Payroll Ending 03/29/19 40,954.67          
ACH 04/05/2019 04/05/2019 State of California - EDD Payroll Ending 03/29/19 9,222.56            
ACH 04/05/2019 04/05/2019 MassMutual Retirement Services, LLC Payroll Ending 03/29/19 8,518.57            
ACH 04/05/2019 04/05/2019 CalPERS Payroll Ending 03/29/19 21,462.01          

500305-
500308 04/19/2019 04/19/2019 Payroll Checks and Direct Deposit Payroll Ending 04/12/19 91,129.69          
500309 04/19/2019 04/19/2019 WageWorks, Inc. Payroll Ending 04/12/19 619.23               
ACH 04/19/2019 04/19/2019 MassMutual Retirement Services, LLC Payroll Ending 04/12/19 8,498.57            
ACH 04/19/2019 04/19/2019 Internal Revenue Service Payroll Ending 04/12/19 38,430.42          

5



Check 
No

Invoice
Date

Check
 Date Vendor Name Description Amount

ACH 04/19/2019 04/19/2019 State of California - EDD Payroll Ending 04/12/19 8,587.25            
ACH 04/19/2019 04/19/2019 CalPERS Payroll Ending 04/12/19 21,428.71          

500310 04/17/2019 04/25/2019 Becks Shoe Store, Inc. - Salinas Boot Benefit - O&M 179.22               
500311 03/05/2019 04/25/2019 CWEA - Monterey Bay Section Membership Renewal - Foster, Pineda 376.00               
500312 03/25/2019 04/25/2019 AFLAC Employee Paid Benefits 03/2019 2,783.32            
500313 04/10/2019 04/25/2019 Beck's Shoe Store, Inc. - Monterey Boot Benefit - O&M 180.25               
500314 03/19/2019 04/25/2019 Thomas P. Moore Board Compensation 03/2019 100.00               
500315 04/16/2019 04/25/2019 Special District Association Quarterly Meeting - Moore, Shriner, Le 93.00                 
500316 04/05/2019 04/25/2019 LegalShield Employee Paid Benefits 04/2019 25.90                 
500317 03/19/2019 04/25/2019 Matthew Zefferman Board Compensation 03/2019 50.00                 
500318 04/16/2019 04/25/2019 Pinnacle Medical Group, Inc. DMV Physical, Pre-Employment Physical - New Hire 330.00               
500319 04/17/2019 04/25/2019 Principal Life Employee Paid Benefits 05/2019 1,045.82            
500320 04/10/2019 04/25/2019 Lincoln National Life Insurance Company Life, Short/Long Term, AD&D Insurance 04/2019 4,218.34            
500321 03/19/2019 04/25/2019 Peter Le Board Compensation 03/2019 100.00               
500322 03/19/2019 04/25/2019 Herbert Cortez Board Compensation 03/2019 100.00               
500323 03/15/2019 04/25/2019 Transamerica Employee Benefits Employee Paid Benefits 03/2019 1,205.30            
500324 03/31/2019 04/25/2019 Cintas Corporation No. 630 Uniforms, Towels, Rugs 03/2019 588.84               
500325 03/19/2019 04/25/2019 Jan Shriner Board Compensation 03/2019 100.00               
500326 03/31/2019 04/25/2019 Liebert Cassidy Whitmore General Matters 03/2019 1,960.00            
500327 04/24/2019 04/26/2019 ACWA Joint Power Ins Authority Workers Compensation Insurance 01/2019 - 03/2019 21,169.67          
500328 04/02/2019 04/26/2019 ACWA/ JPIA Medical, Dental, Vision, EAP Insurance 05/2019 70,045.70          
500329 04/24/2019 04/26/2019 Jose Rodriguez DMV Physical 150.00               
500330 04/26/2019 04/26/2019 Thomas P. Moore Board Compensation 04/2019 50.00                 
500331 04/11/2019 04/26/2019 Jonathan P Lord 2019 NALP Certification 100.00               
500332 04/26/2019 04/26/2019 Matthew Zefferman Board Compensation 04/2019 50.00                 
500333 04/15/2019 04/26/2019 WageWorks, Inc. FSA Admin Fees 03/2019 128.00               
500334 04/26/2019 04/26/2019 Peter Le Board Compensation 04/2019 50.00                 
500335 04/26/2019 04/26/2019 Herbert Cortez Board Compensation 04/2019 50.00                 
500336 04/26/2019 04/26/2019 Jan Shriner Board Compensation 04/2019 50.00                 

Total Disbursements for April 2019 2,057,386.13     

6



 
Marina Coast Water District 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
 
Agenda Item: 11-B      Meeting Date: March 20, 2019 
 
Prepared By: Kelly Cadiente    Approved By: Keith Van Der Maaten 
 
Agenda Title: Receive the Quarterly Financial Statements for January 1, 2019 to March 31, 2019 
 
Staff Recommendation: The Board receives the Quarterly Financial Statements for January 1, 2019 
to March 31, 2019. 
  
Background: 5-Year Strategic Plan, Strategic Element No. 3.2 – Regular Financial Updates to 
Policymakers and Managers. 
 
Discussion/Analysis: All figures reported for the quarter are based on accrual basis accounting. 
The District’s consolidated financial statement for the quarter includes operating revenues of 
$3.682 million and expenses of $3.031 million, resulting in a net gain from operations of $0.651 
million.  The District budget projected net gain from operations of $0.584 million for the same 
period.  
 
The difference between the actual net gain from operations for the quarter from the budget gain  
expectation is $0.067 million due to the timing of when revenues are earned and expenses are 
accrued producing different results than those in which the annual budget amounts are divided 
evenly by quarter.   
 
Summary of Cost Centers: 

Description Actual Qtr Budget Qtr Actual FYTD Budget FYTD 

          
Marina Water         
     Revenue                  912,618                1,015,715                2,996,179                3,047,146  
     Expenses                  734,270                   785,151                2,039,398                2,355,451  
     Net Gain/(Loss)                  178,348                   230,564                   956,781                   691,695  
          
Marina Sewer         
     Revenue                  348,803                   356,468                1,021,440                1,069,405  
     Expenses                  178,254                   194,538                   535,162                   583,614  
     Net Gain/(Loss)                  170,549                   161,930                   486,278                   485,791  
          
Ord Community Water         
     Revenue               1,674,864                1,848,868                5,726,624                5,546,603  
     Expenses               1,670,398                1,770,729                4,959,281                5,312,181  
     Net Gain/(Loss)                      4,466                     78,139                   767,343                   234,422  
          
Ord Community Sewer         
     Revenue                  745,456                   687,798                2,152,966                2,063,396  
     Expenses                  423,676                   486,153                1,266,282                1,458,455  
     Net Gain/(Loss)                  321,780                   201,645                   886,684                   604,941  



 
          
Recycled Water Project         
     Revenue                           -                               9                           95                           26  
     Expenses                    24,444                     88,160                   207,638                   264,481  
     Net Gain/(Loss)                 (24,444)                 (88,151)               (207,543)               (264,455) 
          
Regional Project         
     Revenue                           -                              -                              -                              -    
     Expenses                           -                              -                              -                              -    
     Net Gain/(Loss)                           -                              -                              -                              -    
          
Consolidated Cost 

Centers         
     Revenue               3,681,741                3,908,858              11,897,304              11,726,576  

     Expenses               3,031,042                3,324,731                9,007,761                9,974,182  

     Net Gain/(Loss)                  650,699                   584,127                2,889,543                1,752,394  

 
As of March 31, 2019, the District had $20.524 million in liquid investments.  The District also 
had $0.857 million of 2010 refunding bond proceeds for debt reserve purposes in the bank.   
 
The District owed $28.005 million for the 2015 Senior Revenue Refunding Bonds Series A as well 
as $2.585 million for the 2010 Subordinate Revenue Refunding Bonds, $2.640 million to Holman 
Capital Corporation for the conversion of the Rabobank N.A. construction loan for the BLM 
building, and $3.149 million to BVAA Compass Bank Line of Credit for the Regional Urban Water 
Augmentation Project as of March 31, 2019.   
 
Environmental Review Compliance:  None required. 
 
Financial Impact:             Yes       X     No    Funding Source/Recap:  None 
 
Other Considerations:  None 
 
Material Included for Information/Consideration: Quarterly Financial Statements, Investments 
and Debt Summary Statements. 
 
      
Action Required:             Resolution              Motion       X      Review 
             
 

Board Action 
 
Motion By                    Seconded By              No Action Taken   
       
Ayes       Abstained      
 
Noes       Absent       
  



2018/2019 2017/2018 $ VARIANCE % VARIANCE 2018/2019 2017/2018 $ VARIANCE % VARIANCE

REVENUES

WATER SALES 2,338,300            2,489,013            (150,713)              (6.06%) 7,990,943            8,104,124            (113,181)         (1.40%)

SEWER SALES 1,074,447            993,545               80,902                 8.14% 3,108,628            2,824,100            284,528          10.07%

INTEREST INCOME 56,170                 34,294                 21,876                 63.79% 158,880               88,851                 70,029            78.82%

OTHER REVENUE 212,824               415,519               (202,695)              (48.78%) 638,853               938,661               (299,808)         (31.94%)

TOTAL REVENUES 3,681,741            3,932,371            (250,630)              (6.37%) 11,897,304          11,955,736          (58,432)           (0.49%)

EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATIVE 1,375,499            1,012,556            362,943               35.84% 3,635,142            3,101,536            533,606          17.20%

OPERATING & MAINTENANCE 812,951               778,184               34,767                 4.47% 2,625,066            2,368,769            256,297          10.82%

LABORATORY 63,091                 57,774                 5,317                   9.20% 198,169               180,839               17,330            9.58%

CONSERVATION 63,290                 109,664               (46,374)                (42.29%) 210,210               248,953               (38,743)           (15.56%)

ENGINEERING 293,005               383,315               (90,310)                (23.56%) 750,192               1,000,678            (250,486)         (25.03%)

WATER RESOURCES 173,630               -                       173,630               100.00% 415,613               -                       415,613          100.00%

INTEREST EXPENSE 101,466               82,710                 18,756                 22.68% 762,176               713,126               49,050            6.88%

FRANCHISE FEE 148,110               142,553               5,557                   3.90% 411,193               470,870               (59,677)           (12.67%)

TOTAL EXPENSES 3,031,042            2,566,756            464,286               18.09% 9,007,761            8,084,771            922,990          11.42%

NET GAIN (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 650,699               1,365,615            (714,916)              (52.35%) 2,889,543            3,870,965            (981,422)         (25.35%)

CAPACITY FEE/ CAPITAL SURCHARGE 1,050,464            916,057               134,407               14.67% 3,200,184            4,067,753            (867,569)         (21.33%)

CONTRIBUTIONS/ GRANT REVENUE 4,251,265            -                       4,251,265            100.00% 4,251,265            -                       4,251,265       100.00%

NON-OPERATING REVENUE 97,678                 129,050               (31,372)                (24.31%) 346,464               394,548               (48,084)           (12.19%)

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 1,741,970            7,473,018            (5,731,047)           (76.69%) 8,584,117            10,624,199          (2,040,083)      (19.20%)

DEVELOPER REVENUE 100,831               127,263               (26,432)                (20.77%) 322,713               373,151               (50,438)           (13.52%)

DEVELOPER EXPENSES 109,141               148,629               (39,488)                (26.57%) 349,314               380,242               (30,928)           (8.13%)

CURRENT QUARTER YEAR-TO-DATE

MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT

INCOME STATEMENT

JANUARY 1, 2019 TO MARCH 31, 2019

(UNAUDITED)

CONSOLIDATED



ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

REVENUES

WATER SALES 860,783         1,001,002      -                 -                 1,477,517      1,701,668      -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 2,338,300        2,702,670         7,990,943        8,108,009         

SEWER SALES -                 -                 338,623         350,712         -                 -                 735,824         683,164         -                 -                 -                 -                 1,074,447        1,033,876         3,108,628        3,101,630         

INTEREST INCOME 16,696           1,788             9,664             4,406             22,962           6,500             6,848             434                -                 9                    -                 -                 56,170             13,137              158,880           39,412              

OTHER REVENUE 35,139           12,925           516                1,350             174,385         140,700         2,784             4,200             -                 -                 -                 -                 212,824           159,175            638,853           477,525            

TOTAL REVENUES 912,618         1,015,715      348,803         356,468         1,674,864      1,848,868      745,456         687,798         -                 9                    -                 -                 3,681,741        3,908,858         11,897,304      11,726,576       

EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATIVE 327,808         228,307         56,807           62,912           864,992         520,359         125,807         140,749         85                  1,000             -                 -                 1,375,499        953,327            3,635,142        2,859,979         

OPERATING & MAINTENANCE 206,509         253,159         95,146           93,989           314,855         473,850         196,441         202,582         -                 -                 -                 -                 812,951           1,023,580         2,625,066        3,070,736         

LABORATORY 19,292           28,145           -                 -                 43,799           61,310           -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 63,091             89,455              198,169           268,365            

CONSERVATION 24,932           39,191           -                 -                 38,358           60,476           -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 63,290             99,667              210,210           299,000            

ENGINEERING 69,330           73,658           20,132           16,624           158,648         160,923         44,895           45,819           -                 -                 -                 -                 293,005           297,024            750,192           891,069            

WATER RESOURCES 64,809           123,063         -                 -                 108,821         184,593         -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 173,630           307,656            415,613           922,966            

INTEREST EXPENSE 21,590           39,628           6,169             21,013           38,553           174,852         10,795           57,229           24,359           87,160           -                 -                 101,466           379,882            762,176           1,139,649         

FRANCHISE FEE -                 -                 -                 -                 102,372         134,366         45,738           39,774           -                 -                 -                 -                 148,110           174,140            411,193           522,418            

 

TOTAL EXPENSES 734,270         785,151         178,254         194,538         1,670,398      1,770,729      423,676         486,153         24,444           88,160           -                 -                 3,031,042        3,324,731         9,007,761        9,974,182         

NET GAIN (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 178,348         230,564         170,549         161,930         4,466             78,139           321,780         201,645         (24,444)          (88,151)          -                 -                 650,699           584,127            2,889,543        1,752,394         

CAPACITY FEE/ CAPITAL SURCHARGE -                 64,722           933                46,660           756,847         850,585         292,684         298,159         -                 -                 -                 -                 1,050,464        1,260,126         3,200,184        3,780,377         

CONTRIBUTIONS/ GRANT REVENUE -                 61,717           -                 -                 -                 92,576           -                 -                 4,251,265      300,000         -                 -                 4,251,265        454,293            4,251,265        1,362,878         

NON-OPERATING REVENUE 27,350           36,895           7,814             10,542           48,839           65,884           13,675           18,448           -                 -                 -                 -                 97,678             131,769            346,464           395,307            

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 241,858         -                 -                 -                 53,256           -                 52,745           -                 920,811         -                 473,300         -                 1,741,970        -                    8,584,117        -                    

DEVELOPER REVENUE 4,809             -                 877                -                 54,555           118,125         40,590           27,500           -                 -                 -                 -                 100,831           145,625            322,713           436,875            

DEVELOPER EXPENSES 4,729             2,500             797                500                68,069           95,000           35,546           22,500           -                 -                 -                 -                 109,141           120,500            349,314           361,500            

CONSOLIDATED (YTD)CONSOLIDATEDRP FUNDMW FUND

MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

JANUARY 1, 2019 TO MARCH 31, 2019

(UNAUDITED)

CONSOLIDATED

RW FUNDMS FUND OW FUND OS FUND



ACTUAL BUDGET $ VARIANCE % VARIANCE ACTUAL BUDGET $ VARIANCE % VARIANCE

REVENUES

WATER SALES 860,783               1,001,002               (140,219)              (14.01%) 2,885,062                3,003,006                (117,944)              (3.93%)

SEWER SALES -                       -                          -                       -                       -                          -                          -                       -                       

INTEREST INCOME 16,696                 1,788                      14,908                 833.78% 47,009                     5,365                       41,644                 776.22%

OTHER REVENUE 35,139                 12,925                    22,214                 171.87% 64,108                     38,775                     25,333                 65.33%

TOTAL REVENUES 912,618               1,015,715               (103,097)              (10.15%) 2,996,179                3,047,146                (50,967)                (1.67%)

EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATIVE 327,808               228,307                  99,501                 43.58% 851,066                   684,920                   166,146               24.26%

OPERATING & MAINTENANCE 206,509               253,159                  (46,650)                (18.43%) 642,780                   759,476                   (116,696)              (15.37%)

LABORATORY 19,292                 28,145                    (8,853)                  (31.45%) 58,978                     84,436                     (25,458)                (30.15%)

CONSERVATION 24,932                 39,191                    (14,259)                (36.38%) 82,222                     117,573                   (35,351)                (30.07%)

ENGINEERING 69,330                 73,658                    (4,328)                  (5.88%) 167,907                   220,973                   (53,066)                (24.01%)

WATER RESOURCES 64,809                 123,063                  (58,254)                (47.34%) 154,156                   369,188                   (215,032)              (58.24%)

INTEREST EXPENSE 21,590                 39,628                    (18,038)                (45.52%) 82,289                     118,885                   (36,596)                (30.78%)

FRANCHISE/MEMBERSHIP FEES -                       -                          -                       -                       -                          -                          -                       -                       

TOTAL EXPENSES 734,270               785,151                  (50,881)                (6.48%) 2,039,398                2,355,451                (316,053)              (13.42%)

NET GAIN (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 178,348               230,564                  (52,216)                (22.65%) 956,781                   691,695                   265,086               38.32%

CAPACITY FEE/ CAPITAL SURCHARGE -                       64,722                    (64,722)                (100.00%) 15,796                     194,166                   (178,370)              (91.86%)

CONTRIBUTIONS/ GRANT REVENUE -                       61,717                    (61,717)                (100.00%) -                          185,151                   (185,151)              (100.00%)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE 27,350                 36,895                    (9,545)                  (25.87%) 97,010                     110,686                   (13,676)                (12.36%)

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 241,858               -                          241,858               100.00% 448,356                   -                          448,356               100.00%

DEVELOPER REVENUE 4,809                   -                          4,809                   100.00% 15,220                     -                          15,220                 100.00%

DEVELOPER EXPENSES 4,729                   2,500                      2,229                   89.16% 15,427                     7,500                       7,927                   105.69%

CURRENT QUARTER YEAR-TO-DATE

MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT

INCOME STATEMENT

JANUARY 1, 2019 TO MARCH 31, 2019

(UNAUDITED)

MARINA WATER FUND



ACTUAL BUDGET $ VARIANCE % VARIANCE ACTUAL BUDGET $ VARIANCE % VARIANCE

REVENUES

WATER SALES -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

SEWER SALES 338,623               350,712                  (12,089)                (3.45%) 992,219              1,052,137            (59,918)                (5.69%)

INTEREST INCOME 9,664                   4,406                      5,258                   119.34% 27,191                13,218                 13,973                 105.71%

OTHER REVENUE 516                      1,350                      (834)                     (61.78%) 2,030                  4,050                   (2,020)                  (49.88%)

TOTAL REVENUES 348,803               356,468                  (7,665)                  (2.15%) 1,021,440           1,069,405            (47,965)                (4.49%)

EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATIVE 56,807                 62,912                    (6,105)                  (9.70%) 170,233              188,737               (18,504)                (9.80%)

OPERATING & MAINTENANCE 95,146                 93,989                    1,157                   1.23% 275,777              281,966               (6,189)                  (2.19%)

LABORATORY -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

CONSERVATION -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

ENGINEERING 20,132                 16,624                    3,508                   21.10% 51,023                49,872                 1,151                   2.31%

WATER RESOURCES -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

INTEREST EXPENSE 6,169                   21,013                    (14,844)                (70.64%) 38,129                63,039                 (24,910)                (39.52%)

FRANCHISE/MEMBERSHIP FEES -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

TOTAL EXPENSES 178,254               194,538                  (16,284)                (8.37%) 535,162              583,614               (48,452)                (8.30%)

NET GAIN (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 170,549               161,930                  8,619                   5.32% 486,278              485,791               487                      0.10%

CAPACITY FEE/ CAPITAL SURCHARGE 933                      46,660                    (45,727)                (98.00%) 933                     139,980               (139,047)              (99.33%)

CONTRIBUTIONS/ GRANT REVENUE -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

NON-OPERATING REVENUE 7,814                   10,542                    (2,728)                  (25.88%) 27,717                31,625                 (3,908)                  (12.36%)

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT -                       -                          -                       -                       36                       -                       36                        100.00%

DEVELOPER REVENUE 877                      -                          877                      100.00% 3,601                  -                       3,601                   100.00%

DEVELOPER EXPENSES 797                      500                         297                      59.40% 1,868                  1,500                   368                      24.53%

CURRENT QUARTER YEAR-TO-DATE

MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT

INCOME STATEMENT

JANUARY 1, 2019 TO MARCH 31, 2019

(UNAUDITED)

MARINA SEWER FUND



ACTUAL BUDGET $ VARIANCE % VARIANCE ACTUAL BUDGET $ VARIANCE % VARIANCE

REVENUES

WATER SALES 1,477,517            1,701,668               (224,151)              (13.17%) 5,105,881           5,105,003            878                      0.02%

SEWER SALES -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

INTEREST INCOME 22,962                 6,500                      16,462                 253.26% 65,190                19,500                 45,690                 234.31%

OTHER REVENUE 174,385               140,700                  33,685                 23.94% 555,553              422,100               133,453               31.62%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,674,864            1,848,868               (174,004)              (9.41%) 5,726,624           5,546,603            180,021               3.25%

EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATIVE 864,992               520,359                  344,633               66.23% 2,225,867           1,561,076            664,791               42.59%

OPERATING & MAINTENANCE 314,855               473,850                  (158,995)              (33.55%) 1,176,206           1,421,549            (245,343)              (17.26%)

LABORATORY 43,799                 61,310                    (17,511)                (28.56%) 139,191              183,929               (44,738)                (24.32%)

CONSERVATION 38,358                 60,476                    (22,118)                (36.57%) 127,988              181,427               (53,439)                (29.45%)

ENGINEERING 158,648               160,923                  (2,275)                  (1.41%) 403,508              482,768               (79,260)                (16.42%)

WATER RESOURCES 108,821               184,593                  (75,772)                (41.05%) 261,457              553,778               (292,321)              (52.79%)

INTEREST EXPENSE 38,553                 174,852                  (136,299)              (77.95%) 328,522              524,557               (196,035)              (37.37%)

FRANCHISE/MEMBERSHIP FEES 102,372               134,366                  (31,994)                (23.81%) 296,542              403,097               (106,555)              (26.43%)

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,670,398            1,770,729               (100,331)              (5.67%) 4,959,281           5,312,181            (352,900)              (6.64%)

NET GAIN (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 4,466                   78,139                    (73,673)                (94.28%) 767,343              234,422               532,921               227.33%

CAPACITY FEE/ CAPITAL SURCHARGE 756,847               850,585                  (93,738)                (11.02%) 2,258,877           2,551,755            (292,878)              (11.48%)

CONTRIBUTIONS/ GRANT REVENUE -                       92,576                    (92,576)                (100.00%) -                      277,727               (277,727)              (100.00%)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE 48,839                 65,884                    (17,045)                (25.87%) 173,232              197,653               (24,421)                (12.36%)

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 53,256                 -                          53,256                 100.00% 93,164                -                       93,164                 100.00%

DEVELOPER REVENUE 54,555                 118,125                  (63,570)                (53.82%) 190,665              354,375               (163,710)              (46.20%)

DEVELOPER EXPENSES 68,069                 95,000                    (26,931)                (28.35%) 244,234              285,000               (40,766)                (14.30%)

MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT

CURRENT QUARTER YEAR-TO-DATE

INCOME STATEMENT

JANUARY 1, 2019 TO MARCH 31, 2019

(UNAUDITED)

ORD COMMUNITY WATER FUND



ACTUAL BUDGET $ VARIANCE % VARIANCE ACTUAL BUDGET $ VARIANCE % VARIANCE

REVENUES

WATER SALES -                          -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

SEWER SALES 735,824                  683,164                  52,660                 7.71% 2,116,409           2,049,493            66,916                 3.27%

INTEREST INCOME 6,848                      434                         6,414                   1477.88% 19,395                1,303                   18,092                 1388.49%

OTHER REVENUE 2,784                      4,200                      (1,416)                  (33.71%) 17,162                12,600                 4,562                   36.21%

TOTAL REVENUES 745,456                  687,798                  57,658                 8.38% 2,152,966           2,063,396            89,570                 4.34%

EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATIVE 125,807                  140,749                  (14,942)                (10.62%) 387,801              422,246               (34,445)                (8.16%)

OPERATING & MAINTENANCE 196,441                  202,582                  (6,141)                  (3.03%) 530,303              607,745               (77,442)                (12.74%)

LABORATORY -                          -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

CONSERVATION -                          -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

ENGINEERING 44,895                    45,819                    (924)                     (2.02%) 127,754              137,456               (9,702)                  (7.06%)

WATER RESOURCES -                          -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

INTEREST EXPENSE 10,795                    57,229                    (46,434)                (81.14%) 105,773              171,687               (65,914)                (38.39%)

FRANCHISE/MEMBERSHIP FEES 45,738                    39,774                    5,964                   14.99% 114,651              119,321               (4,670)                  (3.91%)

TOTAL EXPENSES 423,676                  486,153                  (62,477)                (12.85%) 1,266,282           1,458,455            (192,173)              (13.18%)

NET GAIN (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 321,780                  201,645                  120,135               59.58% 886,684              604,941               281,743               46.57%

CAPACITY FEE/ CAPITAL SURCHARGE 292,684                  298,159                  (5,475)                  (1.84%) 924,578              894,476               30,102                 3.37%

CONTRIBUTIONS/ GRANT REVENUE -                          -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

NON-OPERATING REVENUE 13,675                    18,448                    (4,773)                  (25.87%) 48,505                55,343                 (6,838)                  (12.36%)

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 52,745                    -                          52,745                 100.00% 100,006              -                       100,006               100.00%

DEVELOPER REVENUE 40,590                    27,500                    13,090                 47.60% 113,227              82,500                 30,727                 37.24%

DEVELOPER EXPENSES 35,546                    22,500                    13,046                 57.98% 87,785                67,500                 20,285                 30.05%

MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT

CURRENT QUARTER YEAR-TO-DATE

INCOME STATEMENT

JANUARY 1, 2019 TO MARCH 31, 2019

(UNAUDITED)

ORD COMMUNITY SEWER FUND



ACTUAL BUDGET $ VARIANCE % VARIANCE ACTUAL BUDGET $ VARIANCE % VARIANCE

REVENUES

WATER SALES -                         -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

SEWER SALES -                         -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

INTEREST INCOME -                         9                             (9)                         (100.00%) 95                       26                        69                        265.38%

OTHER REVENUE -                         -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

TOTAL REVENUES -                         9                             (9)                         (100.00%) 95                       26                        69                        265.38%

EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATIVE 85                          1,000                      (915)                     (91.50%) 175                     3,000                   (2,825)                  (94.17%)

OPERATING & MAINTENANCE -                         -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

LABORATORY -                         -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

CONSERVATION -                         -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

ENGINEERING -                         -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

WATER RESOURCES -                         -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

INTEREST EXPENSE 24,359                   87,160                    (62,801)                (72.05%) 207,463              261,481               (54,018)                (20.66%)

FRANCHISE FEE -                         -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

TOTAL EXPENSES 24,444                   88,160                    (63,716)                (72.27%) 207,638              264,481               (56,843)                (21.49%)

NET GAIN (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS (24,444)                  (88,151)                   63,707                 (72.27%) (207,543)             (264,455)              56,912                 (21.52%)

CAPACITY FEE/ CAPITAL SURCHARGE -                         -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

CONTRIBUTIONS/ GRANT REVENUE 4,251,265              300,000                  3,951,265            1317.09% 4,251,265           900,000               3,351,265            372.36%

NON-OPERATING REVENUE -                         -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 920,811                 -                          920,811               100.00% 6,797,420           -                       6,797,420            100.00%

DEVELOPER REVENUE -                         -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

DEVELOPER EXPENSES -                         -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT

CURRENT QUARTER YEAR-TO-DATE

INCOME STATEMENT

JANUARY 1, 2019 TO MARCH 31, 2019

(UNAUDITED)

RECYCLED WATER FUND



ACTUAL BUDGET $ VARIANCE % VARIANCE ACTUAL BUDGET $ VARIANCE % VARIANCE

REVENUES

WATER SALES -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

SEWER SALES -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

INTEREST INCOME -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

OTHER REVENUE -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

TOTAL REVENUES -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATIVE -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

OPERATING & MAINTENANCE -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

LABORATORY -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

CONSERVATION -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

ENGINEERING -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

WATER RESOURCES -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

INTEREST EXPENSE -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

FRANCHISE FEE -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

TOTAL EXPENSES -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

NET GAIN (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

CAPACITY FEE/ CAPITAL SURCHARGE -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

CONTRIBUTIONS/ GRANT REVENUE -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

NON-OPERATING REVENUE -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 473,300               -                          473,300               100.00% 1,145,135           -                       1,145,135            100.00%

DEVELOPER REVENUE -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

DEVELOPER EXPENSES -                       -                          -                       -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       

MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT

CURRENT QUARTER YEAR-TO-DATE

INCOME STATEMENT

JANUARY 1, 2019 TO MARCH 31, 2019

(UNAUDITED)

REGIONAL PROJECT FUND



ACCT YIELD 12/31/2018 3/31/2019
ACCOUNT TYPE APR BALANCE TRANSACTION TYPE AMOUNT BALANCE

LAIF ACCOUNT 2.55% 7,689,190         INTEREST 01/15/2019 46,464                       7,735,654                  

SAVINGS ACCOUNT MM 0.20% 973,358            INTEREST 01/01/19 - 03/31/19 469                            973,827                     

CPFCA DEPOSIT ACCOUNT MM 0.05% 100,469            INTEREST 01/01/19 - 03/31/19 12                              100,481                     

RESTRICTED FUNDS MM 0.16% 6,330,052         INTEREST 01/01/19 - 03/31/19 2,442                         6,332,494                  

RUWAP LOC PROCEEDS CK 4,825                DEPOSITS -                             4,825                         
WITHDRAWALS -                             4,825                         

CHECKING ACCOUNT CK 5,468,058         QUARTERLY DEPOSITS & CREDITS 5,001,078                  10,469,136                
QUARTERLY CHECKS & DEBITS (5,092,212)                 5,376,924                  

SUMMARY 2018 2019 RESERVES DETAIL (LAIF ACCOUNT) 2018 2019

LAIF ACCOUNT 7,583,306           7,735,654         MW GEN OP RESERVE 519,645                     516,973                     
SAVINGS ACCOUNT 2,171,295           973,827            MW CAPACITY REVENUE FUND 490,837                     574,636                     
CPFCA DEPOSIT ACCOUNT 100,431              100,481            MW CAP REPL RESERVE FUND 1,329,936                  1,295,827                  
RESTRICTED FUNDS 6,322,398           6,332,494         MS GEN OP RESERVE 1,295,559                  1,357,716                  
RUWAP LOC PROCEEDS 4,970                  4,825                MS CAPACITY REVENUE FUND 147,074                     113,900                     
CHECKING ACCOUNT 6,941,982           5,376,924         MS CAP REPL RESERVE FUND 1,938                         1,977                         

TOTAL INVESTMENT 23,124,382         20,524,205       OW GEN OP RESERVE 323,797                     83,164                       
OW CAPITAL/CAPACITY REVENUE FUND 2,377,701                  2,801,116                  
OW CAP REPL RESERVE FUND 195,105                     70,516                       
OS GEN OP RESERVE 283,455                     17,755                       
OS CAPITAL/CAPACITY REVENUE FUND 616,593                     900,375                     
OS CAP REPL RESERVE FUND 1,665                         1,699                         

TOTAL 7,583,305                  7,735,654                  

As of March 31As of March 31

QUARTERLY ACTIVITIES

MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS SUMMARY

JANUARY 1, 2019 TO MARCH 31, 2019

(UNAUDITED)



ACCT YIELD 12/31/2018 3/31/2019
ACCOUNT TYPE APR BALANCE TRANSACTION TYPE AMOUNT BALANCE

RESERVE FUND TFUND 2.50% 852,468      INTEREST 01/01/19 - 03/31/19 4,722               857,190           
2010 REFUNDING BOND FUNDS TRANFER -                   857,190           

QUARTERLY ACTIVITIES

MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS SUMMARY - BOND PROCEEDS

JANUARY 1, 2019 TO MARCH 31, 2019

(UNAUDITED)



PRINCIPAL FIRST FINAL 12/31/2018 3/31/2019
AMOUNT PAYMENT PAYMENT RATE BALANCE TRANSACTION TYPE AMOUNT BALANCE

HCC - BLM INSTALLMENT LOAN
2,799,880       07/20/2017 01/20/2037 5.750% 2,681,962     PAYMENT - PRINCIPAL (41,588)            2,640,374         

INTEREST PAYMENT (77,106)            

2010 REFUNDING BOND - CLOSING DATE 12/23/2010
8,495,000       06/01/2011 06/01/2020 4.340% 2,585,000     PAYMENT - PRINCIPAL -                   2,585,000         

INTEREST PAYMENT -                   

2015 SERIES A REFUNDING BOND - CLOSING DATE 07/15/2015
29,840,000     12/01/2015 06/01/2037 3.712% 28,005,000   PAYMENT - PRINCIPAL -                   28,005,000       

INTEREST PAYMENT -                   

BVAA COMPASS RUWAP LOC
55,000            - 08/01/2020 3.118% * 3,148,798     ADVANCES -                   3,148,798         

PAYMENT - PRINCIPAL -                   3,148,798         
INTEREST PAYMENT (24,359)            

*Line of Credit interest calculated on a variable basis (65.01% of the 30-Day Monthly LIBOR plus 1.50%). Amount represents interest rate at 03/01/2019.

SUMMARY
HCC - BLM INSTALLMENT LOAN 2,640,374     
2010 REFUNDING BOND 2,585,000     
2015 REFUNDING BOND SERIES A 28,005,000   
BVAA COMPASS RUWAP LOC 3,148,798     

TOTAL DEBT 36,379,172   

(UNAUDITED)

QUARTERLY ACTIVITIES

MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SUMMARY

JANUARY 1, 2019 TO MARCH 31, 2019



 
Marina Coast Water District 

Agenda Transmittal  
 
 
Agenda Item: 11-C      Meeting Date: May 20, 2019 
 
Prepared By: Paula Riso     Approved By: Keith Van Der Maaten 
 
Agenda Title: Approve the Draft Minutes of the Joint Board/GSA Meeting of April 15, 2019 
 
Staff Recommendation: The Board of Directors approve the draft minutes of the April 15, 2019 
joint Board meeting. 
 
Background: 5-Year Strategic Plan, Mission Statement – We Provide high quality water, 
wastewater collection and conservation services at a reasonable cost, through planning, 
management and the development of water resources in an environmentally sensitive manner.  
 
Discussion/Analysis: The draft minutes of April 15, 2019 are provided for the Board to consider 
approval. 
 
Environmental Review Compliance: None required. 
 
Financial Impact: _____Yes      X     No Funding Source/Recap: None 
 
Other Considerations: The Board can suggest changes/corrections to the minutes. 
 
Material Included for Information/Consideration: Draft minutes of April 15, 2019. 
        
Action Required:             Resolution      X     Motion             Review 
              

 
Board Action 

 
Motion By______________ Seconded By________________ No Action Taken    
 
Ayes       Abstained      
 
Noes       Absent                                                   
  



 
 
 

Marina Coast Water District 
Regular Board Meeting/Groundwater Sustainability Agency Board Meeting 

April 15, 2019 
             

Draft Minutes 
 

1. Call to Order: 
 
President Moore called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. on April 15, 2019 at the Marina Council 
Chambers, 211 Hillcrest Avenue, Marina, California. 
 
2. Roll Call: 
 
Board Members Present: 
 
Thomas P. Moore – President 
Jan Shriner – Vice President  
Herbert Cortez – arrived at 7:01 p.m. 
Peter Le 
Matt Zefferman 
 
Board Members Absent: 
 
None 
 
Staff Members Present: 
 
Keith Van Der Maaten, General Manager 
Roger Masuda, District Counsel  
Kelly Cadiente, Director of Administrative Services 
Derek Cray, Operations and Maintenance Manager 
Michael Wegley, District Engineer 
Patrick Breen, Water Resources Manager 
Thomas Barkhurst, Laboratory Supervisor 
Paula Riso, Executive Assistant/Clerk to the Board 
 
Audience Members: 
 
Andrew Sterbenz, Schaaf & Wheeler    
Philip Clark, Seaside Resident, WCC Member 
Kathy Biala, Marina Resident 
Lisa Berkley, City of Marina Councilmember 
Jolene, Dezi, and Bella Green, Pacific Grove Residents 
Jorge Valenzuela, Teamster Union Representative 
MCWD Employees 



Joint Board/GSA Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
Page 2 of 14 
 
 
3. Public Comment on Closed Session Items: 
 
There were no public comments.  
 
The Board entered into closed session at 6:32 p.m. to discuss the following items: 
 
4. Closed Session: 
 

A. Pursuant to Government Code 54956.9 
Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation 
 
1) In the Matter of the Application of California-American Water Company (U210W) 

for Approval of the Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project and Authorization to 
Recover All Present and Future Costs in Rates, California Public Utilities 
Commission Application (“A.”) 12-04-019 
 

2) In the Matter of the Application of California-American Water Company (U 210 W) 
for an Order (1) Approving a Settlement Agreement with the County of Monterey 
and the Monterey County Water Resources Agency to Settle and Resolve Claims and 
Issues Between the Parties and to Promote the Development, Construction and 
Operation of a Water Supply Project for Monterey County on an Expedited Basis, 
and (2) Authorizing the Transfer of Authorized Costs Related to the Settlement 
Agreement to Its Special Request 1 Surcharge Balancing Account, California Public 
Utilities Commission Application (“A.”) 13-05-017, and related  
California Supreme Court petition for writ of review. 

 
3) City of Marina and Marina Coast Water District, Petitioners v. Public Utilities 

Commission of the State of California, Respondent (California-American Water 
Company, et al., Real Parties in Interest), Petitions for Writ of Review, California 
Supreme Court Case No. S253585 

 
4) Marina Coast Water District vs California-American Water Company, Monterey 

County Water Resources Agency; and, California-American Water Company, 
Monterey County Water Resources Agency vs Marina Coast Water District, San 
Francisco Superior Court Case Nos. CGC-15-547125, CGC-15-546632 (Complaint 
for Damages, Breach of Warranties, etc.) 

 
5) Marina Coast Water District v, California Coastal Commission (California-American 

Water Company, Real Party in Interest), Santa Cruz County Superior Court Case No. 
15CV00267, Sixth Appellate District Court of Appeals Case No. H045468 

  



Joint Board/GSA Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
Page 3 of 14 

 
 

Agenda Item 4-A (continued): 
 

6) Bay View Community DE, LLC; Bryan Taylor; Greg Carter; and Brooke Bilyeu vs 
Marina Coast Water District; Board of Directors of Marina Coast Water District; 
County of Monterey and Does 1-25, inclusive, Monterey County Superior Court Case 
No. 18CV000765 (Petition for Writ of Mandate or Administrative Mandate, and 
Complaint for Declaratory and Injunctive Relief and Breach of Contract) 

 
7) Marina Coast Water District, and Does 1-100 v, County of Monterey, County of 

Monterey Health Department Environmental Health Bureau, and Does 101-110, 
Monterey County Superior Court Case No. 18CV000816 (Petition for Writ of 
Mandate and Complaint for Injunctive Relief) 

 
B. Pursuant to Government Code 54957.6 

Conference with Labor Negotiators 
Agency Negotiators (Keith Van Der Maaten, Jan Shriner) 
Employee Organization: Marina Coast Water District Employees Association 
 

C. Pursuant to Government Code 54957.6 
Conference with Labor Negotiators 
Agency Negotiators (Keith Van Der Maaten, Jan Shriner) 
Employee Organization: Teamsters Local 890 
 

The Board ended closed session at 7:02 p.m. 
 
President Moore reconvened the meeting to open session at 7:03 p.m.   

 
5. Reportable Actions Taken during Closed Session: 
 
Mr. Roger Masuda, District Counsel, stated that there were no reportable actions taken during 
Closed Session and direction was given. 
 
6. Pledge of Allegiance: 
 
Vice President Shriner led everyone present in the pledge of allegiance.  
 
7. Oral Communications: 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
  



Joint Board/GSA Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
Page 4 of 14 
 
 
8. Presentation: 
 

A. Adopt Resolution No. 2019-20 in Recognition and Appreciation of Richard Green and to 
Adjourn the Meeting in his Memory: 

 
Mr. Derek Cray, Operations and Maintenance Manager, introduced this item expressing the 
District’s deep grief over the loss of Richard Green.  He then shared his thoughts and fond 
memories of Richard.  
 
President Moore made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 2019-20 recognizing and appreciating 
Richard Green, and to adjourn the meeting in his memory.  Director Zefferman seconded the 
motion.  The motion was passed. 
 
 Director Zefferman - Yes  Vice President Shriner - Yes 
  Director Le - Yes President Moore - Yes 
  Director Cortez - Yes 
 
President Moore read the narration and presented the Green family with a copy of the Board’s 
Resolution No. 2019-20. 
 
9. Consent Calendar: 
 
Director Le asked to pull items A, B, C, D, and E from the Consent Calendar. 
 
Vice President Shriner made a motion to approve the Consent Calendar consisting of: F) Consider 
Adoption of Resolution 2019-22 to Authorize a Notice of Completion for the Repair and Recoat 
of Reservoir 2 to be Filed with the Monterey County Recorder.  President Moore seconded the 
motion.  The motion was passed by the following vote: 
 
 Director Zefferman - Yes  Vice President Shriner - Yes 
  Director Le - Yes President Moore - Yes 
 Director Cortez - Yes 
 

A. Receive and File the Check Register for the Month of March 2019: 
 
Director Le asked if the District keeps W-9’s on file and questioned the process for approving 
invoices.  Ms. Kelly Cadiente, Director of Administrative Services, answered that W-9’s are kept 
on file if the invoice/rebate amount is over $600, and all invoices are reviewed and approved by 
Department Managers prior to payment. 
 
Director Cortez made a motion receive and file the check register for the month of March 2019.  
Vice President Shriner seconded the motion.  The motion was passed by the following vote: 
 
 Director Zefferman - Yes  Vice President Shriner - Yes 
  Director Le - Yes President Moore - Yes 
 Director Cortez - Yes 



Joint Board/GSA Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
Page 5 of 14 
 
 

B. Approve the Draft Minutes of the Joint Board/GSA Meeting of March 18, 2019: 
 
Director Le stated that he wanted the April 15, 2019 minutes to reflect that he sent legal counsel 
questions following the March 18, 2019 meeting which were discussed in Closed Session on April 
15, 2019.  
  
Vice President Shriner made a motion to approve the draft minutes of the Joint Board/GSA 
Meeting of March 18, 2019.  Director Zefferman seconded the motion.  The motion was passed 
by the following vote: 
 
 Director Zefferman - Abstained  Vice President Shriner - Yes 
  Director Le - Abstained President Moore - Yes 
  Director Cortez - Yes 
 

C. Consider Approval of the 2018 Consumer Confidence Report for the Marina Coast Water 
District Water System, Central Marina and Ord Community: 
 

Director Le asked what locations had the positive Coliform Bacteria tests.  Mr. Cray answered that 
he couldn’t recall what locations they were but would provide that information later.  Director Le 
inquired on the testing schedule for lead and copper, and uranium.  The Board asked other 
clarifying questions.  Director Zefferman asked to add the area code to Thomas’s phone number 
on the first page. 
 
Director Cortez made a motion to approve the 2018 Consumer Confidence Report for the Marina 
Coast Water District Water System, Central Marina and Ord Community.  Vice President Shriner 
seconded the motion.  The motion was passed by the following vote: 
 
 Director Zefferman - Yes  Vice President Shriner - Yes 
  Director Le - Yes President Moore - Yes 

Director Cortez - Yes 
 

D. Consider Approval of the Water Conservation Commission Public Outreach Event 
Schedule for 2019: 
 

Director Le made a motion to approve the Water Conservation Commission Public Outreach Event 
Schedule for 2019 with two Marina Farmer Market events added to the schedule.  Director 
Zefferman seconded the motion. 
 
Vice President Shriner made a substitute motion to approve the schedule as approved by the Water 
Conservation Commission.  Director Cortez seconded the motion.   Discussion followed.   
 
Vice President Shriner made an amendment to her substitute motion to approve the schedule as 
approved by the Water Conservation Commission and ask if staff could attend one or two Farmer’s 
Markets this year.  Director Cortez seconded the amended motion.   
  



Joint Board/GSA Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
Page 6 of 14 
 
 
Agenda Item 9-D (continued): 
 
The motion was passed by the following vote: 
 
 Director Zefferman - Yes  Vice President Shriner - Yes 
  Director Le - Yes President Moore - Yes 

Director Cortez - Yes 
 

E. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-21 to Approve an Update to the Employee 
Handbook: 

 
Director Le asked if the Human Resources Attorneys have reviewed this item.  Mr. Keith Van Der 
Maaten, General Manager, answered that legal counsel had reviewed this item. 
 
Vice President Shriner made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 2019-21 to approve an update to 
the Employee Handbook.  The motion failed for lack of a second. 
 
Director Le questioned page 52 and the removal of “more than 10 minutes”.  President Moore 
suggested adding the language “when an employee arrives after their scheduled start time”. 
 
Director Le questioned page 91 and why the appeal process was reduced from fifteen to five.  Mr. 
Van Der Maaten said it was to align it with other documents. 
 
Director Le questioned page 93 and if employees would still receive a plaque.  Mr. Van Der 
Maaten answered that it was intended that upon retirement, employees would receive a plaque.  
President Moore suggested adding that to Section 14.0. 
 
Director Le asked if the changes from the February meeting had been incorporated into this 
version, specifically the harassment training.  Vice President Shriner answered that page 5 has the 
update included.  Director Le stated that there was a new California law and it wasn’t included.  
Mr. Masuda stated that the Human Resources Attorneys were responsible for making sure the 
Handbook was up to date. 
 
Vice President Shriner made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 2019-21 to approve an update to 
the Employee Handbook with the addition of language explaining the scheduled start time.  
Director Zefferman seconded the motion.  The motion was passed by the following vote: 
 
 Director Zefferman - Yes  Vice President Shriner - Yes 
  Director Le - No President Moore - Yes 
  Director Cortez - Abstained 
 
  



Joint Board/GSA Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
Page 7 of 14 
 
 
10. Action Items: 
 

A. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-23 to Approve Amendment No. 3 to the 
Professional Services Agreement with Akel Engineering Group, Inc. for the Master Plans 
and Capacity Fees Study for Sewer, Water and Recycled Water: 

 
Mr. Michael Wegley, District Engineer, introduced this item and gave a brief presentation.   The 
Board asked clarifying questions. 
 
Ms. Lisa Berkley, City of Marina Councilmember, asked for a copy of the slides. 
 
Director Cortez made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 2019-23 to approve Amendment No. 3 to 
the Professional Services Agreement with Akel Engineering Group, Inc. for the Master Plans and 
Capacity Fees Study for Sewer, Water and Recycled Water.  Vice President Shriner seconded the 
motion.  The motion was passed. 
 
 Director Zefferman - Yes  Vice President Shriner - Yes 
  Director Le - Yes President Moore - Yes 
 Director Cortez - Yes 
 

B. Discuss, Consider, and Determine Action on Director Peter Le’s Racial Discrimination 
Complaint against District Staff: 

 
Director Le amended his complaint to specify the individuals as the General Manager and the 
Executive Assistant, and to hire an independent investigator. 
 
Mr. Van Der Maaten introduced this item noting that Director Le’s complaint consisted of his 
name being last on the letterhead and the delay in getting his picture on the District website.   
 
Director Cortez asked if there was also a delay in getting Director Zefferman’s picture on the 
website.  Ms. Paula Riso, Executive Assistant/Clerk to the Board, answered that both pictures were 
delayed.   
 
Director Zefferman suggested a policy on the order of the names on the letterhead and that could 
be discussed under the next item. 
 
Vice President Shriner noted that both pictures were delayed, and asked if there was any other 
evidence other than the names on the letterhead. 
 
Director Cortez noted that it was a huge leap to claim race discrimination because of the order of 
names on letterhead and noted that the picture delay on the website was a process issue.  He stated 
that it was good that Director Le has the platform to let his voice be heard but cautioned against 
making such a huge leap from what it is. 
 
Mr. Masuda stated that the Board needs to respond to the letter of complaint before them. 



Joint Board/GSA Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
Page 8 of 14 
 
 
Agenda Item 10-B (continued): 
 
Ms. Kathy Biala, Marina Resident, commented that after listening to the two issues, probably the 
issue of racism does not particularly relate specifically. She added that perception is critical, and 
perhaps Director Le may have experienced some subtle forms of racism and to not acknowledge 
that is the point of reference for him is to discount some of his experience. 
 
Ms. Berkley commented that she has no doubt that at times in his life he may have experienced 
racism and she is sorry for that.  She stated that what she sees here is not a case of injustice, but a 
process that failed, or got a hiccup.  Ms. Berkley added that she hopes the District and City can 
move forward and find the line to end the sexism, racism and discrimination of any sort. 
 
Mr. Jorge Valenzuela, Teamsters Local 890, commented that throwing an accusation of racial 
harassment at someone is pretty heavy and once accused of it is very hard to get rid of.  He stated 
that maybe this could have been discussed in a different manner, e.g. by asking if there was a 
reason for the order of names on the letterhead and why it took so long to get the pictures on the 
website, instead of throwing this huge accusation on someone.   
 
Vice President Shriner commented that the District has a very strong and diverse Board, including 
highly educated Directors with PhD’s, and Director’s that are bilingual.  She said she would like 
the Board to stay focused on water and would like to know if there was any other evidence to this 
claim.  Vice President Shriner commented that there has been a lot of negativism over recent 
months, especially through the campaign months, and encouraged everyone to move past the 
negativism and represent the people and solve problems in the community.  
 
Director Le said that this allegation is very serious and if the Board were to hire an outside 
investigator to look at the high-level staff it would be eye opening.  He said that the Board thinks 
they know everything but there is more to discover.  Director Le said if the Board makes a decision 
at this meeting, it may not be the end of this. 
 
Director Cortez said that he appreciates the opportunity to participate in things, being a first-
generation citizen in the U.S., especially because he knows he has good ideas.  He added that 
Director Le has good ideas and appreciates hearing them.  Director Cortez said that he doesn’t 
believe the problem is just the letterhead and picture, he believes there may be more and Director 
Le may need to bring them back in a separate item.  He said that as to what was being discussed 
here, the letterhead and picture, the issue has been vetted and the District provided Director Le 
with a platform for a voice and provided a solution. 
 
Director Cortez made a motion that Director Le’s complaint does not warrant further investigation.  
Vice President Shriner seconded the motion.  President Moore commented that this is a sensitive 
issue and he doesn’t see that the evidence presented rises to evidence of racial discrimination and 
going forward everyone needs to be more sensitive to all those around us. 
  



Joint Board/GSA Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
Page 9 of 14 
 
 
Agenda Item 10-B (continued): 
 
The motion was passed. 
 
 Director Zefferman - Yes  Vice President Shriner - Yes 
  Director Le - No President Moore - Yes 
 Director Cortez - Yes 
 

C. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-24 to Approve Revisions to the Board 
Procedures Manual: 

 
Mr. Van Der Maaten introduced this item.   
 
Director Zefferman asked if he and another Director are discussing an issue and then email legal 
counsel a question and, according to Section 16-D,  having to copy the General Manager and Board 
President, does that pose a Brown Act violation.  Mr. Masuda answered it did not as long as they 
do not share how they are going to vote. 
 
Director Le suggested that Section 11. Orientation, Training and Preparation of Directors on Page 
5 of the Board Procedures Manual the second paragraph read “…the General Manager or designee 
will make the necessary changes…”.  Director Le questioned Section 26. Closed Sessions on page 
17 and asked if three Directors can discuss a closed session item outside of closed session.  Mr. 
Masuda advised against it.  Director Le questioned Section 23. Order of Business and noted that 
other agencies are very smart and only put one or two items in closed session and allow a lot more 
time for discussion.  He noted that the District has about nine items in closed session and only 
allows thirty minutes for discussion.  Director Le said the Board can do what they want but he 
doesn’t think it’s as smart as other agencies. 
 
Director Zefferman suggested they go over the agendized changes first then if there are other 
suggested changes, they should be agendized for another meeting.  The Board agreed to take the 
four agendized changes one at a time. 
 
Resolution No. 2019-24 was approved with the following revisions to the Board Procedures 
Manual:   
 

- Change 1, Section 38 – increase Board member compensation from $50 to $100 per Board 
meeting. 

 
The Board asked clarifying questions.  Director Cortez said he needed more justification to make 
this change.  Director Le suggested that it would increase the number of people wanting to run for 
the Board. 
 
Director Le made a motion to approve increasing the Board compensation from $50 to $100 per 
meeting.  The motion failed for lack of a second. 
  



Joint Board/GSA Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
Page 10 of 14 
 
 
Agenda Item 10-C (continued): 
 
Director Zefferman made a motion to leave the compensation at $50 per meeting.  Vice President 
Shriner seconded the motion.  The motion was passed. 
 
 Director Zefferman - Yes  Vice President Shriner - Yes 
  Director Le - No President Moore - Yes 
 Director Cortez - Yes 
 

- Change 2, Section 16-D – legal counsel recommendation clarifying expectations of legal 
counsel. 

 
Director Le asked clarifying questions and suggested removing “with a copy to the Board President 
and Legal Counsel” from Section 16-D at the top of page 12.  Upon further discussion, the Board 
agreed to move the sentence at the top of page 12, “All individual director questions relating to an 
open session item shall be directed to the General Manager.” to Section 16-A. 
 
Director Zefferman made a motion to approve the recommended change to Section 16-D and move 
the sentence at the top of page 12, “All individual director questions relating to an open session 
item shall be directed to the General Manager.” to Section 16-A and striking “with a copy to the 
Board President and Legal Counsel.” Vice President Shriner seconded the motion.  The motion 
was passed. 
 
 Director Zefferman - Yes  Vice President Shriner - Yes 
  Director Le - Yes President Moore - Yes 
 Director Cortez - Yes 
 

- Change 3, Section 11 – include new language how the Board of Directors will be listed on 
the District letterhead. 

 
President Moore made a motion to approve the recommended language with the change to the 
second paragraph so it reads “…the General Manager or designee will make the necessary 
changes…”.  Director Cortez seconded the motion. 
 
Vice President Shriner made a substitute motion to remove the Director’s names from the 
letterhead and list them alphabetically on the District website.  Director Zefferman seconded the 
motion.  Director Le said this is odd and most agencies in California list names of Directors.  
Director Cortez commented that the District is in transition and does not recommend removing the 
names at this time.  Vice President Shriner handed President Moore samples of agencies that do 
not list their members.  President Moore commented that he recommended leaving the names on 
the letterhead. The motion failed. 
 
 Director Zefferman - No  Vice President Shriner - Yes 
  Director Le - No President Moore - No 
 Director Cortez - No 



Joint Board/GSA Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
Page 11 of 14 
 
 
Agenda Item 10-C (continued): 
 
President Moore amended his original motion to approve the recommended language with the 
change to the second paragraph so it reads “…the General Manager or designee will make the 
necessary changes…” with an amendment to include updating all social media as well as the 
website and to order updated letterhead once the current stock is gone.  Director Cortez seconded 
the amended motion.  The motion was passed. 
 
 Director Zefferman - Yes  Vice President Shriner - Yes 
  Director Le - Yes President Moore - Yes 
 Director Cortez - Yes 
 

- Change 4, Section 23 – adding language that if there is insufficient time to cover closed 
session in the time allotted prior to open session, the Board may decide to adjourn to an 
additional closed session after the conclusion of open session. 

 
Vice President Shriner made a motion to approve the recommended language.  President Moore 
seconded the motion.  The motion was passed. 
 
 Director Zefferman - Yes  Vice President Shriner - Yes 
  Director Le - No President Moore - Yes 
 Director Cortez - Yes 
 
10. Staff Reports: 
 

A. Receive the 1st Quarter 2019 MCWD Water Consumption Report: 
 

Ms. Cadiente introduced this item.  Director Le suggested putting numbers on the graphs for the 
jurisdictions instead of colors.  He also asked for a copy of a total annual production report.  
President Moore commented that the smaller graphs will be difficult to put a number on.  Ms. 
Cadiente said she would work on the reports to make them more readable. 
 

B. Receive the 2019 Sewer Flow Report through March 31, 2019: 
 
Ms. Cadiente introduced this item.  The Board asked clarifying questions.  
 

C. Receive a Status Update on the FY 2019-2020 Budget: 
 
Ms. Cadiente introduced this item.   
 
Director Cortez made a motion to continue past 10:00 p.m. President Moore seconded the motion.  
Director Cortez was asked if he intended to continue until the current item is done or until the 
entire agenda is done.  Director Cortez withdrew his motion. 
 
  



Joint Board/GSA Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
Page 12 of 14 
 
 
Agenda Item 10-C (continued): 
 
Director Le made a motion to continue past 10:00 p.m. and finish the agenda including closed 
session.  President Moore seconded the motion.  The motion was passed by a vote of 3-Ayes, 2-
Noes (Cortez, Shriner), 0-Absent, 0-Abstained.  
 
The Board asked clarifying questions.  Director Le pointed out some corrections to page 64 of the 
packet. 
 
12. Informational Items: 
 

A. General Manager’s Report: 
1. Update on the Ord Community Service Agreements: 

 
Mr. Van Der Maaten stated that a presentation was given at the FORA Administrative Committee 
and key points were handed out at that meeting to which he received a lot of input.  He said that 
drafts, with input included, would be provided at the May 1st FORA meeting. 
 

B. Counsel’s Report: 
 
No report was given. 
 

C. Committee and Board Liaison Reports: 
 
1. Water Conservation Commission: 

 
Vice President Shriner gave a brief update and noted the next meeting is May 2nd. 

 
2. Joint City District Committee: 

 
President Moore said they would be meeting on May 1st. 
 

3. Executive Committee: 
 
President Moore noted that the next meeting is May 14th. 
 

4. Community Outreach Committee: 
 

Director Cortez gave a brief update. 
 

5. Budget and Personnel Committee: 
 
Director Cortez gave a brief update. 
  



Joint Board/GSA Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
Page 13 of 14 
 
 

6. M1W Board Member: 
 

President Moore gave a brief update and noted the next meeting is on April 29th. 
 

7. LAFCO Liaison: 
 

Director Cortez noted the next meeting is April 22nd. 
 

8. FORA:  
 
Director Zefferman gave a brief update.   
 

9. WWOC: 
 
Mr. Van Der Maaten gave a brief update and noted the next meeting is April 25th. 
 

10. JPIA Liaison: 
 
Director Le stated that there was a meeting on May 6 and 7th.   
 
 11. Special Districts Association Liaison:  
 
President Moore stated they met on April 16th and gave a brief update. 
 
  12. SVGSA Liaison: 
 
No update was given. 
   
13. Correspondence: 
 
There were no comments. 
 
14. Board Member Requests for Future Agenda Items: 
 
President Moore noted that they can email in their requests.   
 
15. Director’s Comments: 

 
Director Le, Director Cortez, Vice President Shriner, and President Moore made comments.  
 
President Moore recessed the meeting from 10:24 to 10:29 p.m. 
 
4.  Closed Session: 
 
The Board reentered into closed session at 10:29 p.m. to discuss the following items: 



Joint Board/GSA Meeting 
April 15, 2019 
Page 14 of 14 
 
 
The Board ended closed session at 11:04 p.m. 
 
President Moore reconvened the meeting to open session at 11:05 p.m.   

 
5. Reportable Actions Taken during Closed Session: 
 
Mr. Masuda stated that there were no reportable actions taken during Closed Session and direction 
was given. 
 
16. Adjournment: 
 
The meeting was adjourned in honor and memory of Richard Green at 11:06 p.m. 
  
        
         APPROVED:  
          
               
         Thomas P. Moore, President  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
           
Paula Riso, Deputy Secretary 



 
Marina Coast Water District 

Agenda Transmittal  
 
 
Agenda Item: 11-D      Meeting Date: May 20, 2019 
 
Prepared By: Paula Riso     Approved By: Keith Van Der Maaten 
 
Agenda Title: Approve the Draft Minutes of the Special Joint Board/GSA Meeting of May 1, 2019 
 
Staff Recommendation: The Board of Directors approve the draft minutes of the May 1, 2019 joint 
Board meeting. 
 
Background: 5-Year Strategic Plan, Mission Statement – We Provide high quality water, 
wastewater collection and conservation services at a reasonable cost, through planning, 
management and the development of water resources in an environmentally sensitive manner.  
 
Discussion/Analysis: The draft minutes of May 1, 2019 are provided for the Board to consider 
approval. 
 
Environmental Review Compliance: None required. 
 
Financial Impact: _____Yes      X     No Funding Source/Recap: None 
 
Other Considerations: The Board can suggest changes/corrections to the minutes. 
 
Material Included for Information/Consideration: Draft minutes of May 1, 2019. 
        
Action Required:             Resolution      X     Motion             Review 
              

 
Board Action 

 
Motion By______________ Seconded By________________ No Action Taken    
 
Ayes       Abstained      
 
Noes       Absent                                                   
  



 
 
 
 

Marina Coast Water District 
Special Board Meeting/Groundwater Sustainability Agency Board Meeting 

May 1, 2019 
             

Draft Minutes 
 

1. Call to Order: 
 
President Moore called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. on May 1, 2019 at the District office, 11 
Reservation Road, Marina, California. 
 
2. Roll Call: 
 
Board Members Present: 
 
Thomas P. Moore – President 
Jan Shriner – Vice President  
Herbert Cortez 
Peter Le 
Matt Zefferman 
 
Board Members Absent: 
 
None 
 
Staff Members Present: 
 
Keith Van Der Maaten, General Manager 
Roger Masuda, District Counsel  
Derek Cray, Operations and Maintenance Manager 
Paula Riso, Executive Assistant/Clerk to the Board 
 
Audience Members: 
 
Philip Clark, Seaside Resident, WCC Member 
    
3. Pledge of Allegiance: 
 
Mr. Keith Van Der Maaten, General Manager, led everyone present in the pledge of allegiance.  
 
4. Oral Communications: 
 
There were no public comments. 
    



Special Joint Board/GSA Meeting 
May 1, 2019 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
5. Action Items: 
 

A. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-25 to Approve the Purchase of a New 2100 i 
Combination Cleaner Vactor from Owens Equipment for the Operations and Maintenance 
Department: 

 
Mr. Derek Cray, Operations and Maintenance Manager, introduced this item.  The Board asked 
clarifying questions including why this purchase can’t wait until after the budget is adopted and in 
place, July 1, 2019.  Staff answered that since the vehicle is built to order and there is currently a 
back-log, it will be at least eight months before the vehicle will be delivered.  The Board suggested 
looking into different options of what to do with the old vactor.  Director Le suggested adding a 
finding to the Resolution as to why they are purchasing a vactor through Sourcewell and not going 
out to bid. 
 
Director Cortez made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 2019-25 approving the purchase of a new 
2100 i Combination Cleaner Vactor from Owens Equipment for the Operations and Maintenance 
Department.  Vice President Shriner seconded the motion.  The motion was passed. 
 
 Director Zefferman - Yes  Vice President Shriner - Yes 
  Director Le - No President Moore - Yes 
 Director Cortez - Yes 
 

B. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-26 to Award Contracts to Calcon Systems and 
Telstar Instruments for Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition and Motor Control 
Centers for On-Call Services: 

 
Mr. Cray introduced this item.  The Board asked clarifying questions and if there one firm would 
be primary over the other.  Staff answered that these firms responded to a Request for 
Qualifications and there would not be a primary firm.  Staff would use their judgement at the time 
of need as to which firm to call for assistance. 
 
Vice President Shriner made a motion to award contracts to both Calcon Systems and Telstar 
Instruments for Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition and Motor Control Centers for on-call 
services.  Director Cortez seconded the motion.  The motion was passed. 
 
 Director Zefferman - Yes  Vice President Shriner - Yes 
  Director Le - No President Moore - Yes 
 Director Cortez - Yes 
 
6. Public Comment on Closed Session Items: 
 
There were no public comments.  
 
President Moore recessed the meeting from 6:25 p.m. until 6:30 p.m. 
 



Special Joint Board/GSA Meeting 
May 1, 2019 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
The Board entered into closed session at 6:31 p.m. to discuss the following items: 
 
7. Closed Session: 
 

A. Pursuant to Government Code 54956.9 
Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation 
 
1) In the Matter of the Application of California-American Water Company (U210W) 

for Approval of the Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project and Authorization to 
Recover All Present and Future Costs in Rates, California Public Utilities 
Commission Application (“A.”) 12-04-019 
 

2) In the Matter of the Application of California-American Water Company (U 210 W) 
for an Order (1) Approving a Settlement Agreement with the County of Monterey 
and the Monterey County Water Resources Agency to Settle and Resolve Claims and 
Issues Between the Parties and to Promote the Development, Construction and 
Operation of a Water Supply Project for Monterey County on an Expedited Basis, 
and (2) Authorizing the Transfer of Authorized Costs Related to the Settlement 
Agreement to Its Special Request 1 Surcharge Balancing Account, California Public 
Utilities Commission Application (“A.”) 13-05-017, and related  
California Supreme Court petition for writ of review. 

 
3) City of Marina and Marina Coast Water District, Petitioners v. Public Utilities 

Commission of the State of California, Respondent (California-American Water 
Company, et al., Real Parties in Interest), Petitions for Writ of Review, California 
Supreme Court Case No. S253585 

 
4) Marina Coast Water District vs California-American Water Company, Monterey 

County Water Resources Agency; and, California-American Water Company, 
Monterey County Water Resources Agency vs Marina Coast Water District, San 
Francisco Superior Court Case Nos. CGC-15-547125, CGC-15-546632 (Complaint 
for Damages, Breach of Warranties, etc.) 

 
5) Marina Coast Water District v. California Coastal Commission (California-American 

Water Company, Real Party in Interest), Santa Cruz County Superior Court Case No. 
15CV00267, Sixth Appellate District Court of Appeals Case No. H045468 

 
President Moore reconvened the meeting to open session at 9:40 p.m.   

 
8. Reportable Actions Taken during Closed Session: 
 
Mr. Roger Masuda, District Counsel, stated that there were no reportable actions taken during 
Closed Session. 
 
 



Special Joint Board/GSA Meeting 
May 1, 2019 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
9. Director’s Comments: 

 
Director Zefferman, Director Cortez, Vice President Shriner, and President Moore made 
comments.  
 
10. Adjournment: 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:42 p.m. 
  
        
         APPROVED:  
          
               
         Thomas P. Moore, President  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
           
Paula Riso, Deputy Secretary 



 
Marina Coast Water District 

Agenda Transmittal 
 

 

Agenda Item: 11-E       Meeting Date: May 20, 2019 
 
Prepared By: Derek Cray                                    Approved By: Keith Van Der Maaten 
 
Agenda Title: Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-30 to award a Contract to Don Chapin 

Company, Inc. for Construction On-Call Services  
 
Staff Recommendation: The Board of Directors award a contract to the Don Chapin Company, 
Inc. for construction on-call services and authorize the General Manager to sign the contracts and 
all necessary documents. 
 
Background: 5-Year Strategic Plan Mission Statement – We provide our customers with high 
quality water, wastewater collection and conservation services at a reasonable cost, through 
planning, management and the development of water resources in an environmentally sensitive 
manner.  
 
Marina Coast Water District (District) operates and maintains the water (CA 271007) and 
wastewater system (3SSO 10287) for Central Marina and the Ord Community.  The District’s 
Operations and Maintenance department operates and maintains 162 miles of water distribution 
pipe ranging in size from 2”- 24”.  Distribution pipeline material is comprised of: PVC plastic, 
steel, ductile iron and asbestos cement.  The District also operates and maintains approximately 
143.6 miles of sewer gravity mains ranging in size from 4” to 72” and approximately 6.4 mile of 
force mains ranging in size from 4” to 42”.  The sewer system pipeline is comprised of: PVC 
plastic, steel, ductile iron, asbestos cement and vitrified clay pipe. 
 
Discussion/Analysis: The Operations and Maintenance Department’s water and sewer systems are 
very complex with many large transmission and trunk lines.  Typically, Operations and 
Maintenance do all repairs on pipelines in house.  However, due to the nature of the size of some 
of these lines and their depth, staff would be unable to repair these in an emergency as the District 
is not equipped to handle extremely large pipe repair or replacement in house.  This is due to not 
having large heavy machinery, such as excavators and a stock of large pipe.  Since the nature of 
these repairs are infrequent, it doesn’t make financial sense to purchase large equipment and pipe 
to do these repairs.  Therefore, it is in the best interest of the District to have a contractor on-call 
for construction services that are outside of the District’s capability to do in house.   
 
Therefore, a request for qualifications (RFQ) was sent out to five nearby and capable contractors 
for on-call construction work.  The five contractors the RFQ were sent to were: Don Chapin 
Company, Inc., Monterey Peninsula Engineering (MPE), Granite Construction, Sanco Pipelines, 
and James Sommerville Inc.  The closing date for the RFQ was May 3, 2019, and the District 
received one (1) RFQ responses from the Don Chapin Company, Inc.  The District has utilized the 
Don Chapin Company, Inc. in the past and was pleased with their work and responsiveness.   
Therefore, staff is recommending the Board of Directors approve and award a two-year contract 
to the Don Chapin Company, Inc. for on-call construction work with the possibility of two 
additional one-year extensions. 
 
 



 
 
Environmental Review Compliance: None required. 
 
Financial Impact:       X      Yes              No    Funding Source/Recap:  Funding for 
pipeline work will will come from each cost centers budgeted General Operations and 
Maintenance fund or the Maintenance and Equipment fund for each pump station. 

 
Other Considerations: None 
 
Material Included for Information/Consideration:  Resolution No. 2019-30; and, a copy of the RFQ 
for Don Chapin Company, Inc. 
 
Action Required:        X      Resolution                Motion              Review 
(Roll call vote is required.) 
              
 

Board Action 
 

Motion By______________ Seconded By________________ No Action Taken_____________ 
 
Ayes       Abstained      
 
Noes       Absent                                                   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
May 20, 2019 

 
Resolution No. 2019 - 30 

Resolution of the Board of Directors 
Marina Coast Water District 

Awarding a Contract to Don Chapin, Inc. for Construction On-Call Services 
 
 

 RESOLVED by the Board of Directors (“Directors”) of the Marina Coast Water District 
(“District”), at a regular meeting duly called and held on May 20, 2019 at 211 Hillcrest Avenue, 
Marina, California. 
 

 WHEREAS, the District operates and maintains the water (CA 271007) and wastewater 
system (3SSO 10287) for Central Marina and the Ord Community; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the District’s Operations and Maintenance department operates and maintains 

162 miles of water distribution and 143.6 miles of sewer gravity mains; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Maintenance department is not equipped to repair large 
pipe in-house; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the District sent out a Request for Qualifications to five local and capable 

contractors; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Don Chapin Company, Inc. was the only responsive contractor; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Don Chapin Company, Inc. is capable of a 4-hour response for 

emergencies and qualified to perform the work required by the District. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Directors of the Marina Coast 
Water District does award a two-year contract, with the option to extend two additional one-year 
extensions, to the qualified contractor, the Don Chapin Company, Inc. for construction on-call 
services and authorizes the General Manager to sign all the contract and necessary documents. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on May 20, 2019 by the Board of Directors of the Marina Coast 
Water District by the following roll call vote:  

 
Ayes:  Directors          

 
 Noes:  Directors          
 
 Absent: Directors          
 
 Abstained: Directors          
 
 

______________________________ 
Thomas P. Moore, President 

 
 



 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
 
 The undersigned Secretary of the Board of the Marina Coast Water District hereby certifies 
that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 2019-30 adopted May 20, 2019. 
 

 
      

                           Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary  

  

























 
Marina Coast Water District 

Agenda Transmittal 
 

 

Agenda Item: 11-F      Meeting Date: May 20, 2019 
 
Prepared By: Brian True     Approved By: Keith Van Der Maaten 
Reviewed By:  Michael Wegley 
 
Agenda Title: Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-31 to Amend the On-Call Engineering 

Services Agreement with Schaaf & Wheeler for the A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C 
Booster Pump Station Design Services 

 
Staff Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the Board of Directors of the Marina Coast Water 
District adopt Resolution No. 2019-31 and authorize the General Manager to take all actions and 
execute all documents as may be necessary or appropriate for Amendment No. 5 to On-Call 
Engineering Professional Services Agreement No. 2017-67 with Schaaf & Wheeler for the A1/A2 
Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station Improvements (CIP # GW-0112) not-to-exceed 
$868,905. 
 
Background:  5-Year Strategic Plan Mission Statement – To provide our customers with high 
quality water, wastewater collection and conservation services at a reasonable cost, through 
planning, management and the development of water resources in an environmentally sensitive 
manner. 
 
The District’s water system has experienced a need to increase A-zone reservoir water storage 
since the eastward expansion of Central Marina past Crescent Avenue.  The need increased when 
the Former Fort Ord commenced redevelopment with the Dunes on Monterey Development 
Project. This will be addressed via the District’s Capital Improvement project for the construction 
of the A1/A2 tanks and new B/C booster station.  The A1/A2 tanks and new B/C booster pump 
station will replace the existing B/C booster pump station and existing Sand Tank at a new location.  
Records of the existing pump station and tank are limited with parts of the system built by the US 
Army dating back to the 1950’s still in use today. 
 
An RFP for the design of the A1/A2 tanks and new B/C booster pump station was distributed to 
the three engineering consultants that have on-call contracts with MCWD:  Schaff & Wheeler, 
Carollo Engineers, and Harris & Associates.  Their proposals were due to MCWD on April 22, 
2019.  MCWD received proposals from Carollo Engineers and Schaaf & Wheeler.  Harris & 
Associated declined to propose on the project. 
 
Discussion and Analysis:  District staff has reviewed the proposals and have selected Schaaf & 
Wheeler as the superior proposal.  Their level of effort and costs are consistent and competitive 
with industry norms and within MCWD’s expectations, and this particular consultant has the long-
term institutional knowledge of MCWD’s potable water network to execute this complicated 
project design. Their proposal is for a not-to-exceed value of $868,905. The On-call contract 
stipulates that tasks exceeding $45,000 in magnitude be brought to the Board for authorization.  
 
The tasks Schaaf & Wheeler will undertake include the following: 
 



 
• Gather Design Information and Basis of Design – Schaaf will coordinate the work of 

subconsultants to gather the needed data to generate the design.  Significant tasks include 
topographic surveying and mapping, geotechnical assessments, and biological assessments for 
CEQA compliance/permitting.  Schaff will synthesize the information into a Basis of Design 
Technical Memorandum. 
 

• Preliminary Designs and CEQA – Schaaf will prepare 60-percent and 90-percent design 
drawings.  Cost estimates and construction and material specifications will be prepared for 
each stage.  Simultaneously, the environmental Initial Study will be prepared and accepted by 
the MCWD Board in accord with CEQA requirements.  District staff will be afforded the 
opportunity to review and comment on each task and will drive the timeline of submittals. 

 
• Design Construction (Bid) Document – Schaaf will prepare the 100-percent Design 

Construction documents that will be used to conduct a bid to construct the project.  The work 
will include the instructions to contractors and process for bidding on the project, a clear 
bidding scope of work, the contract between the MCWD and the successful bidder, project 
construction and material specifications, and the project Design itself. 

 
• Bid Phase and Construction Phase Support – Schaaf has provided budget hours in this current 

scope of work to assist MCWD at a minimum level through the bidding and construction 
phases of the project; during contract award (a decision brought to the MCWD Board to 
authorizes the totality of the expected project expenditures), a contract amendment to alter 
Schaaf’s labor hours for construction phase support may be included. 

 
The duration of the design portion of this contract is roughly 18-months and should be completed 
by the end of April 2020.  There is an expectation that Schaaf will participate in the on-going work 
to construct the design after April 2020.   
 
The District obtained the easements for the new A1/A2 tanks and B/C booster pump station from 
California State University Monterey Bay (CSUMB). The terms and conditions of the easements 
contain a provision that the District pay for any and all reasonable architectural treatments CSUMB 
may require up to ten percent (10%) of the base cost of each reservoir and the District shall work 
closely with CSUMB during the design process and through the duration of the project completion 
to develop the needed architectural treatments.  As such, Schaaf will be working closely with 
CSUMB on the design. 
 
Environmental Review Compliance: This contract amendment is not a project under CEQA; the 
project scope does include conducting the CEQA compliance work dictated by a “project” as 
defined by CEQA. 
 
Financial Impact:       X      Yes              No     Funding Source/Recap: CIP# - GW-0112 is 
funded in the fiscal year capital improvement projects budget from both water cost centers.  
  
Other Considerations:  None. 
Material Included for Information/Consideration:  Resolution No. 2019-31; Schaaf & Wheeler 
Amendment #5; Schaaf & Wheeler A Tank Proposal; and, Fee Estimate. 
 
Action Required:        X      Resolution                Motion              Review 
(Roll call vote is required.) 
  



 
              

 
Board Action 

 
Motion By                      Seconded By                 No Action Taken    

 
Ayes       Abstained      
 
Noes       Absent                                          
  



 
May 20, 2019 

 
Resolution No. 2019 – 31 

Resolution of the Board of Directors 
Marina Coast Water District 

Approving Amendment No. 5 to the On-Call Engineering Services Agreement with  
Schaaf & Wheeler for Design Services for  

CIP# GW-0112 – A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 
 
  RESOLVED by the Board of Directors (“Directors”) of the Marina Coast Water 
District (“District”), at a regular meeting duly called and held on May 20, 2019, at 211 Hillcrest 
Avenue, Marina, California as follows: 
 
 WHEREAS the District’s water system has experienced a need to increase A-zone 
reservoir water storage since the eastward expansion of Central Marina past Crescent Avenue.  The 
need increased when the Former Fort Ord commenced redevelopment with the Dunes on Monterey 
Development Project; and,  
 
 WHEREAS the need for additional water storage in the A-zone will be addressed via the 
District’s Capital Improvement project (GW-0112) for the construction of the A1/A2 tanks and 
new B/C booster station; and, 
  
 WHEREAS the District requested proposals from the three engineering consultants that 
have on-call contracts with MCWD to perform the design services for the A1/A2 tanks and new 
B/C booster station; and, 
 
 WHEREAS the District reviewed the proposals and have selected Schaaf & Wheeler as 
having the superior proposal; and, 
  
 WHEREAS the proposal is for a not-to-exceed value of $868,905 and the proposal amount 
is consistent with current MCWD practice and industry standard for the planned project work; and,  
 
 WHEREAS the On-call contract stipulates that tasks exceeding $45,000 in magnitude be 
brought to the Board for authorization. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Marina Coast 
Water District does hereby authorize the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 5 to the 
On-Call Engineering Services with Schaaf & Wheeler for Design Services for CIP# GW-0112 – 
A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station for a not-to-exceed value of $868,905 and directs 
the General Manager to take all actions and execute all documents as may be necessary or 
appropriate to give effect to this resolution.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED on May 20, 2019 by the Board of Directors of the Marina Coast 

Water District by the following roll call vote: 
 
Ayes:  Directors          
 

 Noes:  Directors          
 
 Absent: Directors          
 
 Abstained: Directors          



 
 

 
 
      
  Thomas P. Moore, President 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
 
 The undersigned Secretary of the Board of the Marina Coast Water District hereby certifies 
that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 2019-31 adopted on May 20, 
2019. 

 
 

      
           Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary 
 
 
  



Schaaf & Wheeler
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEERS

Client:
Project:

Task:
Estimate Date: 5/13/2019 Rates: 2019 with 6% Discount

 
TASK ITEMS PRINCIPAL SENIOR SENIOR ASSOC. ASST. JUNIOR DESIGNER IN-HOUSE IN-HOUSE Whitson CEG TJCAA Paul Davis Denise TOTAL

PM PM ENG ENG ENG ENG SUBTOTAL LABOR MATERIAL Engineers Elec. & Partnership Duffy COSTS $
NO. DESCRIPTION $221 $212 $197 $179 $160 $150 $141 M.H.'S COSTS $ COSTS $ Surveying Geotech Struct. Architect CEQA W/ MARK-UP

Task 1 Project Management $28,984
1.1 Meetings and Management 4 48 32 84 $16,180 $16,180
1.2 Outreach and Stake Holder Engagement 32 12 44 $8,704 $4,100 $12,804

Task 2 Preliminary Design $189,287
2.1 Design Kickoff Meeting 4 8 4 8 24 $4,648 $2,700 $7,348
2.2 Facility Sizing Analysis 4 12 12 12 40 $7,712 $7,712
2.3 Basis of Design Memorandum 4 12 20 60 40 136 $22,608 $50 $44,700 $6,000 $73,358
2.4 Geotechnical Assessment 4 4 $848 $26,877 $27,725
2.5 Biological Reconnaisance Report 4 4 $848 $8,000 $8,848
2.6 Topographic Base Mapping/Utility Locating 2 4 6 $1,064 $12,000 $38,000 $51,064
2.7 Surge Modeling 16 16 32 64 $13,232 $13,232

Task 3 60% Design Construction Documents $225,960
3.1   60% Design Plans with Specifications 20 80 60 120 120 400 $69,320 $100 $7,000 $137,900 $6,000 $220,320
3.2   60% Design Cost Estimate 4 16 20 $3,408 $3,408
3.3 Review Documents with District Staff 6 6 12 $2,232 $2,232

Task 4 CEQA and Permitting $46,700
4.1 Prepare CEQA Initial Study 8 16 24 $4,256 $25,900 $30,156
4.2 Resource Agency Coordination 12 12 $2,544 $14,000 $16,544

Task 5 90% Design Construction Documents $119,252
5.1   90% Design Plans with Specifications 4 40 24 120 40 228 $38,932 $100 $1,680 $68,900 $4,000 $113,612
5.2   90% Design Cost Estimate 4 16 20 $3,408 $3,408
5.3 Review Documents with District Staff 6 6 12 $2,232 $2,232

Task 6 100% Design Construction Documents $37,886
6.1   Final Design Plans with Specifications 2 20 40 62 $11,082 $100 $23,000 $2,000 $36,182
6.2   Final Design Cost Estimate 2 8 10 $1,704 $1,704

0 $0 $0
Task 7 Bid Phase Services $8,418

7.1 Attend pre-bid conference 6 6 12 $2,232 $2,232
7.2 Respond to RFI's, prepare clarifications and addenda 2 12 20 34 $6,186 $6,186

Total 60 338 152 0 502 0 200 1252 $223,380 $12,350 $45,000 $28,557 $274,500 $18,000 $54,700 $656,487
ROUNDED TOTAL, Design and Bid Phase $656,500

Marina Coast Water District
A1/A2 Tanks and B/C Booster Pump Station
Design, Bid and Cosntruction Phases



TASK ITEMS PRINCIPAL SENIOR SENIOR ASSOC. ASST. JUNIOR DESIGNER IN-HOUSE IN-HOUSE Whitson CEG TJCAA Paul Davis Denise TOTAL
PM PM ENG ENG ENG ENG SUBTOTAL LABOR MATERIAL Engineers Elec. & Partnership Duffy COSTS $

NO. DESCRIPTION $221 $212 $197 $179 $160 $150 $141 M.H.'S COSTS $ COSTS $ Surveying Geotech Struct. Architect CEQA W/ MARK-UP

Task 8 Construction Phase Services (18-months) $206,242
8.1 Attend pre-bid conference 2 4 4 10 $1,930 $1,930
8.2 Attend Progress meetings (assume 60) 32 8 40 $8,064 $8,064
8.3 Respond to RFI's, prepare clarifications and revisions 24 40 64 $11,488 $92,300 $5,000 $108,788
8.4 Review Submittals (assume 120) 40 160 200 $34,080 $34,080
8.5 Site visits & start-up support 40 60 100 $18,080 $18,080

Environmental Compliance During Construction $0 $35,300 $35,300

Task 9 Record Drawings and Close-Out $6,176
9.1 Prepare Record Drawings 4 16 20 $3,408 $3,408
9.2 Assist with tabulation for CMS entry 4 12 16 $2,768 $2,768

0 $0 $0
Total 2 148 0 0 300 0 0 450 $79,818 $0 $0 $0 $92,300 $5,000 $35,300 $212,418

ROUNDED TOTAL, Construction Phase (Estimated) $212,500

Total, All Phases 62 486 152 0 802 0 200 1702 $303,198 $12,350 $45,000 $28,557 $366,800 $23,000 $90,000 $868,905

Subconsultant Mark-up 10.0%



TASK ITEMS PRINCIPAL SENIOR SENIOR ASSOC. ASST. JUNIOR DESIGNER IN-HOUSE IN-HOUSE Whitson CEG TJCAA Paul Davis Denise TOTAL
PM PM ENG ENG ENG ENG SUBTOTAL LABOR MATERIAL Engineers Elec. & Partnership Duffy COSTS $

NO. DESCRIPTION $221 $212 $197 $179 $160 $150 $141 M.H.'S COSTS $ COSTS $ Surveying Geotech Struct. Architect CEQA W/ MARK-UP

Task 8 Construction Phase Services (18-months) $206,242
8.1 Attend pre-bid conference 2 4 4 10 $1,930 $1,930
8.2 Attend Progress meetings (assume 60) 32 8 40 $8,064 $8,064
8.3 Respond to RFI's, prepare clarifications and revisions 24 40 64 $11,488 $92,300 $5,000 $108,788
8.4 Review Submittals (assume 120) 40 160 200 $34,080 $34,080
8.5 Site visits & start-up support 40 60 100 $18,080 $18,080

Environmental Compliance During Construction $0 $35,300 $35,300

Task 9 Record Drawings and Close-Out $6,176
9.1 Prepare Record Drawings 4 16 20 $3,408 $3,408
9.2 Assist with tabulation for CMS entry 4 12 16 $2,768 $2,768

0 $0 $0
Total 2 148 0 0 300 0 0 450 $79,818 $0 $0 $0 $92,300 $5,000 $35,300 $212,418

ROUNDED TOTAL, Construction Phase (Estimated) $212,500

Total, All Phases 62 486 152 0 802 0 200 1702 $303,198 $12,350 $45,000 $28,557 $366,800 $23,000 $90,000 $868,905

Subconsultant Mark-up 10.0%



TASK ITEMS PRINCIPAL SENIOR SENIOR ASSOC. ASST. JUNIOR DESIGNER IN-HOUSE IN-HOUSE Whitson CEG TJCAA Paul Davis Denise TOTAL
PM PM ENG ENG ENG ENG SUBTOTAL LABOR MATERIAL Engineers Elec. & Partnership Duffy COSTS $

NO. DESCRIPTION $221 $212 $197 $179 $160 $150 $141 M.H.'S COSTS $ COSTS $ Surveying Geotech Struct. Architect CEQA W/ MARK-UP

Task 8 Construction Phase Services (18-months) $206,242
8.1 Attend pre-bid conference 2 4 4 10 $1,930 $1,930
8.2 Attend Progress meetings (assume 60) 32 8 40 $8,064 $8,064
8.3 Respond to RFI's, prepare clarifications and revisions 24 40 64 $11,488 $92,300 $5,000 $108,788
8.4 Review Submittals (assume 120) 40 160 200 $34,080 $34,080
8.5 Site visits & start-up support 40 60 100 $18,080 $18,080

Environmental Compliance During Construction $0 $35,300 $35,300

Task 9 Record Drawings and Close-Out $6,176
9.1 Prepare Record Drawings 4 16 20 $3,408 $3,408
9.2 Assist with tabulation for CMS entry 4 12 16 $2,768 $2,768

0 $0 $0
Total 2 148 0 0 300 0 0 450 $79,818 $0 $0 $0 $92,300 $5,000 $35,300 $212,418

ROUNDED TOTAL, Construction Phase (Estimated) $212,500

Total, All Phases 62 486 152 0 802 0 200 1702 $303,198 $12,350 $45,000 $28,557 $366,800 $23,000 $90,000 $868,905

Subconsultant Mark-up 10.0%



Proposal for 
 

Marina Coast Water District.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
April 22, 2019 

Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEERS 

 

 

Design Services for  
A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 

GW-0112 
                 



 

Santa Clara  ●  San Francisco  ●  Santa Rosa  ●  Salinas 

 

April 22, 2019 

Mr. Michael Wegley, PE 
District Engineer 
Marina Coast Water District 
11 Reservation Road 
Marina, CA 93933 

Subject: Proposal for Design of the A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
Dear Mike: 

Schaaf & Wheeler is pleased to propose engineering services for the Design of the A1/A2 Reservoirs and 
B/C Booster Pump Station.  We are thoroughly familiar with this project and the District’s water system, 
having prepared the 2008 Basis of Design Report for the same project and supporting the District for over 
twenty years. Our engineers have decades of experience with municipal water systems. 

We have assembled an experienced team of engineering design professionals, selected specifically for this 
project. TJC & Associates will provide structural, electrical and controls design.  We have worked with TJC 
on many pump stations, and invited them for this project because of their controls expertise. Replacing the 
Sand Tank and current B/C booster station will affect the well-field controls, so it is imperative that the 
SCADA design and implementation be correct. Cornerstone Earth Group prepared the 2008 geotechnical 
report for the project, so we have brought them back to assess the new site. The Paul Davis Partnership 
provides architectural support services to CSUMB, so we have included them on the team to design 
architectural features consistent with the campus architecture. Denise Duffy & Associates will provide 
CEQA and permitting support.  DD&A has prepared numerous CEQA studies and reports for the District, and 
they are currently conducting the seasonal field surveys for this project. 

Our project manager, Andy Sterbenz, will coordinate the team and ensure that information flows to the 
design engineers in a timely manner.  He will provide formal and informal updates to the District’s project 
manager.  As principal-in-charge, I will be conducting QC reviews of all deliverables. I have worked on 
MCWD’s system since 2003, including the Marina-Ord Inter-tie, Watkins Gate Well, review of the major 
subdivision master plans and preparing the 2008 Basis of Design Report for this project. 

The proposed schedule is aggressive. The project includes not just the tanks and booster station, but by-
passing of the existing booster pump station, decommissioning the Sand and Intermediate Tanks and 
updating a significant portion of the water system SCADA controls.  As a condition of the site easement, 
CSUMB has retained the right to review the design for aesthetics.  To be able to meet this tight schedule and 
provide the District with a jumping off point, we have updated the proposed site plan and pump station layout 
as included in the proposal. 

Our fee estimate and rate schedules are provided in a separate sealed envelope. If selected, we recommend 
that we meet and review the full project requirements to ensure that all off-site and ancillary work is included 
before taking the contract to the Board for approval. 

We look forward to working with you on the Design of the A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station.  
If you have any questions, feel free to contact Andy Sterbenz at (831) 883-4848, or by e-mail, 
asterbenz@swsv.com. 

Sincerely,  
Schaaf & Wheeler 

 

 

Leif M. Coponen, PE 
Vice President 
 

 

Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEERS 

3 Quail Run Circle, Suite 101 

Salinas, CA 93907 

831-833-4848 
Fax 831-758-6328  

mailto:asterbenz@swsv.com


 

 

 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 (i) Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Table of Contents 
 

 

Approach to the Project ......................................................................................................... 1 

Firm Experience ..................................................................................................................... 5 

Qualifications and References ............................................................................................ 11 

Work Plan and Schedule ..................................................................................................... 17 

Resumes ............................................................................................................................... 23 

Appendix - Key Subconsultants Scope of Work 

Fee Proposal - Separately Sealed 

Agreement and Evidence of Insurance  (Ink Signed) - In a Separate Envelope 

 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 1 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Approach to the Project 
Project Overview and Understanding 
MCWD Project GW-0112 will add two A-Zone water storage reservoirs to the system, and replace the B/C 
Zone booster pump station. The new A-Zone tanks will raise the HGL in the A-Zone by several feet, and add 
emergency and fire storage which may be provided by gravity.  The tanks will also serve as the forebay for 
the B/C Zone booster pump station. The current B/C Zone booster pump station is over 50 years old and has 
exceeded its service life, and the Sand Tank is not high enough to provide gravity flow into the A-Zone. The 
existing C-Zone transmission main will be converted to an A-Zone transmission main from the existing Sand 
Tank to the new tank site. Once the new facilities are completed and on-line, the existing B/C Booster 
Station, the Sand Tank and the Intermediate Reservoir may be decommissioned. 

Project Approach 
The project description differs from the previous master plan. Schaaf & Wheeler will first confirm the project 
sizing, in particular the tank sizes, to ensure the facilities are not undersized due to the difficulty in obtaining 
the existing easement. We will review the project parameters with the District staff and confirm the project 
size as part of the preliminary design effort. 

The proposed schedule is very aggressive for the size of the project. To stay on schedule, Schaaf & Wheeler 
will continually interact with the District staff and local agencies in order to keep the design moving forward. 
We will develop the site and pump station layouts while the topographic surveys and geotechnical 
investigation are on-going. Conceptual plans are included in this proposal.  

Schaaf & Wheeler is located near the District, and the project manager can readily attend meetings and site 
visits to resolve design issues.  Formal progress meetings will be held monthly, but additional calls, meetings 
and site visits will be held as needed to advance the project. 

Public outreach is anticipated to be focused on the bid and construction phases, but we will prepare an 
information briefing on the project to present to the FORA water and wastewater oversight committee, which 
may then be shared with other agencies as needed. 

Challenges and Issues 
1. Utility Conflicts.  The existing system maps are schematic and provide only a starting point for locating. 

We know that a gravity sewer crosses between the proposed tanks, which should be replaced and 
realigned as part of the project. A 27-inch storm drain crosses the north end on the easement, which 
may also require relocation. There are gas, power and communication lines in the area, potentially near 
the pump station. Whitson Engineers will bring in a locator to find as much as possible during the 
base mapping. In addition to the new facility site, locating pipelines around the Bermad Valve and 
Sand Tank is critical, since all of the surface landmarks have been removed and portions of the 
pipelines were replaced under Phase 1 of the Marina Heights project. 

2. There is a significant grade break at the north end of the easement (approximately 17-ft difference 
between the upper and lower parking lots).  This grade change allows for constructing a more 
compact pump station, with the roof deck providing access for lifting equipment.  Access 
hatches in the upper deck would facilitate replacing pumps and motors using lift trucks. See the 
attached conceptual building layout for this arrangement. The building walls will need to act as retaining 
walls similar to basement walls. 

3. SCADA and Controls. The District has been working to upgrade their SCADA system for some time.  
TJC & Associates prepared a SCADA master plan for the District in 2010. Their controls engineer is 
on our team, ready to work with O&M to provide the equipment and programming needed for this 
new facility. The new tanks should be tall enough to serve as a new repeater station within the 
District’s radio network.  

4. The water tanks will need access to a stormwater percolation basin for disposal of testing water and 
protection from overflows. The existing storm drain runs to the City of Marina’s percolation lot at the 
corner of 5th Ave and 8th St Cut-Off (locally known as Pete’s Pond).  We will evaluate the pond capacity 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 2 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

for this use, which would be preferable to adding a new perc lot on-site.  Denise Duffy & Associates will 
evaluate this site for special status plants early in the design process. Assuming this is a viable option, 
we will coordinate directly with the City on any required basin modifications. 

5. CSUMB Architectural Review.  This provision in the easement agreement has the greatest potential to 
delay the project. CSUMB has published some broad design guidelines in their draft master plan, but 
they are not specific enough to apply formulaically. The Paul Davis Partnership provides on-call 
architectural support service to the campus planning office, and is currently working on several of the 
nearby buildings on Inter-Garrison Road, so we have a head start on identifying the preferred sight 
lines and textures for the hardscapes.  

6. The off-site work at the existing B/C BPS may disturb sensitive habitat, requiring mitigation planting. 
Sand Gilia is known to occur in that area. DD&A will conduct pre-design and pre-construction surveys, 
and provide monitoring when these sights are under construction. 

7. The Marina Heights Water Master Plan (now Sea Haven) routes the A-Zone trunk main into California 
Avenue. The developer has only completed a portion of the work, so the District may want to 
consider including that pipeline in this project.  The alternative is to convert the C-Zone main with 
the Sea Haven boundary, and rely on the developer protecting it in-place during build-out of that project. 
At a minimum, the new piping installed in that vicinity must allow for the future rerouting and connection 
of the A-zone pipeline. 

8. Sequencing Plan.  The phased transition from the existing BPS to the new station will require certain 
pieces of the work to be completed in sequence. Some of those items will affect critical infrastructure, 
such as cutting in tees and valves in the C-Zone transmission main.  We will work with O&M to 
develop a detailed outage plan so that the Contractor, Inspector and Staff are all working from the 
same procedural checklist. We anticipate that certain items will require adjustments to other portions of 
the system during the work, such as running the F-Booster exclusively while the C-Zone transmission 
main is shut down, and supplying the B-Zone directly from Wells 10 and 11. 

9. Delays associated with reviews. The proposed schedule is extremely aggressive, considering the time 
required to complete the initial surveying and geotechnical field work.  To the greatest extent possible, 
we will submit information requests as they arise rather than waiting for design milestones.  We will 
schedule joint review workshops for District and Campus staff to collect comments and resolve 
conflicting comments.   

10. PG&E delays. The project will require a new PG&E electrical service, which is very likely to become a 
source of delay.  We will prepare and submit a PG&E service application as early as possible in 
the design process, so that we have a PG&E service design as part of the bid package. We will 
schedule a meeting with PG&E at that time to determine if a dedicated easement will also be required, 
and work with the District to coordinate this easement, if needed. 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 3 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

CONCEPTUAL BUILDING PLAN 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 4 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 5 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Firm Experience  
About Schaaf & Wheeler 
Schaaf & Wheeler is a civil engineering firm focused in water resources. With 
over thirty years of commitment to bringing feasible solutions to flood control, 
stormwater, wastewater, potable water and recycled water problems; Schaaf & 
Wheeler is recognized by public and private sector clients for value-adding 
engineering.  Certified as a small business enterprise (Certification No. 40527) 
by the State of California, Schaaf & Wheeler engineers operate from four 
locations: Santa Clara, San Francisco, Santa Rosa and Salinas.  

Our Areas of Focus 
Schaaf & Wheeler has ten areas of focus within the water resources discipline. 
 Potable water system master planning, modeling, engineering; and design 

of supply, storage, distribution systems, including tanks and booster 
stations; 

 Waste water system master planning, engineering, and design of conveyance systems, including lift 
stations;  

 Storm water management and drainage services, including master planning, engineering, and design of 
urban storm drain systems and pump stations; 

 Recycled water systems planning, engineering, and design; including reclamation feasibility studies and 
customer retrofits;  

 Construction management, construction site observation, construction inspection services, value 
engineering, construction cost analysis, and constructability reviews; 

 Hydrology and hydraulics analyses, including site evaluations and modeling;  
 Flood control analyses, including floodplain studies and channel design, filing of letters of map revision, 

and FEMA coordination; 
 Watershed assessments, erosion and sediment control, and bioengineered channel stabilization; 
 Water quality, including design or review of best management practices (BMPs) for storm water treatment 

and hydromodification flow control facilities;  
 Program management, including management of subconsultants, containment of schedule and cost, and 

communications with client and stakeholders. 

Our Subconsultants 
Schaaf & Wheeler engineers have been working with our proposed subconsultants for over a decade now and 

have a collaborative professional relationship. This proposed team has successfully completed several water 

resource infrastructure design and construction support projects for public agencies throughout Bay Area 

and the Central Coast.  
TJC & Associates, Inc. – Electrical and Structural Engineering. TJC & Associates, Inc. 
(TJCAA) will provide electrical and structural design services.  Located at 1330 Broadway, Ste. 
1101 in Oakland, TJCAA is a certified small business enterprise providing engineering services to 
Bay Area and Sacramento Area clients, as well as to clients throughout the United States. Founded 

in 1998 as a structural firm, TJCAA has expanded over the years, now providing electrical engineering and 
instrumentation and control design. Over the past 15 years, TJCAA has been involved with the design of a 
multitude of potable water system and sanitary sewer system projects, providing design for all structural and 
electrical aspects of pump stations. 

TJCAA performed a variety of SCADA support services for the Marina Coast Water District including review 
of existing system deficiencies; development of new RTU and radio standard hardware specifications for new 
construction; development of standard programming, submittal, and well control descriptions; and 
preparation of bid documents for an interim “quick fix” solution to chronic failures within the MCWD’s existing 
radio system.  

Schaaf & Wheeler and TJCAA are currently working together on pump station projects for the City of 
Oakland, City of East Palo Alto, the East Bay Municipal Utility District and the Port of Oakland.  

Santa Rosa 

San Francisco 

San Jose 

Salinas 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 6 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Cornerstone Earth Group – Geotechnical Engineering. Cornerstone Earth 
Group (CEG) integrates geotechnical engineering, environmental services, 

engineering geology, and construction services to facilitate cost-effective site selection, project design, and 
site development.  Their staff includes registered civil and geotechnical engineers, registered geologists, 
certified engineering geologists, certified hydrogeologists, and registered environmental assessors. 
Cornerstone’s principal geotechnical group has over 115 years of combined geotechnical experience, and 
has completed thousands of projects throughout the Bay Area and California.  Their project experience 
includes the evaluation and design for repairs, upgrades and the installation of new utilities throughout 
California, including open cuts, bore and jack, micro-tunneling, direction drilling installation, and trenchless 
methods. Understanding the subsurface conditions is critical to any utility project – ground water, caving 
soils, soft or wet clays, dense gravels, the presence of bedrock, or other conditions can significantly impact 
your choices regarding installation methods, techniques, timing, and planned costs.   

Cornerstone has completed several projects with Schaaf & Wheeler including the Marsten Road Pump 
Station, City of Burlingame;  Kingridge Drive Sewer Evaluation, City of San Mateo; East San Mateo Sanitary 
Sewer Lift Stations Rehabilitation, San Mateo;  and El Camino Real Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation, San 
Mateo to name a few.  

Cornerstone prepared the Geotechnical site assessment for the 2008 A1/A2 Basis of Design Study. 

 Whitson Engineers – Survey and Mapping – Whitson Engineers (WE) is a general civil 
engineering and land surveying firm, founded in 1979, with focus in governmental, residential 
and commercial land development services. The firm's projects are located primarily in 

Monterey, Santa Cruz, Santa Clara, San Benito and Los Angeles counties. Utilizing the latest in Trimble 
global positioning systems (GPS), total robotic stations, unmanned aerial vehicles and digital levels, WE’s 
professional staff has the latest in technology at their disposal to provide innovative solutions and an 
increase in productivity for clients.  Whitson Engineers surveying services include Boundary/Right-of-Way 
Surveys, Topographic Surveys, Aerial Mapping, underground Utility Mapping, A.L.T.A. Surveys, Final Maps, 
Legal Descriptions, and Construction Staking.  

Schaaf & Wheeler has been working with Whitson Engineers for over 20 years and has completed the 
design of Watkins Gate Well, Tanimura Lift Station for Tanimura & Antle. Currently, Schaaf & Wheeler is 
working with Whitson on several development projects in Monterey and San Benito Counties.  

Denise Duffy & Associates – Environmental – Denise Duffy & Associates, Inc. (DD&A) 
provides environmental sciences, planning, and biological consulting services throughout 
Central and Northern California. Since 1984, they have been providing high-level professional 
services to public and private sector clients. As a planning and environmental consulting firm 

with a full range of biological and ecosystem services, DD&A services include environmental impact 
assessments, resource agency permitting assistance, biological assessments in support of CEQA and NEPA 
documents, wetland delineations, restoration plans, special-status species surveys and management, and 
most importantly, identification of innovative solutions for avoiding impacts.  

DD&A has over 30 years of local experience working on projects within the City and County of Monterey. 
DD&A will serve as the environmental lead for the project.  This includes managing tasks and conducting 
work related to California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) documentation and processes, and regulatory 
permitting.  

Schaaf & Wheeler has worked with DD&A on numerous projects for Marina Coast Water District, including 
the Regional urban Water Augmentation Project and the Ord Community Annexation. Our engineers also 
worked with DD&A on the EIR for Monterey One Water’s Pure Water Monterey Project. 

  



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 7 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Paul Davis Partnership – Architecture Design - The Paul Davis Partnership is a local 
architectural and planning firm established in 1987. The Paul Davis Partnership serves 
many different types of clients on a wide range of projects from the rehabilitation of historic 
adobes to the design of low-income housing to upscale resorts, from academic facilities to 
residential additions and major industrial projects.  The firm has also been involved in 

community-based projects that helped produce façade improvements, community design standards, land 
use plans and solving urban design issues. They are familiar with the area’s unique history and architecture 
and strive to keep it alive through their design and involvement in the community. 

Schaaf & Wheeler is currently working with Paul Davis on the Rancho Toro Farmworker Housing expansion. 
Paul Davis provides on-call services to CSUMB, and is currently working on several campus buildings near 
this project site. 

Team Organization 
The proposed Schaaf & Wheeler team organization chart is shown below: 

 

Organization Chart   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Schaaf & Wheeler Staff 

Engineering Staff 
Glen M. Anderson, PE 

Project Engineer 
Logan N. Fox, PE 

Associate Engineer 
Caitlin J. Gilmore, PE, QSD 

SWPPP Designer 
Josh C. Tabije 

Assistant Engineer 
Conor J. Murphy 

Assistant Engineer 
 

Subconsultants 

TJCAA 
Electrical, Controls and Structural Engineering 

Cornerstone Earth Group 
Geotechnical Engineering 

Whitson Engineers 
Survey and Mapping 

Denise Duffy & Associates 
CEQA and Environmental Documentation 

Paul Davis Architects 
Architectural Design 

Leif M. Coponen, PE 
Principal-in-Charge 
Schaaf & Wheeler 

Andrew A. Sterbenz, PE 
Project Manager 

Schaaf & Wheeler 
 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 8 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Team Members 
Schaaf & Wheeler has selected a highly skilled project team to assist MCWD on the A1/A2 Reservoirs and 
B/C Booster Pump Station project. Each member of this team has immense experience in potable water 
infrastructure condition assessment, design and construction support along with planning and modeling.  
Members of this team will not be removed or replaced without prior approval of the District. 

Our approach of putting together a team with qualified professionals to address each aspect of the project 
will provide for efficient, complete and implementable solutions for the District.  

Andrew A. Sterbenz, P.E. – Project Manager - The team will be led by Andrew A. Sterbenz, PE. He is an 
owner and Senior Project Manager at Schaaf & Wheeler, with more than 25 years of experience in water 
related projects. Andrew Sterbenz has led multi-disciplinary teams for water supply, wastewater, and 
drainage projects from planning through construction. He has served twice as the Interim District Engineer for the 

Marina Coast Water District, so he fully understands how the system is laid out and is intended to operate. He is 
currently working on implementation projects for the Pure Water Monterey Groundwater Replenishment 
Project. 

Andrew Sterbenz will be responsible for day-to-day project management for the entire duration of the project. 
He will maintain the project schedule and budget and assume ultimate responsibility for the quality of all work 
products as the engineer of record. He will hold regular team meetings to make sure issues are resolved 
effectively and to allocate resources to critical tasks.  

Leif M. Coponen, P.E.  - Principal-in-Charge and QC and Modeling Lead - Leif Coponen is a Vice 
President and owner at Schaaf & Wheeler. He brings forth in-depth understanding of analysis and design of 
water infrastructure projects. Leif Coponen has more than 16 years of experience leading multi-disciplinary 
teams for potable water projects from assessment through design and construction. He has designed cost-
effective water supply and distribution systems for private developments and public agencies across the Bay 
Area and the Central Coast.  Leif Coponen regularly provides CEQA support for water and wastewater CIPs 
and public works projects. His project management skills and in-depth knowledge of the design and analysis 
of both new and rehabilitated potable water, stormwater and sanitary sewage systems and pumping stations 
has always been a major factor for repeat clientele. Leif Coponen has extensive experience working on 
projects for MCWD since 2002, including the Marina-Ord inter-tie project, system modeling, system map 
updating, land development infrastructure review, capital project design of pipelines, wells, and preliminary 
design of storage reservoirs and booster pump stations. He also updated the District’s water distribution 
system model in H2O Map to assist MCWD in system planning for many years. 

Leif Coponen brings the veteran knowledge of this project from his work on the A1/A2 Reservoirs and the B/C Booster 

Pump Station project back in 2008. He also designed the District’s Watkins Gate Well, and worked on the design of the 

Marina-Ord Community Inter-tie Project in addition to review services for MCWD Master Plan projects. 

Other Key Team Members  
Glen M. Anderson, P.E. - Pump Station Lead – Glen Anderson is an owner and Senior Project Manager at 
Schaaf & Wheeler. He has 12 years of experience in potable water, sanitary sewer system, and storm water 
assessment and design as well as the associated construction support and management associated with 
those projects. Glen Anderson has worked on numerous pump station rehabilitation/replacement projects 
throughout the Bay Area. Additionally, Glen Anderson has performed condition assessments for more than 
150 pump stations. His potable water experience projects include the assessment and rehabilitation of 
booster pump stations, design of a water tanks and planning and design for potable water wells and 
pipelines. In addition to design, Glen Anderson has provided construction support and management services 
for a variety of projects, including wells, pipelines, storage tanks, pump stations, and generator installations. 

Caitlin J. Gilmore, PE, QSD, CPSWQ – SWPPP Developer – Caitlin Gilmore is an owner and a Senior 
Project Manager at Schaaf & Wheeler and brings forth in-depth understanding of urban drainage systems. 
Caitlin Gilmore is certified by the state of California as a Qualified Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 
(SWPPP) Developer and Practitioner, is a Certified Professional in Storm Water Quality and brings in more 
than 11 years of experience in stormwater systems, hydrology and hydraulics, open channel design and 
bridge scour analysis. She is accomplished in full trash capture planning and design, NPDES permit 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 9 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

compliance and storm sewer system design. Caitlin Gilmore augments her skills regularly through training 
and she has provided numerous third-party reviews of stormwater management and pollution prevention 
plans. Recently, she conducted new development workshops for municipal stormwater staff at SCVURPPP 
and San Mateo County’s Countywide Water Pollution Prevention Program (SMCWPPP). Caitlin Gilmore is 
currently assisting several California municipalities including San Jose, South San Francisco, San Bruno, 
Mountain View, San Mateo, Hermosa Beach, Palo Alto and Livermore to comply with the Regional Municipal 
Permit Section C.10 to achieve their trash capture reduction goals. 

The table below presents our team’s role, experience and qualifications. 

Schaaf & Wheeler Team: Key Personnel Role, Experience and Qualifications 

Name & Firm Role Years  
of Exp. Certification and Education 

Andrew A. Sterbenz, PE 
Schaaf & Wheeler 
 

Project 
Manager 

25 Registered Civil Engineer California C69703  
Texas 93537 
MSCE, University of Texas at San Antonio 
BSCE, Massachusetts Institute of Technology 

Leif M. Coponen, PE 
Schaaf & Wheeler 

Principal-in-
Charge 

16 Registered Civil Engineer, California C70139 
BSCE, Michigan Technological University, Michigan   

Glen M. Anderson, PE, 
PACP 
Schaaf & Wheeler 

Project 
Engineer 

12 Registered Civil Engineer, California C76720 
BSCE, Civil and Environmental Engineering, University of 
California, Davis 
NASSCO PACP Cert. U-714-06021855 
Hydraulic Institute, Pump System Assessment Certified 

Logan N. Fox, PE 
Schaaf & Wheeler 

Design 
Engineer 

6 Registered Civil Engineer - California C84797 
MSCE, San Jose State University  
BSCE, Santa Clara University 

Caitlin J. Gilmore, PE 
Schaaf & Wheeler  

QSD  11 Registered Civil Engineer California C76810 
MS, Environmental Engineering, University of Southern 
California  
BSCE, Civil and Environmental Engineering, California 
Polytechnic University, San Luis Obispo 

Josh C. Tabije 
Schaaf & Wheeler 

Assistant 
Engineer 

11 BSCE, Colorado State University  

Conor J. Murphy 
Schaaf & Wheeler 

Assistant 
Engineer 

2 MSCE, University of California, Berkeley  
BSCE, Loyola Marymount University 

Subconsultants 
Paul Giorsetto, PE, 
LEED AP 
TJCAA 

Electrical 
Engineer 

30 Registered Electrical Engineer, California E 11674 
Registered Control Systems Engineer CS 7106 
MBA, University of California, Berkeley. 
MS, Electrical Engineering and Computer Science, 
University of California, Berkeley 
BS, Electrical Engineering and Computer Science, 
University of California, Berkeley 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 10 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Name & Firm Role Years  
of Exp. Certification and Education 

Richard K. Thow, PE 
TJCAA 

Structural 
Engineer 

30 
 

Registered Structural Engineer, California S 5320 
Registered Civil Engineer, California C 62055 
BSCE, with honors; University of Abertay, Scotland 
Confined Space Entry (CA) 

Helen Tran 
TJCAA 

Controls 
Engineer 

15 BS, Electrical Engineering, University of CA, San Diego 

Scott E. Fitinghoff, PE, 
GE 
Cornerstone Earth Group 

Geotechnical 
Engineer 

29 Registered Civil Engineer, California C48261 
Registered Geotechnical Engineer, California 2379 
Master of Science, Geotechnical Engineer, UC Berkeley 
BSCE, San Jose State University 

Nicholas S. Devlin, PE 
Cornerstone Earth Group 

Geotechnical 
Engineer 

13 Registered Civil Engineer,  California C75613  
Master of Science, Geotechnical Engineering, University 
of California Berkeley, 2011 
BSCE, San Jose State University, San Jose, 2006 

Charles Pugh, PLS 
Whitson Engineers 

Survey & 
Mapping 

15 California Licensed Land Surveyor #9167 
Bachelor of Science in Earth Systems Science and Policy 
California State University Monterey Bay 

Denise Duffy 
Denise Duffy & 
Associates 

CEQA & 
Permitting 

30 Bachelor of Arts, Environmental Science, University of 
California, Santa Barbara 

Erin Harwayne, AICP 
Denise Duffy & 
Associates 

CEQA & 
Permitting 

19 Bachelor of Science, Earth Systems Science & Policy 
(Marine and Coastal Ecology), California State University 
Monterey Bay 
Continuing Education, Land Use/Natural Resources 
Topics, through University of California Extension 
Program and CLE International 

Paul W. Davis, AIA 
Paul Davis Partnership 

Building 
Design 

35 Bachelor of Architecture, California Polytechnic State 
University, San Luis Obispo 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 11 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Qualifications and References 
Schaaf & Wheeler team brings a number of assets that the Marina Coast Water District can benefit from.  
These are as follows; 

1. We are a small local firm that is responsive 
towards clients and specializes in potable water, 
wastewater and recycled water systems design 
and engineering.  

2. Schaaf & Wheeler completed the Basis of Design 
for the same project - Reservoirs A1/A2 and 
Booster Pump Station back in 2008 and is familiar 
with the issues related to the project.  

3. We will be able to provide cost-effective, 
implementable solutions and designs that expedite 
the project completion and have demonstrated the 
ability to meet tight deadlines (Grant Funding 
Wells Projects).  

4. Our firm has provided On-Call services to Marina 
Coast Water District for over two decades and is 
thoroughly familiar with the systems and the 
service areas.  

5. Schaaf & Wheeler has a continued direct 
relationship with MCWD and has a comprehensive 
understanding of the District’s current capital 
projects strategy as we are assisting with technical 
review of the District’s Master Plan Update Project.  

6. We bring a strong team under the leadership of a detail-oriented, experienced, and skillful Project 
Manager – Andrew A. Sterbenz, PE who has more than 20 years of experience. He will provide 
expert engineering and strategic management services to keep the project under control and within 
schedule and budget.  

7. Leif M. Coponen, PE will bring in veteran knowledge regarding the project and provide direct input in 
resolving critical issues. 

8. Our sub-consultants bring in specialized services with local knowledge and understanding:  
Cornerstone and Denise Duffy & Associates are also familiar with the project from their previous 
work back in 2008.  

9. TJCAA our electrical and structural sub-consultant is familiar with the District’s standards and 
procedures from the variety of SCADA support services they provide to the District. 

10. Paul Davis Partnership – Our building design sub-consultant is a specialist in central coast 
architectural design and will provide a design that blends in with the community architecture. 

11. We bring together a comprehensive team with past-project knowledge combined with value-added 
engineering. 

12. Schaaf & Wheeler brings unique direct tank experience, having performed construction management 
services for the recent MCWD D Reservoir and EBPS Project.  



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 12 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Pump Station and Well Design Experience 

Project   Location Type Capacity Year 

Petaluma Victoria and Country Club Pump Stations 
City of 
Petaluma Rehabilitation 400 gpm 

500 gpm 2019 

Cherry Creek Pump Station, City of Hillsborough Hillsborough Replacement 1,000 gpm 2017-
2018 

Gilroy Booster Pump Station Lift Station No. 5 Gilroy Upgrade  1200 gpm 2018 

Aptos Pump Station, Soquel Creek Water District Aptos New 460 gpm 2015 

McGregor Pump Station, Soquel Cr. Water District Capitola New 1.0 – 2.5 mgd 2015 

Vista Booster Pump Station Hillsborough Upgrade 600 gpm 2014 

Tournament Pump Station Hillsborough Upgrade 800 gpm 2013 

Watkins Gate Well and  Well 34 Marina New 2,400 gpm 2011-
2012 

Segunda Pump Station, Cal-Am Monterey Replace 7,500 gpm 2011 

 
 

Potable Water Storage Tank Design Experience 

Project Title Client Type Capacity Date 
Country View Great Oaks Water Company Bolted Steel 90,000 gal 2018 

Probation Tank Mesiti-Miller / San Lorenzo Valley 
Water District Welded Steel 0.5 MG 2017 

Camp Saratoga  Basin Construction  Bolted Steel  50,000 gal 2015 
Saratoga Rescue 
Center  Peninsula Humane Society  Welded Steel  180,000 gal 2019 

Highlands  San Jose Water Company  Welded Steel 0.3 MG 2012 

San Jerardo Monterey County Public Works Bolted Steel  0.3 MG 2010 

Reservoir D  Marina Coast Water District Welded Steel 2.0 MG 2008 

Boys Ranch City of Morgan Hill Welded Steel 1.0 MG 2006 

 
  



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 13 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Reference Projects 

 
Project Owner: 
San Lorenzo Valley Water District 
Rick Rogers, District Manager  
13060 Hwy 9  
Boulder Creek, CA 95006 
(831) 430-4625 
rrogers@slvwd.com 

Client and Contact:  
Rodney Cahill 
Mesiti-Miller Engineering, Inc. 
224 Walnut Ave 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
831.426.3186 
Rodney@m-me.com 

Contract Value: $55,000 

Construction Cost:   
$1,460,000 (estimated)         

Project Duration: 2014-2015 

Project Staff: 
Logan N. Fox, PE 
Peder C. Jorgensen, PE 

Probation Tank Replacement 
San Lorenzo Valley Water District is planning to replace the 
existing current redwood storage tank at the Santa Cruz County 
Probation Center with a new welded steel tank of 0.5 million 
gallons.  Schaaf and Wheeler is   providing  engineering design 
support services including  tank layout plans, tank details, tank 
specifications, and estimates  to Mesiti-Miller for the tank 
replacement.   
 
Schaaf & Wheeler determined storage requirements partially 
based on the highest demand during a 24‐hour period and fire 
flows for the service area. The new welded steel tank with a cone 
roof is designed with a dead volume height of 16 inches from the 
floor. The outlet height is mitigated by installing a down turned 
suction elbow inside the tank. Fire Storage is based on the largest 
possible fire event in the tank service area or zone. A minimum 
emergency storage of 25% or maximum day demand is 
recommended for the new tank.  
 
The new tank design utilizes the latest industry standard: AWWA 
D100‐11. It is sized to meet the storage requirement along with the 
addition of freeboard and design constraints. The outlet to the tank 
is designed to have a flexible joint between the tank and where the 
piping enters the ground to prevent damage to the tank during a 
seismic event. 
 
The new tank is currently under construction, sited at the same 
location of the existing tank.  Temporary polyethylene tanks have 
been installed on the site to provide operational storage while the 
new tank is constructed. 
 
 
 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 14 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

 
 
Project Owner:  
33rd District Agricultural Assn. 
Contact:  
Michael Sellens 
California Fairs Financing Authority 
1776 Tribute Road, Suite 220 
Sacramento, CA 95815 
Ph: 916.263.6100 
msellens@cfsa.org 

Contract Value:  $103,500  

Construction Cost:  
$2.0 M (estimated) 

Project Duration: 2018  

Project Staff: 
Andrew A. Sterbenz, PE 
Conor J. Murphy 
Josh C. Tabije 
 

Water System Upgrade for San Benito 
County Fair Grounds 
The 33rd District Agricultural Association (San Benito County Fair) 
needs to upgrade the fairgrounds water system to provide 
required fire flows.  The 33rd District operates a permitted non-
community water system, which serves the fairgrounds and the 
county golf course. The current system consists of two wells 
(nominally 400 gpm and 50 gpm) and a 10,000 gallon hydro-
pneumatic pressure tank. The system is not designed to meet the 
required fire flow and duration for the site.   

Schaaf & Wheeler conducted a preliminary site assessment and 
recommended several options to address the fire flow deficiency: 
(1) add a potable water tank to the system on a nearby hill and 
provide flows by gravity; (2) add a potable water tank and booster 
pump system within the fairgrounds property; or (3) add additional 
water wells to the system. The Association could not coordinate 
an easement for Option 1, so Option 2 was selected.   

Schaaf & Wheeler’s team designed a 300,000 gallon water 
storage tank, a booster pump station with a 182 gpm domestic 
capacity and 2,000 gpm fire capacity. And 2,000 LF of on-site 
pipelines, along with associated valve and hydrant upgrades.  We 
prepared a Basis of Design technical memorandum documenting 
the design calculations for the selected system. The memorandum 
addresses flow rates and water storage requirements, tank siting 
considerations, pump sizing and equipment recommendation, and 
electrical power and controls.   

The Construction is grant funded, so the system improvements 
were phased to best use the available funds. Phase 1 was the 
addition of an emergency generator at the primary well to ensure 
a minimum amount of water supply during fires and emergencies.  
Phase 2 was the addition of 4-inch through 10-inch pipelines to 
the distribution system.  Phase 3 will be the addition of a water 
storage tank and booster pumping station to provide the required 
fire storage and flow, additional pipelines and new hydrants. The 
generator will be moved to the booster pump station in Phase 3.  

The existing wells and hydro-pneumatic tank are located within a 
FEMA flood zone, so the generator was placed on a filled pad.  
The tank and booster pump station are outside the floodplain, so 
no mitigations were required for that site.  

 

 

  



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 15 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

 
 

Project Owner:  
Carmel Reserve LLC 
Contact:  
Johannes Peter 
1625 The Alameda, Suite 625 
San Jose, CA 95126 
Ph: 415.349.1229 
jpeter@clearpeakgroup.com 

Contract Value:  $426,200  

Construction Cost:  
not yet constructed 

Project Duration: 2018 - 2019 

Project Staff: 
Andrew A. Sterbenz, PE 
Josh C. Tabije 
Conor J. Murphy 
 

September Ranch Water System Design and 
Construction Support 
The September Ranch Project (Project) proposes a new residential 
development on approximately 891 acres, located adjacent to the 
Carmel Valley Road about 2.5 miles east of State Highway 1 in 
Monterey County. The project has two phases, with work on the 
eastern ridge occurring in Phase 1, and the western ridge in Phase 
2.  Whitson Engineers is preparing the civil design for the project.    

The project includes the development of a new community water 
system and a sanitary sewer collection system.  Sanitary sewage 
from the project will be collected in a gravity sewer system, and 
conveyed to the Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) via a 
new lift station and force main.  The potable water system serving 
the Project is comprised of: 
 Two groundwater wells 
 Network of 6-inch, 8-inch, 10-inch, and 12-inch water mains 
 Four pressure zones 
 Two 200,000 gallon storage tanks and three intermediate 

20,000 gallon tanks 
 Two boosted zones (hydro-pneumatic)(5 lots and 7 lots)  
 Storage tank operating levels of 950 feet, 810 feet, 700 feet, 

and 490 feet (hydraulic grade line) 
 Service area ground elevation range between 120 and 930 

feet. 

Schaaf & Wheeler analyzed the lift station requirements for Phase 
1 and for the combined Phases 1 and 2, and determined the 
required sizing of the main sewer pump station and of smaller 
pump stations within each Phase.  The analysis includes pump and 
force main sizing.  Schaaf & Wheeler prepared plans and 
specifications for the main sewer pump station and a typical 
smaller pump station for inclusion in the Phase 1 Civil Plan Set. 
The lift station is proposed to be wet-well type with submersible 
pumps and an emergency generator to prevent spills during power 
outages.   

Schaaf & Wheeler developed a water system model using 
EPANET to ensure that pumps and pipelines are adequately sized 
to meet the peak hour demands as well as fire flows during 
maximum day conditions.  We are currently working on the water 
system design, including the tanks, pump stations, pressure 
reducing valve stations and well-head water treatment, as well as 
the Title 22 Report for the water system permit application. 
 

 

  



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 16 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

 
Project Owner: 
Soquel Creek Water District 

Contact: 
Mike Wilson, P.E. 
Soquel Creek Water District 
5180 Soquel Drive 
Soquel, CA 95073 
Ph: 831.475.8501x122 
michaelw@soquelwater.org  
Contract Value:                                         
Aptos PS: $116,000 
McGregor PS: $155,766 

Construction Cost:  
Aptos PS: $639,910 
McGregor PS: $819,700 

Project Duration: 2012 - 2015 

Project Staff: 
Andrew A. Sterbenz, PE  
Peder C. Jorgensen, PE  
Glen M. Anderson, PE  
Logan N. Fox, PE 
 

Soquel Creek Water District Aptos and 
McGregor Pump Stations 
The Soquel Creek Water District (SqCWD) provides municipal 
water service in four service areas and seven primary pressure 
zones. The system is currently supplied solely with groundwater, 
with wells located in each of the four service areas. The District 
proposed to construct new wells in Service Areas 1 & 2, and 
planned system improvements to facilitate the movement of water 
between service areas. The District engaged Schaaf & Wheeler to 
design the two new booster pump stations – Aptos and McGregor.   

Aptos Pump Station is one of several planned improvements that 
allows the District to move water east into Service Areas 3 & 4. 
This station will boost water from 242-ft pressure zone in service 
Area 2 into the 359-ft pressure zone in Service Area 3. The station 
has an initial design capacity of 460 gpm, but may be expanded in 
the future to 690 gpm.  The District is modifying its well operations 
based upon new water quality rules and the effects of seawater 
intrusion into coastal aquifers. To meet these varied conditions, 
several pump types and configurations were analyzed.  The 
preferred solution was a set of three vertical multistage pumps, with 
two operating and one in stand-by.  To meet the future condition, 
the station is configured to accommodate a fourth pump which will 
allow three pumps to operate simultaneously.  

McGregor Drive Pump Station is one of several planned 
improvements that allows the District to move water between 
Service Areas 1 and 2. Service Areas 1 and 2 operate at the same 
hydraulic gradient.  Although the systems are inter-connected, little 
water transfers between them because of the significant physical 
separation. The pump station is needed to overcome the friction 
associated with the transfer of water over long pipe reaches. The 
station had to be configured to move flow in either direction 
between the two service areas. The initial station capacity required 
is 1.0 mgd, with a future peak capacity of 2.5 mgd peak. A range of 
pump sizes were analyzed based on the various duty conditions 
and the range of target flows.  Because the station is only pumping 
against friction loss in the pipelines, it was determined that a single 
duty pump with a variable frequency drive is required (plus one 
standby pump).  Based on the District’s master planning timeline 
for when the station will need to exceed the initial capacity, it was 
decided that 25 hp pumps will be installed initially, with a future 
configuration to accommodate 50 hp pumps.   

Both the project sites presented design challenges.  Located in the 
Coastal Zone on a slope, the lower portion of the lot contains a 
wetland supplied by a groundwater seep.  Constructing a building 
foundation uphill required addressing the saturated soils during 
construction and providing a permanent drain system to move the 
groundwater past the foundation and into the wetland.  The final 
site design includes a gravity retaining wall to provide a level pump 
station site.  The pumps and electrical equipment are enclosed in a 
CMU building.  The project included subconsulting for electrical 
design as well.  Schaaf & Wheeler coordinated the design work 
with the Surveyor and Geotechnical Engineer, who were under a 
separate contract with the District. 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

May 13, 2019 1 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

Work Plan and Schedule 
Our scope of work by task is outlined below.  Detailed scopes for our environmental, structural and 
electrical/ instrumentation sub-consultants are provided in the appendix. 

Task 1 Project Management 
Schaaf & Wheeler will manage the design team, and ensure required members participate in meetings with 
the District and Campus staff. We will interact with District staff throughout the design process and provide 
monthly updates to the project manager. We expect the District to hire a third-party construction manager 
to assist with the bid and construction phases of the work. 

1.1 Meetings and Management. The Schaaf & Wheeler team will attend the design kick-off meeting 
and participate in monthly progress meetings. We will schedule formal review workshops at the 
30%, 60% and 90% reviews.  

1.2 Stakeholder Engagement and Meetings. The Schaaf & Wheeler team will meet with CSUMB Staff, 
City of Marina Permitting, the Sea Haven developer and other entities as needed during the design 
phase to present and review designs and schedules. We anticipate two to four meetings with 
CSUMB and two meetings with the City of Marina and Sea Haven.  

Deliverables: 

 Meeting agendas, meeting notes and action items lists 
 Monthly progress reports to accompany invoices 

Task 2 Preliminary Design 
The preliminary design phase will include facility sizing, base mapping, equipment selection, site layout, 
geotechnical investigation and special status species mapping (this last item under Task 4). We are 
assuming that the tanks will be steel on concrete ring foundations, and the pump station will use vertical 
turbine booster pumps.  As discussed in the project approach, the facility sizing is a required first step to 
ensure the tanks, building and pipelines are not undersized for system build-out.  If all booster pumps are 
not required for the initial system demand, the station will be configured with empty pump bays to 
accommodate future additions. Because we are boosting to zones with storage tanks, variable frequency 
drives are not required but may be requested by staff to provide operational flexibility.  The start-up and 
transition plan will be outlined in sufficient detail to identify required off-site improvements such as pipelines 
and radio stations.  Meetings and calls with staff will be scheduled a needed. A review workshop will be 
scheduled at the end of this phase. The District may elect to include DDW staff at this point in the design 
to solicit input. We assume that the District staff will prepare the system permit amendment application for 
DDW, and that the Basis of Design report will be included in the application package. Key activities and 
deliverables are listed below. 

2.1 Facility Sizing Analysis 

2.2 Surge Analysis Modeling 

2.3 Upgrade Ord Wellfield chlorination station with flow meter and controlled dosing. 

2.4 Prepare Basis of Design Memorandum, with supporting calculations and conceptual design plans. 

2.5 Geotechnical Investigation 

2.6 Biological Reconnaissance 

2.7 Topographic Base Mapping and Utility Locating. Includes expense budget for potholing or sewer 
video. 

Deliverables: 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

May 13, 2019 2 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 Facility Sizing Technical Memorandum 
 Basis of Design Technical Memorandum 
 Initial Phasing Plan 
 Initial Construction and Permitting Risk Register 
 Geotechnical Site Investigation Report 
 Topographic Base Map 
 Conceptual Design Plans and Architectural Conceptual Design 
 Conceptual Design Cost Estimate 

Task 3 60% Design Construction Documents 
The 60% design effort will incorporate structural, electrical and control details sufficient to begin the CEQA 
planning analysis.  Comments received on the 30% design will be tabulated and addressed.  Review of the 
architectural plans by the Campus will be needed during this phase, so that any building changes can be 
addressed in the structural design. The start-up and transition plan will be advanced to ensure all off-site 
requirements are included in the project. The controls engineer will prepare a radio path survey based upon 
the site topography.  Controls modifications for the Ord Chlorination Site will be designed to allow dosing 
based on flow.  Based upon the height of the tanks and the MCWD base station antenna, the need for a 
repeater station is not anticipated. The existing B- and C-Zone transition mains are pre-stressed concrete 
cylinder pipe. We will contact Hanson pipe and determine what will be the best method for (1) tapping a tee 
onto the B-Zone main and (2) inserting tees and a valve into the C-Zone main, and reflect the 
manufacturer’s recommendation in the design.  We will prepare project information materials for informing 
the FORA WWOC about the project, which may be used for additional outreach efforts. A review workshop 
will be scheduled following submission of the 60% design documents. 

3.1 Prepare 60% Design Plans with Specifications. A preliminary sheet list is provided. Not all sheets 
will be included in the 60% design submittal. 

3.2 Prepare 60% Design Cost Estimate 

3.3 Review Documents with District and Campus Staff 

Deliverables: 

 60% Plans 
 60% Specifications (full index and specifications for key equipment)  
 60% Design Cost Estimate 
 Updated Construction and Permitting Risk Register 
 30% Comments response log 

PRELIMINARY DRAWING LIST  
GENERAL 
  G-01 - Title Sheet and Project Location 
  G-02 - Sheet List 
  G-03 - General and Civil Legends, Symbols, and 
Abbreviations 
  G-04 - General Notes 
  G-05 - Site Plan, Access and Survey Control 
CIVIL 
  C-001 - Erosion Control Plan/Site Plan 
  C-002 - SWPPP Details 
  C-005 - Traffic Control Plan 
  C-010 - Pipeline Notes and Details 
  C-011 - Pipeline Details 
  C-012 - Pipeline Plan and Profile 
  C-100 - Site Horizontal Control and Work Limits 
 

   
  C-101 - Grading and Drainage Plan 
  C-102 - Paving and Site Layout  
  C-103 - Yard Piping Plan 
  C-104 – Sewer Plan & Profile 
  C-105 – Storm Drain Plan & Profile 
  C-110 - Tank Plan View 
  C-111 - Tank Elevations 
  C-112 - Tank Details 
  C-120 - Pump Station Plan 
  C-121 - Pump Station Elevations 
  C-122 – Pump Station Details 
  C-130 – Chlorination Station – Pump Modifications 
  C-130 – Chlorination Station – Meter  
  C-140 – Intermediate Reservoir Altitude Valve 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

May 13, 2019 3 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

PRELIMINARY DRAWING LIST  
ARCHITECHTURAL 
GA-1 – General Notes, Legend, and Abbreviations, Special 
Inspection 
  A-1 – Pump Station Floor Plan 
  A-2 – Exterior Elevations 
  A-3 – Interior and Exterior Details 
  A-4 – Building Sections 
STRUCTURAL 
  GS-1 – General Notes 
  GS-2 – General Notes, Legend, and Abbreviations 
  GS-3 – General Notes, Special Inspection 
  GS-4 – Standard Details – Concrete I 
  GS-5 – Standard Details – Concrete II 
  GS-6 – Standard Details – Masonry 
  GS-7 – Standard Details – Ladders and Misc. Metals 
  GS-8 – Standard Details – Grating 
  GS-9 – Standard Details – Cover Plates 
  S-1 – Booster Pump Station – Foundation Plan 
  S-2 – Booster Pump Station – Floor Plan 
  S-3 – Booster Pump Station – Roof Plan 
  S-4 – Booster Pump Station – Primary Sections 
  S-5 – Booster Pump Station – Sections & Details 
  S-6 – Reservoirs A1/A2 – Plans and Details 
  S-7 – Reservoirs A1/A2 – Details 
  S-8 – Reservoirs A1/A2 – Ladder Details 
  S-9 – Retaining Wall Details 

INSTRUMENTATION, CONTROLS AND ELECTRICAL 
  GE-1 Electrical Legends and Abbreviations 
  GE-2 Electrical Standard Details I 
  GE-3 Electrical Standard Details II 
  E-1 Electrical Single-Line Diagram 
  E-2 Electrical Equipment Elevations and Schedules 
  E-3 A1/A2 Reservoirs Plan Drawing 
  E-4 B/C Booster Pump Station - Power and Signal Plan 
  E-5 B/C Booster Pump Station - Lighting Plan 
  E-6 Interconnection Details 
  E-7 Control Schematics I 
  E-8 Control Schematics II 
  E-9 Control Panel Elevations 
  E-10 Communication block Diagram 
  GI-1  I&C Legend and Abbreviations 1 of 2   
  GI-2  I&C Legend and Abbreviations 2 of 2   
  I-1 P&ID, Distribution System 
  I-2 P&ID, Disinfection System Modifications 
 

 

Task 4 CEQA and Permitting 
Denise Duffy & Associates will prepare a Draft CEQA Initial Study for the project, based upon the 60% 
design submittal. They will prepare a special status species survey (pre-proposal site walks, with mapping 
during the preliminary design phase), which will be used to inform the conceptual design.  If the preliminary 
design has the potential to impact listed species, they will coordinate consultation with the applicable 
regulatory agencies. If an incidental take permit is required, we cannot guarantee the time it will take the 
regulatory agencies to review and approve the mitigations. The project does not impact wetlands or aquatic 
habitats, but a portion of the work may affect listed plant species. Depending upon the permit and mitigation 
requirements, the CEQA IS/MND may need to be adopted in advance of awarding the project in order to 
submit a complete regulatory permit application. Public outreach meetings are anticipated to occur during 
the bid and construction phases (listed here to group with DD&A’s other efforts). The key activities and 
deliverables are listed below. 

4.1 Biological Reconnaissance and Research 

4.2 Prepare CEQA Initial Study 

4.3 Resource Agency Coordination 

4.4 Prepare permit applications, if needed 

4.5 Public Outreach Meeting preparation and support 

Deliverables: 

 Special Status Species Map 
 Administrative Draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 
 Public Review Draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

May 13, 2019 4 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 Final Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 
 Resource Agency Permit Applications 
 Public Outreach Meeting(s) 

 Task 5 90% Design Construction Documents 
The 90% design package will add the remaining technical specifications and drawings. The bid documents 
(Division 00) will be populated except for the key dates.  Comments received on the 60% design will be 
tabulated and addressed.  If encroachment permits are required, this plan set will be submitted to the City 
and/or Campus staff for permit-level review. 

5.1 90% Design Plans with Specifications. All technical sections and plan sheets, including SWPPP 
and traffic control plan. 

5.2 90% Design Cost Estimate 

5.3 Review Documents with District Staff 

Deliverables: 

 90% Plans 
 90% Specifications 
 90% Design Cost Estimate 
 Updated Construction and Permitting Risk Register 
 60% Comments response log  

Task 6 100% Design Construction Documents 
The 100% Issued for Bid design package will be prepared, addressing any comments received on the 90% 
submittal and any final changes required under the permit agreements. 

6.1 Final Design Plans and Specifications 

6.2 Final Design Cost Estimate 

Deliverables: 

 Final Construction plans and specifications, sealed by California professional engineers 
 Final Engineer’s Estimate, sorted by bid item 
 90% comments response log  

Task 7 Bid Phase Services 
Schaaf & Wheeler will support the District staff and Construction Manager during the bid phase, attending 
meetings and site walks.  If requested, we will assist with the bid tabulation and evaluation.  Key tasks 
include: 

7.1 Attend pre-bid conference (Civil, Electrical, Controls and CEQA) and explain the design concept 
and key project elements to the bidders. 

7.2 Respond to RFI's, prepare clarifications and addenda 

Deliverables: 

 RFI responses 
 Design clarifications 
 Design addenda, if required  



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

May 13, 2019 5 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

Task 8 Construction Phase Services 
The construction phase is anticipated to take 18- to 24-months, depending upon the start-up and transition 
schedule.  A better estimate of the construction duration will be made as the design progresses.  We 
anticipate holding two public information meetings prior to the contractor mobilizing to the site, ideally with 
one on-campus.  Additional meetings may be required during the transition to the new system. Engineering 
services during construction will include the following tasks:   

7.1 Attend pre-construction conference (full design team) 

7.2 Attend progress meetings (assume 40). The civil designer will attend all meetings. The CEQA, 
structural, electrical and controls designers will attend as needed, depending on phase of the work. 

7.3 Respond to RFI's, prepare clarifications and addenda 

7.4 Review Submittals (assume 120) 

7.5 Site visits & start-up support 

7.6 Public Information Meetings (assume 2) 

Deliverables: 

 Submittal reviews with transmittals 
 RFI responses 
 Design clarifications 
 Design revisions, if required 
 Technical support during SCADA integration 
 Technical support during start-up  

Task 9 Record Drawings and Close-Out 
The Schaaf & Wheeler team will prepare record drawings for the project, based on the Contractor’s and 
Inspector’s red-lined plans.  Record drawings will be submitted in hard copy, as pdf plots and in AutoCAD.  
We will assist with the cataloging of equipment data for import into the District’s asset management system. 
Subtasks are: 

9.1 Prepare Record Drawings 

9.2 Assist with cataloging equipment data 

Deliverables: 

 Project record drawings in hard copy and electronic files 
 Excel tables with asset management data 

Assumptions and Limitations 
Key Assumptions: 

 The site and building layout will be agreed upon during the preliminary design phase. No changes 
requiring redesign will be required during later submittal reviews. 

 Artwork or logos required on the tanks will be provided by CSUMB, ready for inclusion in the bid 
documents. No modifications other than size will be required.   

Items not included in scope: 

 Preparing a Title 22 Report or revised water sampling plan for updating the DDW Permit 

 Preparing printed plan sets for bidders (electronic distribution is assumed)  



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

May 13, 2019 6 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 Providing construction management web services (ProCore or similar). We assume the District will 
hire an independent construction manager.  

 Construction staking. We assume the Construction Contractor will be responsible for this task. 

 Materials testing during construction. We assume these services will fall under inspection by the 
construction manager.   

 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 21 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Level of Services: 
The Schaaf & Wheeler Team will provide a complete design for the project, including off-site improvements 
and controls analysis.  The project will be designed in accordance with the AWWA standards for water tanks, 
the Hydraulic Institute standards for pump stations, the California Building and Electrical Codes and the 
District Design Guidelines.  Construction documents will include EJCDC series contract documents, CSI 
formatted technical specifications and Arch-D sized plan sheets. The Initial Study will follow the California 
Environmental Quality Act guidelines and requirements. 

Our design team is extremely familiar with the District.  Schaaf & Wheeler has worked with MCWD for over 
25 years. Our project manager served as the acting District Engineer twice, and currently provides on-call 
engineering services.  CEQA and permitting is by Denise Duffy & Associates, who have worked with the 
District for over 20 years, supporting the CEQA and permitting for the RUWAP and the PWM projects.  Our 
surveyor is Whitson Engineers, a local civil and land surveying firm. Cornerstone Earth group prepared the 
geotechnical report for the 2008 basis of design report, so they have an understanding of the site conditions. 
Finally, TJC & Associates has worked with the District’s controls in the past, and will bring that institutional 
knowledge back to this project. 

The three largest challenges to this project are (1) working with CSUMB, (2) obtaining a new PG&E service, 
and (3) obtaining take permits for special status plants.  All of these components have the potential to delay 
the project construction. Involving the Campus staff in all design reviews and aggressively following up for 
approvals can mitigate this risk, but not eliminate it. Similarly, coordinating with PG&E during design, 
submitting the service application and obtaining their trench package in advance of the bid does not 
guarantee that they will be available to pull conductors and set a transformer when the Contractor is ready 
for it.  Understanding that risk going in, we can structure the bid documents to accommodate a second 
mobilization for electrical start-up, if necessary. The majority of the site work will be within the existing 
parking lot and landscaped area, so the project could begin in advance of a final regulatory permit, but there 
would be some risk of encountering a change order or a delay during construction.   

Current Workload  
The Schaaf & Wheeler Team is busy with current projects, as are all engineering firms in the area.  We have 
the ability to prioritize this effort, but more importantly, the majority of the team is already familiar with the 
local area, the water system, the project and the District’s design standards.  We can therefore utilize our 
time spent on the project advancing the design and resolving conflicts and issues, rather than climbing the 
learning curve.   

 

 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 22 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

Project Schedule 
 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 23 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Resumes 
Andrew A. Sterbenz, P.E. – Senior Project Manager – Schaaf & Wheeler 

Education 
BSCE, Massachusetts 
Institute of Technology 
MSCE, University of 
Texas at San Antonio 
Licenses 
Registered Civil Engineer 
California C69703  
Texas 93537  
Affiliations 
American Water Works 
Association  
Society of American 
Military Engineers 
American Public Works 
Association 
Monterey Bay Water 
Works Association 

Andrew A. Sterbenz, P.E., has over 25 years of experience 
managing engineering organizations and solving engineering 
problems, and is recognized for developing and 
implementing creative solutions to complex problems. In 
2006-2007 and 2012-2013 he served as the full-time District 
Engineer for the Marina Coast Water District, managing a 
$150 million water and sewer capital improvements budget 
that includes the development of new groundwater, recycled 
and desalinated water supplies for the former Fort Ord. He 
has prepared long-range water supply plans in California and 
Texas. Plans include the projection of population and water 

demands, the assessment of current water supply availability, and the analysis of 
water management strategies to meet projected shortages. He is adept at 
analyzing, researching, planning, coordinating and executing strategies to achieve 
organizational goals. Andy has prepared detailed plans and specifications for 
bidding and construction for public agencies, and managed construction projects 
for the client agencies. He has conducted environmental studies and remediation 
design, and assisted with environmental permitting. He is well experienced with 
state and federal environmental regulations.   

Relevant Projects: 
Water Supply Planning 
Water Supply Assessment for 2018 General Use Permit – Stanford University (2016-17) 
2015 Urban Water Management Plan – Marina Coast Water District – Marina, CA (2015--2016) 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan – Marina Coast Water District – Marina, CA (2010-2011) 
Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project - Marina Coast Water District - Marina, CA (2006-2007) 
Region H Water Plans (2001 and 2006) - San Jacinto River Authority - Conroe, Texas (1998-2001, 2002-2006) 
Colorado River Water Availability Model - Texas Natural Resource Consv. Comm. – Austin, TX (2002) 
Water and Wastewater Systems Planning and Design 
Anderson Dam Seismic Retrofit Project, Project Management Team – Black & Veatch for Santa Clara Valley Water 

District – Morgan Hill, CA (2012 – Present) 
Pure Water Monterey Injection Well Field – Kennedy/Jenks Consultants for Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control 

Agency - Monterey County, CA (2016-Present) 
Reclamation Ditch Diversion Pump Station – E2 Consulting Engineers for Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control 

Agency - Monterey County, CA (2016-19) 
Lightfighter Drive Water Main – Marina Coast Water District – Seaside, CA (2016) 
Pure Water Monterey Groundwater Replenishment Project – Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency – 

Monterey County, CA (2015-17) and under Denise Duffy & Assoc. (2013-2015) 
Truck Yard Lift Station and Water System Improvements – Monterey Regional Waste Management District – Marina, CA 

(2014-16) 
Reclamation Ditch Yield Study – Monterey Penninsula Water Management District - Monterey County, CA (2013-2014) 
Blanco Drain Yield Study – Monterey Penninsula Water Management District - Monterey County, CA (2013-2014) 
Aptos Booster Pump Station – Soquel Creek Water District – Aptos, CA (2012-2015) 
McGregor Drive Booster Pump Station – Soquel Creek Water District – Capitola, CA (2012-2015)Interim District Engineer 

- Marina Coast Water District - Marina, CA (2006-2007, 2012-2013) 
Soquel Drive Cast Iron Main Replacement-Soquel Creek Water District-Soquel, CA (2012) 
Watkins Gate Well and Pipeline– Marina Coast Water District – Marina, CA (2011-2012) 
Stonegate Water Supply Project – San Benito County Public Works - Hollister, CA (2011-2013) 
Sewer Feasibility Study for Commercial Parkway – Monterey County Redevelopment Agency – Castroville, CA (2010)  
Modular Wastewater Treatment System - LOGCAP – Balkans, Yugoslavia (1999) 
Raw Water Pump Station Design and Construction - Coastal Water Authority - Houston, Texas (2000) 
Moses Bayou 84-Inch Siphon - Gulf Coast Water Authority - Texas City, Texas (2001) 
Stormwater Planning and Design 
Bryant Canyon Channel – Monterey County Water Resources Agency – Soledad, CA (2013 –2014, 2017) 
Wrigley-Ford Creeks Maintenance Project – City of Milpitas – Milpitas, CA (2011-2012) 
 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 24 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Leif M. Coponen, P.E. – Principal-in-Charge - Schaaf & Wheeler 
Education 
BSCE, Michigan 
Technological University, 
Michigan  
Licenses 
Registered Civil Engineer 
California C70139 
Affiliations 
American Water Works 
Association 
North American Society of 
Trenchless Technology 
Pipe Users Group - NorCal 

Leif M. Coponen, P.E., has more than sixteen years of 
experience in water, waste water and storm water 
systems engineering. He has designed cost-effective 
water supply and distribution systems for private 
developments and public agencies across the Bay Area.  
Leif regularly provides CEQA support for private 
developments, water and wastewater CIPs and public 
works projects. His project management skills and in-
depth knowledge of the design and analysis of both new 
and rehabilitated potable water, stormwater and sanitary 
sewage systems and pumping stations has always been 
a major factor for repeat clientele. Leif has expertise in 

modeling water systems with Bentley’s WaterCAD, and Innovyze’s H2Omap and 
InfoWATER, INFOSWMM software platforms. Leif is also skilled at preparing 
detailed plans and specifications for bidding and construction of infrastructure 
projects for public agencies, and providing construction support services. 

Relevant Projects 
Potable Water Planning and Design 
Old County Road Water Main Replacement, Mid-Peninsula Water District   
Saratoga Wildlife Care Center Water Planning and Design, The Lawrence Ellison Foundation 
750 Moffett Boulevard  – Moffett Gateway Water Supply Assessment and UIS,  David J. Powers & City of Mountain View 
El Camino Hospital Campus Project – Water Supply Assessment and UIS,  David J. Powers & City of Mountain View  
North Bayshore Precise Plan  - Water & Wastewater System Planning, City of Mountain View 
Stanford Next GUP Water Supply Assessment – Leland Stanford Junior University 
On-Call Water and Wastewater Modeling Support, City of Mountain View 
Castroville Seawater Intrusion Project, Espinosa Booster PS Modifications & System Assessments - MCWRA 
On-Call Water and Wastewater Modeling Support,  Marina Coast Water District 
Reservation Road Pipeline Project,  Marina Coast Water District 
Watkins Gate Well and Pipeline Project, Marina Coast Water District  
Well 34 Site Improvements,  Marina Coast Water District  
California Avenue Extension Pipeline Project,  Marina Coast Water District 
Bayer Tank Structural / Marina-Ord Inter-Tie Project, Marina Coast Water District 
A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station Basis of Design, Marina Coast Water District 
Communications Hill Water Distribution System, KB Home/San Jose Water Company 
Coyote Road Pump Station,  Great Oaks Water Co. 
East Palo Alto General Plan Update,  City of East Palo Alto 
Service Area 3 Planning Study,  Soquel Creek Water District 
Storm Water Pump Stations 
Laurelwood Stormwater Pumps Station Improvement Project, City of Santa Clara 
Westside Stormwater Pump Station Project and  Westside Basin Desilting Project, City of Santa Clara 
Marsten Storm Drain Pump Station,  City of Burlingame 
Baylands Stormwater Pump Station No.1 Rehabilitation,  City of Sunnyvale 
Matadero Creek Pump Station, City of Palo Alto 
San Francisquito Creek Stormwater Pump Station,  City of Palo Alto 
Coyote Point and Poplar Avenue Stormwater Pump Station Rehabilitation,  City of San Mateo 
Santa Rita Storm Water Pump Station,  Monterey County Water Resources Agency 
Sanitary Sewer Pump Stations 
Aquatic Park, Mariner’s Island #5 and #6 Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Rehab,  City of San Mateo 
Spreckels Subdivision Sanitary Sewer Pump Station,  Standard Pacific Homes 
Mariner’s Island No.2 Sanitary Sewage Pump Station Rehabilitation,  City of San Mateo 
S. San Francisco Industrial Sewage Pumping Stations No.3 and No.4 Rehabilitation, City of South San Francisco 
Sanitary Sewer Planning and Design 
Shoreline Sewage Lift Station Assessment and Trunk Sewer Alignment & Constructability, City of Mountain View 
South Trunk Sanitary Sewer Relief Line,  City of San Mateo 
Sanitary Sewer Master Planning and Design Review,  Marina Coast Water District 
Recycled Water Systems 
Pico Power Plant Recycled Water Distribution,  Silicon Valley Power 
Smurfit-Stone Recycled Water Retrofit,  City of Santa Clara; Intel Co. Recycled Water Retrofit,  City of Santa Clara 

 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 25 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Glen M. Anderson, PE – Project Engineer - Schaaf & Wheeler 

Education 
BSCE, Civil and Environmental 
Engineering, University of 
California, Davis 
Licenses 
Registered  Civil Engineer 
California C76720 
Certifications 
NASSCO PACP, MACP and 
LACP Certified, Cert. No. U-714-
06021855 
Hydraulic Institute, Pump System 
Assessment Certified 
Affiliations 
Pipe Users Group - NorCal 

Glen M. Anderson, P.E., has 12 years of experience in 
sanitary sewer system, potable water, and stormwater 
assessment and design as well as the associated 
construction support and management associated with 
those projects. Glen has successfully completed work 
on several sanitary sewer main and trunk rehabilitation 
projects. He has worked on sanitary sewer pump station 
rehabilitation projects throughout the Bay Area. 
Additionally, Glen has performed condition assessments 
for more than 150 sanitary sewer and stormwater pump 

stations. Glen’s potable water experience projects include the assessment 
and rehabilitation of booster pump stations, design of a water tanks and 
planning and design for potable water wells and pipelines. In addition to 
design, Glen has provided design, construction support and management 
services for a variety of projects, including wells, pipelines, storage tanks, 
pump stations, and generator installations. 

Relevant Projects 
Water Delivery Systems  
Water Mains Replacement Design at Bridge Crossings, City of Santa Clara (2018 – 2020) 
Country Club and Victoria Water Booster Pump Stations, City of Petaluma (2018) 
Cherry Creek Water Pump Station, City of Hillsborough (2016) 
Assessment of City Wells, City of Santa Clara (2014) 
Great Oaks Water Company. Water System Modeling (2013) 
Watkins Gate Well and Pipeline Project and  Well 34 Site Improvements, Marina Coast Water District (2012) 
Shady Lane Water System Improvement Stonegate Water Supply Project, County of San Benito (2011) 
San Jerardo Water System Improvements, County of Monterey (2010) 
Segunda Pump Station Pump replacement, California American Water (2009) 
El Torro Wells, California American Water (2008) 
Valley Christian School Pump Station Rehabilitation, Valley Christian School (2008) 
Wastewater Systems 
Sanitary Sewer Lift Station Rehabilitation Design (5 Lift Stations), City of San Mateo (2016 – 2017) 
Wastewater Pump Stations Assessment (6 Stations), Delta Diablo (2016 – 2017) 
Crestmoor and Lomita Pump Stations and Forcemain, City of San Bruno (2016 – 2017) 
City of San Mateo Basin 2/3 – Pump Station Alternatives, MWH/City of San Mateo (2016) 
Lift Stations J&K and D, F & W, City of Morgan Hill (2015-2016) 
PSQ Reserve Flow and URD Project, East Bay Municipal Utility District (2014 - 2015) 
Assessment and Engineering for Sanitary Sewer Main Rehabilitation, City of San Mateo (2014 -2015) 
Force Main Appurtenance Projects ESDC, Ross Valley Sanitary District (2014-2015) 
Cabrillo Avenue Sewer Main Abandonment and Replacement, City of Santa Clara (2013 – 2014) 
South Trunk Sewer Relief Line, City of San Mateo (2013 – 2014) 
Madera Lift Stations, of Madera (2014-2015) 
Mariner’s Island No. 5 and No. 6 Pump Station Rehabilitation, City of San Mateo (2011) 
Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Repairs, City of Fontana (2012) 
Pump Station Rehabilitations, City of Alameda (2012) 
Sanitary Sewer Lift Station M, City of Morgan Hill (2010) 
S. San Francisco Sanitary Sewer Pump Station No. 8 Rehabilitation, City of S. San Francisco (2010) 
City of San Mateo Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Assessment, City of San Mateo (2010) 
Morgan Hill Trunk Sewer No. 2, City of Morgan Hill (2006) 
S. San Francisco Sanitary Sewer Pump Station No. 4 Rehabilitation, City of S. San Francisco (2006) 
Stormwater Systems 
Baylands Stormwater Pump Station No. 2; Pump Station No. 1, City of Sunnyvale (2013 – 2017) (2006) 
Rehabilitation of Failed 96” Stormwater Corrugated Metal Pipe, Town of Moraga (2016) 
O’Connor Pump Station Improvement Feasibility and Design; Trash Capture Retrofit, City of East Palo Alto (2016 - 2018) 
Vista Bella Stormwater Pump Station Design, Half Moon Bay, Ruggeri-Jensen-Azar (2015) 
Citrix Stormwater Pump Station Design, Santa Clara, Kier & Wright (2014 – 2015) 
Silviera Stormwater Pump Station Design, Gilroy, Ruggeri-Jensen-Azar (2014 – 2015) 
Sears Point Stormwater Pump Stations Design, 2 Stations, Ducks Unlimited, Inc. (2014) 
Marsten Pump Station, City of Burlingame (2011); Hope Street Stormwater Pump Station - City of San Jose (2007) 
San Francisquito Creek Stormwater Pump Station, City of Palo Alto (2008) 
Blanco Drain Stormwater Pump Station, Monterey County Water Resources Agency (2008) 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 26 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Caitlin J. Gilmore, P.E., QSD/QSP, CPSWQ, LEED AP - Schaaf & Wheeler 
Education 
BSCE, Civil and 
Environmental 
Engineering, 
California 
Polytechnic 
University, San Luis 
Obispo 
MS, Environmental 
Engineering, 
University of 
Southern California 
License 
Registered Civil 
Engineer, California 
C76810 
Certifications 
LEED AP, 
QSD/QSP, CPSWQ 

Caitlin J. Gilmore, P.E., QSD, CPSWQ, LEED AP, has 11 
years of experience with trash capture, water quality, water 
supply and distribution, hydrology and hydraulics, stormwater 
systems, open channel design, bridge scour analysis and sea 
level rise design. Caitlin regularly prepares hydrology and water 
quality reports for EIRs of residential, commercial and 
urban/mixed-use projects. Caitlin is also accomplished in 
assessment and design of trash capture infrastructure; SWMP 
Inspection and Review; NPDES permit compliance, and storm 
system design. She is currently assisting several Bay Area cities 

to comply with the Regional Municipal Permit Section C.10 to achieve their trash 
capture reduction goals. These projects include feasibility and design of trash capture 
devices. In the last 5 years, Caitlin has conducted more than 40 third party 
development plan reviews for different Bay Area Agencies and Developers. She is 
adept at conducting training workshops for BMPs and awareness of Federal, State and 
Bay Area Regulatory requirements related to urban developments and water pollution.  
Caitlin is proficient in MikeUrban, AutoCAD, StormCAD, FlowMaster, BAHM, HEC-
RAS, HEC-HMS, HEC-1, and geoRAS.  

Relevant Projects: 
Trash Capture 
Trash Capture Design – City of Emeryville (2019) 
Large and Small Scale Trash Capture Design – City of Livermore (2018) 
Trash Capture Phase VI Preliminary Design and Design Support – City of San Jose (2018) 
Trash Capture Device Feasibility Study and Design – City of San Bruno (2017) 
Trash Capture Feasibility Study for Athlone Pump Station – County of San Mateo (2017) 
Trash Capture Design at Dore Avenue – City of San Mateo (2017-2018) 
Trash Capture Feasibility Study and Preliminary Design – City of South San Francisco (2016 – 2017) 
NPDES Trash Capture Feasibility Study  and Trash Capture Design – City of Mountain View (2015 - 2016) 
Design of Trash Capture Device for Matadero Stormwater Pump Station – City of Palo Alto (2015-16) 
Design of Trash Capture Device for Coyote Stormwater Pump Station – City of San Mateo (2015-16) 
Trash Capture Feasibility Study for 5 Pump Stations – City of San Mateo – (2016) 
NPDES Trash Capture Feasibility Study – City of Livermore (2014) 
Esplanade Trash Capture Device – Cotton Shires & Associates/City of Pacifica (2013)  
Water Quality/Environmental 
Heritage House CEQA Hydrology and Water Quality Study – Napa County (2018) 
Green Stormwater Infrastructure Plan – City of Palo Alto (on-going) 
On-Call BART/VTA Extension NPDES Compliance and storm system review - Milpitas (2015-2017) 
Butterfield Village Detention and Stormwater Quality Design – Morgan Hill (2015-current) 
Stevenson and Mission Developments BAHM Modeling and HMP design – Fremont (2015) 
City of Palo Alto Library and El Camino Park 3rd Party plan review and inspection (2012-2015) 
City of Daly City Serramonte Mall 3rd Party C.3 Treatment Review and Inpsection (2015-2018) 
North Gilroy Neighborhood Districts NPDES Compliance Analysis and Preliminary Design (2014-2017) 
Coyote Highlands Hydrology and Water Quality Study – San Martin (2013) 
San Sebastian Hydrology and Water Quality Study – Morgan Hill (2012) 
Cochrane-Borello Hydrology and Water Quality – David J. Powers & Assoc./City of Morgan Hill (2011) 
Freeman Quarry Erosion Control and Water Quality Review – Gilroy (2011) 
Stormwater Systems Planning and Design 
Woodside Storm System Inventory and Prioritized Repair and Replacement Program (2015) 
Milpitas Storm Drainage Master Plan - Milpitas (2014) 
Los Trancos Flood Remediation – Los Trancos Water District, Portola Valley/Kier & Wright (2011-2012) 
Baylands No. 2 Stormwater Pump Station – City of Sunnyvale (2011-2013) 
North San José Storm Drain Master Plan – City of San José (2011-2012) 
Water Supply 
San Jose General Plan Update UWMP Summary – San Jose (2016) 
Stanford Next GUP Water Supply Assessment – Leland Stanford Junior University (2015-2016) 
Moffett Gateway  and El Camino Hospital Water Supply Assessment – Mountain View (2015) 
Kahakuloa Acres Water Supply System Modeling and Storage Tank Design – Maui (2012-2014) 

 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 27 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Logan N. Fox, P.E. – Associate Engineer - Schaaf & Wheeler 
Education 
BS, Civil Engineering, 
Santa Clara University 
MS, Civil Engineering, 
San Jose State University 
Licenses 
Registered Civil Engineer 
California C84797 

Logan N. Fox, P.E. has more than six years of experience 
in potable water tank, pump station and pipeline design. He 
also specializes in wastewater and stormwater systems. 
Other design experience includes water well 
improvements. Logan Fox is proficient in assisting right 
from planning through design and construction support. He 
is skilled at utilizing AutoCAD for the preparation of project 
plans for capital improvement projects. He also conducts 
project feasibility assessments as well as hydraulic and 
hydrology studies.  

Relevant Projects 
Water Delivery Systems 
Lompico Tanks Replacement – San Lorenzo Valley Water District (2018-2019) 
Cherry Creek Pump Station – Town of Hillsborough (2017 – 2018) 
Conservation Center for Wildlife Care – Pennisula Humane Society/Lawerence Ellision Foundation (2016 – 2018) 
Gilroy Pump Station No. 5 Improvement – RJA/City of Gilroy (2015 – 2018) 
Probation Tank Replacement – Mesiti-Miller Engieering/San Lorenzo Valley Water District (2015 – 2016) 
Camp Saratoga Water System – Camp Saratoga (2014 – 2015) 
Well 30 Pump Replacement – Marina Coast Water District (2015) 
Well 5-02 Improvement – City of Santa Clara (2014) 
Assessment of City Wells – City of Santa Clara (2014) 
Pressure Reducing Valve Replacement – Valley Christain School (2014) 
McGregor Drive Pump Station – Soquel Creek Water District (2013 – 2015) 
Aptos Pump Station – Soquel Creek Water District (2013 – 2015) 
Hydropneumatic Tanks – CSG Consultants/Town of Hillsborough (2013) 
Northside Tanks Rehabilitation – City of Santa Clara, 2013 
Winchester Main Replacement – City of Santa Clara, 2013 
Wastewater Systems 
Dale Avenue Pump Station Rehabilitation – Stantec/City of San Mateo (2016 – 2019) 
38th Avenue and 41st Avenue Lift Stations Replacement – Stantec/City of San Mateo (2016 – 2019) 
Crestmoor and Lomita Pump Stations Replacement – City of San Bruno (2017 – 2019) 
East Basin Pump Station Rehabilitations – City of San Mateo (2016 – 2018) 
Lift Stations J and W Rehabilitation – City of Morgan Hill (2016 – 2018) 
Forcemain Flow Meter Cathodic Protection – JDH Corrosion Consultants/City of Milpitas (2016) 
42nd Avenue Pump Station Rehabilition – City of San Mateo (2015 – 2018) 
Crown-Merrill Pump Station Replacement – Mesiti-Miller Engieering/UC Santa Cruz (2016) 
Cabrillo Avenue Main Replacement – City of Santa Clara (2013 – 2014) 
Stormwater Systems 
Poplar Avenue Pump Station Replacement – City of San Mateo (2014 – 2018) 
Rollins Area Pump Station Feasibility Study – City of Burlingame (2014) 
Stormwater Conveyance Facility Inventory and Analysis, and Prioritized Repair/Replacement Program – Town of 
Woodside (2014 – 2015) 
Westside Detention Basin Desilting – City of Santa Clara (2013 – 2016) 
Baylands Storm Water Pump Station No. 2 Rehabilitation – City of Sunnyvale (2013 – 2016) 
US-101 Storm Drain Crossing Feasibility Study – City of Burlingame (2013) 
Hydraulics and Hydrology 
Moraga Storm Drain Master Plan – Town of Moraga (2015) 
Old Canyon Road Bridge Foundation Repair – City of Fremont (2015) 
Westside Retention Basin Alternative Analysis – City of Santa Clara (2014) 
  



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 28 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Josh C. Tabije – Assistant Engineer - Schaaf & Wheeler 

Education 
BSCE, Colorado State 
University  
Continuing Education, 
Construction & Energy 
Management, Cabrillo 
College  
Affiliations 
American Society of Civil 
Engineers 

Josh C. Tabije has 11 years of experience in the areas of 
flood control and drainage, creek restoration, water 
distribution and supply, and physical and numerical modeling 
with HYDRA. In each of these areas, Mr. Tabije has been 
involved in site assessment, feasibility studies and 
construction document preparation. More recently, Josh has 
been providing construction management, Assistant Resident 
Engineer and Interim Resident Engineer responsibilities for 
two projects for the Marina Coast Water District. He is also 

proficient in HYDRA 6.0, HEC-RAS, StormCAD, FlowMaster, and HEC-2. 

Relevant Projects 
Water Delivery Systems  
Reservation Road Pipeline – Marina Coast Water District 
Soquel Drive Cast Iron Main Replacement - Soquel Creek Water District 
Oakhill Rd. & Poplar St. Main Replacement - Soquel Creek Water District 
Construction Management & Inspection 
City of San Mateo Levee Inspection - City of San Mateo 
Chualar Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation - Monterey County Public Works 
3rd Avenue Water Main Extension – Marina Coast Water District  
New Garage – Castroville Community Services District  
Marina Sewer Improvements Construction Management – Marina Coast Water District  
D-E Reservoir & Hydro-pneumatic Pump Station Construction Management - Marina Coast Water District 
Stormwater System Planning and Design  
City of Palo Alto Storm Drain Master Plan 
City of Los Altos Storm Water Master Plan  
City of Santa Cruz Storm Water Master Plan  
Storm Drainage Design: Subwatersheds A8, B1, B4, C3 – California State University, Monterey Bay  
CSUMB Stormwater Master Plan – California State University, Monterey Bay  
City of Hollister Storm Drain Master Plan – City of Hollister  
Castroville Storm Drain Improvements – Bestor Engineers  
Cypress Point Country Club Storm Drain - Cypress Point Country Club 
Water and Wastewater Systems Planning and Design  
Reclamation Ditch Pump Station - Pure Water Monterey Groundwater Replenishment Project – E2 Consulting Engineers 
for Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency – Monterey County, CA 
Potable Water System Improvements – Monterey Regional Waste Management District 
Sewer Lift Station and Force Main - Monterey Regional Waste Management District 
Plan Review - Marina Coast Water District 
3rd Avenue Water Main Extension – Marina Coast Water District  
George Chiala Farms Private Fire System Improvements - George Chiala Farms 
Sanitation Systems – Monterey County Public Works  
Castroville Community Plan – City of Castroville  
Fort Ord Valve Replacement Study – Marina Coast Water District  
Hydrology and Hydraulics  
Santa Rita Creek Site Hydrology – Monterey County Flood Control  
Orphan Residence Hydrology – John Lien Architecture  
Gates Property Hydrology – Robert Dewitt Engineering  
Highway 25 Hollister Bypass Drainage Design – Parsons Engineering  
River and Stream Enhancement  
Wrigley and Ford Creeks Dredging Design  
Iris Canyon Creek Reparation – City of Monterey 
  



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 29 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Conor J. Murphy – Assistant Engineer - Schaaf & Wheeler 

Education 
BSCE, Loyola Marymount 
University 
MSCE, University of 
California, Berkeley  
Affiliations 
American Society of Civil 
Engineers 

Conor J. Murphy has experience in wastewater and 
potable water infrastructure modeling, design and 
construction support. He has experience in construction 
management, inspection and material testing. His 
academic work focused on potable water infrastructure 
design. Conor’s modeling and design software knowledge 
includes AutoCAD, HEC-HMS, HEC-RAS, EPANET, 
Visual MODFLOW, and Matlab.   

Relevant Projects 
Water and Wastewater Systems Planning and Design 
San Lorenzo Valley Water District – Lompico Water Tank Replacements (2019) 
Anderson Dam Seismic Retrofit—Santa Clara Valley Water District (2018) 
Garden Road Re-Zone-Sewer and Storm Capacity—EMC Planning Group (2018) 
Sywak Property Sewer Study—Alexander Sywak (2018) 
Pouge Residence Pump Station (2018) 
San Mateo Pump Stations—City of San Mateo (2018) 
San Benito County Fair Fire Flow Improvements—California Fairs Financing Authority (2018) 
September Ranch Water and Wastewater Civil Design—Carmel Reserve (2018-2019) 
Valley Gardens Fire Flow Analysis—Robson Homes (2018)  
Farmworker Housing Wastewater Service Extension Project—Monterey One Water (2017) 
Pure Water Monterey Groundwater Replenishment Project—Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency (2017) 
Ord Village Lift Station—Marina Coast Water District (2017-2019) 
Casa Boronda Sewer Capacity Analysis—Whitson Engineers (2017) 
Redhunt Sanitary Sewer Lift Station—Whitson Engineers (2017) 
Construction Management & Inspection 
Las Palmas Ranch Drainage Report—Las Palmas Ranch Master Association No. 2 (2017) 
Spokane International Airport Taxiway Reconstruction—Spokane International Airport (2015) 
Rowan Ave Pipeline and Roadway Reconstruction—City of Spokane (2015) 
Materials Testing  
Work on gradations of aggregates for concrete and asphalt—Central Pre-Mix Concrete Co. (2012-2013) 
Testing concrete for air and slump both on site and in lab—Central Pre-Mix Concrete Co. (2012-2013) 
Student Projects  
Design of dam, reservoir, and water treatment plant in San Bernardino, CA—Loyola Marymount University  
Surveying and drafting project of campus dormitory—Loyola Marymount University 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 30 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Education 
MBA, University of 

CA, Berkeley, 
1988 

MS, Electrical 
Engineering and 
Computer 
Science; 
University of CA, 
Berkeley; 1980 

BS, Electrical 
Engineering and 
Computer 
Science; 

University of CA, 
Berkeley; 1978 

Professional 
Registrations 

Electrical: CA, WA, 
NV, HI, WY, CO, 
OR, AZ, ID, AK 

PE: UT, NM, WI, 
OH 

Control Systems: 
CA 

LEED Accredited 
Professional 

Professional 
Memberships 

Institute of 
Electrical and 
Electronics 
Engineers 

Instrumentation, 
Systems, and 
Automation 
Society  

Paul Giorsetto, P.E., LEED AP - Vice President 
Experience 

Paul Giorsetto, a licensed engineer since 1984, has extensive design experience in the 
areas of electrical power distribution, electrical industrial applications, control systems, 
and instrumentation. His specific experience includes electrical system modeling and 
planning; medium and low-voltage electrical distribution designs of water, wastewater 
and industrial waste treatment facilities; plant instrumentation; and SCADA systems for 
in-plant and telemetry-based systems. 

SCADA System Improvements; Marina Coast Water District, Marina 

CA; Project Manager. Developed SCADA system rehabilitation, implementation, 
and standardization strategies. The existing system suffered from a variety of chronic 
radio system failures, poor remote site component performance, absence of 
standardization strategies, and lack of hardware or software documentation 
procedures. This effort included development of standardized remote telemetry unit 
bid specifications for new construction, associated submittal requirements, radio path 
analysis for converting from 900-MHz unlicensed to 450-MHz licensed radios, control 
strategy and programming standards, and “quick fix” design for addressing system 
failure symptoms before development of the systemwide Master Plan.  
Arc Flash Hazard Assessment, Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control 

Agency; Marina, CA; Project Manager. TJCAA provided an arc flash hazard 
analysis for MRWPCA’s remote lift and pump stations. The study analyzed 51 sites, 
determined the risk of an arc flash at each facility, developed recommendations for 
improvements to reduce or eliminate the identified risks. Using SKM PowerTools©, 
TJCAA prepared models for each site, analyzing existing equipment ratings, 
protection, device coordination, and arc flash levels. TJCAA made recommendations 
for equipment upgrades and protective device settings to improve coordination 
and/or reduce arc flash energy and established documentation.  
Graham Hill Water Treatment Plant Electrical Improvements Project; City 

of Santa Cruz Water Department, Santa Cruz, CA; Project Engineer and 
TJCAA Project Manager. Renovation, expansion, and improvements to the 
electrical distribution system at the City’s main Graham Hill WTP. This project 
included verification and design validation to establish the conceptual approach. Final 
design for upgrades to the electrical system included a new utility 21-kV primary 
service, 480-V main-tie-main switchgear with source transfer logic, remote 
switchgear console for arc-flash considerations, 1,500-kW engine-generator set, and 
a dedicated electrical building.  
Pressure Zones 2 and 3 Pump Station Improvements; Dublin San Ramon 

Services District, Pleasanton, CA; Project Engineer and TJCAA Project 
Manager. Project Lead electrical and I&C engineer for preliminary design, final 
design, and construction services for electrical and mechanical renovations at four 
drinking water pump stations. Work included field inspections, conceptual 
approaches, use of reduced voltage starters for hydraulic surge control, replacement 
of all electrical equipment, and interfacing to DSRSD's radio-based SCADA system. 
This project also resulted in relocating several PG&E service points at each pump 
station and developing bid documents to incorporate a sole-sourced DSRSD 
programmer for performing  SCADA system upgrades.  
Rinconada Water Treatment Plant (WTP) Reliability Improvement 

Project; Santa Clara Valley Water District; Los Gatos, CA; I&C and Electrical 
Discipline Lead. Oversaw the electrical engineering and control systems design 
work for the $180 million water treatment plant modernization. ICE design included 
new 12-kV distribution, arc flash protection strategies, a new 3-MW diesel standby 
generator, and new distributed motor control centers with smart motor starters and 
variable frequency drive (VFD) equipment. I&C design incorporated a new distributed 
programmable logic controller (PLC) architecture coordinated with construction 
phasing and new processes. Final design included over 400 electrical, 
instrumentation, and controls design drawings. 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 31 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Richard K. Thow, S.E. - Associate 

Experience 

Richard Thow has worked in the structural design and seismic evaluation fields since 
1986. He has designed and evaluated facilities including water treatment plant (WTP) 
structures, wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) structures, bridges, chemical storage 
facilities, pump stations, and storage tanks/reservoirs. Mr. Thow's experience also 
comprises extensive evaluation and analysis for nuclear facilities, including regulatory 
interpretation and compliance, structural evaluation, and facility design and 
modification. His specific project experience includes the following: 

WWTP Expansion; Delta Diablo, Antioch, CA; Project Engineer. Structural 
engineering support for design of a 12.2-mgd plant expansion to provide recycled 
water. Specific elements included filters, clarifiers, chlorine contact basins, and a 
1.8-MG steel reservoir.  
T4 3-MG Water Tank and Booster Pump Station Project; City of Fresno, 

CA; Project Engineer. Engineering services during construction on behalf of the 
City of Fresno for design-build of  DN Tanks 3-MG prestressed concrete water tank.  
Alta Vista Tank No. 2; Montara Water and Sanitary District, Montara, 

CA; Project Engineer. Engineering services during construction on behalf of the 
Montara Water and Sanitary District for design-build of a DN Tanks 0.5-MG 
prestressed concrete water tank. Provided on-site inspections.  
Donnelly Reservoir Refurbishment; City of Burlingame, CA; Project 

Engineer. Structural consulting services in support of two existing welded steel 
tanks.  
Clayton Regency Potable Water Storage Project; Contra Costa County, 

CA; Project Engineer. Structural consulting services for a 1-MG bolted steel water 
tank.  
Rinconada WTP Reliability Improvement Project; Santa Clara Valley 

Water District; Los Gatos, CA; Project Engineer. Structural design for a new 
ozone generation building, LOX facility, flocculation/sedimentation basins, filters, 
washwater recovery facility, chlorine contact basin, elevated concrete platform.  
Wet Weather Facility Upgrade; City and County of San Francisco 

Department of Public Works, San Francisco, CA; Project Engineer. Seismic 
evaluations and retrofit designs for a conceptual design report for the upgrade of 
the North Point Wet Weather Facility.  
Northern Dougherty Valley Zone 3 Potable Water Facilities Reservoir 

300B and Pump Station 300C; Dublin San Ramon Services District, CA; 
Project Engineer. Engineering services during construction of a 1.5-MG, 
prestressed concrete potable water storage tank and masonry block pump station. 
Structural elements of this project were not designed by TJCAA.  
Drinking Water Improvement Project; City of Folsom, CA; Project 

Engineer. Engineering for the design of a 10-mgd WTP expansion. Specific 
elements included Actiflo pretreatment structure, filters, and partially buried, 
prestressed concrete chlorine contact tank. Provided engineering services during 
construction.  
McCloud Reservoir Assessment; City of Pleasanton, CA; Project 

Manager. Assessment of a 2-MG, prestressed, cast-in-place concrete tank. 
Developed retrofit recommendations.  
Advanced Floatation Tank Replacement Project; City of Sunnyvale, CA; 

Design Engineer. This structural evaluation included field investigation of tank vulnerability to seismic 
events. The final design required sequencing considerations to maintain plant operations throughout the 
various tank retrofits, maintaining at least two tanks in operation at all times.  
Ridgemark WWTP Expansion; Sunnyslope County Water District, Ridgemark, CA; Design 

Engineer. Structural engineering support for modification and expansion of the headworks, membrane 
bioreactors, blower building, and solids handling storage tank on a fault rupture site.  

Education 

 
BS, Civil 

Engineering, 
with honors; 
University of 
Abertay, 
Scotland; 
1986 

 
Professional 
Registrations 
 
Structural: CA 
Civil: CA 
 
Specialized 
Training 
Certification 
 
Confined Space 

Entry: CA 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 32 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Helen Tran - Senior Controls Technician  
Experience  
Helen Tran is an automation engineer with nearly 15 years’ experience in 
instrumentation and controls (I&C) and system integration. She has performed a 
variety of electrical and I&C designs for process equipment and utility systems. 
With a background in the electric power, biotechnology, and water treatment 
industries, Ms. Tran applies practical knowledge in design, documentation, 
programming, and configuration of control system hardware and software 
components. She is adept at interpreting client processes and operations; planning, 
design, and implementation of automation; and providing support for system 
integration projects under a variety of automation hardware and software 
platforms.  
Control System Expansion Project; White Slough Wastewater 

Treatment Plant (WWTP), City of Lodi, CA; Senior Controls Technician. 
Design and engineering support for new control system facilities for the White 
Slough WWTP for the Coty of Lodi. Work included facility reconnaissance and 
inventory, development of conceptual level design, establishing new control system 
design criteria and standards, and preparation of new control system phased 
installation prepared to match the City’s existing annual budget allocations. The 
approach applied new Rockwell Automation-based hot standby ControlLogix 
processors allocated along geographic areas of the plant. Remote I/O drops were 
also incorporated to reuse existing wiring to the plant’s obsolete SLCs and 
programmable logic controller (PLC) 5 hardware.  
WWTP; City of Malibu, CA; Senior Controls Technician. Design and system 
integration/programming including operator interface terminal (OIT) graphics 
development for the City of Malibu’s new greenfield WWTP and collection system. 
Ms. Tran’s efforts include new OIT graphics using PanelView hardware and 
software, configured to match the main plant look and feel of the graphics 
developed under the main plant Ignition software. This project I&C design 
incorporates distributed controls based on Rockwell Automation PLCs and 
integration of control platforms provided by process package suppliers. Remote lift 

stations and injection wells featured stand-alone PLC controls interconnected to the WWTP via a new 
fiber-optic cable system installed with new collection system pipelines.  
Glen Park Pump Station Improvements; City of Brisbane, CA; Electrical Designer. Work 
included field inspections, development of conceptual approaches, use of reduced-voltage starters for 
limiting motor inrush and hydraulic surge control, replacement of all electrical equipment, new utility 
service, and interfacing to the City’s radio-based SCADA system. Project included dual main breakers in 
the switchboard and motor control center to limit risk from arc flash hazards. New facility also included 
new standby engine generator with sound attenuation to limit impacts on neighboring residences.  
Design/Build SCADA System; City of Brisbane, CA; Project Manager. City water and 
wastewater facilities rely on an obsolete Telekey telemetry system installed in the early 1990s; Telekey is 
no longer in business and the City has been operating without technical support or access to spare parts. 
TJCAA was tasked with developing a design/build preliminary design document that could be used to 
obtain proposals for replacing the obsolete SCADA system. Ms. Tran is performing site reconnaissance; 
managing a radio path survey; establishing system-wide SCADA hardware, software, and control panel 
design criteria; and developing a quantitative method for design/build proposal evaluation and selection. 
Work also includes support during construction, consisting of technical review of designer/builder design 
and equipment submittals, witness testing, construction observation, and assistance during startup.  
SCADA System Standards; City of Bend, OR; Control System Designer Prepared a set of new 
SCADA standards for use by the City on upcoming design projects. New standards consisted of 
establishing equipment and SCADA tagging specifications, PLC programming requirements and 
techniques, and human-machine interface (HMI) graphic development. Work included document review, 
facilitating development and needs assessment workshops for each of the three new standards, and 
developing the formal standards documents. Ms. Tran was the lead standard developer for the PLC 
standard, which was prepared based on Rockwell Automation PLC characteristics, add- 
on-instructions, program structure, and program documentation.  

Education 
 

BS, Electrical 
Engineering; 

University of 
CA, San 
Diego; 2004 

 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 33 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

 

 
Scott E. Fitinghoff, P.E., G.E., Principal Engineer, has over 32 
years of experience in geotechnical engineering.   He has 
performed geotechnical investigations for pipelines, pump 
stations, water storage tanks, parks and recreation projects, 
hospital and health care facilities, commercial facilities, public 
works, energy, retail, institutional (K-14 school and university) and 
residential projects throughout the San Francisco Bay Area and 
California.  Mr. Fitinghoff has significant experience in foundation 
design, excavation shoring and dewatering, soil stabilization, 
earthwork operations, geologic hazards evaluations, liquefaction 
analysis, ground improvement, slope stability, pavement design 
and rehabilitation, and geotechnical value engineering. 
 
Mr. Fitinghoff’s expertise in foundation analysis includes the 
design and analysis of both shallow and deep foundations for 
complex projects, including wet wells, shallow footings, 
conventional and post-tension mat foundations, driven concrete 
and steel piles, augercast piles, micropiles, and large diameter 
drilled shafts.   Mr. Fitinghoff’s experience also includes projects 
with significant ground improvement programs.  
 

 Relevant Project Experience 
 Two 2MG Water Reservoirs and Booster Pump Stations, 

Marina Coast Water District, Marina, CA 
 Boys Ranch Water Tank and Pipeline, Morgan Hill 
 Edmondson Water Tank and Pipeline, Morgan Hill 
 Glen Park Pump Station Upgrades and Tank 

Improvements, Brisbane 
 Cherry Creek Water Pump Station, Hillsborough 
 Ocean Colony Pump Station and Force Main, Half Moon 

Bay 
 Crestmoor-Lomita Pump Stations, San Bruno 
 Mitten Sanitary Pump Station Force Main, Burlingame 
 Shoreline Sewage Lift Station, Mountain View 
 Chrysler Pump Station Rehabilitation Phase B, Menlo 

Park 
 Coyote Point – Poplar Avenue Pump Stations, San Mateo 
 Rollins Road Pump Station, Burlingame 
 Marsten Pump Station, Burlingame 
 City of Alameda Sewer Pump Stations, Alameda 
 Mariner’s Island Pump Station, San Mateo 
 Victor Pump Station, Santa Clara 
 Main Sewage Pump Station, Milpitas 

 

Education 
Master of Science, Geotechnical 
Engineering, University of California 
at Berkeley, 1989 
 
Bachelor of Science, Civil 
Engineering, San Jose State 
University, San Jose, 1987 
 
Professional Registrations 
Registered Civil Engineer: No. 48261, 
State of California 
 
Registered Geotechnical Engineer:  
No. 2379, State of California 
 
Professional Organizations 
ASCE - American Society of Civil 
Engineers 
CELSOC - Consulting Engineers and 
Land Surveyors of California 
U.C. Berkeley Geotechnical Society 
 
Teaching Experience 
Part-time Faculty in Civil Engineering 
at San Jose State University, Spring 
2006, 2007, and 2008, taught Soil 
Mechanics 
 

Scott E. Fitinghoff, P.E., G.E. 
Principal Engineer 

 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 34 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

 

Nicholas S. Devlin, P.E., Senior Project Engineer, has over 13 
years of experience in geotechnical engineering.  He has performed 
geotechnical investigations for commercial, public works, school 
district, residential and energy projects throughout the San 
Francisco Bay Area and California.  Mr. Devlin also has experience 
in deep foundations, pavement rehabilitation, excavation shoring 
and dewatering, soil stabilization, earthwork operations, seismic 
design, liquefaction analysis, ground improvement, and slope 
stability. 
 
Mr. Devlin has been involved in a wide variety of civil and 
geotechnical engineering projects.  Included in his background is 
the development of recommendations for many linear infrastructure 
projects including open-cut excavations, shoring, dewatering, 
trenchless installations, jacking criteria, backfill criteria, and 
pavement design and evaluation. 
 
Select Project Experience 
Mr. Devlin’s representative local experience includes the following 
projects. 
 EBMUD Digester Upgrades, Oakland 
 Glen Park Pump Station/Tank Facility Improvements, 

Brisbane 
 Laurelwood/Victor Stormwater Pump Station Renovation, 

Santa Clara 
 Chrysler Pump Station Rehabilitation Phase B, Menlo Park 
 City of Alameda Sewer Pump Stations Upgrades – Phase 4, 

Alameda 
 Crestmoor-Lomita Pump Stations, San Bruno 
 College Avenue Pump Station, San Bruno 
 Poplar Pump Station Trash Capture Devices, San Mateo 
 Ocean Colony Pump Station and Force Main, Half Moon Bay 
 Cherry Creek Water Pump Station, Hillsborough 
 Matadero Creek Storm Water Pump Station, Palo Alto 
 Sanitary Sewer Lift Station Rehabilitation, San Mateo 
 North Road Pump Station Rehabilitation Project, Belmont 
 Citywide Trash Capture Project, Mountain View 
 Trash Capture Devices Project No. 2, Sunnyvale 
 Trash Control Units, Oakland 
 Livermore Trash Capture Devices Project, Livermore 
 Leong Drive Water & Sewer Mains Replacement, Mountain 

View 
 Santa Clara Flow Meters and Outfall Structure, San Jose 

Education 
Master of Science, Geotechnical 
Engineering, University of California 
Berkeley, 2011 
 
Bachelor of Science, Civil 
Engineering, San Jose State 
University, San Jose, 2006 
 
Professional Registrations 
Registered Civil Engineer:  
No. 75613, State of California 
 
Professional Organizations 
ASCE - American Society of Civil 
Engineers 
U.C. Berkeley Geotechnical Society 
 
Recent Professional Education 
Cone Penetrometer Testing (CPT) 
Training (2007) 
APACA Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA) 
Design Course (2008) 
ASCE Rock and Slope Stability 
Course (2008) 
AIA Professional Development 
Certification (2009) 
 
 

Nicholas S. Devlin, P.E. 
Senior Project Engineer 

 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 35 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

 
 

CHARLES PUGH, PLS   |   Land Surveyor 
 
California Licensed Land Surveyor #9167 
 
EDUCATION: B.S. – Earth Systems Science and Policy 
  CSU at Monterey Bay, Seaside, California 
 
 
 

 
QUALIFICATIONS:   
Fourteen years of experience performing most types of general land surveying practices including: boundary, 
topographic, A.L.T.A., land division, photogrammetric control, mapping, construction staking and legal 
description preparation.  Sixteen years of experience using Real-Time GNSS. 
 
REPRESENTATIVE PROJECT EXPERIENCE:  

 Marina Coast Water District – Well Lot 33 – Performed aerial mapping and surveying associated 
with pre-design planning for a 2.6 mile main extension and well site. 

 Seaside County Sanitation District 2012 CIP Projects – Provided topographic mapping, utility 
locating and legal description preparation. 

 Monterey County Water Resources Agency – Salinas River Diversion Facility – Provided 
construction staking and boundary surveying related to the diversion facility on the Salinas River. 

 Santa Cruz County Sanitation District – Aptos Transmission Main – Managed project construction 
staking and land surveying for 3.5 miles of sewer main and pump stations. 

 Monterey County - San Jerardo Water System Aerial Topographic Mapping – Provided aerial 
topographic mapping and right of way mapping for 2.6 miles of the water transmission line corridor and 
treatment facilities. 

 Carmel Area Wastewater District - Reverse Osmosis Treatment Facility - Provided construction 
staking for the reverse osmosis treatment facility at Carmel Area Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

 Santa Cruz County Sanitation District – 2006-2012 CIP – Provided project topographic surveying, 
right-of-way mapping and legal description preparation for 12 miles of sewer main replacement at 
various locations. 

 Pebble Beach Community Services District – Forest Lake Reservoir – Provided construction 
staking and settlement monitoring of reservoir dam embankments.  

 Pebble Beach Community Services District – On-Call Surveying – On-call surveying for all 
PBCSD projects, including drafting of legal descriptions and plats, right-of-way surveying, water tank 
and pump station surveying and staking. 

 Golden State Vintners – Wastewater Storage Tank – Provide topographic, right of way and 
construction staking for storage tank and 0.25 mile main extension on State Route 146. 

 Granite Construction, Inc. - U.S. Route 101/ Alta Street Interchange Improvements – Highway and 
County road control surveying, right of way mapping and construction staking for 5 miles of road 
improvements. 

 Monterey County Public Works – Boronda Area Storm Drain – Fontes Lane and Hyland Drive – 
Provided topographic, utility and boundary surveying for the Storm Drain Master Plan. 

 Monterey County Public Works – On-Call Surveying – On-call surveying for Monterey County 
Public Works department. 

 Salinas Valley Solid Waste Authority – Crazy Horse Landfill – Provided construction staking and 
as-built surveying for gas collection system associated with landfill closure. 

 
PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS: 

California Land Surveyors Association 
 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 36 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

 
 

 
 

  Denise Duffy 

Principal 

Education 

Bachelor of Arts, 

Environmental Studies, 

University of California 

at Santa Barbara, 1979 

Work Experience 

Principal/President, DD&A, 

Inc. 

Senior Manager/ 

Environmental Planner, 

EMC Planning 

Assistant Planner, City of 

Fresno 

Intern, California 

Department of 

Fish and Game 

Professional Affiliations 

American Planning 

Association 

Association of 

Environmental 

Professionals (AEP) 

National Environmental 

Policy Act 

(NEPA) Professionals 

Planning & Conservation 

League 

Additional Affiliations/ 

Volunteer Experience 

Guest Lecturer/Speaker for 

Monterey College of 

Law, California State 

University 

Vice President, Board of 

Santa 

Lucia Conservancy 

Past Board Member of:  

Big Sur Land Trust 

Monterey Open Space 

Trust 

Monterey Federal Credit 

Union 

 

 Denise Duffy is founder and president of the company, and has 
extensive experience in public involvement, environmental 
analysis, project management, entitlement processing, and 
interagency coordination. Ms. Duffy is a leader in the field of 
land use planning and environmental and public policy in the 
Central Coast area.  She brings over 30 years of experience in 
CEQA and NEPA processing, public involvement, and project 
management for major infrastructure studies. Ms. Duffy has 
prepared, managed and participated in hundreds of 
environmental analyses and reports including EIRs, EAs, EISs and 
IS/MNDs. Ms. Duffy’s experience includes environmental reports and analysis that 
have been conducted for and/or been accepted by a variety of State and Federal 
agencies. Her experience qualifies her as project manager, development expert, and 
land use consultant for major facility and planning projects in California.  

Ms. Duffy has extensive experience managing and authoring environmental assessment 
documents for private and public developments and in the management of complex 
water resource planning processes for large transportation planning projects. Her recent 
project experience includes preparing EIRs under CEQA and Environmental 
Assessments under NEPA for major infrastructure projects for Caltrans, the Marina 
Coast Water District, the Santa Clara Valley Water District, the Monterey Peninsula 
Water Management District, the Department of Water Resources, the Fort Ord Reuse 
Authority, the Carmel Area Wastewater District, the Pebble Beach Community Services 
District, and other agencies. Past project experience includes preparation of 
environmental documentation for Department of Water Resources and California-
American Water Company. Ms. Duffy has extensive experience in public involvement, 
including the development of policy consensus in planning projects; she has worked in 
a variety of positions that require governmental cooperation and citizen involvement. 

Project Experience: 

Water Infrastructure Projects: 
 Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project, Marina Coast Water District 
 Eastern Distribution Water System Initial Study, Marina Coast Water District 
 Coastal Water Project, Regional Desalination Plant NEPA Compliance, for 

Marina Coast Water District and United States Bureau of Reclamation 
 Three Way Recycled Water Agreement, Marina Coast Water District 
 Regional Water and Reclamation Project EIR, former Fort Ord and Marina 
 Pure Water Monterey/Groundwater Replenishment Project, Monterey One Water 
 Holly Hills Initial Study/Notice of Exemption, Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community 

Services District 
 Well 52 and Tie In, CEQA Preparation, Santa Lucia Preserve Community Services 

District (CSD) 
 Lessalt Water Treatment Plant Initial Study, City of Hollister 
 San Lorenzo Water District Monitoring Work 
 San Clemente Dam EIR, State Department of Water Resources 
Wastewater Infrastructure Projects: 

 Outfall Brine Disposal Agreement, Marina Coast Water District 
 CAWD/PBCSD Wastewater Reclamation Project, Carmel Area Wastewater 

District and Pebble Beach Community Services District 
 CAWD Sphere of Influence Amendment, Carmel Area Wastewater District  
 Carmel Highlands Onsite Wastewater Management Plan, Initial Study, 

Monterey County Health Division 
 CAWD Reclamation Project EIR, Carmel Area Wastewater District 
 City of Hollister Wastewater Treatment Plant Negative Declaration 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 37 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

 
  Erin Harwayne, AICP 

Senior Environmental Scientist / Planner / Project Manager 

Education 

Bachelor of Science, Earth 
Systems Science & Policy 
(Marine and Coastal 
Ecology), California State 
University Monterey Bay, 
2000 

Continuing Education, Land 
Use/Natural Resources 
Topics, through University 
of California Extension 
Program and CLE 
International 

Work Experience 

Senior Environmental 
Scientist/ Planner/ Project 
Manager, DD&A 

Research Assistant, Monterey 
Bay National Marine 
Sanctuary 

Professional Affiliations 

Member, Association for 
Environmental 
Professionals 

Member, American Planning 
Association 

Member, California Native 
Plant Society 

Registrations/Certifications 

American Institute of 
Certified Planners (AICP) 

CEQA and NEPA Intensive 
Workshop Certifications 

Fairy and Tadpole Shrimp 
Identification Class and 
Service Test Certification  

PADI Certified SCUBA 
Diver 

Service Federal Recovery 
Permit No. TE-091857-0 - 
California tiger salamander 

DFG Research Permit for 
Listed Plant Species No.  
04-08-RP - Sand gilia 

DFG Scientific Collection 
Permit No. CS-007722 - 
Aquatic invertebrates 

 

 With over 18 years at DD&A, Erin Harwayne, AICP, has extensive 
experience in managing complex projects where interagency coordination, 
resource management, and public outreach were integrally important. Ms. 
Harwayne has managed and prepared numerous environmental documents 
in compliance with CEQA and NEPA for a wide variety of projects 
involving educational facilities, natural resources management, water 
supply and distribution, military base reuse, public works, and 
transportation and transit infrastructure. She has experience preparing all 
types and levels of environmental documents. Integrating her extensive 
background in ecology with land use planning, Ms. Harwayne utilizes an 
innovative approach toward solving complex environmental issues.  

Her technical capabilities are as follows: 

 Facilitating Public Meetings, Community Workshops, and other outreach programs to 
solicit public opinion for development and infrastructure projects. 

 Excellent communication and presentation skills 
 Adeptness in regulatory permitting processes, including Clean Water Act Section 401 

and 404, California Department of Fish and Wildlife (DFW) 1602 Lake and Stream 
Alteration Program, Federal Endangered Species Act Section 7 consultation and Section 
10 permit processes, California Endangered Species Act Section 2081 Incidental Take 
Permits, and Coastal Development Permits.  

 Management and preparation of environmental documents in accordance with CEQA 
and NEPA requirements and local, state, and federal policies and regulations. 

 Experience in conducting wetland delineations per United States Army Corps of 
Engineers (ACOE) and California Coastal Act criteria. 

 Expertise in the environmental review processes for the California State University and 
University of California systems  

 Highly skilled in technical writing and editing 
 Expertise in preparing scopes, managing sub-consultants, and keeping projects within 

established budgets and timeframes 

Project Experience:  

Water Facilities Projects: 

 Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project, Marina Coast Water District 
 Tank Design and Improvements Project EA/IS, MCWD  
 Water Supply Master Plan EIR, MCWD  
 Endangered Species Act Educational Workshop/Staff Training, MCWD  
 Recycled Water Project Biological Assessment – MCWD & U.S. Bureau of Reclamation  
 Monterey Bay Regional Desalination Project Biological Assessment – MCWD, Cal-

American Water, and U.S. Bureau of Reclamation   
 Castroville Storm Drain Master Plan Improvements Project – Monterey County 

Department of Public Works 

  



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 38 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

PAUL W. DAVIS, AIA 
Architect 

Licensed Architect 
C-15182 California 

1984 

 Bachelor of Architecture 
California Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo  

1982 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
Paul W. Davis has been a licensed architect for 35 years, first as a Project  
Architect for Davis, Jacoubowsky, Hawkins and Walker Associates, Inc. and now as a The managing partner 
in his own firm.  His experience with projects includes commercial, office, hotel/motel, industrial, institutional 
buildings, custom and multi-family residential.  With his background in all facets of design and construction on 
a variety of projects, he is capable of offering skills from Conceptual Development thru Construction 
Administration. 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
The Paul Davis Partnership, 1987-present, Managing Partner/Principal Architect 
Davis, Jacoubowsky, Hawkins & Walker Associates, Inc., 1982-1987, Project Architect 
California State University Monterey Bay, 2002-present, Consulting Campus Architect 
PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS 
American Institute of Architects, Monterey Bay 
1988-present 
Chapter,1993 
Director,1992 
President,1991 

Vice President,1990 
Treasurer,1989 
Secretary,1988 
MBAIA Honor Awards Chairman 

California Council, American Institute of Architects, Board Member, 1991-1993 
U.S. Green Building Council, Member , 2006-present 
Construction Specification Institute, Member, current  
International Conference Of Building Officials, Professional Member, current 
BOARDS/COMMISSIONS 
Planning Commission, City of Monterey 
Chair - 2002-2017, 2004-2005 , 2011-2012 
Vice Chair - 2003-2004, 2010-2011 
Historic Preservation Commission, City of Monterey 
Served as Chair & Vice Chair, 1992-2002 
General Plan Update Committee, City of Monterey, 2002-2004 
Old Monterey Business Association, Board Of Directors,1999-present 
Architectural Review Board,  Sand City, Chair, 1998-present 
Architectural Review Committee, City of Marina,1990-1998 
CIVIC/GOVERNMENTAL/ COMMUNITY SERVICE 
Leadership Monterey Peninsula,1982 
Director, Alumni Association,1987-1988 
President, Alumni Association,1983-1984 

Monterey Peninsula Jaycees,1983-1993 
Chairman of the Board,1987-1988 
President, 1986-1987 
Management Development Vice President, 1985-1986 
Membership Director, 1984-1985 

Mariposa Hall, Inc., 1988-1992 
Member, Board of Directors,1991-1992 
President 

Old Monterey Foundation, Member, present 
Pacific Grove Museum of Natural History, Board Member, 2013-present 
Monte Vista Elementary School – Site Council 
Chair, 1995-1999 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 39 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

PAUL W. DAVIS, AIA 
Architect  
 
Monterey Peninsula School District 
Regional Occupational Program Construction Advisory Committee 

Monterey Academy of Oceanographic Sciences,  
Monterey High School 
Board Member – Friends of MAOS, 2004- 2007  
Mayflower Presbyterian Church, City Of Pacific Grove 
Elder, 1962-present 
Chairman, Stewardship Committee, 2017-present 
Sunday School Coordinator, 1995 – 2001, 1989-2001, 1985-1987 
Cypress Coast Bank, Board of Directors,1994-1996 

Family Service Agency, Board of Directors,1995-1997, 1984-1990 
President, 1987-1988 
Vice President, 1986-1987 

United Way, 1984-1996 
Campaign Volunteer,1988-1994 
Member, Board of Directors,1989 
Campaign Chairperson,1988 
Assistant Campaign Chairperson 
PROJECT AWARDS 
Castroville Castro Plaza and Library 
2008 Public/Private Economic Development Partnership Award 
Monterey County Business Council 

Sherwood Village Affordable Seniors Community, Salinas for CHISPA 
2009 HAHB Best of 50+ Housing Award Finalist 

286 El Dorado Street The Paul Davis Partnership Office & Residence 
2002 Award of Merit, Mixed-Use Category 

Beach House Inn, Half Moon Bay 
1998 Gold Nugget Best in the West, Award of Merit – Best Specialty Project 

Watsonville Youth Center - Watsonville  
1994 Award of Merit from The Santa Cruz Organization for Progress and Euthenics  

Fort Ord Reuse Plan and Environmental Impact Report  
1997 Outstanding Planning Award, American Planning Association 

Greenfield Downtown Improvement Program   
-2001-02 Ahwahnee Award, Certificate of Merit presented by the Local Government Commission 
-2002 California Downtown Association “Crystal Eagle” Award presented to the Greenfield Redevelopment 
Agency, honoring achievement in physical improvement 

Monterey Regional Waste Management District New materials recovery facility (MRF) 1996 "Steel 
Building of the Year Award" by Systems Builders Association 

The Hotel Pacific - Monterey 
1988 Award of Merit from the American Institute of Architects Monterey Bay Chapter 
PROFESSIONAL AWARDS 
Outstanding Young Citizen of the Year 
Monterey Peninsula Jaycees,1988 

Key Member of the Year 
Monterey Peninsula Jaycees,1987-1988 



 

 
Design Services for GW-0112  

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station 
 

 

 

 

April 22, 2019 40 Schaaf & Wheeler 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER 

 

 

Appendix – Key Sub-Consultant Scopes 
Enclosed are the scopes of work for the Environmental, Structural and Electrical/Instrumentation sub-
consultants. 



 

       

Denise Duffy & Associates, Inc. 

 PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING  
 

Page | 1  

 
DD&A Proposal and Cost to Prepare the Environmental Documentation for the 

A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station Project 

 

INTRODUCTION 

The following work program to be performed by DD&A is based on our review of the applicable sections of 
local, state and federal environmental guidelines and existing materials. 
 
The scope of work includes the following tasks: 1) Project Initiation and Review of Available Data; 2) Field 
Surveys; 3) Preparation of Biological Resources Report; 4) Preparation of administrative Draft IS/MND; 
5) Response to Public Comments and Preparation of Final IS/MND; 6) Preparation of Mitigation Monitoring 
Report, and; 7) Attendance at Public Hearing. In addition, this scope includes two optional tasks: 
Preparation of Archaeological Report and AB 52 Consultation and Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions Modeling. 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

The project involves the replacement of the existing B/C booster pump station and existing sand tank with 
a new B/C booster pump station, modification to the wellfield chlorination system on Old County Road, and 
new A1/A2 storage tanks. The existing pump station and sand tank have been in use since the 1950s when 
they were initially built by the U.S. Army.   
 
MCWD has obtained easements from California State University Monterey Bay (CSUMB) to allow for the 
construction of the new A1/A2 tanks and the B/C booster pump station. Additionally, the existing B and C 
transmission mains will be repurposed for the project. The project proposes to convert part of the existing 
C zone transmission main to an A zone transmission main and to connect to the existing A zone piping in 
order to bypass the Sand Tank and existing booster pump station.  

WORK PLAN 

Task 1. Project Initiation and Review of Available Data 
 
DD&A will initiate the project by consulting with Schaaf & Wheeler and MCWD to obtain pertinent reports, 
project information, and needed design plans.  Project initiation will include the following tasks: 

 Review of additional available background information, 
 Conduct initial project management and subconsultant coordination, 
 Attend a kick-off meeting with the project team to discuss the project documentation approach and 

finalize the scope of work, 
 Identify data and documentation needs, 
 Confirm format, quantities and distribution of deliverables, and 
 Establish schedules and protocols for communication. 

 
DD&A assumes maximum use of available data for this analysis. Review of additional available background 
information will including the existing condition and impact evaluation information available from the Fort 
Ord Reuse Plan Final Environmental Impact Report (Volume Four) (1997), 1997 Installation-wide 



 

Multispecies Habitat Management Plan for Former Fort Ord, the most recent available draft Fort Ord Habitat 
Conservation Plan (HCP) and supplemental resource studies, recently completed area biological and traffic 
studies, and other available environmental studies and/or EIRs.  During this task, DD&A will complete 
review and assessment of the information already available and identify any outstanding data needs. 
 
Task 2. Field Surveys 
 
DD&A will visit the sites to assess the environmental conditions of the sites and its surroundings. DD&A will 
collect, compile, and refine data needed to complete the environmental documentation.  Where applicable, 
the data assembled will be incorporated into a Geographic Information System (GIS) database to assist in 
the environmental evaluation. Data gathered as part of this task will be reviewed and used to develop a 
comprehensive picture of the environmental resources that may be affected by the proposed project.   
 
NOTE: DD&A is conducting spring and summer survey efforts under a separate contact with MCWD due 
to need to complete survey efforts during the proper blooming periods.  The field review will provide an 
evaluation of general habitat features and environmental constraints at the sites and within the local vicinity.  
Thus, no costs for this effort are included in this Scope of Services.   
 
This task will include conducting other needed pre-survey research and reaching out as needed to 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), California Natural Diversity Data Base (CNDDB), 
California Native Plant Society (CNPS), local experts, and accessing other published and unpublished 
materials as related to CEQA and regulatory permitting requirements.  This task includes the identification 
of any sensitive habitats occurring within or adjacent to the project sites.   
 
Task 3. Preparation of Biological Resources Report  
 
DD&A’s Natural Resources Division (NRD) will prepare a biological resources analysis for the sites to 
document the potential impacts of the project on sensitive biological resources. This scope does not include 
costs for conducting protocol-level plant surveys for the proposed project as explained above in Task 2. The 
Biological Resources Report will include identification of known and potential sensitive biological resources 
within the project sites.  

The results of the biological investigation will be incorporated into a technical memorandum and summarized 
in the IS/MND. The Biological Resources Report will address the following items: 

 A description of the existing biological resources on and surrounding the sites.  
 Maps and descriptions of habitats and special-status plant and animal species known or anticipated 

to be present. 
 An assessment of the direct and indirect impacts to sensitive biological resources, including 

potential impacts from construction disturbance and maintenance activities. 
 Identification of mitigation for any significant biological impacts. 

 
This scope does not include protocol-level wildlife species surveys or a jurisdictional wetland delineation. 
 
Task 4 Preparation of Administrative Draft IS/MND  
 
DD&A will prepare an Administrative Draft IS/MND for the project in accordance with CEQA requirements. 
The IS/MND will be prepared using a format similar to Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines (2019).  The 
IS/MND will be the basis for the District; determination of whether the project qualifies for a Negative 
Declaration or a Mitigated Negative Declaration, or whether the preparation of an EIR is warranted.  
Thresholds of significance will be determined based on State, regional, or local criteria.   
 
The proposed IS/MND will contain the following sections: 
 



 

1. Project Description. Description of project background, location, elements, and objectives 
supplemented with graphics to illustrate the proposed improvements. This section will identify the 
characteristics of the Project and construction details. 

2. Environmental Setting, Impacts, and Mitigation. Description of the setting for each impact area, 
evaluation of impacts based on established CEQA thresholds, and identification of mitigation for 
significant impacts. 

3. Completed CEQA Checklist. Site survey and analysis to identify the significance of impacts for each 
impact area. 

4. Graphics. Preparation of appropriate graphics and tables to present the environmental analysis. 
5. References. Identification of all sources and persons contacted during preparation of the document. 
 
The IS/MND will address all issue areas identified in the most current version of the CEQA Environmental 
Checklist, including aesthetics, agricultural resources, air quality, biological resources, cultural/tribal 
resources, energy, geology/soils, greenhouse gas emissions, hazardous materials, land use/planning, 
mineral resources, population/housing, public services, recreation, transportation, utilities, and wildfire. The 
primary areas of analysis are summarized below. 
 
Aesthetics: The IS/MND will describe the visual and aesthetic quality of the project area and assess 
potential visual impacts from the construction of the new and replacement facilities on nearby public 
viewpoints (e.g., along adjacent public roads). This section will describe the physical characteristics of the 
new facilities and identify landscape screening or other measures proposed to minimize visual effects. The 
IS/MND will address before and after views of the removal area. 
 
Air Quality/Greenhouse Gas Emissions: The IS/MND will address potential air quality (dust/exhaust) 
impacts occurring during construction activities associated with the project. This evaluation will consider 
impacts to nearby sensitive receptors, if applicable. The IS/MND will also discuss increases in car and truck 
traffic on the immediate local roadway system during construction. Mitigation will be identified to reduce the 
effects of construction activities on affected sensitive receptors. This task will involve the identification, 
collection and evaluation of applicable information from Monterey Bay Air Resources Board (MBARD), as 
well as State resources related to GHGs, for example, the California Climate Change Portal.  It is assumed 
that no emission modeling for proposed project land use changes will be required. However, should it be 
necessary after consultation with MBARD, DD&A will use MBARD-recommended methodology (i.e., 
CalEEMod), which uses estimates of future land use and other activities, and provides an analysis of both 
air quality and GHG emissions. A discussion of the proposed project’s consistency with State 
implementation plans (SIPs), air quality management plans (AQMPs), and climate action plans (CAPs) will 
be provided.    
 
Biological Resources: As discussed in Task 3, above, DD&A’s NRD will prepare a Biological Resources 
Report for the project to determine the potential impacts of the project on vegetation and wildlife. The results 
of the biological investigation, including any proposed mitigation to reduce impacts to vegetation and wildlife 
to a less than significant level, will be summarized in the IS/MND.  
 
Cultural/Tribal Resources: Under Assembly Bill (AB) 52 requirements, tribal consultation should be 
completed by the MCWD, as the CEQA lead agency, or through an authorized agent of the lead agency. 
DD&A will work with a cultural consultant to complete consultation per AB 52 requirements. DD&A will 
contact the California Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) for a review of their Sacred Lands 
File.  The NAHC will determine if any NAHC-listed Native American sacred lands are located within or 
adjacent to the project area.  In addition, the NAHC will provide a list of Native American contacts for the 
project that they believe should be contacted for additional information.  DD&A will provide this contact list 
to the District to facilitate its obligations under AB 52, as applicable. Under this task, DD&A will provide the 
District with an agency and tribal list as well as draft coordination letters that can be used to reach out to 
agencies and tribes that might have input into the environmental review process prior to the environmental 
analysis being finalized.  NOTE: These letters will need to be sent out by the District on MCWD letterhead. 
This section will also summarize the results of the Native American notification and consultation per the 
requirements of AB 52.  
 



 

In addition, this task assumes all the cultural/tribal resources information required for the proposed project 
sites is covered under the Fort Ord Base Reuse Plan and a separate new Cultural Resources Report will 
not be required. The findings of the Fort Ord Base Reuse including recommendations for proposed 
mitigation to reduce impacts to cultural/tribal resources to a less-than-significant level, will be summarized 
in the IS/MND. 
 
An optional task is included below for a formal Cultural Resources Report for the project should initial 
consultation and findings determine this to be warranted.  
 
Geology: The IS/MND will describe the geologic characteristics of the project sites and area, based on the 
geologic study prepared for the project and provided to DD&A by MCWD. This section will identify the 
potential geologic hazards at the tank site such as erosion, slope instability, seismic effects, and soil 
hazards. Mitigation will be identified based on the results and recommendations of the geologic analysis. 
 
Hazardous Materials: The IS/MND will utilize the information in the Army’s Finding of Suitability from the 
Early Transfer Report (FOSET 2) to describe the potential for contamination on the sites and propose 
mitigation consistent with previous documentation. This scope assumes the FOSET 2 will be adequate for 
the analysis and a Phase 1 report will not be required. 
 
Hydrology/Water Quality: Given the relatively small size of the project sites, no long-term adverse impacts 
are anticipated to hydrology and water quality. The project includes new drainage improvements that will 
be described in the IS. The existing drainage regime on the sites and area will be described. Best 
management practices (BMPs) will be identified to minimize water quality impacts during construction 
activities. 
 
Traffic/Transportation: The IS/MND will analyze temporary impacts to traffic caused by construction on 
Imjin Parkway and California/5th Avenue, and propose mitigation, if needed, to reduce any impacts to a 
less than significant level. 
 
Land Use: The majority of the project consists of a paved parking lot within the CSUMB Campus.  The 
project will require removing several trees in a landscaped area on the edge of the lot.  Off-site pipeline 
work will affected paved roadways and adjacent unpaved areas, because the existing pipelines are 
generally installed parallel to but outside of paved roadways.   The project sites are also within the former 
Fort Ord. Land use jurisdictions and applicable plans and policies will be addressed in this section. 
 
Other CEQA Requirements: The IS/MND will also address all other CEQA-required issues such as 
agricultural/forestry resources, energy, mineral resources, public services, utilities, wildfire, mandatory 
findings of significance, and references. 
 
DD&A will submit five (5) hard copies and one electronic copy of the Administrative Draft IS/MND to Schaaf 
& Wheeler and MCWD for review and comment. Comments and revisions on the Administrative Draft 
IS/MND will be incorporated into the Public Review Draft IS/MND. Upon authorization, DD&A will submit 
ten (10) hardcopies and (10) copies on compact disk (CD) of the public review Draft IS/MND to MCWD for 
the mandatory 30-day public review period. If it is determined that the document has regional or statewide 
affect and the State Clearinghouse is used for distribution purposes, fifteen (15) of the Draft Initial Study 
copies will be provided to the State Office of Planning and Research by the District or by DD&A on behalf 
of the District.    
 
Task 5. Response to Public Comments and Preparation of Final IS/MND 
 
Following the 30-day public review period, DD&A, in consultation with the project team and MCWD, will 
prepare written responses to any comments received on the IS/MND. Written responses will be included, 
along with any necessary revisions, in the Final IS/MND. This proposal assumes ten (10) hours of staff time 
to complete the responses to comments. Additional work effort to respond to comments in excess of this 
estimate would require a budget amendment. 



 

 
Task 6. Preparation of Mitigation Monitoring Report  
 
DD&A will prepare a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) in accordance with CEQA 
(Section 21081.6). DD&A will follow applicable guidelines for form/content. A Draft MMRP will be submitted 
to MCWD for review and comment, prior to preparation of the Final MMRP. 
 
Task 7. Meetings/Attendance at Public Hearings  
 
This scope of work assumes attendance at five meetings at District offices (within the scope and costs of 
the previous tasks) and attendance at two public District Board Meetings for Board approval of the project, 
MMRP and permitting discussed below for CDFW  If requested, DD&A can be available to attend additional 
hearing(s) on a time-and-materials basis. 
 
Task 8. Additional Permitting and Coordination Tasks 
 
After approval and development of the MMRP, DD&A will work with the design engineer and MCWD to 
ensure that the contract documents including Plans and Specifications incorporate  
all applicable permit conditions and applicable MMRP requirements.  
 
This scope of work assumes the development of the above MMRP. DD&A will also assist the District in 
filing a CEQA notice of determination with the State Clearinghouse and with the County Clerk.  
 
While the RFP mentioned obtaining a CDFW Biological Opinion (BO), DD&A biologists noted that if a CDFW 
permit is required, it would be an incidental take permit. DD&A will identify the resources in the field to be 
avoided in order to try and avoid permit under CDFW- but such avoidance may not be feasible.   
 
For this task, DD&A will conduct required studies and consultation to confirm if the project will affect species 
including initial consultation with CDFW (Request for California Endangered Species Act coordination). If 
CDFW determines that the project is likely to result in take of state listed species, DD&A will prepare 
required application materials and consultation needed for a state incidental take permit. The entire process 
includes CDFW review to determine that the application for a take permit is complete and additional 
requests for information for CDFW to deem the application complete. DD&A will oversee the permit process 
with CDFW and work with this agency to process and issue the permit. DD&A will develop measures to 
minimize the take of species covered by the permit (Covered Species) and to mitigate the impacts caused 
by the take; this will be set forth in one or more attachments to the permit.   
 
In addition, DD&A services for with staff from CSUMB, the owners of the project sites, the City of Marina 
and any local or state agencies related to the CEQA process is also included. These coordination tasks 
assume attendance at two additional meetings at District offices. If requested, DD&A can be available to 
attend hearing(s) on a time-and-materials basis. 
 
Task 9 Environmental Compliance During Construction 
 
This scope of work DD&A staff will provide environmental compliance services during the construction 
period that will include the following steps and product delivery: Project Initiation, an Environmental 
Compliance Plan and Mitigation Matrix, Employee Education Program, Pre-Construction Biological 
Surveys, California Department of Fish and Wildlife Memorandum of Understanding, Revegetation and 
Rare Plant Restoration Plan, Construction Monitoring, Pre-construction and Construction Progress 
Meetings, Contractor Documentation Review, Compliance Tracking Documentation and Memoranda.  
 
The tasks are further described according to project phases, including pre-construction, construction, and 
post construction.  The tasks are related to ensuring all permit conditions and MMRP requirements are fully 
integrated into construction plans or final specifications to ensure compliance with the MMRP, as well as 



 

ensuring environmental compliance associated with the permit conditions and individual MMRPs from other 
permits applicable to the individual project components. 

OPTIONAL TASKS 

Cultural Resources Record Search and Literature Review 
 
DD&A and its cultural consultant will perform a records search for the project area at the Northwest 
Information Center (NWIC) at Sonoma State University (the regional office of the California Historical 
Resources Information System).  A cultural resources letter report will be prepared to summarize results of 
the cultural resources background research and records search.  The report will be used for the cultural 
resource assessment in the IS/MND and to provide guidance on mitigation measures as needed.    
 
Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Emissions Modeling 
 
It is assumed that no emission modeling for proposed project land use changes will be required. However, 
should it be necessary after consultation with MBARD, DD&A will use MBARD-recommended methodology 
(i.e., CalEEMod), which uses estimates of future land use and other activities, and provides an analysis of 
both air quality and GHG emissions.    

PREDICTED PROJECT CHALLENGES 

The unique nature of this project and constraints of the project sites have been factored into this scope, 
budget and schedule. DD&A understands that the sites contain one or more populations of protected Sand 
Gilia, and we therefore recommend that survey work be commenced early in the process in order to develop 
a full understanding of the project sites and any constraints that may be posed by the presence of this 
protected plant species. DD&A will also work closely with MCWD and Schaaf & Wheeler in order to stay on 
the agreed-upon schedule for project completion. Close collaboration and communication will be an integral 
part of this project as design and environmental will be worked on concurrently.  
 

SCHEDULE AND COST ESTIMATE 

DD&A will prepare the IS/MND for the project approximately seven to eight (7- 8) weeks after receipt of 
authorization to proceed and all project information has been received. This includes a six (6) weeks for 
completion of the AB 52 consultation and cultural resources study.  
 
The cost for preparation of the IS/MND, permitting and environmental compliance is included on the  
attached spreadsheet. All work will be billed monthly based on tasks completed. Expenses associated with 
the environmental services include, but are not limited to, mileage, graphics, delivery, and copying. 
 
Construction timing for mitigation compliance and construction monitoring is assumed to be a total of 18 
months. 



 
 

 

May 13, 2019 

Mr. Andrew A. Sterbenz, P.E. 
Schaaf & Wheeler Consulting Civil Engineers 
3 Quail Run Circle, Suite 101 
Salinas, CA 93907 
 
 

Subject: Marina Coast Water District Design Services for GW-0112 A1/A2 
Reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station; 
Structural, Electrical, Instrumentation and Controls Engineering 
Design 
(TJCAA Project No. 119038) 

Dear Andy: 
 
The purpose of this letter is to provide a scope for work for: 

 
• Structural (STRU) Engineering  
• Instrumentation, Controls, and Electrical (ICE) Engineering  

 
as requested by Schaaf & Wheeler Consulting Civil Engineers (S&W) for the Marina 
Coast Water District Design Services for GW-0112 A1/A2 Reservoirs and B/C 
Booster Pump Station (Project). This letter summarizes the scope of work that will 
be provided by TJC and Associates, Inc. (TJCAA). Please review, and if acceptable, 
this letter may serve as the basis for a Scope of Work to be included in an 
agreement for engineering services. 
 

Project Understanding 

Marine Coast Water District (MCWD) provides water service and wastewater 
collection service to approximately 40,000 residents in and adjacent to the District 
of Marina and the former Fort Ord military facility. MCWD currently pumps all its 
water supply from groundwater wells within the Salinas Valley Groundwater Basin. 
MCWD conveys its effluent to Monterey One Water through their interceptor 
network for treatment.  

MCWD obtained an easement from California State University Monterey Bay 
(CSUMB) and is looking to construct two welded steel potable water reservoirs and 
an associated booster pump station. Specific elements that are included within the 
Scope of Work defined below are: 

• Development of structural performance specification and conceptual layout 
drawings for two 1.6 MG welded steel water tanks. 

• Development of minimum foundation and anchorage design requirements 
• Structural design and drawings for concrete masonry unit booster pump 

station. 
o The back wall of the pump station may be required to support a full 

height surcharge. The retaining elements of the pump station will be 
concrete. 



 

HTTPS://TJCAA.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/PROJECTFILES/SHARED DOCUMENTS/TJCAA - 2019 PROJECTS/119038 - S&W, MCWD TANKS AND PS/119038 - 
SCOPE OF WORK R2 (2019-05-13).DOCX 
05/13/19 
Page 2 of 12 

o The roof of the pump station will be strong enough to support the 
motors when pulled through a roof hatch. 

• Structural design and drawings of a retaining wall running along the north 
edge of the parking lot from 6th street to the pump station. The anticipated 
maximum height of the retaining wall is 4 feet. 

• Electrical design and technical assistance for new electrical distribution at 
the tanks and booster pump station. 

• Establishment of a SCADA/RTU system and telemetry for the tanks, 
booster pump station and security, to be integrated with MCWD’s central 
SCADA infrastructure. 

I. Scope of Work 

Task 1. Preliminary Design 

Task 1.1. Review of Existing Documents 

TJCAA will review District Code and Engineering Procedures, Guidelines and 
Design Requirements, other jurisdictional codes within the District’s boundaries 
and other applicable local, state and federal laws and regulations that are directly 
associated with the Project. TJCAA’s review will be limited to codes and standards 
impacting the A1/A2 welded steel water reservoirs and B/C Booster Pump Station. 

Task 1.2. Develop Basis of Design Report (BODR) 

TJCAA Electrical and Structural personnel will provide descriptive narratives for 
inclusion in a Basis of Design Report authored by S&W. 

Task 1.3. Coordination with CSUMB 

TJCAA personnel do not anticipate participating or providing materials in support 
of CSUMB outreach. This activity has not been included in the Scope of Work 
detailed here or the Design Fee quoted. 

Task 1.4. Construction Sequencing 

TJCAA personnel will be available to discuss and answer questions relating to 
construction sequencing. However direct involvement in the development of a 
work product for this activity has not been included within the Scope of Work 
detailed here or the Design Fee quoted. 



 

HTTPS://TJCAA.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/PROJECTFILES/SHARED DOCUMENTS/TJCAA - 2019 PROJECTS/119038 - S&W, MCWD TANKS AND PS/119038 - 
SCOPE OF WORK R2 (2019-05-13).DOCX 
05/13/19 
Page 3 of 12 

Task 2. Design 

Task 2.1. Design Submittals 

TJCAA will provide engineering and drafting services necessary to define the 
elements of the Project that are included within its scope of work. TJCAA’s design 
role for the tanks is limited to developing a performance specification for the 
construction of two welded steel tanks. Conceptual drawings of the tank, 
foundation and anchorage (if required) will be developed. Minimum sizes will be 
provided for the contractor along with requirements for a deferred submittal for 
the tank and associated appurtenances. 

Specific elements are defined above in the Project Understanding. Submittals will 
be provided to S&W in the following packages: 

● 30% design package 

● 60% design package 

● 90% design package 

● Draft 100% design package 

● Final design package 

Each design package will incorporate appropriate S&W comments based on 
previous submittals and will update presented information consistent with the 
level of completion for that submittal. Design submittals will include elements 
defined in the table below. 

 

Deliverables Included in Submittals 

Submittal 
Calculations 

(PDF) 

Design 
Drawings1 

(PDF) 
Specs3 
(PDF) 

Engineer’s 
Opinion of 

Probable Cost 
(PDF) 

Signed 
Copies4 
(PDF) 

30%  ✓ 2, 5  ✓  
60%  ✓ ✓ ✓  
90%  ✓ ✓ ✓  
100%  ✓ ✓ ✓  
Final ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 

Notes: 
1. Drawings will be provided in half-size (11 x 17) PDF format and delivered via e-mail. 
2. STRU submittal includes Major Plans, Primary Sections, Standard Details and General Notes. 
3. Specifications will be provided in traditional CSI format using MS-Word and delivered via e-

mail. 
4. Drawings will be provided in full-size (22 x 34) PDF format, electronically stamped and signed 

and delivered via e-mail. 
5. ICE submittal includes Electrical Single-Line Diagrams, Area Plans including placement of 

major equipment, Standard Details, and General Notes. 
 



 

HTTPS://TJCAA.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/PROJECTFILES/SHARED DOCUMENTS/TJCAA - 2019 PROJECTS/119038 - S&W, MCWD TANKS AND PS/119038 - 
SCOPE OF WORK R2 (2019-05-13).DOCX 
05/13/19 
Page 4 of 12 

Task 2.1.1.  Anticipated List of Specifications 
 
Structural: 

• 01612 – Seismic Design Criteria 
• 01614 – Wind Design Criteria 
• 02313 – Controlled Low-Strength Material  
• 03100 – Concrete Forms and Accessories 
• 03150 – Concrete Joints and Accessories 
• 03200 – Concrete Reinforcement 
• 03300 – Cast-in-Place Concrete 
• 03305 – Electrical and Instrumentation Duct Encasement Concrete 
• 03350 – Concrete Finishing 
• 03600 – Grouts 
• 04200 – Masonry 
• 05120 – Structural Steel 
• 05210 – Steel Joists 
• 05310 – Steel Deck 
• 05500 – Miscellaneous Metals 
• 05513 – Metal Ladders and Accessories 
• 33160 – Above Ground Water Utility Storage Tank (Structural 

Requirements ONLY) 
 

Instrumentation, Controls, and Electrical:  
Division 13 – Instrumentation and Control System Specifications 

• 13400 – Common Work Results Process Instrumentation and Controls 
• 13420 – Control Panels and Hardware 
• 13421 – Process Control System Hardware and Software 
• 13422 – Radio Communications Hardware 
• 13430 – Field Instrument Index 
• 13431 – Analytical Devices 
• 13432 – Flow Measurement 
• 13433 – Level Measurement 
• 13434 – Pressure Measurement 
• 13435 – Temperature Measurement 
• 13482 – Process Control Descriptions 
 

Division 16 – Electrical Specifications 
• 16000 – Common Work Results for Electrical 
• 16060 – Grounding System 
• 16080 – Electrical System Analyses and Commission Field Testing 
• 16120 – Low Voltage Conductors and Cables 
• 16130 – Raceway and Boxes 
• 16140 – Wiring Devices 
• 16145 – Miscellaneous Electrical Equipment 
• 16220 – Low Voltage Motors 
• 16230 – Standby Diesel Engine Driven Generators 
• 16260 – Variable Frequency Drives Controllers 
• 16440 – Switchboards 
• 16441 – Panelboards 
• 16442 – Motor Control Centers 
• 16460 – Low Voltage Distribution Transformers 
• 16500 – Lighting Systems 
• 16600 – Underground Raceway System 



 

HTTPS://TJCAA.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/PROJECTFILES/SHARED DOCUMENTS/TJCAA - 2019 PROJECTS/119038 - S&W, MCWD TANKS AND PS/119038 - 
SCOPE OF WORK R2 (2019-05-13).DOCX 
05/13/19 
Page 5 of 12 

 
Task 2.1.2. Anticipated Sheet List 

 
Structural: 

• GS-1 – General Notes 
• GS-2 – General Notes, Legend, and Abbreviations 
• GS-3 – General Notes, Special Inspection 
• GS-4 – Standard Details – Concrete I 
• GS-5 – Standard Details – Concrete II 
• GS-6 – Standard Details – Masonry 
• GS-7 – Standard Details – Ladders and Misc. Metals 
• GS-8 – Standard Details – Grating 
• GS-9 – Standard Details – Cover Plates 
• S-1 – Booster Pump Station – Foundation Plan 
• S-2 – Booster Pump Station – Floor Plan 
• S-3 – Booster Pump Station – Roof Plan 
• S-4 – Booster Pump Station – Primary Sections 
• S-5 – Booster Pump Station – Sections & Details 
• S-6 – Reservoirs A1/A2 – Plans and Details 
• S-7 – Reservoirs A1/A2 – Details 
• S-8 – Reservoirs A1/A2 – Ladder Details 
• S-9 – Retaining wall details. 

 
Instrumentation, Controls and Electrical: 

• GE-1 Electrical Legends and Abbreviations 
• GE-2 Electrical Standard Details I 
• GE-3 Electrical Standard Details II 
• E-1 Electrical Single-Line Diagram 
• E-2 Electrical Equipment Elevations and Schedules 
• E-3 A1/A2 Reservoirs Plan Drawing 
• E-4 B/C Booster Pump Station - Power and Signal Plan 
• E-5 B/C Booster Pump Station - Lighting Plan 
• E-6 Interconnection Details 
• E-7 Control Schematics I 
• E-8 Control Schematics II  
• E-9 Control Panel Elevations 
• E-10 Communications Block Diagram 

 
• GI-1 I&C Legend and Abbreviations 1 of 2 

 
• GI-2 I&C Legend and Abbreviations 2 of 2 

 
• GI-3 I&C Standard Details 

 
• I-1 P&ID Distribution System 

a 
• I-2 P&ID Disinfection System Modifications 

 



 

HTTPS://TJCAA.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/PROJECTFILES/SHARED DOCUMENTS/TJCAA - 2019 PROJECTS/119038 - S&W, MCWD TANKS AND PS/119038 - 
SCOPE OF WORK R2 (2019-05-13).DOCX 
05/13/19 
Page 6 of 12 

Task 2.2. Project Management 

TJCAA will provide Project Management associated with its elements of the 
project, including but not limited to the following: 

• Coordination with S&W throughout the duration of the project as well as 
Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) activities for project 
deliverables 

• Management of team activities consistent with the direction from S&W in 
order to meet project schedule and budgets 

Task 3. Bid Period Assistance 

TJCAA engineers will be available to answer questions and clarify issues associated 
with aspects of the design within its Scope of Work. If required, a representative 
of TJCAA can be present at the pre-bid meeting and/or site walk-through. TJCAA 
does not anticipate any involvement in bid evaluations; however, TJCAA will be 
available for consultation on an as-needed basis.  

Task 4. Engineering Services During Construction (ESDC) 

Task 4.1. Construction Meetings 

TJCAA personnel do not anticipate attending the pre-construction meeting and 
subsequent periodic construction meetings. For budgeting purposes, TJCAA has 
assumed three (3) special, as-needed Structural observational field visits and 
three (3) Electrical, Instrumentation and Controls observation field visits 
associated with the design elements within its Scope of Work. 

Task 4.2. Requests for Information 

TJCAA personnel will provide written answers to Requests for Information (RFIs) 
including sketches and/or drawing revisions as appropriate. For budgeting 
purposes, TJCAA has included seven (7) Structural and twenty (20) Electrical, 
Instrumentation and Controls RFIs associated with the design elements within its 
Scope of Work.  

Task 4.3. Contract Document Clarifications (CDCs) 

TJCAA personnel will provide written answers to CDCs including sketches and/or 
drawing revisions as appropriate. For budgeting purposes, TJCAA has included two 
(2) Structural and two (2) Electrical, Instrumentation and Controls CDCs 
associated with the design elements within its Scope of Work.  

Task 4.4. Submittals 

TJCAA personnel will review shop drawings and catalog data and other materials 
that the contractor is required to submit in accordance with Contract Documents. 
For budgeting purposes, TJCAA has included twelve (12) Structural and thirty (30) 
Electrical, Instrumentation and Controls discipline-specific Submittals, with a 35% 
resubmission rate, within its Scope of Work.  

Task 4.5. Construction Change Orders 

TJCAA personnel will provide written answers to Construction Change Orders, 
including sketches and/or drawing revisions as appropriate. For budgeting 
purposes, TJCAA has included one (1) Structural and three (3) Electrical, 
Instrumentation and Controls Change Orders associated with the design elements 
within its Scope of Work.  



 

HTTPS://TJCAA.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/PROJECTFILES/SHARED DOCUMENTS/TJCAA - 2019 PROJECTS/119038 - S&W, MCWD TANKS AND PS/119038 - 
SCOPE OF WORK R2 (2019-05-13).DOCX 
05/13/19 
Page 7 of 12 

Task 5. Record Drawings and Project Close-Out 

At the completion of the construction phase, TJCAA will incorporate mark-ups 
provided by S&W into the design drawings to reflect changes made in the field. It 
is anticipated that one set of clear mark-ups will be provided by S&W and all 
necessary information for the development of Record Drawings will be included in 
said mark-ups.  

II. Assumptions 

The scope of work detailed above is based on TJCAA’s current understanding of 
the project requirements and is based on the following assumptions. 
 

1. General 

• Copies of Record Drawings of the facilities will be provided to TJCAA 
for reference. 

• Preliminary design will not include any formal electrical discussion. 
However, input for the electrical cost elements will be provided to 
S&W for the preliminary Opinion of Probable Costs. 

• Formal City or County permit review, Title 24 energy calculations, 
and completion of forms will not be required. 

• Design documents for civil, mechanical, and other disciplines will be 
completed by S&W.  

• AutoCAD site and building plan drawings in “.DWG” format will be 
provided by S&W suitable for use as background files. 

• Design will comply with the requirements of the 2016 California 
Building Code. 

• Design fees quoted assume that the design portion of the project 
will commence in 2019 and be completed in the first quarter of 
2020. 

• ESDC fees quoted assume that construction will commence in 2020 
and be completed in 2021. 

• Drawings will be provided in TJCAA’s standard format, developed 
using AutoCAD. 

• The title block will be provided by S&W in AutoCAD format suitable 
for use as a Reference File. 

• TJCAA assumes that geotechnical information is available for the 
Project area and will be provided to TJCAA before commencement of 
the work. 

• Drawings will be provided to S&W in electronic format for 

publishing and distribution by S&W. Printing costs are not 
included in this proposal.  

• Special foundations systems (e.g., piers/piles) are not required and 
are not included within the Scope of Work or Design Fee quoted. 

• Existing communication medium is available to integrate new 
control and monitoring equipment to the existing SCADA system. 



 

HTTPS://TJCAA.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/PROJECTFILES/SHARED DOCUMENTS/TJCAA - 2019 PROJECTS/119038 - S&W, MCWD TANKS AND PS/119038 - 
SCOPE OF WORK R2 (2019-05-13).DOCX 
05/13/19 
Page 8 of 12 

• TJCAA will submit new service requests forms, calculations, and 
drawings suitable for PG&E to begin the service request effort. Any 
payments directly to PG&E for engineering effort or service fees 
shall be paid by MCWD. 

• Process control changes for the Ord Well fields will be included to 
modify the control reservoir from the Intermediate Reservoir to the 
new tanks. Work shall include revisions to process controls and 
communication schemes to support the change in controls. 

• Process control changes will be incorporated to modify the 
hypochlorite dosing of raw water from the Ord Wells. Changes shall 
include new flowmeter and development of new control strategy to 
control pump dosing based on total raw water flow. 

• New P&IDs for distribution system and disinfection system 
modifications will be developed in draft by Schaaf & Wheeler. Draft 
P&IDs will be completed to final by TJCAA  to incorporate equipment 
tagging, instrumentation, and control features. 

• Communication scheme will be modified to use the Intermediate 
Reservoir as a repeater site for the new tanks’ communication link 
to SCADA Central. Work shall include an on site radio path survey to 
confirm signal strength between the new tanks and the 
Intermediate Reservoir and from the Intermediate Reservoir to 
SCADA Central. Recommendations from the radio path survey are 
assumed to confirm that suitable communication quality can be 
achieved between all sites by increasing antennae mast height 
and/or changing the antennae mast location on the property. 
Development of a new repeater site at a new location is not 
included. 

• Field radio path survey has been included based on an allowance 
figure of $15,000 for site investigations and communication 
viability. 

• Material Specifications will conform to traditional CSI format, 
developed in MS-Word and will be provided to S&W via e-mail. 

• Attendance at one (1) kick-off by TJCAA Engineering Staff at S&W’s 
offices (or Project site) is included. All other meetings are assumed 
to occur via teleconference. 

• Design calculations will be provided with the Bid Documents. 
Interim design calculations will not be provided. 



 

HTTPS://TJCAA.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/PROJECTFILES/SHARED DOCUMENTS/TJCAA - 2019 PROJECTS/119038 - S&W, MCWD TANKS AND PS/119038 - 
SCOPE OF WORK R2 (2019-05-13).DOCX 
05/13/19 
Page 9 of 12 

 

2. Items that are NOT included within the Scope of Work 

• The following items were identified within MCWD’s Request for 
Proposals, and are not include within the Scope of Work delineated 
herein or the Design Fee quoted: 

o Coordination and outreach to California State University 
Monterey Bay 

o Project maps from GIS data and other publicly available 
information 

o Preliminary investigations for the purpose of confirming 
water system zone configurations, either during or post 
construction 

o Assistance with preliminary siting confirmation and layout of 
the Project 

o An update of the entire MCWD central SCADA system  

o Site Survey and/or mapping 

o Geotechnical evaluations 

o Environmental and CEQA assessments and reports 

o Field investigations and assessments of existing facilities for 
reconfiguration 

o Stakeholder and public outreach 

o Environmental compliance activities during construction 

• Responding to questions and/or comments generated during the 
permitting process or generated by the local jurisdiction 

• Specifications addressing the following: 

o Backfill materials 

o Precast concrete structures 

o Underdrain system 

o Wall drainage materials and geotextiles 

o Damp-proofing/waterproofing of concrete 

o Sealants 

o Paints and coatings for corrosion protection 

● Engineering services in support of miscellaneous civil, mechanical 
and piping, etc. 

● Assistance with obtaining construction permitting 

● Construction inspections, including but not limited to Special 
Inspections 

● Supervision of construction 

● Material testing 



 

HTTPS://TJCAA.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/PROJECTFILES/SHARED DOCUMENTS/TJCAA - 2019 PROJECTS/119038 - S&W, MCWD TANKS AND PS/119038 - 
SCOPE OF WORK R2 (2019-05-13).DOCX 
05/13/19 
Page 10 of 12 

● Maintaining and/or updating Construction Drawings and documents 
with changes made during construction 

III. Additional Services 

No “Additional Services” are anticipated at this time. Should “Additional Services” 
be identified, TJCAA will perform such “Additional Services” only if mutually 
agreed to in writing by S&W and TJCAA. 

Moreover, TJCAA does not anticipate any involvement and/or support for 
Environmental Documentation filing activities. These activities have not been 
included within the Scope of Work detailed here or the Design Fee quoted. 

IV. Deliverables 

The Consultant will provide the items shown in the “Deliverables Included in 

Submittals” table above to S&W as part of this agreement. 
 

TJCAA will provide monthly project progress reports to S&W, including budget 
status, schedule status, and summary of key activities performed during the 
billing period, for inclusion in the Project’s overall status report. 

V. Schedule 

TJCAA will coordinate the design schedule with S&W before the start of design.  

TJCAA has assumed that: 

• Predesign begins in 2019 and is completed in 2019 
• Design begins in 2019 and is completed in the first quarter 2020 
• ESDC begins in 2020 and is completed in 2021 



 

HTTPS://TJCAA.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/PROJECTFILES/SHARED DOCUMENTS/TJCAA - 2019 PROJECTS/119038 - S&W, MCWD TANKS AND PS/119038 - 
SCOPE OF WORK R2 (2019-05-13).DOCX 
05/13/19 
Page 12 of 12 

TJCAA will invoice services on a monthly basis. 

TJCAA looks forward to working with S&W on this project. Please feel free to call 
me at (916) 853-9658 should you have any questions or require any additional 
information. 

 

Sincerely, 

Terence Cavanagh, S.E. – S3107 
Senior Vice President 
TJC and Associates, Inc. 
 
 
file: 119038 - 1.02 



Contract No. 2017-67 

Page 1 of 2 

 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

BETWEEN MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT  

AND SCHAAF & WHEELER FOR 

ON-CALL GENERAL, CIP, AND DEVELOPMENT  

ENGINEERING SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 5  

 
 
 Article II - Scope of Services shall be per the attached proposal for GW-0112 
A1/A2 Reservoirs and Booster Pump Station. 
 
 Article IV – The Work under this AMENDMENT  is scheduled for Completion by 
December 31, 2021. 
 
 Article IX - Payment shall be per the attached Proposal for A1/A2 Reservoirs and 
Booster Pump Station on a time and expense basis not to exceed $868,905. 
 
 All other articles of the November 20, 2017 AGREEMENT FOR ON-CALL 
GENERAL, CIP AND DEVELOPMENT ENGINEERING SUPPORT SERVICES 
remain the same. 
 
 OWNER and ENGINEER have caused this Agreement to be amended by 
representatives duly authorized to act, all as of the effective date of __________________. 
 
 
Prepared by:  __________________________ Date_____________________________ 
 (DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE) 
 
 
ENGINEER OWNER 
Schaaf & Wheeler Marina Coast Water District 
 
By ________________________________        By ______________________________ 
 
Title____________________________ Title: General Manager  
 
Date  _____________________________       Date ____________________________ 
 

 

  



Contract No. 2017-67 

Page 2 of 2 

 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

BETWEEN MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT  

AND SCHAAF & WHEELER FOR 

ON-CALL GENERAL, CIP, AND DEVELOPMENT  

ENGINEERING SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
 
 

AMENDMENT NO.  5 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Proposal for A1/A2 Reservoirs and Booster Pump Station 

 



 
Marina Coast Water District 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
 

Agenda Item: 11-G      Meeting Date: May 20, 2019 
 
Prepared By:  Michael Wegley         Approved By: Keith Van Der Maaten 
 
Agenda Title: Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-32 to Approve a  

Tree Replacement Funding Agreement between Marina Coast Water District and 
California State University at Monterey Bay 

 
Staff Recommendation: The Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 2019-32 approving the Tree 
Replacement Funding Agreement to fulfill a requirement of the Recycled Water Temporary Permit 
and Easement Agreement between MCWD and California State University of Monterey Bay for 
the Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project Recycled Water Pipeline and Blackhorse 
Recycled Water Reservoir. 
 
Background:  5-Year Strategic Plan Mission Statement – To provide our customers with high 
quality water, wastewater collection and conservation services at a reasonable cost, through 
planning, management and the development of water resources in an environmentally sensitive 
manner. 
 
On March 19, 2018, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2018-45 approving the 
Recycled Water Permit and Easement Agreement between MCWD and California State University 
of Monterey Bay (CSUMB) for the Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project (RUWAP) 
Recycled Water Pipeline and Blackhorse Recycled Water Reservoir.  CSUMB previously 
approved and allowed installation of a portion of the recycled water pipeline on CSUMB in Inter-
Garrison Road and Fifth Avenue to coordinate with CSUMB development.   
 
The permit and easement agreement under Resolution No. 2018-45 allowed for completion of the 
remaining pipeline segments for RUWAP to extend across CSUMB from Marina to Seaside.  The 
District continues to negotiate with CSUMB for more favorable amendments to the 2006 
settlement agreement.   
 
Discussion/Analysis: The Board of Directors is requested to approve the attached Tree 
Replacement Funding Agreement (Attachment 1) based upon the CSUMB permitting 
requirements previously approved by Resolution No. 2018-45. An aerial plan view of the pipeline 
easement is shown on Attachment 2. 
 
CSUMB requires the establishment of two trees for each tree removed.  A total of 18 trees were 
removed for the RUWAP on CSUMB grounds.  Denise Duffy and Associates will be documenting 
the tree installation and growth progress for five years in a accordance with the projects mitigation 
and monitoring requirements.  The Tree Replacement Funding Agreement is for a one-time 
payment to CSUMB of $91,026. 
 
Environmental Review Compliance: The RUWAP Environmental Impact Report meets both 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and National Environmental Protection Act 
(NEPA) requirements. 
 



 
Other Considerations: The Board may desire to consider other alternatives to adopting the motion 
as recommended by staff including: 

1. Modifying or conditioning the action; or, 
2. Direct further staff work; or, 
3. Deny the action. 
 

Financial Impact:              Yes       X     No Funding Source/Recap: Financial impacts 
will be reimbursed as part of the project costs by FORA. 
 
Material Included for Information/Consideration: Resolution No. 2019-32; Attachment 1 – Tree 
Replacement Funding Agreement. 
 
Action Required:       X      Resolution             Motion              Review 
(Roll call vote is required.) 
              
 

Board Action 
 
Motion By______________ Seconded By________________ No Action Taken    
 
Ayes       Abstained      
 
Noes       Absent                                                   
 

 

  



 
May 20, 2019 

 
Resolution No. 2018-32 

Resolution of the Board of Directors 
Marina Coast Water District 

Approving a Tree Replacement Funding Agreement between  
Marina Coast Water District and California State University Monterey Bay 

 
 

RESOLVED by the Board of Directors (“Directors”) of the Marina Coast Water District 
(“District”), at a regular meeting duly called and held on May 20, 2019 at 211 Hillcrest Avenue, 
Marina, California as follows: 
 

WHEREAS, California State University of Monterey Bay (CSUMB) has coordinated with 
the District on their Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project (RUWAP) Recycled Water 
Pipeline and Blackhorse Recycled Water Reservoir, consisting of new construction and related 
infrastructure, within the CSUMB portion of the Ord Community; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Fort Ord Reuse Authority has allocated a portion of its former Fort Ord 
water supply allocation for CSUMB’s use in developing the University, and,  
 

WHEREAS, the District and CSUMB are working cooperatively regarding RUWAP and 
amending the 2006 settlement agreement; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the District and CSUMB have agreed upon the Temporary Permit and 

Easement Agreement with additional conditions approved by Resolution No. 2018-45. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Marina Coast 

Water District does hereby authorize the General Manager to execute the Tree Replacement 
Funding Agreement between MCWD and California State University of Monterey Bay for the 
Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project Recycled Water Pipeline and Blackhorse Recycled 
Water Reservoir and to take all actions and execute all documents as may be necessary or 
appropriate to give effect to this resolution. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED May 20, 2019, by the Board of Directors of the Marina Coast 
Water District by the following roll call vote: 

 
Ayes:  Directors               

 
 Noes:  Directors               
 
 Absent: Directors               
 
 Abstained: Directors               
 

 
______________________________ 
Thomas P. Moore, President 

 
 



 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
 

 The undersigned Secretary of the Board of the Marina Coast Water District hereby certifies 
that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 2019-32 adopted May 20, 2019. 
 
 

 
        

Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary 
 
 
  











 
Marina Coast Water District 

Agenda Transmittal 
 

 

Agenda Item: 11-H      Meeting Date: May 20, 2019 
 
Prepared By: Jaron Hollida             Approved By: Keith Van Der Maaten 
Reviewed By: Michael Wegley 
 
Agenda Title: Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-33 to Approve Amendment No. 1 to 

the Professional Services Agreement with GHD, INC. for Design and Construction 
Support Services for the Imjin Lift Station Improvement Project  

 
Staff Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 2019-
33 to approve Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Agreement with GHD, INC. for 
Design and Construction Support Services for the Imjin Lift Station Improvement Project (OS-
0205) to add $38,454 to the total dollar amount for a not-to-exceed amount of $77,092.00 and 
authorize the General Manager to take all actions and execute all documents as may be necessary 
or appropriate to give effect to this resolution.  
 
Background:  5-Year Strategic Plan Mission Statement – To provide our customers with high 
quality water, wastewater collection and conservation services at a reasonable cost, through 
planning, management and the development of water resources in an environmentally sensitive 
manner. 
 
On September 18, 2018, the District’s General Manager authorized a Professional Services 
Agreement to GHD, INC. for Design Services on the Imjin Lift Station Improvement Project (OS-
0205) by agreement number GM 2019-01 in the amount of $38,638.  The design began January 
15, 2019 and the District received a complete design submittal March 20, 2019. The District 
provided GHD, INC. a few design parameters to be revisited, including pump resizing, and added 
that GHD will provide support during bidding and engineering services during construction. 
 
Discussion and Analysis:  The remainder of design, bidding and construction support services by 
GHD, INC. for the extended construction completion date totals $38,454.  GHD, INC. has 
submitted a scope of work cost proposal detailing the additional services and signed Amendment 
No. 1 that is included as Attachment 1. 

 
Environmental Review Compliance: None required.  
 
Financial Impact:      X       Yes              No     Funding Source/Recap: Funded through the 
FY 2018/2019 Engineering Capital Improvement Budget For the Imjin Lift Station Improvement 
Project (OS-0205). 
  
Other Considerations:  Provide staff direction for revisions to the proposed amendment. 
 
Material Included for Information/Consideration:  Resolution No. 2019-33; Attachment 1 – 
Amendment No. 1 for GHD, INC. 
 



 
Action Required:        X      Resolution                Motion              Review 
(Roll call vote is required.) 
              

 
Board Action 

 
Motion By                      Seconded By                 No Action Taken    

 
Ayes       Abstained      
 
Noes       Absent                                          
  



 
May 20, 2019 

 
Resolution No. 2019-33 

Resolution of the Board of Directors 
Marina Coast Water District 

Approving Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Agreement with 
GHD, INC. for Design and Construction Support Services 
for the Imjin Lift Station Improvement Project (OS-0205) 

 
 

 RESOLVED by the Board of Directors (“Directors”) of the Marina Coast Water District 
(“District”), at a regular meeting duly called and held on May 20, 2019, at 211 Hillcrest Avenue, 
Marina, California as follows: 
 

WHEREAS, GHD, INC. is providing Engineering Design Support Services for the Imjin 
Lift Station Improvement Project (OS-0205); and, 
 

WHEREAS, the design work requires additional work and the addition of bidding and 
construction support services from GHD, INC. through the end of construction; and,  
 

WHEREAS, GHD, INC. is knowledgeable and experienced with the design and 
construction of  Lift Stations for the District; and, 

 
WHEREAS, GHD, INC. has proposed a scope of fees for completion of the design, bidding 

and  construction support services for completion of the project and staff agrees that the proposal 
is reasonable.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Marina Coast 
Water District does hereby approve Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Agreement 
with GHD, INC. for the Imjin Lift Station Improvement Project (OS-0205) to add $38,454 to the 
total dollar amount for a not-to-exceed amount of $77,092 and authorize the General Manager to 
take all actions and execute all documents as may be necessary or appropriate to give effect to this 
resolution.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED on May 20, 2019 by the Board of Directors of the Marina Coast 

Water District by the following roll call vote:  
 

Ayes:  Directors          
 

 Noes:  Directors          
 
 Absent: Directors          
 
 Abstained: Directors          
 

 
 
      
Thomas P. Moore, President 

 
 



 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
 
 The undersigned Secretary of the Board of the Marina Coast Water District hereby certifies 
that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 2019-33 Adopted May 20, 
2019. 

 
 

      
           Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary 
 
  



 

   
   GHD Inc. 

655 Montgomery Street Suite 1010 San Francisco CA 94111 USA 
T 1 415 283 4970 E sanfrancisco@ghd.com W www.ghd.com 

 
May 7, 2019 
 
 
Jaron Hollida 
Assistant Engineer 
Marina Coast Water District  
11 Reservation Road 
Marina, CA 93933 
 
RE:  Proposal for Amendment for MCWD Imjin Lift Station Improvements Project Design and 

Construction Support Services 
 
Dear Mr. Hollida, 
 
GHD is submitting this amendment request for your consideration to include additional project 
budget for the following additional services: 
 

1. District-initiated design parameter changes at the 100% design level requiring additional 
engineering, evaluation, and redesign. 

2. Additional design review submittal. 
3. Bidding Support Services. 
4. Engineering Services During Construction. 

 
The total amount of the proposed Amendment #1 is U$38,454U.  As with our existing contract, GHD proposes to 
perform these services on a time and materials basis in accordance with our Standard Fees and Conditions. 
 
The attached spreadsheet shows the fee breakdown for this proposed Amendment. 
 
The accounting of the original contract amount, previous amendments, and the proposed amendment is as 
follows: 
 Original Contract Amount: $  38,638 

 UAmendment #1 :  $  38,454 

 Proposed New Contract Total: $  77,092 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
GHD, Inc. 
 

Raymond Wong, PhD, PE, CFM, 
LEED AP Project Manager 
 
Attachments:     Fee Proposal 



Page 1 of 1
Cost Proposal Imjin Amendment May 2019.xlsx

5/7/2019

Budget Estimation Spreadsheet
Project: MCWD Imjin Lift Station Improvements Project Design and Construction Support Services 

Prepared By:
Reviewed By: Raymond Wong

Date:
Proposal Number: AMENDMENT #1 FEE PROPOSAL

TOTAL
Allen Wong Sullivan Pan Guggiana Scheetz

PIC PM Civil/Mech Structural Electrical CADD Admin 10%
$260 $210 $185 $165 $210 $175 $105 Sub markup

Task 4 - Construction Documents
Task 4.1 Additional 100% Design Submittal 4 24 4 4 16 4 56 10,000$      336$                -$             -$           $10,336
Task 4.2 Final Design Documents Submittal 4 12 2 2 12 4 36 6,330$        216$                -$             -$           $6,546

SUBTOTAL Task 4 92 16,330$     552$                -$          -$           -$          -$             -$           $16,882

Task 5 - Bid Period Support
Task 5.1 Bidding Period Assistance (up to 3 RFIs and 2 Addenda) 6 20 2 2 4 34 6,410$        204$                -$             -$           $6,614

SUBTOTAL Task 5 34 6,410$        204$                -$          -$           -$          -$             -$           $6,614

Task 6 - Engineering Services During Construction
Task 6.1 Submittal Review (10) 2 16 2 2 22 4,130$        132$                -$             -$           $4,262
Task 6.2 RFI and Clarification Review and Response (10) 2 20 2 2 26 4,870$        156$                -$             -$           $5,026
Task 6.3 Assist with Change Orders (2) 2 8 2 2 4 18 3,350$        108$                -$             -$           $3,458
Task 6.4 Preparation and Submittal of Digital Record Drawings 4 8 12 2,140$        72$                   -$             -$           $2,212

SUBTOTAL Task 6 78 14,490$     468$                -$          -$           -$          -$             -$           $14,958

TOTALS 0 20 104 14 14 44 8 204 37,230$      1,224$             -$          -$           -$          -$             -$           38,454$      

Subconsultants

Sub Subtotal

Stacy Creviston

7-May-19
11184901

GHD

Hours Labor Consumables



 
Marina Coast Water District 

Agenda Transmittal 
 

 

Agenda Item: 11-I      Meeting Date: May 20, 2019 
 
Prepared By: Andrew Racz     Approved By: Keith Van Der Maaten 
Reviewed By: Michael Wegley 
 
Agenda Title: Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-34 to Approve Task Order 10 for 

Inspection and Construction Support Services for the Sea Haven Development 
Phase 5A as Part of the On-Call Professional Services Agreement with Harris and 
Associates 

 
Staff Recommendation:  The Board adopt Resolution No. 2019-34 approving Task Order 10 for 
Inspection and Construction Support Services for the Sea Haven Development Phase 5A as part 
of the on-call Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Harris and Associates for a not-to-
exceed amount of $112,500.  
 
Background:  5-Year Strategic Plan, Strategic Element No. 2 Infrastructure – Our objective is to 
provide a high quality water distribution system and an efficiently operating wastewater collection 
system to serve existing and future customers.  Through the master planning process, our 
infrastructure strategy is to carefully maintain our existing systems and ensure future additions 
and replacements will meet District standards. 
 
The first phases of land development in Sea Haven (formerly Marina Heights) began in 2006.  
Construction of the development’s large arterial roadways (Phase 1) and secondary neighborhood 
streets (Phase 2), along with the associated subsurface sewer, water and recycled water 
infrastructure, took place between 2006 and 2008.  This land development work was largely 
finished when the housing downturn of 2008 hit and remaining construction activity was placed 
“on-hold”.  Activity at the site resumed in 2016, when the first new homes in Sea Haven were 
built.  Since that time, nearly 200 homes have been completed, and Sea Haven Phase 2 is projected 
to reach buildout in the current calendar year.  The current owner of the development, Wathen-
Castanos Homes (Developer), entered into an Infrastructure Agreement with MCWD in October 
2018 to begin the first new land development at the site since the mid-2000s.  The project, known 
as Sea Haven Phase 5A (phases are named out of sequence), will eventually contain 60+ new 
homes, but first requires massive grading work and the construction of new neighborhood streets 
and associated water/sewer infrastructure which will eventually enter MCWD ownership.  This 
work began in May 2019.   
 
The Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2017-66 on November 20, 2017, authorizing an 
On-Call Professional Services Agreement with Harris & Associates (Harris) to provide 
engineering consulting services, construction management support and on-call inspections for new 
and ongoing MCWD projects.  Board approval is required for all new Task Orders exceeding 
$45,000.  The proposed Task Order 10 is for a not-to-exceed amount of $112,500, which will fund 
construction management and inspection services through the end of calendar year 2019.   
 
Discussion/Analysis:  The Board of Directors is requested to approve Task Order 10 as part of the 
on-call PSA with Harris & Associates to provide inspection and construction support services for 
Sea Haven Phase 5A.  The task order is for a not-to-exceed amount of $112,500 and is to be paid 



 
for entirely by the Developer (Wathen-Castanos Homes).  The Developer and MCWD staff agree 
that contract inspection and construction support labor is warranted due to the large but temporary 
work-load needed to support the on-going construction work. 
 
Specific scope elements with this task order include: inspection and observation of sanitary sewer 
system testing for pipeline leakage, pipeline deflection, and manhole leakage; inspection of any 
new sanitary sewer infrastructure installed or repaired; inspection and observation of potable and 
recycled water systems testing for pipeline acceptance; inspection of any new water system 
infrastructure installed or repaired; inspection and observation of the potable water system 
disinfection and sampling procedures; preparing a final report compiling the inspection results and 
providing a recommendation regarding the suitability of the infrastructure for ownership by 
MCWD; verifying the landscape and conservation process compliance; and reviewing meter 
requests and conducting walk-throughs of all structures to receive water meters.   
 
Harris & Associates has provided excellent on-going inspection and construction support services 
for MCWD.  They maintain a local office in the City of Salinas with assigned project personnel 
present locally.  District staff have reviewed the proposed scope of work and fee estimate for this 
planned task order and find that the scope is reasonable. The rates are comparable and competitive 
with other engineering firms providing services to MCWD based on general industry standards. 
   
This proposed Task Order 10 will be paid for entirely by the Developer through the existing well-
established large development accounting procedure. Prior to Harris & Associates performing any 
work under this task order, the Developer will be required to have the total or substantial 
percentage thereof on deposit with MCWD and held in the Wathen-Castanos Homes development 
account.  At no time will payments be made to Harris without corresponding resources in-hand 
from the Developer to cover the expense.  The task order is on a time and materials expense basis.  
 
Environmental Review Compliance: Not Applicable; this action approving a task order is not a 
“project” under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
 
Financial Impact:              Yes       X       No   Funding Source/Recap: There is no 
financial impact to the MCWD from this action; the Developer will be required to resource the 
entire amount through deposited funds with MCWD in advance of payment to Harris & Associates. 
 
Other Considerations:  None. 
 
Material Included for Information/Consideration:  Resolution No. 2019-34; and, Task Order No. 
10. 
 
Action Required:        X      Resolution                Motion              Review 
(Roll call vote is required.) 
              

Board Action 
 
Motion By                      Seconded By                 No Action Taken    

 
Ayes       Abstained      
 
Noes       Absent                                          



 
May 20, 2019 

 
Resolution No. 2019 – 34 

Resolution of the Board of Directors 
Marina Coast Water District 

Approving Task Order 10 for Inspection and Construction Support Services for the Sea Haven 
Development Phase 5A as Part of the On-Call Professional Services Agreement  

with Harris and Associates 
 
 
 RESOLVED by the Board of Directors (“Directors”) of the Marina Coast Water District 
(“District”), at a regular meeting duly called and held on May 20, 2019 at 211 Hillcrest Avenue, 
Marina, California as follows: 
 

WHEREAS, Wathen-Castanos Homes (“Developer”) have coordinated with MCWD on 
their Sea Haven Phase 5A consisting of the new construction and related infrastructure on the 
Former Fort Ord lands within Monterey County, CA; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the District and the Developer are working cooperatively regarding proposed 
water, recycled water and sewer system improvements and the District and the Developer have 
entered into an Infrastructure Agreement for Phase 5A of the Sea Haven development project; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the District and the Developer agree that outside assistance for inspection and 

construction support labor is warranted to achieve the objective of transferring ownership of 
infrastructure to the District and that the Developer will pay for the inspection services as required 
by the Infrastructure Agreements; and,  

 
WHEREAS, Harris & Associates has an existing contractual relationship with the District, 

they have long association with local jurisdictions in similar capacities, and Harris & Associates 
maintains a local office; and, 
 

WHEREAS, District staff finds that the Harris & Associates current scope and fee proposal 
to conduct the work is reasonable, their charge rates are comparable to other engineering firms 
providing services to the District and their charge rates are competitive based on general industry-
wide standards. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Marina Coast 
Water District does hereby approve Task Order 10 for Inspection and Construction Support 
Services for the Sea Haven Development Phase 5A as part of the on-call Professional Services 
Agreement (PSA) with Harris and Associates for a not-to-exceed amount of $112,500, and 
authorize the General Manager to take all actions and execute all documents as may be necessary 
or appropriate to give effect to this resolution, the total dollar amount not-to-exceed $112,500. 

  
PASSED AND ADOPTED on May 20, 2019 by the Board of Directors of the Marina Coast 

Water District by the following roll call vote: 
  

 
  



 
Ayes:  Directors          
 

 Noes:  Directors          
 
 Absent: Directors          
 
 Abstained: Directors          
 

 
 
      
Thomas P. Moore, President 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
 
 The undersigned Secretary of the Board of the Marina Coast Water District hereby certifies 
that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 2019-34 Adopted May 20, 
2019. 

 
 

      
           Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary 
 
  



 

2 Salinas Street, Suite B, Salinas, CA 93901  |  p: 831.233.9242  |  WeAreHarris.com 

 
May 10, 2019 
 
 
Marina Coast Water District 
Andrew Racz, Project Manager 
2840 4th Avenue 
Marina, CA 93933 
 
 
 
RE: Letter proposal - Task Order #10 – Seahaven 5A Construction Support 
 
Andrew – 
 
We are requesting a task order in the amount of $112,500 for construction support services for inspection of 
District infrastructure on the Seahaven 5A development.  Our services will include: 

 Inspection of construction activities related to District infrastructure for conformance to approved 
plans and specifications 

 Weekly report of the developer’s construction daily activities (including photos) 

 Review of proposed testing plans 

 Observation and documentation of testing related to District facilities (e.g. hydrostatic pressure 
testing of water & sewer lines) 

 
I have included a breakdown of estimated hours and budget on the attached spreadsheets. The estimated 
hours and budget are based on a schedule (Marina 5A – Land Dev., dated 5-7-2019) provided by the 
developer.  All work will be performed and invoiced on an “hourly not-to-exceed” basis. 
 
We look forward to this opportunity to provide professional services for Seahaven 5A and continuing our 
long-standing relationship with the District.  Please contact me at your convenience with any questions you 
may have. 
 
 
Regards, 
Harris & Associates, Inc.  

 
Dana Van Horn, PE, QSD  
Senior Construction Manager 
Dana.vanhorn@WeAreHarris.com 
(831) 419-7234 
 
attach 

 



MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT - TASK ORDER - SEAHAVEN 5A

CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT SERVICES

Rate Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
168 176 160 176 176 160 176 144 168

Dana Van Horn 200.00$   10 4 5 5 4 1 1 5 35  $          7,000 

Construction Manager

Patrick Imperatrice 170.00$   12 138 120 138 60 40 16 16 60 600 102,000$      

Inspector

TBD 120.00$   1 8 2 2 2 2 2 2 8 29 3,480$          

Admin Support

Hours/month 13 156 126 145 67 46 19 19 73

 664 112,480$   

Assumptions:

1. This estimate of hours is for the period through Decemer 2019 and does not include service related to home construction.

2.  This budget is based on the activities & durations shown on the schedule provided on 5/9/2019 (Marina 5A - Land Dev., dated 5/7/2019)

3.  Standard 8 hour work day, 5 days per week; no holidays have been included

4. Overtime hours, if necessary, to be determined; may require task order amendment/additional task order.

5. Vehicles, equipment, supplies and incidental costs included

2019 Total 

Hrs  Total 



MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT - TASK ORDER - SEAHAVEN 5A

CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT SERVICES

EFFORT BY TASK

Hourly Rate Contract Administration Inspection
Total 

Hours

Dana Van Horn

Construction Manager
$200 35 35

Patrick Imperatrice

Asst. CM/Lead Inspector
$170 0 600 600

Administrative - TBD $120 29 29

64 600 664

$10,480 $102,000

$112,480

CONSTRUCTION

Task Hours = 

Task Fee = 

Estimated Fee = 

5/10/2019 10:46 AM



Contract No. 2017-66 

Page 1 of 2 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

BETWEEN MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT  

AND HARRIS & ASSOCIATES FOR 

ON-CALL GENERAL, CIP, AND DEVELOPMENT  

ENGINEERING SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
 

TASK ORDER NO. 10 

 
 
 Article II - Scope of Services shall be to provide construction support services for 
inspection of Sea Haven Phase 5A infrastructure development, including the construction 
of new water, sewer and recycled water lines; connections/modifications to existing 
MCWD facilities; park landscape irrigation; and grading impacts, as described in the 
Scope of Work and Fee Estimate. 
 
 Article IV – The Work under this Task Order is scheduled for Completion by 
December, 2019. 
 
 Article IX - Payment shall be amended by a not-to-exceed contract amount of 
$112,500 on a time and expense basis. 
 
 All other articles of the November 20, 2017 AGREEMENT FOR ON-CALL 
GENERAL, CIP AND DEVELOPMENT ENGINEERING SUPPORT SERVICES 
remain the same. 
 
 OWNER and ENGINEER have caused this Agreement to be amended by 
representatives duly authorized to act, all as of the effective date of ____________. 
 
 
Prepared by:  __Andrew Racz_____________    Date___May 10, 2019_____________ 
 (DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE) 
 
 
ENGINEER OWNER 
Harris & Associates Marina Coast Water District 
 
By ________________________________        By ______________________________ 
 
Title____________________________ Title: General Manager  
 
Date  _____________________________       Date ____________________________ 



Contract No. 2017-66 

Page 2 of 2 

 
AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

BETWEEN MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT  

AND HARRIS & ASSOCIATES FOR 

ON-CALL GENERAL, CIP, AND DEVELOPMENT  

ENGINEERING SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
 

TASK ORDER NO. 10 

 

 

 

 

 

Task Order for Construction Support Services –  
Sea Haven Phase 5A 

 



 
Marina Coast Water District 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
 
Agenda Item: 12-A      Meeting Date: May 20, 2019 
    
Prepared By: Michael Wegley Approved By: Keith Van Der Maaten  
 
Agenda Title: Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-35 to Approve Amendment 1 with 

Monterey One Water for NPDES Permitting Work on the Pure Water Advanced 
Water Treatment and Outfall Wastewater Disposal for the Regional Urban Water 
Augmentation Project 

 
Staff Recommendation: The Board of Directors is requested to: 
 

1. Approve Amendment 1 to the Reimbursement Agreement with Monterey One Water 
(“MW1” formerly known as Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency) for the 
technical activities associated with obtaining the NPDES Permit amendment and other 
regulatory approvals on the Pure Water Monterey (PWM) Advanced Water Treatment 
(“AWT”) and Outfall Wastewater Disposal (“OWD”) for the Regional Urban Water 
Augmentation Project (“RUWAP”); and,  

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute all documents as may be necessary or 
appropriate to give effect to this resolution to reimburse M1W. 

 
Background:  5-Year Strategic Plan Mission Statement – To provide our customers with high 
quality water, wastewater collection and conservation services at a reasonable cost, through 
planning, management and the development of water resources in an environmentally sensitive 
manner. 
 
On May 15, 2017, the District Board adopted Resolution No. 2017-32 approving a reimbursement 
agreement with M1W for EIR and NPDES Permitting work on the Pure Water AWT and OWD 
for the Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project (“RUWAP”) for a total cost of $263,319.  
The work was required to support combining the separate projects between M1W and MCWD for 
the AWT and OWD to support the RUWAP.  M1W updated the Groundwater Recharge (GWR) 
project environmental documents at their own expense. 
 
Discussion/Analysis: M1W and MCWD have now received comments on their respective Title 22 
engineering reports from the State Water Resources Control Board, Division of Drinking Water 
(DDW).  MCWD also has to obtain approval of a Notice of Intent (NOI) to distribute recycled 
water from the Central California Regional Water Quality Control Board (CCRWQCB). 
Amendment 1 to the M1W reimbursement agreement is necessary to coordinate revisions between 
overlapping sections of the M1W and MCWD engineering reports to ensure accuracy and 
consistency between the agencies documents and manage submittal of the engineering reports to 
the State Water Resources Control Board, Division of Drinking Water and the Central California 
Regional Water Quality Control Board. 
 
LWA will be coordinating the overlapping sections of the M1W and MCWD engineering reports 
and will manage both agencies submittals to DDW and CCRWQCB.  
 



 
Amendment 1 to the Reimbursement Agreement with M1W is attached for reference.  The 
proposal estimates a total cost of $20,066 for MCWD and $110,445 for M1W.   
 
Environmental Review Compliance: None required. 
 
Financial Impact:      X     Yes             No    Funding Source/Recap: FORA will provide 
up to $4,500,000 to MCWD for RUWAP, RW-156, in accordance with the agreement annual 
reimbursement schedule.   
 
Other considerations: Refer back to staff with further direction. 
 
Material Included for Information/Consideration:  Resolution No. 2019-35; Amendment 1; LWA 
Request for Amendment of GWR2017-02; and, Reimbursement Agreement. 
 
Action Required:       X       Resolution              Motion                Review 
(Roll call vote is required.) 
              

 
Board Action 

 
Motion By______________ Seconded By________________ No Action Taken    
 
Ayes       Abstained      
 
Noes       Absent                                                   



 
May 20, 2019 

 
Resolution No. 2019-35 

Resolution of the Board of Directors 
Marina Coast Water District 

Approving Amendment 1 with 
Monterey One Water for 

Technical Activities Associated with Obtaining the NPDES Permit Amendment and  
Other Regulatory Approvals Needed for the Advanced Water Treatment and Outfall 
Wastewater Disposal for the RUWAP Recycled Project between M1W and MCWD 

 
 
 RESOLVED by the Board of Directors (“Directors”) of the Marina Coast Water District 
(“District” or “MCWD”), at a regular meeting duly called and held on May 20, 2019 at 211 
Hillcrest Avenue, Marina, California as follows: 
 

WHEREAS, an agreement dated May 15, 2017 established the reimbursement of costs to 
M1W from MCWD for technical activities associated with obtaining the NPDES permit 
amendment and other regulatory approvals needed for the AWT and Outfall Wastewater Disposal 
(OWD) for the RUWAP Recycled Project; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Amendment 1 to the M1W reimbursement agreement will coordinate 

revisions between overlapping sections of the M1W and MCWD engineering reports to ensure 
accuracy and consistency between the agencies documents and manage submittal of the 
engineering reports to the State Water Resources Control Board, Division of Drinking Water and 
the Central California Regional Water Quality Control Board. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Board of Directors hereby approves 
Amendment 1 to the Reimbursement Agreement for the RUWAP Recycled Project with Monterey 
One Water for technical activities associated with obtaining the NPDES permit amendment and 
other regulatory approvals needed for the AWT and OWD for the RUWAP Recycled Project 
between M1W and MCWD for a not-to-exceed amount of $20,066 for MCWD’s costs; and,  

 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Directors authorize the General Manager to take all 

actions and execute all documents as may be necessary or appropriate to give effect to this 
resolution. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on May 20, 2019, by the Board of Directors of the Marina Coast 
Water District by the following roll call vote: 
 
 

Ayes:  Directors          
 
 Noes:  Directors          
 
 Absent: Directors          
 
 Abstained: Directors          
 
 



 
 

______________________________ 
Thomas P. Moore, President 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
 
 The undersigned Secretary of the Board of the Marina Coast Water District hereby certifies 
that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 2019-35 adopted May 20, 2019. 
 
 

______________________________ 
Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary 

 
  
 
  



Resolution No.  2017-32 

Page 1 of 3 

AMENDMENT TO THE  

REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE 

TECHNICAL ACTIVITIES ASSOCIATED WITH OBTAINING THE NPDES PERMIT 

AMENDMENT AND OTHER REGULATORY APPROVALS FOR THE ADVANCED 

WATER TREATMENT AND OUTFALL WASTEWATER DISPOSAL FOR THE 

RUWAP RECYCLED PROJECT  

BETWEEN 

MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT 

AND 

MONTEREY ONE WATER 

 
AMENDMENT NO. 1 

 
 This Amendment No. 1 to the Reimbursement Agreement For the Technical Activities 
Associated with Obtaining the NPDES Permit Amendment and Other Regulatory Approvals for 
the Advanced Water Treatment and Outfall Wastewater Disposal for the RUWAP Recycled Water 
Project (the “Amendment”) is made and entered into as of ________, 2019 by and between the 
Marina Coast Water District (“MCWD”) and Monterey One Water (“M1W”, formerly known as 
Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency). 
 

RECITALS 
 

 A. WHEREAS, MCWD and M1W have been operating pursuant to that certain 
Reimbursement Agreement For the Technical Activities Associated with Obtaining the NPDES 
Permit Amendment and Other Regulatory Approvals for the Advanced Water Treatment and 
Outfall Wastewater Disposal for the RUWAP Recycled Water Project dated May 15, 2017 (the 
“Agreement”); and 
 
 B. WHEREAS, the Agreement requires MCWD to, among other things, provide 
reimbursement funds to M1W as set forth therein; and 
 
 NOW THEREFORE for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 
contained in the Agreement and this Amendment, and other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged by the parties, MCWD and M1W hereby 
agree as follows: 
 

A G R E E M E N T 
  
 1.   INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The Recitals set forth above are each 
incorporated into the body of this Agreement as if set forth in full.  Further, any terms, 
conditions, and obligations set forth in the Agreement, not amended or modified by this 
Amendment shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
 
 



Resolution No.  2017-32 

Page 2 of 3 

 
 2.   Additional Consulting Fees.  As part of its obligations under the Agreement, M1W 
entered into the Master Professional Agreement (RFS No. GWR 2017-02) with Larry Walker and 
Associates, Inc.  M1W desires to amend its agreement with Larry Walker and Associates, Inc., in 
accordance with Attachment A1, incorporated herein by this reference.  The parties agree they will 
provide payment in an amount not to exceed the schedule set forth in Attachment A1, page 3.   
 
 WHEREFORE, the parties have caused this Amendment No. 1 to the Reimbursement 
Agreement For the Technical Activities Associated with Obtaining the NPDES Permit 
Amendment and Other Regulatory Approvals for the Advanced Water Treatment and Outfall 
Wastewater Disposal for the RUWAP Recycled Water Project, effective on the date of the last 
signature. 

 
Prepared by: _________________________ Date: May 6, 2019    

Michael Wegley 
District Engineer 

 
 
 
Accepted: Marina Coast Water District  Monterey One Water 

 
     
By   By  
       Keith Van Der Maaten                                              Paul Sciuto 
     
Title           General Manager  Title         General Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution No.  2017-32 

Page 3 of 3 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A1 
 

Larry Walker and Associates 
Scope of Work and Fee Estimate 

For Amendment 1 
[As set forth in the attached letter dated March 25, 2019, from Denise Connors (with LWA) to 

Bob Holden (with M1W)] 



707 4th Street, Suite 200 
Davis, CA 95616 

530.753.6400 
530.753.7030 fax 

www.lwa.com   

 

  

 

 

 
March 25, 2019 
 

DRAFT 
 
Mr. Bob Holden 
Recycled Water Program Manager/Principal Engineer 
Monterey One Water  
5 Harris Court, Building D 
Monterey, CA 93940 
 
Subject: Request for Amendment of RFS No. GWR 2017-02 (NPDES Permitting and 
Other Regulatory Services) – 3/1/19 to 9/30/19 
 
Dear Bob: 
Larry Walker Associates (LWA) and Trussell Technologies (TT) are providing assistance 
to Monterey One Water (M1W) and Marina Coast Water District (MCWD) to secure 
regulatory approval for the Pure Water Monterey Project. The Master Professional 
Agreement (RFS No. GWR 2017-02) was initially approved for $556,500 on June 27, 
2016. The agreement has been revised three times as detailed below. 
Rev. 1 – Extended project completion date from July 31 to December 31, 2018. 
Rev. 2 – Added $50,000 to increase the total compensation to $605,500. 
Rev. 3 – Extended project completion date from December 31, 2018 to March 31, 2019. 
Additional funding and a time extension will be needed to complete activities anticipated 
from March 1 through September 30, 2019. The projected activities and requested funds 
are described below in terms of the current approved tasks. 
Scope of Work – Additional Activities 
Task 1. Project Management and Coordination 

LWA will provide project oversight, budget accounting, and contract implementation. 
LWA and TT will coordinate with M1W, MCWD, Central Coast Regional Water Quality 
Control Board (Regional Water Board), and Division of Drinking Water (DDW) staff on 
project issues and schedules via emails and phone calls as directed by M1W. TT will 
review and provide edits to the final Independent Advisory Panel (IAP) Report and 
assistance in responding to comments/questions about treatment provided through the 
Advanced Water Purification Facility (AWPF). 
Task 2. Data/Report Review and Modeling 

This task has been completed. No additional activities are anticipated. 
Task 3. Ocean Plan Compliance Assessment  

This task has been completed. No additional activities are anticipated. 
Task 4. Develop NPDES Permitting Approach 

This task has been completed. No additional activities are anticipated. 



Mr. Bob Holden  
March 25, 2019 
Page 2  

 

 

Task 5. CEQA/NEPA  

This task has been completed. No additional activities are anticipated. 
Task 6. Prepare ROWD  

This task has been completed. No additional activities are anticipated. 
Task 7. NPDES Permit Adoption  

LWA and TT will prepare presentation materials and participate in a workshop for M1W 
staff to explain the basis for and the requirements of the new NPDES permit (Order No. 
R3-2018-0017). As the new permit is implemented, LWA and TT will support M1W 
staff by answering questions, interpreting requirements, and providing reporting 
assistance. 
Task 8. Revise Engineering Report  

LWA and TT will work with M1W and Todd Groundwater to revise the 2017 M1W 
Engineering Report to describe planned operations and address comments received from 
DDW. The revisions will include updated groundwater modeling results, changes to 
injection well operations, plans to revise Local Limits, new monitoring requirements for 
Constituents of Concern (CECs), and a request for additional pathogen removal credits. 
This task also includes preparation of Technical Memorandum (TM) to support the 
additional pathogen removal credits using strontium and total organic carbon (TOC) as 
indicators of pathogen removal across the reverse osmosis membranes. Draft versions of 
the revised Engineering Report and the TM will be provided to M1W for review and 
approval before submittal to DDW and the Regional Water Board. LWA will prepare a 
cover letter and manage submittal of the M1W and MCWD Engineering Reports to 
DDW and the Regional Water Board. 
The Regional Water Board will be modifying the Pure Water Monterey Waste Discharge 
Requirements and Water Recycling Requirements (WDRs/WRRs, Order No. R3-2017-
0003) or its Monitoring and Reporting Program (MRP) to reflect conditions in the revised 
M1W Engineering Report. LWA will review the Regional Water Board’s proposed 
modifications for accuracy and assist M1W with preparing comments and questions for 
Regional Water Board consideration. 
LWA and TT will prepare presentation materials and participate in a workshop for M1W 
staff to explain the basis for and the requirements of the Pure Water Monterey Waste 
Discharge Requirements and Water Recycling Requirements (Order No. R3-2017-0003). 
As the permit is implemented, LWA and TT will support M1W staff by answering 
questions, interpreting requirements, and providing reporting assistance. 
Task 9. Additional Regulatory Assistance (MCWD Activities) 

LWA and TT will coordinate revisions between overlapping sections of the M1W and 
MCWD Engineering Reports via emails and conference calls with M1W, MCWD, 
Regional Water Board, and DDW staff. LWA will provide assistance during M1W’s 
review of the revised MCWD Engineering Report to ensure accuracy and consistency 
between the agencies’ respective documents. LWA will prepare a cover letter and 



Mr. Bob Holden  
March 25, 2019 
Page 3  

 

 

manage submittal of the M1W and MCWD Engineering Reports to DDW and the 
Regional Water Board. 

Funding Request – Additional Activities 
The above activities will be conducted by the LWA Project Team on a time and materials 
basis for a cost not-to-exceed $130,511. A cost breakdown by task and funding sources is 
presented in the following table. As of February 28, 2019, there is $577.47 in available 
funds for RFS No. GWR 2017-02 (M1W Funds = $379.04, MCWD Funds = $198.43).   
 

Task Description M1W  
Estimated Costs 

MCWD 
Estimated Costs 

1 Project Management and Coordination $32,054 0 

7 NPDES Permit Adoption $30,178 0 

8 Revise Engineering Report $48,213 0 

9 Additional Regulatory Assistance 
(MCWD Activities) 0 $20,066 

M1W Funds Requested $110,445 

MCWD Funds Requested $20,066 

Total $130,511 

 
Thank you for the opportunity to work on this important water supply project for the 
Monterey Peninsula.  Please contact me at 530.753.6400 or denisec@lwa.com if you 
have any questions regarding the proposed scope of work and budget. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Denise H. Conners 
Associate 

mailto:denisec@lwa.com
















 
Marina Coast Water District 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
 
Agenda Item: 12-B      Meeting Date: May 20, 2019 
 
Prepared By: Michael Wegley               Approved By: Keith Van Der Maaten 
 
Agenda Title: Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-36 to Authorize the General Manager 

to Submit an Application and Execute a Grant Agreement with the United States 
Bureau of Reclamation for a WaterSMART: Title XVI Water Reclamation and 
Reuse Program Grant for the Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project  

Staff Recommendation:  The Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 2019-36 to authorize the 
General Manager to review and support the submittal and execute a grant agreement with the 
United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) for a WaterSMART: Title XVI Water Recycling 
Project Grant under the Water Infrastructure Improvements for the Nation Act (WIIN) to partially 
fund the Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project. 

 
Background:  5-Year Strategic Mission Statement – We provide our customers with high quality 
water, wastewater collection and conservation services at a reasonable cost, through planning, 
management and the development of water resources in an environmentally sensitive manner. 
 
The District has been presented with an opportunity to apply for grant funds through the USBR 
WaterSMART: Title XVI Water Recycling Grant Program under the WIIN Act to partially fund 
the RUWAP pipeline. In April 2019, the District was notified that its RUWAP Feasibility Study 
(Report) is complete and meets USBR requirements (Attachment 1). The Funding Opportunity 
Announcement was issued later in April. Thus, the project is eligible to apply for the 
WaterSMART WIIN Grant Program.  The submission deadline is June 28, 2019. 
 
Discussion/Analysis: This opportunity is a cost-shared funding grant for the planning, design 
and/or construction of recycled water and reuse projects.  The grant would fund up to 25% of 
allowable costs, less any other federal assistance awarded to the project.  The costs eligible would 
encompass costs incurred through September 2021.  If the project is not completed by that date, 
the District would be eligible for additional grant funds in the next funding period for USBR.   
 
This competitive grant program has a total of $20 million available to award in FY 2019.  Based 
on the funding criteria, the District would be eligible for $3.2 million of grant funds.  Staff therefore 
requests the Board consider adoption of Resolution No. 2019-36 to authorize the General Manager 
to review and support the submittal application for this grant program and to execute a grant 
agreement acceptable to the General Manager upon award from USBR.   
 

Environmental Review Compliance:  None required. 
 
Other Considerations: The Board may desire to consider other alternatives to adopting the motion 
as recommended by staff including: 

1. Modifying or conditioning the action; or, 
2. Direct further staff work; or, 
3. Deny the action. 

  



 
Financial Impact:         Yes      X    No  Funding Source/Recap: None 
 
Material Included for Information/Consideration: Resolution No. 2019-36; and, Attachment 1 – 
Feasibility Report. 
 
Action Required:       X         Resolution                  Motion                 Review 
(Roll call vote is required.) 
              

 
Board Action 

 
Motion By______________ Seconded By________________ No Action Taken    
 
Ayes       Abstained      
 
Noes       Absent                                                   

  



 
May 20, 2019 

 
Resolution No. 2019-36 

Resolution of the Board of Directors 
Marina Coast Water District 

Authorizing the General Manager to Submit an Application and Execute a Grant Agreement  
with the United States Bureau of Reclamation for a WaterSMART: Title XVI Water 

Reclamation and Reuse Program Grant for the Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project 
 

 

 RESOLVED by the Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Marina Coast Water District 
(“District”), at a regular meeting duly called and held on May 20, 2019 at 211 Hillcrest Avenue, 
Marina, California as follows: 

 
WHEREAS, the District prepared a Title XVI Program Feasibility Study meeting the 

requirements of a complete feasibility study as reviewed by the United States Bureau of 
Reclamation (“USBR”); and, 

 
WHEREAS, the USBR WaterSMART Title XVI Water Reclamation and Reuse Project 

for fiscal year 2019 is accepting applications for the congressionally authorized Title XVI Projects 
(Public Law 102-575), as amended (43 United States Code [U.S.C.] 390h) including amendments 
in Title II, Subtitle J of the Water Infrastructure Improvements for the Nation Act (WIIN), Public 
Law 114-322; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the District’s Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project (“RUWAP”) is 

eligible for the USBR’s grand funding pursuant to the WaterSMART Title XVI Water 
Reclamation Reuse Program guidelines and published eligibility guidelines; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Board seeks to authorize such application to the USBR WaterSMART 

Title XVI Water Reclamation and Reuse Program for fiscal year 2019; and, 
  
WHEREAS, the USBR requires grant applicants to provide a resolution adopted by the 

applicant’s governing body designating an authorized representative to submit the grant 
application and execute an agreement with the USBR for the grant; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Board seeks to authorize the General Manager to sign the USBR 

WaterSMART Grant Agreement and any amendments hereto.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Marina Coast 
Water District:  
 

1. That the Board hereby authorizes the General Manager to review and support the submittal 
of a grant application requesting up to $3.2 million for the RUWAP on behalf of the Marina 
Coast Water District, to the USBR; and, 
 

2. That the General Manager is hereby designated as the District’s authorized representative 
and authorized and directed to prepare the necessary data, conduct investigations, file such 
application, and, if a grant is awarded and if the General Manager finds that it is in the best 
interests of the District to do so, execute in the name of Marina Coast Water District all 
necessary grant documents, including, but not limited to, agreements, amendments, 



 
payment requests and so on, which may be necessary for the grant and funding of the 
RUWAP, provided that the District can satisfy the grant terms, conditions, and 
requirements, and comply with all applicable state and federal laws and regulations. 
 

3. Funds are available in the District’s Capital Improvement Program to provide the District’s 
required funding and/or in-kind contributions for the $3.2 million grant, if awarded. 

 
4. That the General Manager is authorized and directed, if the grant is awarded, to administer 

the grant on behalf of the District and to apply the monies received to the appropriate 
Marina Coast Water District Fund. 
 

5. The District will work with Reclamation to meet established deadlines for entering into a 
grant or cooperative agreement. 
 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED on May 20, 2019 by the Board of Directors of the Marina Coast 
Water District by the following roll call vote:  
 

Ayes:  Directors               
 

Noes:  Directors               
 

Absent: Directors               
 

Abstained: Directors               
 
 

______________________________ 
        Thomas P. Moore, President 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
 

 The undersigned Secretary of the Board of the Marina Coast Water District hereby certifies 
that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 2019-36 adopted May 20, 2019. 
 

 
______________________________ 

  Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary 
 
 
  









 
Marina Coast Water District 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
Agenda Item: 12-C       Meeting Date: May 20, 2019  
 
Submitted By: Andrew Racz      Approved By: Keith Van Der Maaten  
Reviewed By: Michael Wegley 
 
Agenda Title: Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-37 to Approve the 2018 Memorandum 

of Understanding Update with the Monterey Peninsula, Carmel Bay, and South 
Monterey Bay Integrated Regional Water Management Group and Approve a 
Reimbursement to the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District for Prop 1 
Funding Grant Preparation Costs 

 
Staff Recommendation:  The Board adopt Resolution No. 2019-37 to Approve the 2018 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Update with the Monterey Peninsula, Carmel Bay, and 
South Monterey Bay Integrated Regional Water Management Group, approve a Reimbursement 
to the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD) for Prop 1 Funding Grant 
Preparation Costs at a not-to-exceed amount of $23,900, and authorize the General Manager to 
execute all documents as may be necessary or appropriate to give effect to this resolution. 
 
Background: 5-Year Strategic Mission Statement – We provide our customers with high quality 
water, wastewater collection and conservation services at a reasonable cost, through planning, 
management and the development of water resources in an environmentally sensitive manner.  
 
Detailed Description: Marina Coast Water District (MCWD, District) is a member agency of the 
Monterey Peninsula, Carmel Bay, and South Monterey Bay Integrated Regional Water 
Management Group (MPIRWMG).  The intent of the Integrated Regional Water Management 
(IRWM) program is to encourage local and regional agencies to implement projects focused on 
meeting multiple water resources needs on a regional basis.  The California Department of Water 
Resources (DWR) and the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) have encouraged local 
and regional water resource management entities to establish integrated regional water 
management plans (IRWMPs) through the collaboration of planning efforts and project 
coordination. 
 
In late 2019, the DWR will begin releasing new Proposition 1 IRWM Round 1 implementation 
grant funding. In 2016, the six Central Coast IRWM funding regions entered into a Memorandum 
of Agreement to share $43M in Prop 1 funding in a fair and equitable manner based on a base 
amount, and a proportional amount by population and total acreage of the planning area. This 
agreement was reached in part because some regions have received a disproportionate amount of 
past IRWM funding. As a result, the MPIRWMG funding area is slated to receive approximately 
$4.2M in Prop 1 IRWM funding, including 10% for Disadvantaged Community (DAC) 
Involvement and 10% for DAC Projects.  In early 2019, MCWD submitted an application 
requesting $285,000 in funding for the Coe Avenue Recycled Water Distribution Pipeline, a 
proposed CIP that will provide advance-treated recycled water for landscape irrigation to MCWD 
customers in Seaside Highlands and adjacent areas within the City of Seaside.  The pipeline is one 
of several distribution pipelines being planned by MCWD as part of the Regional Urban Water 
Augmentation Project (RUWAP) to distribute recycled water to potential end-users who currently 
use potable water to meet outdoor irrigation needs (see attached map).  In March 2019, the 
MPIRWMG finished evaluating all submitted project proposals and voted to include MCWD’s 



 
proposed project and full funding request in the MPIRWMG’s Prop 1 grant application.  Along 
with MCWD’s Coe Avenue project, three additional projects put forth by the Cities of Seaside, 
Sand City and Monterey comprise the MPIRWMG’s grant application. 
 
Action Item 1:  Approve 2018 MOU Update 

 
The District Board is being asked to authorize execution of the MPIRWMG’s updated 2018 MOU.  
The revision added new members to the MOU and updated information about the 2016 and 2018 
DWR Program Guidelines.  In order to be eligible for State IRWM grant funds under the California 
voter-approved Proposition 1, the MOU must be adopted by the agencies comprising the 
MPIRWMG and by agencies that apply for grant funds. The alternative is to not adopt the MOU 
and be eliminated from participating within this particular MPIRWMG (i.e. the MPIRWMG will 
advance regardless of MCWD’s participation).  
 
As part of the plan update and project solicitation process, new members were given the 
opportunity to join the MPIRWMG and sign onto the MOU that forms the group. Participation as 
a member of the MPIRWMG entitles a member with the ability to vote on the prioritization process 
for projects that are put forward for the available IRWM grant funding.  Potential new members 
were asked to provide a letter request to the MPIRWMG to join, pursuant to the MOU’s Mutual 
Understanding, which currently states: 
 

6.12  Participation in Regional Water Management Group (RWMG). Any qualified 
stakeholder may petition to become a member of the RWMG. A qualified 
stakeholder must demonstrate the following: a) an interest, responsibility or 
authority over multiple resources within the region; or b) a unique interest, 
responsibility, authority, or asset not shared by any other entity within the RWMG. 
The RWMG shall consider such a request for a change to the RWMG and shall vote 
by majority to accept or reject the request. 

 
Ten organizations have provided letters requesting to join the MPIRWMG: California State 
University Monterey Bay, Carmel Area Wastewater District, Carmel River Watershed 
Conservancy, Carmel Valley Association, City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, City of Del Rey Oaks, City 
of Pacific Grove, City of Sand City, City of Seaside, and Monterey County Resource Management 
Agency. 
 
Action Item 2:  Approve Prop 1 Grant Application Funding 

 
The MPWMD has retained Dudek for services to prepare a proposal to the DWR for Proposition 
1 IRWM grant funds.  The contract between MPWMD and Dudek is for a maximum amount of 
$95,600.  MCWD’s Coe Avenue project is one of four projects comprising the MPIRWMG’s 
overall funding proposal.  As such, MPWMD has requested that MCWD agree to reimburse up to 
$23,900, or one-fourth of the total cost.   
 
A funding award of $285,000 would represent a nearly twelve-fold return on investment of the 
proposed grant preparation costs, and the probability of receiving this award is high.  All submitted 
Round 1 implementation project proposals were competitively ranked and technically vetted by 
the MPIRWMG’s technical advisory committee, then voted upon for inclusion in the grant funding 
proposal by participating member agencies.  As the six Central Coast IRWM funding regions have 
already agreed to an equitable distribution of available funds, it seems likely that the full funding 
request will be granted.  Staff recommends that the District Board approve the establishment of a 



 
reimbursement agreement between MCWD and MPWMD to cover IRWM grant preparation costs, 
and grant the District General Manager signing authority for said agreement.   
 
Additional Information: 

 
For the first Monterey Peninsula IRWM Plan adopted in 2007, the MPIRWMG was comprised of 
representatives from the Big Sur Land Trust (BSLT), the City of Monterey, the Monterey County 
Water Resources Agency (MCWRA), the Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency 
(MRWPCA), and the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD). Marina Coast 
Water District (MCWD) and the Resource Conservation District of Monterey County (RCDMC) 
joined the MPIRWMG in 2014. 
 
Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) is a collaborative effort to manage all aspects of 
water resources in a region. IRWM crosses jurisdictional, watershed, and political boundaries; 
involves multiple agencies, stakeholders, individuals, and groups; and attempts to address the 
issues and differing perspectives of all the entities involved through mutually beneficial solutions.  
 
The State of California’s Department of Water Resources (DWR) has divided the state into 48 sub-
regions (planning areas) for funding purposes. Locally, the Central Coast funding region is 
comprised of coastal watersheds in the counties of Santa Cruz, Santa Clara, San Benito, Monterey, 
San Luis Obispo and Santa Barbara. Within the Central Coast funding region, there are six IRWM 
planning areas.  
 
The formation of the Monterey Peninsula planning area was based on watershed and groundwater 
basin limits, portions of the near-shore environment areas affected by inland area activities, and 
takes into consideration jurisdictional limits, powers and responsibilities for water resource 
management. The Monterey Peninsula planning area is approximately 347 square miles and 
consists of coastal watershed areas in Carmel Bay and south Monterey Bay between Pt. Lobos on 
the south and Sand City on the north – a 38.3-mile stretch of the coast that includes three Areas of 
Special Biological Significance (Pt. Lobos, Carmel Bay, and Pacific Grove), several Marine 
Protected Areas, and a portion of the Monterey Bay National Marine Sanctuary. The area 
encompasses the six Monterey Peninsula Cities of Carmel-by-the Sea, Del Rey Oaks, Pacific 
Grove, Monterey, Sand City, Seaside, and extends into portions of the unincorporated area of 
Monterey County at the former Fort Ord, in the Carmel Highlands, Pebble Beach, the inland areas 
of Carmel Valley and the Laguna Seca area. 
  
Environmental Review Compliance:  None required. 
 
Other Considerations: The Board may desire to consider other alternatives to adopting the motion 
as recommended by staff including: 

1. Modifying or conditioning the action; or, 
2. Direct further staff work; or, 
3. Deny the action. 

 
Financial Impact:     X    Yes           No  Funding Source/Recap: Funded 
through the Engineering Capital Improvement Budget (CIP #0158). 
 
Materials Included for Information/Consideration:  Resolution No. 2019-37; Updated 2018 MOU; 
and, RUWAP Alignment Map.  
 



 
Action Required:       X         Resolution                  Motion                 Review 
(Roll call vote is required.) 
              

 
Board Action 

 
Motion By______________ Seconded By________________ No Action Taken    
 
Ayes       Abstained      
 
Noes       Absent                                                   
  



 
May 20, 2019 

 
Resolution No. 2019-37 

Resolution of the Board of Directors 
Marina Coast Water District 

Adopting the Updated 2018 Monterey Peninsula Integrated Regional Water Management Group 
Memorandum of Understanding and Approve Reimbursement to MPWMD for Preparing a 

Proposition 1 Grant Application Funding 
 

 
RESOLVED by the Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Marina Coast Water District 

(“District”), at a regular meeting duly called and held on May 20, 2019 at 211 Hillcrest Avenue, 
Marina, California as follows: 

 
WHEREAS,   the State   of   California   desires to   foster   Integrated   Regional   Water 

Management (IRWM) planning and  encourages local public, non-profit,  and private (for profit) 
entities  to  define  planning  regions  appropriate  for  managing  water  resources  and  to  integrate 
strategies within these planning regions; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the water resources management authority and interests in the planning area 
are  currently  distributed  among  various  public  agencies  and  other  entities  with  a  range  of  
legal powers, regulatory responsibilities and interests; and, 
 

WHEREAS, sensible water resources planning and management frequently requires 
actions in multiple jurisdictions; and, 
 

WHEREAS,  the  Monterey Peninsula Integrated Water Resources Management Group 
(MPIRWMG) undertakes collaborative  planning efforts  with the stakeholders  in  the  planning  
Region  including public  agencies, water  providers, non-profit entities, residential  water  users,  
community,  recreation, and  environmental  organizations to formulate  water  management goals, 
strategies,  and  objectives for  the planning  Region  and to prioritize projects that address 
watershed and regional issues; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) among the member agencies is 
intended to be a living document, reviewed and updated over time; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the MPWMD has retained Dudek for services to prepare a proposal to the 

DWR for Proposition 1 IRWM grant funds.  The contract between MPWMD and Dudek is for a 
maximum amount of $95,600.  MCWD’s Coe Avenue project is one of four projects comprising 
the MPIRWMG’s overall funding proposal.  As such, MPWMD has requested that MCWD agree 
to reimburse up to $23,900, or one-fourth of the total cost; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the  Marina Coast Water District Board of Directors reviewed the MOU 

Update with its staff and the general public at its regular Board meeting on May 20, 2019 with  the  
intent to adopt said MOU.  
 

NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE  IT  RESOLVED,  that  the  Board  of  Directors  of  the  Marina 
Coast Water District does hereby adopt Resolution No. 2019-37 approving the Monterey Peninsula 
Integrated Regional Water Management Group 2018 MOU update and approve reimbursement to 
MPWMD in an amount not-to-exceed $23,000 for Prop 1 Funding Grant Preparation Costs, and 



 
to authorize the General Manager to take all actions and execute all documents as may be necessary 
or appropriate to give effect to this resolution. 

 
PASSED  AND  ADOPTED  on May 20, 2019,  by  the  Board  of  Directors  of  the Marina 

Coast Water District by the following roll call vote:  
 

Ayes:  Directors ___________________________________________________ 
 
Noes:  Directors ___________________________________________________ 
 
Absent: Directors ___________________________________________________ 
 
Abstained: Directors ___________________________________________________ 
 

_____________________________
Thomas P. Moore, President 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
 

The  undersigned  Secretary  of  the  Board  of  the  Marina  Coast  Water  District  hereby certifies  
that  the  foregoing  is  a  full,  true  and  correct  copy  of  Resolution  No.  2019-37 adopted May 
20, 2019. 
 

______________________________ 
Keith Van Der Maaten, Secretary 

  



Figure 1
RECYCLED WATER PROJECT ALIGNMENT 

MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT

V:\Client80\MCWD\7568\mcwd1116\mcwd1116rf1-7568.ai
November 21, 2016

µ
G

en
er

al
 J

im
 M

oo
re

 B
lv

d

Gigling Rd

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
Av

e

2n
d

 A
ve Im

jin
 R

d

Carmel Ave

Abrams Dr
5t

h
 A

ve

9th St

A Ave

3rd St

Reindollar AveVa
ug

hn
 A

ve

Cr
es

ce
nt

 A
ve

Reservation Rd

Normandy Rd

Coe Ave

UT

  

Blackhorse Reservoir

_̂
WAPP

Beach Rd

Unincorporated Monterey County

Unincorporated
Monterey County

City of Seaside

City of Del Rey Oaks

City of Marina
(Established Region)

City of Marina
(Developing Region)

DOD
DOD

DOD

DOD

CSUMB

CSUMB

Lightfigher Dr

Interg East Garrisonarrison Rd

La
ke

 D
r

De
l M

on
te

 B
lv

d

Legend

CSUMB

Jurisdiction

City of Seaside

City of Del Rey Oaks

City of Marina (Developing Region)

City of Marina (Established Region)

Department of Defense Retained Land

6,000 0 6,0003,000

Feet

Existing 
Distribution Main

Transmission Main

Distribution Main



 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 1 of 12 October 2018  

 

AMENDED 

Memorandum of Understanding for 

Integrated Regional Water Management in the 

Monterey Peninsula, Carmel Bay, and South Monterey Bay Region 
 

1. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is to recognize a mutual 
understanding among entities in the southern Monterey Bay area regarding their joint efforts 
toward Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) planning.  That understanding will 
continue to increase coordination, collaboration and communication for comprehensive 
management of water resources in the cities and unincorporated portions of the Monterey 
Peninsula, Carmel Bay, and South Monterey Bay Region (Region).  
 

A. Background and Description of Amendments.  The initial MOU to form a Regional 
Water Management Group (RWMG) was fully executed on July 22, 2008 by the Big Sur 
Land Trust (BSLT), a 501 (c) 3 organization, the City of Monterey, the Monterey Regional 
Water Pollution Control Agency (MRPWCA, now known as Monterey One Water or 
M1W), the Monterey County Water Resources Agency (MCWRA), and the Monterey 
Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD).  The MOU formed a Regional Water 
Management Group (RWMG) for the purposes of developing and implementing projects 
consistent with the guidelines set by the State of California for IRWM. 

 
Subsequently, the Marina Coast Water District (MCWD) requested approval to become 
part of the RWMG and signed an amended MOU in June 2011 that includes MCWD as a 
member of the RWMG.  In 2012, the MOU was amended to include the Resource 
Conservation District of Monterey County (RCD) as a member of the RWMG. In 2018, a 
number of additional organizations requested approval to become part of the MOU, 
including California State University Monterey Bay, Carmel Area Wastewater District, 
Carmel River Watershed Conservancy, Carmel Valley Association, City of Carmel-by-the-
Sea, City of Del Rey Oaks, City of Pacific Grove, City of Sand City, City of Seaside, and 
Monterey County Resource Management Agency. 
 
In 2014, voters passed Proposition 1, the Water Quality, Supply, and Infrastructure 
Improvement Act of 2014 the Safe Drinking Water, Water Quality and Supply, Flood 
Control, River and Coastal Protection Act (Public Resources Code, sections 79700 - 
79798), which authorizes the Legislature to appropriate funding for competitive grants for 
Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) projects. Funding is administered by the 
Department of Water Resources (DWR). 
 
In 2015, representatives from the RWMGs representing the Central Coast region entered 
into discussions about a funding area agreement for Proposition 1 funds allocated to the 
Central Coast funding area.   In 2016, the Central Coast RWMGs entered into a 
Memorandum of Agreement for Integrated Regional Water Management Planning and 
Funding in the Central Coast Funding Area to share Proposition 1 funding for the IRWM 
grant program among the six Parties in a fair and equitable manner, and to reduce the need 



 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 2 of 12 October 2018  

 

for the Parties to compete against each other for grant funds, which creates unnecessary 
economic inefficiencies in implementing each Planning Region’s IRWM Plan. 
 
 (Pending approval by a majority of current RWMG members) This amended MOU reflects 
the addition of California State University Monterey Bay, Carmel Area Wastewater 
District, Carmel River Watershed Conservancy, Carmel Valley Association, City of 
Carmel-by-the-Sea, City of Del Rey Oaks, City of Pacific Grove, City of Sand City, City 
of Seaside, and Monterey County Resource Management Agency as members of the 
RWMG. 

 
 
2. RECITALS 

A.  The State of California desires to foster Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) 
planning and encourages local public, non-profit, and private (for profit) entities to define 
planning regions appropriate for managing water resources and to integrate strategies 
within these planning regions.  

 
B.  Water resources management authority in the Region is currently distributed among various 

public agencies with a range of legal powers and regulatory responsibilities.  These public 
agencies have definite jurisdictional boundaries, whereas sensible water resources planning 
and management frequently requires actions in multiple jurisdictions. Non-public entities 
within the Region have considerable interests in cooperating with public entities to protect, 
manage, and enhance water resources within the Region. 

 
C.  (Pending approval by current RWMG members) Thirteen public entities and three non-

profit entities in the Region with responsibility and interests in the management of water 
resources have agreed to form a Regional Water Management Group for the purposes of 
developing and implementing projects consistent with the guidelines set by the State of 
California for IRWM.   These entities are:  

 
• Big Sur Land Trust (BSLT), a 501 (c) 3 organization; 
• California State University Monterey Bay 
• Carmel Area Wastewater District; 
• Carmel River Watershed Conservancy, a 501 (c) 3 organization; 
• Carmel Valley Association; 
• City of Carmel-by-the-Sea; 
• City of Del Rey Oaks 
• City of Monterey; 
• City of Pacific Grove; 
• City of Seaside;  
• City of Sand City;Monterey One Water (M1W));  
• Monterey County Resource Management Agency; 
• Monterey County Water Resources Agency (MCWRA);  
• Marina Coast Water District (MCWD);  
• Resource Conservation District of Monterey County; and  



 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 3 of 12 October 2018  

 

• Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD).  
  
D.  The RWMG has defined an appropriate planning Region that takes into consideration 

jurisdictional limits, powers and responsibilities, and watershed and groundwater basin 
boundaries.  The RWMG is taking the lead in overseeing and implementing a detailed 
IRWM Plan within the planning Region.  The Region is generally described as 
encompassing approximately 347 square miles and consists of groundwater basins and 
coastal watershed areas contributing to the Carmel Bay and south Monterey Bay.  The 
Region includes coastal watersheds from the southernmost portion of the San Jose Creek 
watershed north to the northern limit of the Seaside Groundwater Basin.  The inland area 
is bounded by the Seaside Groundwater Basin to the north and by the Carmel River 
watershed to the south and east.  The western limit of the planning Region generally 
coincides with the land and Pacific Ocean interface, but includes the Pt. Lobos, Carmel 
Bay, and Pacific Grove Areas of Special Biological Significance (ASBS) adjacent to the 
coastal portion of the Region. 

 
The principal groundwater basins in the planning Region are the Seaside Groundwater 
Basin and the Carmel Valley Aquifer.  The Region includes about 38 miles of the coast 
within the Monterey Bay National Marine Sanctuary, three ASBS, the Cities of Carmel-
by-the Sea, Del Rey Oaks, Monterey, Pacific Grove, Sand City, Seaside, and 
unincorporated portions of Monterey County including the Carmel Valley watershed (255 
square miles), Pebble Beach, the Carmel Highlands and portions of the Seaside 
Groundwater Basin adjacent to Highway 68 (also known as Canyon Del Rey).  This 
description of the planning Region is not intended to be a limitation on projects and 
resource planning that may be shared between adjacent IRWM planning Regions (e.g., the 
Greater Monterey County IRWM planning Region to the north and east).   

 
E.  The entities signatory to this MOU desire to link and integrate efforts to jointly oversee the 

development and implementation of a comprehensive Integrated Regional Water 
Management Plan for the Region and to allocate IRWM funding within the planning 
Region. 

 
3. GOALS 

The goals of the collaborative effort undertaken pursuant to this MOU are: 
3.1 To implement a comprehensive IRWMP for the Region that will consider the 

strategies that are required by the State under CWC 79562.5 and 79564 and 
subsequent modifications required under Proposition 1.  Eligible projects must yield 
multiple benefits and include one or more of the following elements  

(Water Code §79743 (a - j)): 

✓ Water reuse and recycling for non-potable reuse and direct and indirect 

potable reuse 

✓ Water-use efficiency and water conservation 



 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 4 of 12 October 2018  

 

✓ Local and regional surface and underground water storage, including 

groundwater aquifer cleanup or recharge projects 

✓ Regional water conveyance facilities that improve integration of separate 

water systems 

✓ Watershed protection, restoration, and management projects, including 

projects that reduce the risk of wildfire or improve water supply reliability 

✓ Stormwater resource management, including, but not limited to, the 

following: 

▪ Projects to reduce, manage, treat, or capture rainwater or stormwater 

▪ Projects that provide multiple benefits such as water quality, water 

supply, flood control, or open space 

▪ Decision support tools that evaluate the benefits and costs of multi-

benefit stormwater projects 

▪ Projects to implement a stormwater resource plan developed in 

accordance with Part 2.3 (commencing with Section 10560) of Division 6 

including Water Code § 10562 (b)(7) 

✓ Conjunctive use of surface and groundwater storage facilities 

✓ Water desalination projects 

✓ Decision support tools to model regional water management strategies to 

account for climate change and other changes in regional demand and 

supply projections 

✓ Improvement of water quality, including drinking water treatment and 

distribution, groundwater and aquifer remediation, matching water quality 

to water use, wastewater treatment, water pollution prevention, and 

management of urban and agricultural runoff 

✓ Regional projects or programs as defined by the IRWM Planning Act 

(Water Code §10537)  
3.2 To implement a comprehensive IRWMP for the Region that incorporates water 

supply, water quality, flood and erosion protection, and environmental protection and 
enhancement objectives. 

3.3 To improve and maximize coordination of individual public, private, and non-profit 
agency plans, programs and projects for mutual benefit and optimal gain within the 
Region. 

3.4 To help identify, develop, and implement collaborative plans, programs, and projects 
that may be beyond the scope or capability of individual entities, but which would be 
of mutual benefit if implemented in a cooperative manner.    



 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 5 of 12 October 2018  

 

3.5 To facilitate regional water management efforts that include multiple water supply, 
water quality, flood control, and environmental protection and enhancement 
objectives. 

3.6 To foster coordination, collaboration and communication between stakeholders and 
other interested parties, to achieve greater efficiencies, enhance public services, and 
build public support for vital projects. 

3.7. To realize regional water management objectives at the least cost possible through 
mutual cooperation, elimination of redundancy, and enhanced regional 
competitiveness for State and Federal grant funding.  

3.8 To satisfy State requirements for incorporation of a Storm Water Resource plan 
developed for the Region in accordance with Part 2.3 (commencing with Section 
10560) of Division 6 including Water Code § 10562 (b)(7) 

 
4. DEFINITIONS  

4.1 Funding Area Agreement.  The agreement entered into between the six regions 
within the Central Coast funding area to allocate a portion of Proposition 1 IRWM 
funds to each planning region. 

4.2 Integrated Regional Water Management Plan (IRWMP or IRWM Plan).  The 
plan envisioned by state legislators and state resource agencies that integrates the 
strategies, objectives, and priorities for projects to manage water resources proposed 
by public entities, non-profit entities, and stakeholders within a defined Planning 
Region.  The minimum plan standards are as shown in Appendix A of “Integrated 
Regional Water Management Grant Program Guidelines, November 2004, 
Department of Water Resources and State Water Resources Control Board, 
Proposition 50, Chapter 8,” as revised.  Minimum IRWM Plan standards may be 
revised from time to time by the State of California. 

4.3  Integration. The combining of water management strategies and projects to be 
included in an IRWMP. 

4.4.a Lead Agency for IRWM Plan Development.  The Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District is designated by the Regional Water Management Group to lead 
the development or implementation of an Integrated Regional Water Management 
Plan for the Region.   

4.4.b Lead Agency for IRWM Grant Applications.  The Regional Water Management 
Group may designate any entity in the Regional Water Management Group to be the 
Lead Agency in making application to the State for grant funds. 

4.4.c Lead Agency for Executing a Central Coast funding area agreement.  The entity 
the Regional Water Management Group designates to represent the Monterey 
Peninsula Region to execute a Funding Area Agreement. 

4.5 Non-profit Agency.  A 501 (c) (3) corporation, conservancy, group or other 
organization involved in water resources management in the Region. 

4.6 Private Agency.  A private or publicly held for-profit corporation or property owner 
involved in water resources management in the Region 

4.7 Project.  A specific project that addresses a service function. 
4.8 Public Agency. A state-authorized water district, water agency, water management 

agency or other public entity, be it a special district, city or other governmental entity, 
responsible for providing one or more services in the areas of water supply, water 



 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 6 of 12 October 2018  

 

quality, wastewater, recycled water, water conservation, stormwater/flood control, 
watershed planning and aquatic habitat protection and restoration.  

4.9 Region.  The area defined by the Regional Water Management Group (RWMG) 
consisting of watersheds, sub-watersheds and groundwater basins under the 
jurisdiction of one or more entities within the RWMG.  

4.10 Service Function.  A water-related individual service function provided by a private, 
public, or non-profit entity, i.e. water supply, water quality, wastewater, recycled 
water, water conservation, stormwater/flood protection, watershed planning, 
recreational facilities, and habitat protection and restoration. 

4.11 Signatory Entity. A public, private, or non-profit entity within the Region that is 
signatory to this MOU. 

4.12 Stakeholder.  A non-signatory public, private, or non-profit agency identified in the 
IRWM Plan with an interest in water resources management within the Region. 

4.13  Stormwater Resource Plan.  The plan developed for the Region that identifies 
stormwater capture project opportunities. 

4.14 Technical Advisory Committee.  The committee organized to advise the Regional 
Water Management Group and Stakeholders concerning the IRWM Plan.  Normally, 
the group will be comprised of individuals with technical backgrounds in the fields 
of marine and freshwater biology, ecology, geology, engineering, hydrogeology, 
planning, resource conservation, riparian systems, water conservation, and water 
quality.  However, stakeholders with interests in a particular aspect of resource or 
project management, but not necessarily a technical background, may also be 
considered for inclusion in the TAC. 

4.15 Regional Water Management Group.  The group of entities that takes the lead in 
overseeing the development and implementation of the Integrated Regional Water 
Management Plan within the Planning Region.   (a list of members of the Regional 
Water Management Group is provided in Recital C) 

4.16 Water Management Strategies.  Plans for and activities to be considered in an 
IRWMP include, but are not limited to, ecosystem restoration, environmental and 
habitat protection and improvement, water-supply reliability, flood management, 
groundwater management, recreation and public access, storm water capture and 
management, water conservation, water quality improvement, water recycling, and 
wetlands enhancement and creation. 

 
5. IRWMP PARTICIPANTS 

5.1 Adopting Entities.  The entities in the Region that participate in the development, 
adoption, and implementation of the Integrated Regional Water Management Plan 
for the Region.  Each entity intending to carry out a project proposed in the IRWMP 
must formally adopt the IRWMP or provide written substantiation of acceptance by 
the governing authority of the entity.  For a public agency, adoption of the IRWMP 
is by formal resolution of the governing body.  For a non-profit or for-profit entity, 
proof of acceptance of the IRWMP by the equivalent of a public agency governing 
body is required (e.g., by a board of directors or other management entity). 

5.2. Stakeholders.  Entities, such as other public, private, and non-profit entities, business 
and environmental groups, that are considered valuable contributors to the 
understanding and management of the Region’s water resources.  



 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 7 of 12 October 2018  

 

5.3. Regulatory Agencies.  These agencies, including, but not limited to, the State Water 
Resources Control Board, Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board, 
California Coastal Commission, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, California Public 
Utilities Commission, National Marine Fisheries Service (NOAA Fisheries), U.S. 
Fish and Wildlife Service, and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, will 
be invited to participate in the development and implementation of the IRWMP. 

5.4 Regional Water Management Group.  The group of entities that takes the lead in 
developing and implementing an Integrated Regional Water Management Plan within 
the Planning Region. 

   
6. MUTUAL UNDERSTANDING 

6.1. Subject matter scope of the IRWMP.  The IRWMP for the Region will include, but 
is not limited to, water supply, water quality, wastewater, recycled water, water 
conservation, stormwater/flood control, watershed planning, erosion prevention, and 
habitat protection and restoration.  It is acknowledged that the proposals contained in 
the IRWMP may be based, in part, on the land-use plans of the member entities local 
governments such as Cities, Monterey County, and special districts located within 
the Region.  Therefore, the resultant IRWMP will by design have incorporated the 
land-use plans and assumptions intrinsic to the respective water-related service 
function.  

6.2. Geographical scope of the IRWMP.  The area for this Memorandum is generally 
defined as the watersheds and associated groundwater basins contributing to the south 
Monterey Bay and Carmel Bay as shown in Figure 3-1: Map of Monterey Peninsula 
Integrated Regional Water Management Planning Region in the IRWM Plan.  

 
The Region includes coastal watersheds from the southernmost portion of the San 
Jose Creek watershed north to the northern limit of the Seaside Groundwater Basin. 
The inland area is bounded by the Seaside Groundwater Basin to the north and by the 
Carmel River watershed to the south and east.  The western limit of the planning 
Region generally coincides with the land and Pacific Ocean interface, but includes 
the Pt. Lobos, Carmel Bay, and Pacific Grove Areas of Special Biological 
Significance (ASBS) adjacent to the coastal portion of the Region. 
 
However, it is recognized that the geographic scope represented in the IRWM Plan 
may be amended to include projects that are implemented cooperatively between 
IRWM planning regions (e.g., with the Greater Monterey County IRWM planning 
region) and is not intended to be a rigid boundary.  

6.3. Approach to developing the IRWMP.  It will be the responsibility of each entity 
signatory to this Memorandum to provide the Lead Agency with information for the 
IRWMP concerning project proposals or to identify the need for a water management 
strategy for each service function provided by a signatory entity.   

 
In order to be included in the IRWMP, all proposals for development of water 
management plans and water development project proposals related to the IRWMP 
must meet the standards identified in the IRWM Plan for the Region. 
 



 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 8 of 12 October 2018  

 

A technical advisory committee consisting of staff representatives from the Regional 
Water Management Group, other Stakeholders and such other organizations as may 
become contributing entities, will review proposed management plans and project 
proposals for consistency with the IRWMP and recommend a prioritized list of 
projects to be carried out within the Region.  The Regional Water Management Group 
and Stakeholders will meet to review the recommendation made by the TAC.   

6.4. Approval of prioritized project list.  Approval of the prioritized project list should 
occur by consensus of the Regional Water Management Group and Stakeholders and 
should be based on the prioritization process described in the IRWMP and the 
recommendations of the Technical Advisory Committee.  However, if a consensus 
cannot be reached among the Stakeholders and Regional Water Management Group, 
the Regional Water Management Group may make a final determination of the 
prioritized project list.  

6.5. Adoption of the IRWMP.  Plan adoption will occur by approval of the governing 
board of each entity.  Each member of the RWMG shall adopt the IRWM Plan or an 
amended IRWM Plan, when the Plan becomes available.  Project proponents named 
in an IRWM grant application shall adopt the IRWM Plan or amended IRWM Plan 
prior to submittal of the grant application.  It should be noted that the adopted Plan 
and project list may be amended from time to time as described below.   

6.6 Amendment of IRWMP or Prioritized Project list.   The IRWM Plan and 
prioritized project list may be amended from time to time.  Any member of the 
Regional Water Management Group or Stakeholders may request that the Lead 
Agency convene a meeting of the Regional Water Management Group and 
Stakeholders for the purposes of amending the IRWM Plan or the prioritized project 
list.  However, it is anticipated that the IRWMP or prioritized project list will be 
amended no more frequently than annually, unless more frequent amendments are 
required to meet State IRWM standards or grant application cycles.  An amended 
IRWM Plan must be consistent with State IRWM standards as described in Definition 
4.1 “Integrated Regional Water Management Plan” and any subsequent revisions by 
the State to IRWM guidelines. 

6.7. Project Implementation.  Project proponents will be responsible for completing 
proposed projects and providing project reports to the Lead Agency. 

6.8 Project Monitoring.  The Regional Water Management Group will be responsible 
for monitoring the implementation of the IRWMP.  The technical advisory committee 
will regularly report to the General Managers and Governing Boards of the Regional 
Water Management Group regarding progress on the development and 
implementation of the IRWMP.  The Lead Agency will be responsible for 
coordinating data collection and dissemination. 

6.9 Grant Applications.  The Regional Water Management Group will designate a Lead 
Agency to apply for grant funds.  The Lead Agency for each grant application should 
have a mission and expertise that is consistent with the purpose of the grant being 
applied for. 

6.10  Central Coast funding area agreement.  The RWMG designates MPWMD to 
execute a funding area agreement on behalf of the Monterey Peninsula Planning 
Region. 



 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 9 of 12 October 2018  

 

6.11 Grant Awards and Agreement.  The Lead Agency will be the grantee and 
administer the grant on behalf of the Regional Water Management Group and 
Stakeholders. 

6.12 Participation in Regional Water Management Group (RWMG).  Any qualified 
stakeholder may petition to become a member of the RWMG.  A qualified 
stakeholder must demonstrate an interest, responsibility or authority over one or more 
resources within the region; The RWMG shall consider such a request for a change 
to the RWMG and shall vote by majority to accept or reject the request. 

6.13  Length of Term in Regional Water Management Group.  Members of the RWMG 
may change from time to time, depending on the level of resources available to each 
entity.  However, there is no required minimum or maximum length of time required 
as a member of the RWMG.  If an entity withdraws from the RWMG, the remaining 
entities should attempt to replace the interest, responsibility or authority lost by the 
withdrawal. 

6.14 Rights of the Parties and Constituencies: This MOU does not provide any added 
legal rights or regulatory powers to any of the signatory parties, or to the RWMG as 
a whole. This MOU does not of itself give any party the power to adjudicate water 
rights, or to regulate or otherwise control the private property of other parties. This 
MOU does not contemplate the parties taking any action that would adversely affect 
the rights of any of the parties, or that would adversely affect the customers or 
constituencies of any of the parties. 

6.15  Termination.  An entity signatory to this MOU may withdraw from participation 
upon 30 days advance notice to the other signatory entities, provided it agrees to be 
financially responsible for any previously committed, but unmet resource 
commitment.  

6.16. Personnel resources.  It is expected that the General Managers and/or other officials 
of each entity signatory to this MOU will periodically meet to insure that adequate 
staff resources are available to implement the IRWM Plan. 

6.17. Other on-going regional efforts Development of the IRWMP is separate from 
efforts of other organizations to develop water-related plans on a regional basis 
around Monterey Bay and the Central Coast.  As the IRWMP is developed and 
implemented, work products may be shared to provide other entities and groups with 
current information.  

 
7.  RECORD OF AMENDMENTS 

7.1 June 2010 – add Marina Coast Water District to RWMG.  Revise Goals, Definitions 
and MOU terms to reflect Proposition 84 requirements. 

7.2 March 2012 – add process to change RWMG, define when plan is to be adopted, 
revise to Proposition 84 standards 

7.3 August 2012 – add Resource Conservation District of Monterey County to RWMG 
7.4 DATE (by February 2019) – add California State University Monterey Bay, Carmel 

Area Wastewater District, Carmel River Watershed Conservancy, Carmel Valley 
Association, City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, City of Del Rey Oaks, City of Pacific Grove, 
City of Sand City, City of Seaside, and Monterey County Resource Management 
Agency to RWMG 

 



 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 10 of 12 October 2018  

 

8.  SIGNATORIES TO THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 

We, the duly authorized undersigned representatives of our respective entities, acknowledge the 
above as our understanding of the intent and expected outcome in overseeing the development and 
implementation of an Integrated Regional Water Management Plan for the Monterey Peninsula, 
Carmel Bay, and South Monterey Bay Region. 
 
Big Sur Land Trust 
 

 
By:    
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 
 

 Monterey County Water Resources Agency 
 
 
By:    
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 
 

Monterey Regional Water Pollution 

Control Agency 
 
By:    
 
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 
 

 City of Monterey 
 
 
By:    
 
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 
 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management 

District 
 
By:    
 
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 
 

 Marina Coast Water District 

 
 
By:    
 
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 
 

Resource Conservation District of 

Monterey County 
 
By:    
 
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 
 

 California State University Monterey Bay 

 
By:    
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 
 



 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 11 of 12 October 2018  

 

Carmel Area Wastewater District 

 

 

By:    

 

 

 

 

 

Date:  , 20____ 

 Carmel River Watershed Conservancy 

 

 

By:    

 

 

 

 

 

Date:  , 20____ 

Carmel Valley Association 

 

 

By:    

 

 

 

 

 

Date:  , 20____ 

 City of Carmel-by-the-Sea 

 

 

By:    

 

 

 

 

 

Date:  , 20____ 

City of Del Rey Oaks 

 

 

By:    

 

 

 

 

 

Date:  , 20____ 

 City of Pacific Grove 

 

 

By:    

 

 

 

 

 

Date:  , 20____ 

City of Sand City 

 

 

By:    

 

 

 

 

 

Date:  , 20____ 

 City of Seaside 

 

 

By:    

 

 

 

 

 

Date:  , 20____ 



 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 12 of 12 October 2018  

 

Monterey County Resource Management 

Agency 

 

 

By:    

 

 

 

 

 

Date:  , 20____ 

  

 
 



 
Marina Coast Water District 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
 
Agenda Item: 12-D      Meeting Date: May 20, 2019 
 
Prepared By: David Hobbs, Legal Counsel    Approved By: Keith Van Der Maaten 
 
Agenda Title: Discuss, Consider and Determine Action on Vice President Jan Shriner’s Request 

for Censure as to Director Peter Le 
 
Staff Recommendation: The Board of Directors discuss, consider, and determine action on Vice 
President Jan Shriner’s request for censure as to Director Peter Le.  
 
Background: 5-Year Strategic Plan Mission Statement – We provide our customers with high 
quality water, wastewater collection and conservation services at a reasonable cost, through 
planning, management and the development of water resources in an environmentally sensitive 
manner. 
 
On April 19, 2019, Vice President Shriner emailed President Moore requesting an agenda item be 
placed on the MCWD Board agenda “to consider censure for Director Le for expectations 
described by Board Procedures Manual.”  (See Attachment No. 1.)  In response to that request, 
President Moore sent Vice President Shriner a letter dated May 1, 2019.  (See Attachment No. 2.)  
The May 1, 2019 letter requested that Vice President Shriner provide specificity with regards to 
the basis of the request, along with any documents or facts she alleges would support her request 
such that the Board could make an informed decision.  On May 8, 2019, Vice President Shriner 
provided an email explanation and documents she believes relevant to her request.  (See 
Attachment No. 3.) 
 
Discussion/Analysis:  Board Procedures Manual (“BPM”) Section 41 (Director’s Violations of 
Policies) states: 
 
 Whenever the District, a Director or the General Manager receives a complaint or 
 concern regarding potential or alleged violation of policies by a Director or Directors, 
 the matter shall be reported immediately to the Board President.  If the President is the 
 subject of the complaint, the matter shall be reported immediately to the Vice President. 
 The Board President or Vice President shall immediately place the matter on the Board 
 agenda for the Board to discuss the alleged violation(s) and take appropriate action.  If 
 the matter(s) is serious, the Board President or Vice President may call a special 
 meeting to address the complaint.  If a Director breaches any of the policies contained 
 in Sections 5, 6, 8, 13, 14, 15, 16, 26, 38, and 40 the Board may, in addition to other 
 consequences provided by law, publicly censure the offending Director and may as part 
 of the censure take any or all of the following other actions, to be effective for a time 
 determined by the Board:  
 
  a)  Remove the offending Director from committees and representative positions to 
 which the Director has been appointed or designated by the Board or by the President,  
  b)  Prevent the offending Director from placing items on the agenda without the 
 specific, advance authorization of the Board. 
 



 
Vice President Shriner’s May 8, 2019 email states that her request for censure is predicated on her 
allegations that Director Le’s conduct violates BPM Sections 13 [Communications], 14 [Code of 

Ethics] or 15 [Comments by Directors Concerning District Staff Members]. 
 
Recommended Action:  The Board should vote on whether or not Vice President Shriner’s request 
for censure warrants an investigation by the Board and, if an investigation is warranted, what form 
that investigation should take, i.e., hiring of an independent firm to investigate and provide a 
determination to the Board.  In the event the Board determines to hire an independent investigator, 
the Board should consider holding a special meeting in the future in order to expedite the process, 
which is expected to take several months. 
 
Environmental Review Compliance:  None required. 
 
Financial Impact:             Yes       X     No    Funding Source/Recap:  None 
 
Other Considerations:  The Board may suggest changes to the response or provide additional 
direction on how to respond. 
 
Material Included for Information/Consideration: Attachment No. 1; Attachment No. 2; and, 
Attachment No. 3 with back up. 
 
Action Required:               Resolution       X       Motion                   Review 
(Roll call vote is required.) 
              

 
Board Action 

 
Motion By                      Seconded By                 No Action Taken    

 
Ayes       Abstained      
 
Noes       Absent            
 
  



Attachment 1 

From: Jan Shriner <DirectorShriner@mcwd.org>  
Sent: Friday, April 19, 2019 6:07 PM 
To: Thomas Moore <directormoore@mcwd.org> 
Cc: Keith Van Der Maaten <KVanDerMaaten@mcwd.org>; Roger Masuda <rmasuda@calwaterlaw.com> 
Subject: Request for agenda item for consideration 
 
I would like to place on a Board agenda the Board to consider censure for Director Le for expectations 
described by Board Procedures Manual. 
Jan  
 
 

mailto:DirectorShriner@mcwd.org
mailto:directormoore@mcwd.org
mailto:KVanDerMaaten@mcwd.org
mailto:rmasuda@calwaterlaw.com


May 1, 2019 

MARINA_ COAS� WATER� DISTRICT 

H RESERVATION ROA.D, MAFtl.NA, CA 93933-2099 
Home Page: �,;.rww .rncwd.o:rg 

TEL: (831) 384-6131 FAl'X: (831) 883-5995 

Dear Vice President Shriner, 

Attachment 2 

DIRECTORS 

THOMAS P. MOORE 

President 

JAN SHRINER 

Vice President 

HERBERT CORTEZ 

PETER LE 

MATT ZEFFERMAN 

As President of the Board of Directors, I have received your April 19, 2019 email, subject: 
"Request for agenda item for consideration," wherein your requested "to place on a Board 
agenda the Board to consider censure for Director Le for expectations described by Board 
Procedures Manual." As you know, the Board treats all requests for censure of a director very 
seriously, but the party seeking the censure against a sitting director must provide the Board with 
sufficient evidence supporting the request in order for the Board to determine whether an 
investigation is warranted. If an investigation is authorized by the Board, then the Board will 
consider the final investigation report and act on your censure request. 

Please provide me as Board President the following: 
1. A statement setting forth the specific sections of the Board Procedures Manual upon

which you base your request, and any other basis for your request.
2. Copies of all documentary evidence in support of your request.
3. All other evidence you believe supports your request.

Please provide all of the above to me by not later than 5 PM, Thursday, May 9, 2019. All 
materials and information you provide me will in tum be provided to the other Board members·, 
including Director Le. If you need an extension of time to provide all of the above, please don't 
hesitate to write me requesting an extension and your requested extension date. 

This letter also informs you that, as Board President, I have received an April 20, 2019 email, 
"Re: Complaint of Harassment" from Director Le against you. It is anticipated that your request 
and his complaint will be handled in parallel or jointly as determined by the Board. 

Please be advised that because both matters are against sitting directors that all evidence and 
statements are public records and must be publicly disclosed. 

Very wily yours, 

� J/M'J{i� B 
Thomas P. Moore 
President, Board of Directors 

cc: Directors Cortez, Le, and Zefferman 
Roger Masuda, Legal Counsel 
Keith Van Der Maaten, Board Secretary 



Attachment 3 

From: Jan Shriner 
Sent: Wednesday, May 8, 2019 8:09:32 PM 
To: Thomas Moore; Roger Masuda 
Subject: Supporting evidence consideration of censure Le  
  
Please confirm you received this email. 
 
At the time I first requested the agenda item on April 19, 2019, I was thinking that the behavior of 
Director Le has been deteriorating to poor behavior choices of 2013-2015. I do not want to return to 
challenges associated with impacting morale of the staff and increasing absenteeism of the Board. 
 
During his previous term Director Le was serving as an officer of the Board while I was not. He had been 
elected Vice President by the Board to serve with President Gustafson. At that time, I was more cautious 
about criticising or offering guidance to the Board officers. Now, I am attempting to offer some 
guidelines and reminders as an officer of the Board with 8 years of experience.  
 
The Board majority recently negotiated the contract for the current General Manager. He is generally 
held in high regards as a fair minded, intelligent, and reasonable representative of the District. He has 
treated me, the same way he treats other members of the Board, with respect. The Executive Assistant 
is also highly regarded in the community of public agencies of our region. Any criticism of the GM or any 
other District Staff work needs to be handled within the  District process. The Board has the ultimate 
responsibility for the direction and policies of the District. Therefore, any criticism of Board decisions, 
such as lack of policy for letterhead, should stay with the Board. 
 
The Board Procedures Manual (BPM) was again updated by the Board on April 15, 2019 Sections (13 
Communications, 14 Code of Ethics, as well as 15 Comments by Directors Concerning District Staff 
Members) are clearly being tested by Director Le while the Board is in Open Session. The BPM states 
that censure is possible for any breaches of policies contained in Sections 13, 14 or 15. 
 
Due to the allegations about me made by Director Le dating back to 1995, I will include the evidence 
collected by investigators dating back to 2013 for complaints about Director Le's behavior toward staff 
during open public meetings. The allegation of bullying and racism that the few emails I have sent (with 
the intent to offer guidance from the Board Vice President to a new Boardmember) is in itself a breach 
of 14. 
 
There was also a 2013 allegation of a Brown Act violation with the idea of making Director Le the 
General Manager. I will include the communications and findings of the alleged Brown Act violation with 
the evidence of his behavior toward District Staff.  
 
I have reviewed the digital recordings for the 2019 Board meetings and located approximate timings for 
the following recordings for criticisms of staff and occasional insults from Dir Le. The recordings can be 
found through the District website,  https://mcwd.org/governance_meetings.html 
 
February 19, 2019:  
Two Consent Agenda Items are pulled by Dir. Le. 
60 minutes, item 9D. Dir. Le: Well failure before you came on with the District or after you came on? 
Why wait so long? If process doesn't work? BPM Section 15 
 

https://mcwd.org/governance_meetings.html


Attachment 3 

70 minutes, item 9E. Dir. Le: Anything in writing from City of Seaside? Spend money, nothing in writing? 
We spend money, they say "oh sorry." (staff explain process) Dir Le: Willing to sell? (He interrupts 
answer) to say So I read through staff report. I didn't see any mention of standby generator. (Staff 
explain.) Dir Le:  concern for something in writing, on new lift station need a standby generator. Fifty 
year working no surprise fill up pond. Pond only designed for 10 year. Either do it right (trails off) BPM 
Section 14E 
 
94 minutes Dir Le makes a motion after clarifications by President Moore. Motion Dir Le: Obtain 
easement from City of Seaside before proceeding. Look at why you didn't negotiate with City. Stop 
hours. Additional planning for perc pond. Standby generator. Wording corrections. (Staff clarify that the 
motion is what they do, President Moore says this kind of motion just makes the direction for the work 
sound more explicit by the Board Members.) BPM Section 14D 
 
124 minutes Director Comments, Dir. Le states he has a matter for Board to address, give it to President. 
It is not seen by camera but apparently a letter in a sealed envelope marked confidential is passed from 
Dir. Le to Board President. BPM Section 13 
 
March 18, 2019:  
No consent agenda items pulled 
 
16 minutes, Dir Le corrects speaker without waiting to be recognized by presiding chair. BPM Sections 
13, 14B, and 27. 
 
83 minutes, 9B Maintenance Management Plan, Dir Le: So looking one year out, CIP replacement in 
draft budget we reserve so little (laughing) 100 to 200 thousand not meet the uh (trails off) BPM 
Sections 13, 14 E and 14G 
 
100 minutes, RUWAP construction contract amendment agenda item, Dir Le: What consultant do to 
submit final report to State or who will do it? When to file Notice of Condition (Completion)? Consultant 
and Sub-Consultant what report of labor compliance? So by the time they leave we're supposed to have 
100% right? (A question from a different Director is being responded to by Staff but Dir Le interrupts to 
correct staff.) BPM Sections 13, 14 D and J, 27 
 
107 minutes, BPM Agenda Item 
Dir Le: I request changes two months ago. My requested items not included. Can discuss my items and 
request manual to August. Very disappointed my requests on this item and now it's not, can not be 
discussed, restricted to this changes only so have to bring it back again. 
 
Dir Le: (for 5 more minutes) Page 8 Joint City District couple options but current format do we have a 
section on meeting of Board but I tried to find it so I didn't want to conflict with MSR so I didn't want to 
bring it up. (VP Shriner had mentioned it during MSR discussion) I don't know Staff can look in MSR I 
don't think it is correct.  (VP starts to explain and is interrupted) Dir Le: I have request in January request 
in writing, Staff bring back. That's two-three months waiting for just two items. BPM Sections 14 B and E, 
27. 
 
120 minutes same BPM 
Dir Le: Ask question in January in written format. Closed session 30 minutes is not enough, Four to five 
minutes per item not enough. My request for one hour. Not enough. Section 38 email about Board 



Attachment 3 

compensation $50 to $100. Waiting very long already that is my second request. BPM Sections 13, 14 C 
and E 
 
154 minutes Strategic Plan update 
Dir Le: page 175 first paragraph last sentence doesn't make any sense, re-work it. Page 181 Section 1.2 
target complete date that same question I asked on MSR. (During the clarifying comments Dir Le 
interrupts Keith 195, 196, 197 Keith tries to continue to explain but Dir Le interrupts Section 3, 4, 5, 6 
update. Dir Le is dissmissive.) BPM Sections 13, 14 B, E, L and 27 
 
There needs to be a motion to go beyond 10 pm  
 
168 minutes Request for future agenda items 
Dir Cortez 2 items for Dir Le 
Dir Le: two items pending since January same two items on BPM. (no acknowledgement of hearing Dir 
Cortez.) 
 
April 15, 2019:  
Dir Le pulled consent agenda A-E, leaving one item on consent and the took 69 minutes to complete 
consent agenda. 
 
17 minutes, Check Register, Dir Le starts by asking about water conservation incentive rebates and then 
switches to ask about staff processing methods for all invoices. BPM Section 14 D 
 
19 minutes, Approval of Minutes, Dir Le: Submit written questions at previous Board meeting so Board 
not surprised so decision of Board.(Pres Moore interrupts for clarification for Minutes?) Dir Le: Review 
questions of letter and discuss in closed session then consider the minutes after discussion. Closed 
session Item 4A I submitted to you. I made disclosure submitted questions last week after March 18.  
 
(Agency Counsel, Board President, and Dir Cortez all try to clarify for the Agenda Item to approve 
minutes of March 18.) 
 
Dir Le: No after March 18 have question emailed to District now disclosing. BPM Sections 13, 14 , 15 and 
32. 
 
24 minutes, Consumer Confidence Report 
Dir Le: So well 12 never worked never source of water? CCR shows 2 tests (out of several hundred) 
positive what location? Copper and lead when test again? Uranium when next test? 2013 in table. On 
the Radon 222 when the next test and last question for hardness what numerical value defines 
hardness? BPM Section 14 
 
35 minutes, 9E, Employee Handbook 
Dir Le: Was a personnel attorney consulted for Handbook? Ask question and no one can answer (laughs) 
postpone to next meeting. Quickly 52 section 9 why delete "10 minutes" how do you have consistency? 
Supervisor 5 minutes etc. Several questions more complicated, move to next meeting.  
 
(Discussion by other Board Members to limit the comments to 15 minutes.) 
 
Dir Le: Handbook approve two meetings ago for update on harassment, comment from Shriner smoking 



Attachment 3 

or something. Those are my questions. If we don't have staff here, to through my questions. What does 
Board want? I can go through all my questions. February approve certain conditions. I mentioned 
harassment training, Dir Shriner something smoking. This version include changes? I don't know where 
the changes. Staff report doesn't refer to the pages. Page 52 boss say late, I can sue the District, 
Maintenance can be 20 minutes late, how address no standard? One boss its ok another supervisor 
write it up. That's my first question. 
 
Page 91 Section13 explain 15 days changed to 5 days. (appeal process) 
 
Page 93 staff report page 31, first paragraph, upon retirement employee get a plaque but no mention of 
plaque. Those are all of my questions. 
 
(Some discussion of questions.) 
 
44 minutes, same item,  Employee Handbook 
Dir Le: not to my satisfaction. I don't know which page is the smoking. Missing the latest California law, I 
don't have the latest bill number. I read it and I don't have the number with me. The way I read the 
article, they amend and adopt last month or so. 
 
82 minutes, Allegations by Dir Le for the placement of names on letterhead and delay with website 
content as symptoms of racism. 
Dir Le: Light on for one minute for original complaint amend to include two employees, General 
Manager and Executive Assistant and request Board hire investigator. 
 
Dir Le: Allegations very serious.Staff involved are top level.Only thing to end this will be investigation to 
make a decision. Hire investigator, when you read the report, eye open for you. Not end tonight. Hire 
investigator, interview, you think you know everything. Quick way to make decision will not end. Public 
can read this finding. 
 
110-118 minutes, Agenda Item BPM Four changes, 
Dir Le: GM says I can have some question before I come here. Page 5 something about GM, GM make 
necessary changes. No revise order Staff to make someone responsible for this. Add one word staff. 
Need specific and clear who responsible. GM will direct staff to make changes. (Keith clarifies, for 
website, GM or designee) Dir Le: I want to skip 16D to come back later fairly complicated. Section 26 
page 17 Closed Session, Brown Act, my question one time for closed session, one item, can three 
directors discuss the one item outside closed session? (not recommended) Dir Le: for example, Cal Am 
closed session, not allowed? (attorney clarifies only 2) Dir Le: Section 23 page 15 ok I look at agenda for 
M1W, City of Marina, FORA, MPWMD, they very smart. Two item In closed session.Time to discuss 
important item. Marina one item, 2.5 hours, one item, one hour, they smart. We have 9 item, 30 
minute, never never enough time. MPWMD smart, real smart. One item, one-hour. That item very 
important. Other city thinking ahead. We just fixed. We vote to extend. We do what you want, not as 
smart as other cities. Arrange to have enough time. 
 
120 minutes, still BPM 
Dir Le: as counsel said, we have very restrictive compensation, $100 make it simple. Hourly increase 
$1/hour now $1.60/hour, nothing complicated. (other discussion regarding justification) Only 
justification we discussed a couple of times before more candidate for office only justification we 
discussed a couple of times before. 



Attachment 3 

 
134 minutes, still BPM but now the Section 16 regarding recusal, attorney communications 
Dir Le: page 11, item c someone explain to me what it means. Page 12 start at second sentence open 
session questions GM, President, Legal Counsel give examples I believe if question need to be ask of 
counsel then President and GM then cost to District. Say I have a question: 7 wells or 10 wells? Then I 
email that to GM and President. I don't need legal counsel. Do you pay X company $10,000 or $15,000? 
No need legal counsel. (others respond) Dir Le: I can keep going on and on. Should copy to Board 
President because you need to know before the meeting. Right now, no flexibility. You have started. You 
have urgency. GM may not know. You the only one. Go back to page 11. Some circumstance hard to 
work with. We can adopt way it is. Come back later. Today board meeting, I received three documents 
from attorney. But only has 5 pages of 15. I ask email other pages. Is that direction? Attorney say Board 
must agree. ( he laughs) Go with current version but some exception. We don't have full input. BPM 
Sections 13 and 14. 
 
165 minutes, BPM letterhead 
Dir Le: first of all is very odd. Look at 100,000 organizations In California normally list members, who are 
the members what they do, very odd. BPM Section 14 A 
 
209 minutes, Director Comments 
Dir Le: As I mentioned I like to see budget for RUWAP. See millions M1W, loans, pay to M1W, budget O 
& M. I like to see somehow I can find In budget. BPM Section 14  
 
In addition to these recordings, please review the attached documents. These are submitted as evidence 
to support assertion of a pattern of breaching BPM Sections 13, 14 and 15. 
 
For the behavior described in closed session or for emails received from Director Le with content that 
should be only discussed in closed session, I will not be submitting any evidence to support what I have 
stated earlier via email. 
 
Although some of us remember the negative social media campaigning, I have looked at "Next door" 
and not found the postings of 2018 campaign of Peter Le for Director. I have no evidence to offer about 
that comment in open Session. 
Jan 

 
From: Paula Riso 
Sent: Friday, March 1, 2019 8:49:49 AM 
To: Jan Shriner 
Subject: Peter Le Documents  
  
Hi Jan, 
  
Here are the documents surrounding Peter Le’s censure and the investigations related to the 
harassment claims. 
  
Thank you, 
Paula 
  



Attachment 3 

Paula Riso 
Executive Assistant 
Marina Coast Water District 
11 Reservation Road, Marina, CA 93933 
Direct 831-883-5910 
Fax 831-883-5960 
  
NOTICE: This communication may contain privileged or other confidential information. If you are not the 
intended recipient of this communication, or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this 
communication to the intended recipient, please advise the sender by reply email and immediately delete 
the message and any attachments without copying or disclosing the contents. Thank you. 
 



















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 
Marina Coast Water District 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
 
Agenda Item: 12-E      Meeting Date: May 20, 2019 
 
Prepared By: David Hobbs, Legal Counsel   Approved By: Keith Van Der Maaten 
 
Agenda Title: Discuss, Consider and Determine Action on Director Peter Le’s Harassment 

Complaint Against Vice President Jan Shriner   
 
Staff Recommendation: The Board of Directors discuss, consider, and determine action on 
Director Peter Le’s harassment complaint against Vice President Jan Shriner. 
 
Background: 5-Year Strategic Plan Mission Statement – We provide our customers with high 
quality water, wastewater collection and conservation services at a reasonable cost, through 
planning, management and the development of water resources in an environmentally sensitive 
manner. 
 
On April 20, 2019 Director Le emailed the District alleging that Vice President Shriner’s 
unsolicited email communications to him constituted a form of harassment and requested an 
agenda item be placed on the MCWD Board agenda “…to discuss my claim of harassment and 
take appropriate actions.”  (See Attachment No. 1.)  On May 1, 2019 Director Le provided a follow 
up communication to correct the date on his prior email (it was incorrectly dated February 20, 
2019).  (See Attachment No. 2.)  In response to his request, President Moore sent Director Le a 
letter dated May 1, 2019.  (See Attachment No. 3.)  The May 1, 2019 letter requested that Director 
Le provide specificity with regards to the basis of his request, along with any documents or facts 
he alleges would support his request such that the Board could make an informed decision – one 
of the issues with the prior communications was that only the body of Vice President Shriner’s 
emails were “cut-and-pasted” in Director Le’s letter, with no dates or source-information provided.  
On May 6, Director Le provided a response to the May 1, 2019 request for information.  (See 
Attachment No. 4.) 
 
Discussion/Analysis:  Board Procedures Manual (“BPM”) Section 41 (Director’s Violations of 
Policies) states: 
 
 Whenever the District, a Director or the General Manager receives a complaint or 
 concern regarding potential or alleged violation of policies by a Director or Directors, 
 the matter shall be reported immediately to the Board President.  If the President is the 
 subject of the complaint, the matter shall be reported immediately to the Vice President. 
 The Board President or Vice President shall immediately place the matter on the Board 
 agenda for the Board to discuss the alleged violation(s) and take appropriate action.  If 
 the matter(s) is serious, the Board President or Vice President may call a special 
 meeting to address the complaint.  If a Director breaches any of the policies contained 
 in Sections 5, 6, 8, 13, 14, 15, 16, 26, 38, and 40 the Board may, in addition to other 
 consequences provided by law, publicly censure the offending Director and may as part 
 of the censure take any or all of the following other actions, to be effective for a time 
 determined by the Board:  
  a)  Remove the offending Director from committees and representative positions to 
 which the Director has been appointed or designated by the Board or by the President,  



 
  b)  Prevent the offending Director from placing items on the agenda without the 
 specific, advance authorization of the Board. 
 
Director Le’s letter dated May 6, 2019 (received May 8, 2019) to the District asserts Vice President 
Shriner’s unsolicited emails violate BMP Section 5 [Harassment-Free Work Environment] and 
MCWD’s Employee Handbook Section 3.2 [Harassment]. 
 
Director Le’s letter also alleges that certain Directors are “biased” against him due to their 
campaigning in 2018.  To the extent Director Le is claiming the named Directors must recuse 
themselves from hearing and/or taking any action in this matter, such a claim is incorrect.  As there 
is no financial interest or other qualifying conflict at issue, all Directors are able to participate in 
this matter.   
 
Also, Director Le’s May 6, 2019 letter requests the basis upon which President Moore is authorized 
to request additional information.  First, Director Le’s own letter asking for this item to be placed 
on the agenda contained an invitation to “…let him know if you have any questions on my 
complaint.”  Secondly, as the Board is acting in a quasi-judicial manner regarding his request, 
basic rules of jurisprudence require that a party requesting the Board to take a certain action must 
put forth an offer of proof of the underlying claim, i.e., sufficient information such that the Board 
can make an informed decision as to the basis of the claim in order to move forward.  
 
Recommended Action:  The Board should vote on whether or not Director Le’s complaint against 
Vice President Shriner warrants an investigation by the Board and, if an investigation is warranted, 
what form that investigation should take, i.e., hiring of an independent firm to investigate and 
provide a determination to the Board.  In the event the Board determines to hire an independent 
investigator, the Board should consider holding a special meeting in the future in order to expedite 
the process, which is expected to take several months. 
 
Environmental Review Compliance:  None required. 
 
Financial Impact:             Yes       X     No    Funding Source/Recap:  None 
 
Other Considerations:  The Board may suggest changes to the response or provide additional 
direction on how to respond. 
 
Material Included for Information/Consideration: Attachment No. 1; Attachment No. 2; 
Attachment No. 3; and, Attachment No. 4. 
 
Action Required:               Resolution       X       Motion                   Review 
(Roll call vote is required.) 
              

 
Board Action 

 
Motion By                      Seconded By                 No Action Taken    

 
Ayes       Abstained      
 
Noes       Absent            
 



Attachment 1 

From: PETER LE [mailto:peter381@sbcglobal.net]  
Sent: Saturday, April 20, 2019 3:46 PM 

To: Thomas Moore; Herbert Cortez; Matt Zefferman 
Subject: Complain of Harassment - PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL 
  
  
February 20, 2019 
  
  
Board of Directors 
Marina Coast Water District 
11 Reservation Road 
Marina, CA 93933 
  
  
Re: Complaint of Harassment 
  
PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL 
  
  
Dear Fellow Directors: 
  
Even though the Board must devote its entire energy and resources to District 
businesses to serve all District customers, the Board must not tolerate any form 
harassment. And it's unfortunate that I must inform the Board of unacceptable conduct 
and behavior of Director Shriner and request that the Board investigates and takes 
appropriate actions to address my complaint of harassment.  
  
During my first term of service, between 2012 and 2016, I received unwanted emails 
from Director Shriner. I asked her to stop sending me unwanted emails and she did 
stop. 
  
After the recent election in 2018, Director restarted sending me unwanted emails again. 
  
On April 19, 2019 I received another email from Director Shriner. I replied and asked 
her not to send me any unwanted email. I also warned her that I would file a complaint if 
she ignored my request and send me additional email. Director Shriner ignored my 
request and sent me another unwanted email. 
  
I also informed Director Shriner on April 19, 2019 that I did not asked for her emails and 
I did not want to receive her emails. I also informed Director Shriner that her unwanted 
emails are a form of bullying, harassment and racism. I asked her to stop sending me 
unwanted emails and she ignored my request. 
  
It's strange that Director Shriner previously claimed she was a victim of harassment and 
now she become a harasser. In and about 1995, Director Shriner filed a harassment 
lawsuit against the District. Additionally, after being elected to the MCWD Board of 

mailto:peter381@sbcglobal.net


Attachment 1 

Directors, Director Shriner also filed a claim of harassment against the District and the 
MCWD General Manager at that time also filed a claim of harassment against her. 
  
I include with this claim some unwanted emails that I received from Director Shriner. 
  
I request that the Board place my claim on a Board agenda to discuss my claim of 
harassment and take appropriate actions.  
  
I look forward to receive the responses from the Board on my complaint. 
  
  
Sincerely, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
Peter Le  
Director 
  
  
  
  
Past emails: 
  
Please refresh my memory. Are you referring to a threat you made to me of filing a formal 

complaint made in 2015 just before you quit the Board?  

 

I have not received any such request or any justifiable reason for such a request from you 

this past year. 

 

Please read the Board Procedures Manual for ethics and expectations of civil behaviour and 

revise your communications accordingly. 

 

Vice President Shriner  
  
  
Dear Jan,  

I previously asked you to stop sending me email and you did stop.  

Now you restart sending me emails again. I didn't want to receive your emails. I didn't ask for 
your emails.  

To me, your emails are a form of bullying, harassment and racism.  



Attachment 1 

If I receive another unwanted and not-asked email from you, I will file harassment claim against 
you personally. This is a final warning to you.  

I also send a copy of this email to the District's Legal Counsel to put the District on notice that I 
will file harassment claim against you and the District.  

If you want to discuss a matter related to me, place it on the Board agenda so the Board can 
discussed your concern. 

Peter Le  
  
  
  
  
Director Le, 

I am offended by your statements made to media and in the open session of our last Board 

meeting. 

 

There is a generally accepted expectation that board members represent a positive attitude 

toward the organisation that he or she serves. That would be the reason for wanting to 

provide public service and volunteerism. Please provide the the reasons you serve on the 

board as a volunteer. 

 

Review pages 2, 9 and 10 and follow up with section 13 "The Board and the individual board 

members will be committed to establishing and maintaining an environment that 

encourages the open exchange of ideas and information among Board members, the staff 

and the public, that is positive, honest, respectful, concise, understandable, responsive, and 

cost-efficient." 

 

Do not use any kind of comparative statement to imply other members of MCWD, 

volunteers or staff, are not smart. This was done in the last two board meetings and is 

viewed as violation of board procedure manual in my opinion. 

 

If you have suggestions for direction and policy making, please offer those and do not take 

it personally if the recommendation is not affirmed by three votes. 

 

If people are not answering your questions immediately, it may be that the topic is untimely 

or considered a distraction from the work immediately at hand. I recognize that you have 

not answered my questions since 2012. I do not take that personally or in any way as an 

example of disrespect as the lack of answers has nothing to do with me, only demonstrates 

a lack of capacity of either time or comprehension on the part of the person asked. 

 

I noticed a degree of surprise on your face when the rest of the Board was interested in 

waiting for the president of the Board to adjourn the meeting while you were walking 



Attachment 1 

toward the door. This activity of yours appears disrespectful to the degree might be called 

"contempt"of the rest of the Board and of the democratic process. In the future, I expect 

you to listen respectfully, wait to be called on before speaking, and wait for president to 

adjourn the meetings.  

 

Show respect for staff, volunteers and consultants of MCWD. The negative campaign of Le 

for Director of MCWD 2018 has ended. The hard work of representing and unifying our 

community is the current work. Time for you to shift your thinking and behaviour to be 

more positive and professional, to behave consistent with the office you have been elected 

to as Director of the Board. 

 

If there is uncertainty about what that would look like, there are life coaches, classes, and 

webinars to help you to modify your work to be more successful in collaborating. Director 

Cortez mentioned that he knows you are smart, you don't need to prove that. It is important 

to accept others are as smart. I remember former Director Bill Lee was quite proud of his 

affiliation with a high IQ club. My sense is that we could all be part of that if we wanted to 

take the test and pay the fees. 

Vice President Shriner 
  
  
Hello Peter, 

It has been a few years since you were on the board. I would like to offer reminders. 

 

1. During the last meeting the agenda item for the page 158 is "Receive the Developer 

Account Update through December 31, 2018." The action described in the title is to receive. 

It is also important to understand it to fully receive it so it is good to ask clarifying 

questions. But open session is not a time to offer advice or direction to staff about the 

methods of making a report. Effective Board members keep a big picture view. Brent Ives 

used the analogy of an airplane at 10,000 feet and the Board as pilots and navigators. We 

don't need to go down the aisle with the beverage cart, we trust the cabin staff to also be 

working hard. They trust us to communicate about turbulence and preparations for landing 

but pilots don't count napkins or make sure there is enough ice. 

 

2. Recent letters to FORA and Mayor Carbone are unusual for any director of the Board. The 

Board is a unit and there are committees to work through. If a resident has established a 

pattern of writing to agencies and then joins the Board, the letter writing pattern is 

reasonable and would be expected to taper off with experience and knowledge of how the 

Board functions and how to be a most effective Board member. 

 

3. Requesting old documents from 2010 is kind of like counting napkins. Now let's figure 

out the next 10-50 years. 

 



Attachment 1 

Please bear in mind the best possible actions for the District and the direction of the future 

of the District. You are very intelligent and hard-working. When these characteristics are 

applied with future focus and empathy, we will all be a stronger team. 

All the best and happy first day of spring, 

Jan 
  
  
Hi Peter, 

Please ask questions during closed session regarding lawsuits, such as those listed in your 

list 1-4. 

 

When the president asks the Board in closed session if anyone has any other questions, 

then  it would be appropriate to say "yes, I have more questions." then the president will 

know to re-open closed session after the open session. 

 

Some of your questions in #1 are difficult to answer but maybe because so many different 

people are involved like a judge and opposing legal teams so please be patient for the 

answers. 

 

Work with the Board president to help refine the questions for the specific legal 

representative instead of making this kind of complicated and broad approach. 

 

Keep in mind, staff are burdened with grief and working on lawsuits by traveling to San 

Francisco this week. Practice compassion, empathy, and understanding. 

Jan  
  
  
  
This electronic mail (including any attachments) may contain information that is 
privileged, confidential, and/or otherwise protected from disclosure to anyone other than 
its intended recipient(s). Any dissemination or use of this electronic email or its contents 
(including any attachments) by persons other than the intended recipient(s) is strictly 
prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please notify us immediately by 
reply email so that we may correct our internal records. Please then delete the original 
message (including any attachments) in its entirety. Thank you. 
 

 




















































	Item 11-F - MCWD_A Tanks_SW Proposal.pdf
	Insert from: "Item 11-F - MCWD_A_Tanks_RevisedScope.pdf"

	Item 11-H - Imjin LS Amendment Scope and Fee Proposal 5-7-2019.pdf
	Imjin LS Amendment Proposal 5-2-19
	Raymond Wong, PhD, PE, CFM, LEED AP Project Manager

	Cost Proposal Imjin Amendment May 2019
	Cost Proposal



	Return to Agenda: 


